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Welcome to our Annual
report and accounts 2022

Meeting the
energy challenge

At SMS, we are delivering on our Carbon Reduction
('CaRe’) agendaq, originating assets which address
the energy challenges of cost, security of supply and
sustainability. Through these smarl energy solutions,
and by serving our customers across the industrial,
commercial and domestic markets, we are building
long-term value for all our stakeholders,

Tim Mortlock
Chief Executive Officer
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Performance
highlights

Financial

Alternative performance measures’

Index-linked annualised recurring  Pre-exceptional EBITDA
revenue {[LARR)

£971M.s  £63.8M .2

(2021: £85.9m) (2021: £52.8m)

uUnderlying profit before taxation Underlying basic earnings per share

£24.5M e 16.060 s

(2021; £18.3m) {2021: 9.40p)

Statutory performance measures

Revehue Statutory EBITDA
£135.5M.zs £57.1M 25
{2021: £108.5m) (2021: £46.3m)

Statutory profit before taxatlon Statutory basic earnings per share
£1 6.0' I l +92% 1 1 .1 6 p +248%

(2021: £8.3m) (2021; 3.20p)

1 Refer to page 74 for definitions and details of the Group’s alternative performance megsures,
whichinciude ILARR, pre-exceptional ERITDA, undertying profit before taxation and undertying
pasic sarnings per share,

2 Al December 2022 and December 2021 respectivaly,

QOperational

Assets uhder management

Smart meter assets
2,108,000 (2021: 1,668,000)  +26%

I&C meter assets
106,000 (2021: 105,000) +1%

Traditional meter

assets
251,000 (2021: 277,000) 9%

Data gssets
410,000 (2021: 449,000) ~9%

Third-party assets
1,575,000 [2021:1,746,000)  -10%

Pipeline

Contracted smart meter order
pipeiine net of Installations?

c.2.17 million

(2021: ¢,2.55 million)
0.10 million contract win and
Q.48 million installations in 2022

Grid-scale battery storage portfolio?

760mMw

(2021: 620MW)
includes 140MW operational {2021; nil)
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Qur purpose, strategy and culture

Delivering
smart energy
solutions

SMSis at the heart of the low-carbon, smart
energy revolution that is pivotal to realising
a greener, mote sustdainable world.

With aver 25 vears of heritage and expetience, we have

an exceptlonal understanding of the UK energy market
and how it s changing. As leaders in defivering and funding
smart energy infrastructure and the technologies required
to decarbonise, we are playlng a critical role in achleving
our nation’s climate targets,

As an organisation, we dre uniquely positioned to help
effect reod and enduring transformatlion.

"Qur strategy is led by our
purpose and values — and
by first investing in our people,
who put our customers at the
heart of what we do, we can
continue to build long-term
value for our shareholders.”

Judy Keir
Chief People Officer

Our purpose is to
serve our customers
and protect the
environment.

Our strategy is the
continuous delivery
of long-term value for
all stakeholders.

Our culture is to put
our people first.

Our five core values
capture who we are,
what we believe in,
and what we stand for.
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Governance

Our purpose Is why we exist and it creates an expectation for
our custorners and reflects a promise from us. At our core we
are anorganisation that cares about people — committed to
our emptoyees, our customers and our communities.

Curimmediate goatis carbon reduction, with the ultimate
target of net zero curbun e nissiui s,

Our strategic framework is structured into four key priorities:

1 2

Customer
excellence and
efficient delivery

Expanding long-
term, resilient and
recurring cash
flows from carbon
reduction assets
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We use our technology, datg, finance ond engineering skills
and knowledge to provide Innovatlve energy solutions for
our customers. Through our services we are changing how
businesses and consumers access and use energy thereby
reducing carbon emisslons.,

3 4
Efficient capital Sustainable
allecation to and socially
provide responsible
headroom for business
growth

These are underpinned by our focus on continuing to deliver iong-term value for our shareholders whilst also serving
our customers, protecting the environment and locking after our pecple. This framework provides d clear strategic vision,

built on secure foundations,

Find out more on page 20

Qur culture is underpinned by our live core values: safety,
Innovation, customer excellence, sustainability and pride.
These capture who we are, what we believe |n, and what
we stund for, They drive the behaviours we wish to see
dermonstrated throughout our business practices.

We strive to provide an environment and experience that
embeds these values on a consistent basis, building an
enjoyable and healthy workplace that is open and positive
towards change.

We ensure that all employees take responsibility for their
own behaviour at work. A shared understanding of what is
expected and what is acceptable to others, and consistency
of approach from all employees, [s essential.

Our values are not just slogans: we believe in them. We stand by them.

Safety Innovation

Customer

Sustainability Pride

excellence

Find out more on paga 60
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At aglance

A tully integrated

qurt energy 760MW

Grid-scale

battery storage
Facilitating the
low-carbon transition |

Find out more on page 16

Portfolio secured

infrastructure iy

company

We are ¢ fully integrated, end-to-end
energy infrastructure company which

Solar, storage

and heat
Helping consumers
become energy
self-sufficient

owns, installs and manages carbon Find out more on page 17
reduction (‘'CaRe") assets.
Our established CaRe verticals include: £60m
» Meter gssets UK Government
investmant in heat
» Grid-scale battery storage pump innovation

= Behind-the-meter smart solor ond storoge
» Electric vehlicle {(EV) infrastructure

« Energy services

« Energy data

We intelligently optimise these low~-carbon assets
using our in-house technology platform, METIS.

We are helping to build a smarter, greener and more
affordable energy system — and in deing so, we create
recurring revenue streams for our business, long-term
sustainable value fer all our stakeholders and, above all,
a positive social and environmental impact.

We gre playing a critical role in achleving the UK's
climate targets.

1 AtDecemhber 2022,
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Energy data
Optimising the
energy system

Find out more on page 16

410,000

data assets

Over
20 vedrs

experence In
delivering energy
aefficiency

Energy services
Maximising energy savings
Find nut mare nn page 29
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EV infrastructure
Decarbeonising transport

Find out more on page 17

18 million

etectric vehicles

onUKroads
by 2030

Smart meters

Helping consumers

manage their costs
Find out mora on pags 14

Over
2 million

Smart maters
owned
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Chairman’s statement

Executing

our strategy

“Our results again demonstrate the resilience of our
business model which is underpinned by recurring
cash flows from long-term assets.”

Miriam Greenwood
Non-executive Chairman

We have seen another eventful yearin
the energy market with the invasion of
Ukralne creating not only significant
hurnan suffering In that country, but
also unprecedentad turmoil and
volatility in the price of energy. The
impact on the cost of living has kept
enargy costs front and centre in the
public’s mind, SMS has focused on the
continuing and steady delivery of its

strategy during this challenging perlod.

Performance

Desplte the turbulence across the
energy sectar, we kept focused over
2022 on delivering our strategic plan.
The key priorities for the year were
continuing to build our smart meter
partfolio and proving that we could
convert our grid-scale battery storage
pipeline Into profitable jong-term
assets, We made excellent progress
Inhoth these areas,

We continued to improve our smart
meter installation run-rate Installing
480,000 over the year. This hasled to
our index-linked annualised recurring
revenue growing 13% yedar-ocn-year.
The smart meter roll out s scheduled
Lo run to 2025 and we currently have

a contracted smart meter order
pipeline of afurther ¢.2.17 million
meters to install which will increase our
long-term revenue-generating assets.

Our first grid-scale battery storage site
ot Burwell became operationdl in
January 2022 and has performed
ahead of our initicl expectations. Cur
next twa sites became aperationalin
December, and we now have 140MW
of battery storage assets generating
revenue. We have aiso continued to
build eur grid-scale battery pipeline
with our portfolio now standing at
840MW at 28 February 2023.

We dlso continued to Investin
developing our capabllities in electric
vehicle charging and energy data
manggement; areas where we can
meet emerging market needs, We can
see the continuing scope for growth in
our established and developing CaRe
asset classes reinforcing the long-term
opportunity for the business.

Health, scfety and

sustainability

The safety and welfare of our people
continues to be owr first pricrity and |
am pleased to say that we had zero
reportable injuries for the second year
running. You can redd more about our
work in these areas in our Sustainability
section on pages 36 to 61.

Sustainability fs at the heart of what we
do at SM$, and our products and
services have carbonreduction as their
godl, We measure this as our ‘handprint’
- the amount of carban emissions
mitigated by our customers using our
preducts and services. The positive
impact of our 2022 handprint was
63,495 tonnes of CO2 emissions which
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Governance

Principal decisions

Financlal statements

On the pages listed inthe table below we have provided examples
of how the Board duly considered the impact on stakehaelders when

making principal decisions during 2022:
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Principol decislon Page Key stakeholders Impacted Key
Strateglc Investment in n3rgy 25 Shareholders Employees
data platform
Strategic investment in 30 Lenders Regulatory bodies
Clenergy EV
Customers Suppliers
Approvatl of a one-off discretionary 52
cost-of-living payment to most staff Government

was 14,5 times the negative impact
of our Scope 1. and Scope 2 carbon
footprint (see page 50).

We also made tangible progress over
the yedr on our ‘net zero by 2030°
target for our business, We have been
upgrdding the fabric of our Cardiff site
by installing solar panels and battery
storage. When complete, we expect the
improvements to reduce building
emissions by 70%. We have also tested
hybrid vans and will be commencing
our fleet transition by Introducing 100
miid hyborid vans to the fleet In 2023,

Our people

Al SMS we recognise thatit is our
people that deliver our achievements.
We therefore place great emphasis on
developing our employees and creating
a positive and healthy workplace. Cur
comimitment to developing and
supporting our staff was recognised

by us achieving Investors in People
Sliver accreditation, one of a number of
initiotives we have dellvered in this area.

We are also conscious of our
responsibllity to provide our employees
the security they need. We have beena
‘Living Wage’ employer since 2020 and
during 2022 also became an accredited
‘Living Hours' erployer. To help our
employees who may be experiencing
pressure from the incredsed cost of
living, we also made ¢ one-off
discretlonary payment: to most of our
staff to help them through this winter
and we brought forward implementation
of 20235 Living Wage increase.

Dividend

Two years ago, we set out our policy

to grow our dividend by 10% each year
through to 2024 and we are therefore,

proposing a 30.25p per share dividend
inrespect of FY 2022, Two of the four
equal quarterly instalments have
already been paild, In October 2022
and January 2023, We remain confident
of the Group's prospects and expect

to maintain our dividend policy until
2024 s stoted.

Board changes

In Cctober, we announced that Gavin
Urwin was stepping dewn as Chief
Financial Officer to take up another
oprortunity. The Board was pleased to
appolnt Gail Blaln as Chief Financlal
Officer to take over from 1 December
2022, Gail has been with the Group
since 2016 in the role of Group Financial
Controller. Over that time, she has
worked closely with our Chief Executive
Cfficer, Tim Mortlock, and has
developed an |n depth understanding
of our business. She has playved a key
role In developing all areas of finance
and In providing strategy support to
the leddership team. Gavin |s remaining
avagilable to the Group until 31 March
2023 te ensure a smooth handover.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Gavin for his contribution to SMS
ond | wish him well In his future career,

Gall's appolntment I1s further testament
to our succession planning and abllity
to develop intemal talent.

Governance

The Board remains committed to

the highest standards of corporate
governance. One feature of this
governance has been the completion of
our annual board seff-evaluation process
which this year has been facilitated with
extermal input to support the Board in
ensuring a rigorous review focused
continual improvement.

/1ot

SME's approach to stakeholder
engagement s set out in more detail
on pages 37 to 41 and our section 172
statement is set out on page 37,

The Annual report and accounts will
enable stakeholders to assess how
effectively the Board, supported by the
executive leadership team and other
amployees, promofed the success of
SMS durlng the year, specifically with
respect to our obligations pursuant to
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.
'Decision—making in practice’ case
studies dispersed throughout the Annuol
report and accounts explainthe principal
declsions taken inthe year and how the
interests of relevant stakeholder groups
were considered. A summary ofthese
decisions is provided above.,

Looking to the future

The turbulence of the energy market

In 2022 has focused attention on the
global challenges of energy affordability,
sustalnability and security. | believe this
attention has driven much wider
recognition of the benefits that our
carpon reduction assets, such as smart
meters and grid-scale batteries, bring.

SMS wilt continue to meet this energy
challenge and play its partin
transitioning the UK to o more flexible
and sustainable energy system and
enabling the move to net zero. The
Board therefore continues to focus on
our established strategy, and under the
strong leadership of our executive team
we look to the future with confidence.

Miriam Greenwood
Non-executive Chairman
14 March 2023

OreasusnrA




08 Smart Metering Systems plc Annual report and accounts 2022

Chief Executive Officer’'s statement

Delivering on our
sustainable promises

“Listening to customers is critical to our success
in realising a greener, more sustainable future.”

Tim Mortlock
Chief Executive Officer

Never has the energy industry
beenmore at the forefront of the
national agenda than during 2022,
with energy security, affordabllity
and sustainability proving to be
fundamental challenges affecting
all of soclety. | am proud that SMS
continues torespond to these
chailenges by dellvering carbon
reduction {'CaRe") ussets and
solutdons which directly address
eachof themn, both for our
customers and end consumers.

Like many others, cur company

Is increasingly judged not only on

its financial performance, which

has again been extremely strong

in 2022, outperforming upgraded
expectgtions (see more detail In the
Flnanclal review on page 70), but also
on the contribution it makes to soclety.

For us, sustalnabillty Isn't just o
hecdline. We see it as being at the
heart of our purpose. We belleve

we have an obligation to serve our
customers and to provide solutions
which benefit all of society — butwe
can enly do this If we continue to
promote the wellbeing of our workfarce
alongside providing a secure long-term
return for our shareholders. This starts
by listening to our stakeholders, and

over the last vear there were two
priorities for our business — dellvering
on our smart meter order pipeline

and proving the returns on grid-scale
batteries. We have operationally and
financially delivered in both these
criticat areas in 2022, and | am confident
this gives us the platform to grow
recurring revenues within these core
CaRe assetsand beyond.,

smart meter delivery

We are dellghted to hove grown and
delivered on our smart meter order
pipeline over the last year. We built

our smart meter installation run rate
to €.45,000 per monthin the second
half of the year, and installed ¢.480,000
meters over the course of the year
exceeding our target of 450,000 —
€.12% of all new smart meters in the UK
{2021; 9.4%). This resulted In anIncretise
in our index-finked annualised recurring
revenue {ILARR) from metering and
data assets to £97.1m at year end.

This success followed continued
investment: in our engineering capacity,
particularly in the latter part of 2021
and first half of 2022, which we have
been able to support due to the
long-~term security of the recurring
revenues that flow from these assets,
and the strength of our continued
order pipeline.
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investment case

01. At the heart of enabling
the low-carbon revolution

Leadersin delivering and funding smart
energy Infrastructure qssets, with aver

25 years' experience. We have committed
to our own ambltion of net zero by 2030.

Seemore onpuges 42to 50

03. Fully integrated, scalable
platform with well-established

industrial partnerships
An industry-leqding centrgl, cloud-~based
IT and data platform - METIS — backed

by a nationwide engineering workforce and
decades of strong industrial relatlonships.

5@ more onpuges 22 to 35

05. Robust, sustainable
dividend policy underpinned
by existing asset base

10% compound onnual growth rate (CAGRY N
dividends untll 2024 is secured by long-term,
sustainable cash flows generated from our

existing portfolio of metering, data and
grid-scale battery assets,

See mora on pages 70to 75
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02. Strong growth platform
reinforced by accelerated
transition towards
decarbonisation

Continued momentumin securing meter,
grid-scale battery and other Calle assets
pipeline, with substantial additional
oppartunities underpinned by the UK
Government's net zero ambition.

Sea more onpages 22te 35

04, Strong liquidity position

Low net debt coupled with strong intermnal
cash generatlan provides liquldity to fund
the existing pipelines and secure additional
growth oppattunities.

Saemore onpages 7010 75

04, Highly expertenced
management team committed

to delivering shareholder value
A balanced and effective Board and senior
management team provide the capability

to successfully navigote a fast-changing
energy landscaope.

See more onpages 78 to 79
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Chief Executive Officer's statement continued

At the year end this pipeline, net of
Installations, stood at ¢.2.17 million. With
annual binding installation targets on
energy suppfiers throughto the end of
2025 to deliver the smart meter roliout,
we will continue te incrementally invest
in cur engineerng capacity and supply
chain to deliver this critical infrastructura.

The index-linked nature of our revenues
aiso ensures we have significant
protection from the current inflationary
environment. Our continued investment
in our supply chain, our meter stock and
the efficiency of our delivery model
together with this Index linkage ensures
that, desplte the impact of inflation,

the returns on our incremental caphal
Investment in meters will remain at least
inline with our previous guldance. Inthis
way, retums from the pipeline are
secured —further reinforcing the
defensive nature of the asset class.

I believe that 2022 also sow ased
change in the public understanding

of and support for smart metering -
end consumers now demanding smart
meters to allow better visibility and
control over their consumption and
energy costs. At the same time, recent
threats to our energy security have
only Increased the need to manage
consumptian, particularly ot peax
periods or when renewable generation
is low. National Grid's introductlon of
its ‘Demand Flexibility Service' (DFS),
which pays people with smart meters
to use less energy ot times of stress

on the network, is just the start of this
lang-term drive to gain flex'bility from
using data, You can read more about
the DFS scheme and how we are
enabling energy supnliers to
participote on page 26.

Batteries are critical to

energy security and net zero
We have been talking to our
stakeholders for several years about
how energy storage is critical to the
long-term security and sustainability
of our energy system, We are therefore
delighted that our first 50MW project
went live In January 2022 and that we
ended the year with a total of 140MW
of opergtlonal grid-scale battery
starage capacity. A significant highlight
of the year has been praving that this
asset class can help integrate
intermittent renewable generation to
the energy network and can generate
attroctive lOng-term revenues.

Similar to the change in the public's
perception of smart meters, events

in 2022 have driven a greater
understanding of the long-termneed
for grid-scale battery storage. The

war in Ukraine exacerbated concern
about the security of our energy supply
and {nits July Future Energy Scenarios
report, National Grid increased its
forecast requirement for grid--scale
battery storage by ¢.5.8GW to c14.1GW
by 2030.

Having the capability to rapidly
develop, build and operate these
projects — particularly in the face of grid
connection constraints — to address this
market need is cleqrly vital, and for that
reason | am dellghted that we continued
to grow our portfoilo of projects during
2022 to 760MW ot 31 December 2022,
Since then, we have added afurther
two SOMW projects under exclusivity
bringing the portfolic to BGOMW. Within
that portfolic, $1T0MW has now been
fully secured and is either operationai
or 'shovel-ready’.

We have demonstrated our capability .
to develop and deliver on this pipeline
within our capex guidance, but of equal
importance was that in 2022 we proved
the return on investment. We were
delighted therefore that we dellvered
revenues significantly ohead of our
previous expectations, equivalent to i
an annualised ¢.£123,000 of EBITDA
per MW, The majority of the revenues
were generated from the provision of
frequency services, and whilst we
expect those to soften over time, there
is a parallel and long-term requirement
to provide bhalancing services to the
naitional energy network. This will
enable d smarter and lower-carbon
energy system, reducing peak energy 1
costs and underpinning national ‘
energy security.

| was delighted to host an Investor site
visit to our first 50MW operational site
at Burwell in Octaber, which you can
reqad about onpage 38,

Serving our customers
Listening to and serving our customers
remalns at the haart of our purpose —
and this means delivering operotional
excelience every single day, This starts
with health and safety where | am
pletsed to say we nave again shown
industry-leading performance across
our key performance measures:

zero reportable njurles or dangerous
occurrences (RIDDOR incidents)

malintained industry-leading
performance on Lost Time, Non-Lost
Time and Total Recordable Incident
Fredquency Rates

continued impravement, and ahecd
of target, In group technicat
performance

» no significant incidents ot our growing
portfolio of grid-scale battery sites

We have also continued to focus

on our Net Promaoter Score {(NPS),
performance agalnst Industry
guaranteed standards and customer
complaints, all of which have again
shown continudl Improvement and
are ahead of target.
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The efficiency of our operations is
also clearly Important, We grew our
engineering and installation capacity
early in the year while keeping job
completions per englneerin line

with aur expectations.,

You can read more about our
operational performance on
pages 32 to 35.

CaRe growth

2022 demonstrated the contlnued
security and stabllity of our business
model and that we can execute on our
strategic growth plan. Delivering cur
existing smart meter and grid-scaie
battery plpelines alone will more than
double the EBITDA of our business,
hefore taking Into account the net
positive impact of Inflation on our
index-linked recurring revenues,

However, the most exciting part of our
buslness is the further opportunity to
grow beyond these contracted and
secured pipelines. | have qlready
referred to the expected grid~scale
battery storage market size by 2030,
but in addition to this, smart meters ore
enabl’ng a more dynamic, digital and
flexible smart energy system to be built
—which we will nead if we are to resolve
the significant security, affordability
and carbon challenges we face.,

The Natlonal Grid DFS service points to
afuture where half-hourly smart meter
consumption data is central to the
control, management and aggregation
of behind -the-meter solutlons, such as
local selor and storage, and to controlling
increasing peak demand from the
electrification of transportation and
heat. Ourtechnology platforms can
facilitate this new energy system, by
delivering on mandatory half-hourly
settlement for energy suppliers whilst
optimising the use of energy to balance
the energy grd and respond to price
signals — just kke we do at the grid-
scclle level,

Bringing together this technology and
our energy knowledge and engineering
capacity enables us to develop our
asset deployment capability in wider
CaRe solutions. For example, we can
originate, own and operate electric

Financial statements

vehicle charging infrastructure and in
some cases link this te local generation
and storgge to optimise the cost and
use of energy. These solutions are
closety dligned to our existing skiils and
capabllities, and again address the key
chailenges of our time.

The technical solutions to address
these themes of securlty, affordability
and sustainability ciready exist and
that Is why | feel that at SMS we have
an obligation to use our platformto
deliver these emerging solutions,
support the path to net zero and
reduce energy costs forend
consumers. In doing so we will also
continue to securely grow our business,
our asset base and our returns for the
benefit of dil our stakehoiders,

Qur pecple

Our values underpin our entire business,
and nowhere |s this more apparent
than in our greatest asset — our people.

You canread mare about the signifilcant
effort we have made into 'Putting our
people first’ on pages 51 to 55, but the
highlight for me is being able, post-
pandemilc, to see first-hand the pride
our stoff take In gelivering our services
across the country.

Iwas aiso pleased In October to launch,
with the Rt Hon Justine Greening, our
‘Levelling Up Impact Report’ setting
out cur commitment, in partnership
with the Purpcse Codlition, to levelling
up through the framework of the
Levelling Up Goals.,

Sustainability underplns everything we
do at SMS. This means not Just doing
what we can to help our environment; it
also means bullding a long-term secure
business for all our stakeholders, ond
contributing to the prosperity of people
and saciety In general. We agim to
achieve this positive irmpcct through
responsible corpordte governance, as
much as through the direct and indirect
effects of our innovative energy
solutions. That means promoting
policies that prioritise wellbeing, open
recruitment, and fair career progression,
as well as nurturing o truly diverse and
inclusive workforce.
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L_ooking forward

Cur focus remalns on executing
our strategic growth plan over the
coming year;

« installing ¢.600,000 smart meters
to continue to build our ILARR;

bui.ding out our secured pipeline
of grid-scale battery projects and
continuing to evidence the returns
at least in line with cur updated
guidance;

growing these smart meter and
grid-scale battery pipelines further;

building the opportunity pipeaiine in
wlder CoRe assets, suchas EV
charging infrastructure cand behind-
tha-meter solutions such as solar
and storage; and

leveraging our technology platforms
to enable a smart, data-driven,
energy system.

We have consistently demonstrated
our ability to fund and deliver on this
growth agenda and we believe that
the cpportunity ahead of us in terms
of market skze is very significant, It is
incumbent on us to deliver on those
opportunities for the benefit of all our
stakeholders.

I'would once again like to thank all our
staff, leadership team and Beard, who
continue to work passlonately to help
deliver our purpose —itls a privilege

to leqd an organisation withsuch g
committed workfarce. My thanks alse
to alf our customers for their continued
suppert and parthership.

| am proud of what we have delivered
this vear and excited by the enormous
potentlal we ¢can achieve in the years

ahead. T‘(S W
Tim Mortlock

Chief Executive Officer
14 March 2023
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Market overview

The changing energy

landscape

The net zero 2050 legislation underpins the critical
energy transformation happening in the UK today.

It1s clear that increasing Intemmittent renewable generation will
have a fundamental Impact on the future of our energy networks.
Furthermare, in additlon to this transition to sustainable generation,
ongoing geopolitical tensions have reinforced the need to deliver
this change ina way that also addresses both energy security and
the cost-of-energy crisis.

The energy landscape is therafore dominoted by the need to create
an equilibrium hetween decarbonlsation, energy security and the
cost of energy — and to do sa requires significont Investments in
technaologies and assets which provide flexibility and resllience to
the energy system,

Over the last decade, the UK has been transitioning away from

a system of centralised and highly predictabie generation to one
dominated by distributed intermittent renewable generation.
However, given that renewable generation is neither forecastable
nor controllable, this unpredictabillty is Impacting the grid and aiso
making the energy system less reliable at a time when we see the
potential for Increasing peak demand driven by the electrification
of heat and transport. The Increasing muiti-directional Aow of energy
and Information Increases volatllity further.

This is where SMS's carbon reduction
("CaRe') assets are meeting the
energy challenge, Smart meters
contlnue to be key to enabling more
efficient energy use, and the data
they provide confadilitate building
amore flexible energy systern that
makes it easler to match energy
supply and demand. Thereis a
mandated national target foran
85% rollout by 2025.

Whilst grld-scale energy storoge

15 needed to absork excess energy
generation, dermand-side flexible
systems, like distributed solar and
storage, air-sourced heat pumps
and electric vehicle charging
infrastructure not only deliver
low-carbon solutions to our energy
needs but also provide the ability to
power down non—-essential equipment
at times of high system load or
power up standby generation

when grid prices peak.

Ultimately, transittoning towards a
chedaper, cleaner, and more secure
renewakble energy future requires
local renewable sources of energy
and efficient ways to manage how
and when that energy is used.
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Fincanciot staterments

"SMS is strongly positioned to provide
the knowledge, engineering, data platforms
and services behind the UK's move to net zero.”

Tim Mortlock
Chief Executive Officer

Cost of energy

Disruption In International
gas supplies has pushed
the cost of energy to
record levals,

Security of supply

The UK remalins highly dependent
on fossl fueals, particularly gas,
of which ¢.50% is Imported.

Our role in meeting net zero
through a decarbonised
energy system

Qur range of CaRe solutions enable the generation
of more of our electricity from renewables,
help decarbonlse energy consumption ond

make enargy use more officient,

Decarbonisation

Reduce carbon ermissions to net zera.

Smart Metering Systems plc Annuo! report and aecounts 2022 13
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Market overview continued

Cost of energy

Reducing cost for
consumers

Our smart meters help consumers save
money by enabling them to control and
optimlise their energy usage.

Our grid-scale batteries reduce power
price volatility, accelerate adoption of
cheap renewables and reduce the level
of network investment that would
otnerwise be required to enable them,

Qur ‘behind-the-meter’ solutions allow
consumers to generdte their own
energy, sell excess energy to the grid,
automatically move consumption to
when prices are lower and get paid for
reducing demand. Our Solopower
proposition offers kocal housing
authorities a funded solar generation
and smart battery storage solution
helping to address fuel poverty.

86%

of people with a smart meter say they
have made changes to use less energy
Source: resaarch from Smart Energy GB

£1.2bn per year

Estimated savings on energy bills
by 2030 from efficlencies driven
by smart meters

Source: BEIS smart meter rol-out cost
benefit analysis 2019

Decarbkenisation

Working towards a
low-carbon world

Addressing
the energy
challenge

Dur grid-scale botteries enable us all to
maximise the use of energy generated
from renewable sources, and to make
the energy system more resifient.

Qur smart meters and gata services lead
to efficient energy management, iocal
energy generotion and the alignment of
energy demond to renewable generation.

Electric vehicle (EV) charging
infrastructure enabies the transition
of the transport sector from fossil-fuel
to low-carbon technologles.

Our behind-~the~meter solutions such as
solar, storgge ond alr sourced heot pumps
enable domestic and commercial energy
use to be decarbonised and optimised.
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Energy securlty

Delivering energy
security

Our grid-scale battery storage
assets matinfain the securlty of the
energy network by balancing energy
generation gnd demand, whilst also
stabilising the frequency of the grid
inthe face of more volatlle renewable
generation.

Our smart meters and data services
help to balance enerygy consumption
and supply, enabling new solutions
such ds time-of-use tariffs and the
Demand Flexibility Service launched
by the Electrictty Systern Operator
in 2022 to help reduce the risk of
shortageas In supply.

Our FlexiGrid platform intelligently
operates distributed energy resources
such as behind-the-meter batterles,
EV chargers, heat pumps and storage
heaters to shift energy demand to
better match supply, These canreduce
peaks in demand that are currently
met by gas-fired power stations.

Smart Metering Systems pic Annuai report and cccounts 2022

Cur Solopower proposition offers

local housing authorities a fundeg
solar generation and smart bottery
storage solution,

70 miillion trees
Estimated equivalent carbon
reduction once every home has
asmart meter installed

Source: Smart Energy GB

700/0 per home

Potentlal decarbonisation of housing
electricity per home with Solopower
Source: internal SMS estimate

More than 75%

Propartlon of low carbon renewable
generation by 2050
Source: National Grid Electricity System Operator

15
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Market overview continued

Our market position

Smart meters and data

The UK Governiment has mandated
that energy suppliers replace
traditiongl meters with smart meters
and has set an objective of achleving
85% coverage by the end of 2025. The
significant increase In energy prices
and the increasing understanding of
the beneflts to consumers supported
strong demand for smart metersin
2022 - with smart meters installed
across the industry, the highest since
the rollout began,

There dre naw ¢.3@¢ million smart
meters installed across the UK
(Includ'ng 2.1 millian owned by SMS)
with ¢.256 million traditionol meters
still to be exchanged for smart ones
by the end of the roll-out pericd. With
our full end-to-end capabilities, SMS
is perfectly positioned to capitalise
on this cpportunity. we have a

<.2.17 million contracted smart
meter order pipeline and we are
currently instaling ¢.12% af all new
smart meters Inthe UK,

Smart meter rollout

The UK Gavernment hos also confirmed
its intention to mandate market-wide
haif-hourly settlement from 2026, which
will requive the balancing of the electricity
industry on an actuadl halif-hourly
consumption basls rather than an
assumed energy usage prafile. This
settlements service providaes
significant opportunity for SMS and
new selutlons will alse then be enabled
-using smart meter data to dr've more
efficient use of energy and save
customers money. This will grow the
current market from ¢.480,000 Industrial
& Commercial (|&C) electricity metering
points {In which we have c.10% market
share) to ¢,32 million t&C and domestic
maters. One of the first of these data
driven solutions Is The Demand
Flexibllity Service (see page 24).

c.2.] /miliion

SMS contracted smart meter order
pipeline at 31 December 2022

Grid-scale energy storage
The UK's energy storage capacity

is projected to grow from c.4GW at
31 December 2022 to 38GW by 2050,
with 26.2GW expected to come
from batteries.

With 25 years' experience delivering
large-scale electrical infrastructure
acress the country, SMS remains
unique [n its approach ta grid-scale
storage, by coverlng the majority of
the value chain in-house. Our specialist
in-house teams manage the design,
supply, installatlon, operation,
maintenance and energy trading of
our battery energy storage sites, At
31 December 2022 we had a 760MW
portfolic of projects {of which 610MW
is either commissloned, under
construction or fully secured, with the
remalning under exclusivity) and our
target Is to deliver 1.5GW by 2030,
this will provide us witha ¢.10%
market share.

SMS market share for grid-scale energy storage
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Electric vehicle charging

The UK Government has announced
that sales of all new petrol and diesel
cars and vans will end in 2030 and
plans to introduce percentage targets
for sales of clean vehicles from 2024,
To support this transition, the UK
Government expects around 480,000
public chargers will be required as g
minlmurn by 2030 (of which there are
currently Just 36,750 Installed nationally
as of December 2022). This figure does
not include the potentiacl numper of
chargepoints in domestic and privgte
carnmercial premises In the UK.

SMS has EV charging solutions
targeting hoth public and domestic
chdrgepoints. We offer o fuily end-to-
end Integrated platform for EV
charging infrastructure to the non-
domestic market — installing, owning
and operating car charging networks

Financial statements

offering 4 full life cycle proposition,
from initlal consultancy and design

of electrical infrastructure, through to
technology procurement, installotion,
and ongoing ownership, operation and
maintenance of the assets, In gddition
to workplace and pubiic charging,
SMSis also targeting the destination
charging market —-which broadty refers
to chargepolnts installed ot lelsure,
retall, and hospitality businesses —

ds well as the fleet sactor.

SMS has dlse begun to install domaestic
EV ehargepoints, an engineering
competency closely aligned to our
existing dellvery rescurce, and we are
developing asset-owning commerciot
models to extend our CaRe business
madel In this substantlal market space,

Smart Matering Systems plc Antualreport and accounts 2022 17

Distributed (‘behind-the-
meter’) energy resources
FlexiGrid

Flex!Grid is ¢ cloud-based software
platform that monitors and controls

a range of distributed enargy resources
(DERSs) such as solar panels, home
batteres, electric vehicle chargepeoints
and smart heating systems. FlexiGrid
opergtas these as ¢ virtual power piant
(VPP) and delivers the real-time
flexibllity essenticl for a decarbonised
systam. This brings o whole host of
commercial, operaticnal, and
environmentaf advantages including
balancing renewable generation
locaily, managing local grid constraints,
reducing the cost to dellver electricity
and encbling the supply of cheaper,
clegner renewable ehergy.

Solopower

Our’Solopower' proposition offers
local housing authorities a funded solar
generction, smart battery storage and
alr-sourced heat pump sclution that
addresses the dud! chalienge of carbon
emissions and fuel poverty.

We partner with social housing
providers to upgrade the energy
performonce of sacial accommaodation
gnd thelr residents at zero ugfront cost
- Solopower can decarbonise housing
electricity by approximately 70% per
home, whilst reducing tenant, electricity
bills by up to 28%.

The financing and delivery of clean
technology across the UK housing
stock will be essential for meeting the
Governmeant's Net Zero 2050 target
and alleviating fuel poverty amidst

a cast-of-living crisis. The funded
solution will offer the sacial housing
sector — which accounts for
approximately five milllon UK homes —
gn opportunity to meet its carbon
reduction and fuel poverty objectives.

480,000 18.3milion  Smillion

Expected minimum numiger of public
chargers raquired by 2030
Source: Compelition and Markets Authority

Potential number of domestic
chargepoints based on homes with
occess to private, off-street parking
Source: ONS andindustry estimates

Approximate number of homes
providad by social housing sector
Saurce; ONS
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Our business model

Offering a unique proposition:

an end-to-end integrated service

What we have

What we do

Ouy strengths

Our core busihesses

A growing smart  Ourmeter assets generate highly
. sustainable, annuity-style cash
meter portfo"o flows and provide a secure

foundatian for the future growth

of the business. In the UK, c.44%
of meters are yet to be exchanged
as part of the smart meter rollout.

A growing grid- We have 140MW of grid~scale
| battery storage In operation with
scale energy afurther 620MW pipeline of sites

storage portfolio  eltner secured or under exclusivity.

Engq ged Wae are focused on employee
| retention, training ond development,
people on productivity gnd, above all, on

an unwavering commitment to
heaith and scfety, We have o
nationwide In-house engineering

and expert consultoncy workforce,
with a strong track record of service
dealivery. Fastering innovation and
creativity in whaot we do is also
critical to allow us to defiver

new and exciting solutions.

Robust We have signiflcant IT softwareand  benefit of our customers. Delivery
data security capabilities, and the of our integrated services s
technology ability to develop new applications  supported by our own central
platforms and technologies to the ongoing cloud-based IT and data platform.
Long-standing We enjoy multl-level relationships maintaln with our customers are

. . N with energy suppliers, davelopers
relationships With  gng entarprises within the UK

our customers industrial and commercial sectors.
The enduring partnerships we

testarnent to the unrivalied support
we pravide and our commitment to
providing successful and innovative
energy sclutions.

Effective capital We continually review our funding
nosition to ensure that we maintain

mcncgement an efficient capital structure, with
sufficlent capacity and Aexibility
to maximise growth, We maintain

Underpinned putting our
by our values people first

prudent but efficient leverage using
internal cash generation, our
avallable debt facllity and other
additional mechanisms as refevant.

Sqfety Innovation

Asset
management

Asset
instaltation

Energy
management

Custormer
excellence
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L
Who we deliver for
Qur strategic prioritles Craating long-term vatue for aur stakeholders

Providing a fully managed,
and-to-end metering and
dotg service to the Industrial
& Commercial and Domestic
markets, including
ownership and operation.

Providing direct field-force
management and asset
Installation, targeting the
domestlc smart meter
opportunity, Design,
installation and management
of utility connectlons ond
energy infrastructure.

Providing energy-efficient
strotegies and specialist
energy management
solutions, including grid-scale
battery storage. lnvesting in
renewable energy generation,
we continue to pursue several
developing opportunitiesin
the greds of glectric vehicle
charging, heat and behind-
the-meter smart solar

and storage.

Sae the Operating review
on pages 22 to 35

SustainQkility

O1.

Expanding long-
term, resilient and
recurring cash
flows from carbon
reduction assets

02.

Customer
excellence and
efficlent delivery

03.

Efficient capital
allocation to
provide headroom
for growth

04.

Sustainable and
socially responsible
business

Price

Our shareholders

We deliver attractive and
sustalnable returns to our
shareholders through our growing,
sustainable dividend. The Group
Intands to pay a 30.25p per share
dividendt In respect of FY 2022
{+10% on FY 2021), over four
instatments, with an intended 10%
annual Incregse threughto FY 2024.

30.25p

dividenc for FY 2022, with
an Intended 10% annual
increase until FY 2024

Our customers 62%

percentage of Trustpilot
reviews earning a top
S~star rating

Deallvering customer excelience

is 0 core value underpinning our
busthess, Our breadth of service
makes us unigue in our industry, and
our expertise allows our customers
to have confidence that we will
dellver appropriate sclutions.

#210

Best Large Companies
to work for in the UK

Our employees

A motivated workforce encourages
Creqtivity and productivity andis
critical to the exacutton of our
strategy. We piace great emphasis
on creating apositive working
environment for all our people,

and on providing challanging career
opportunitles that offer staff the
chance to develop.

£420m

ravolying
credit facllity

Our partners

We wark with g wide range

of partners over the lang term,
inciuding suppliers, lenders,
governments and reguiatory
bodies. These relationships are
criticat In delivering our strategic
objectives and business model,

The environment

Our godl is carbon reduction Qur ‘handprint’: TCOze carbon
and we place sustainabllity at mitigation achieved by our
the core of our business. Through  customers from our energy
training and development, the solutions (see pege 50)
sustainability culture of the

business is Instilled in all staff from

the moment they join the Company.

63,495tonnes
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Our strategy

Securing our energy future

O1.

Expanding long-term,
resilient and recurring
cash flows from carbon
reduction (CaRe’) assets

02.

Customer
excellence

2022 priorities

» Convert the mater order pipeling to add to the existing
index~Inked annualised recurring revenue (ILARR).

» Target additional domestic smart meter opportunities,

» Grow our hatf-hourly dota services,

» Develop our estaklished portfolio of grid-scale battery
storage projects.

» Establish additional pipelina of opportunities across
several CaRe asset verticals.

2022 prodress

» Grew i_ARR 13% to £87.1m at 31 December 2022,
» Progressively improved meter Instailation run rate.

» Ended year with smart meter order pipeline of
€. 2,17 miltlon units.,

» Acquired n3rgy to accelerate copablities in smart
energy data sclutions.

» Delivered first three arid-scale battery storage projects
totalling 140MW.

» Added further 140MW to grid-scale battery storage
pipeline since March 2022,

» Maode strategic investment in EV charging infrastructure.

Future outlook

» Convert the smart meter order pigeline and add to
the existing ILARR.

» Target additional domestic srmart meter opportunities,

» Further grow our half-hourly data services.

» Develop and deliver our established portfolio of grid-scale
battery storage projects.

» Establish a pipeline of pubiic EV charging infrastructure
assets.

» Additional pipeline of opportunities across several CaRe
assetverticals,

1 Increase inmeter order pipeline net of meters Installed during 2022,

2022 priorities

» Ensure an Injury-free orgunisation.

» Focus on digital conversion of customers to smart
maters and continued improvement in guaranteed
standards of service.

» Continue to expand instglkation services inw adjacent
non-metering actvitles, such as £V charging and ather
behind-the-meter solutions.

2022 progress

» Industry-leading performance on all key heglth
and safety indicators.

» Continued adherence to COVID-19 protocols, protecting
ourengineers and custorners.

» Average meter instollation runrate Incregsed to €.45,000
permaorthinH2,

» Efflcient utllisation of our direct engineering workforce,
supplemented by our network of sub-contractors,

» Trainee scheme for new entrants to meter market
expanded through our accredited training academy.,

» Delivered our first upskill training to meter engineegrs
In the instaliation of domestic EV chargers,

Future outlook

» Year-on-year improvement in our core heatth and sofaty
key performance indicators.

» Continued investment in our capacity, to progressively
increase our meter instaltation run rates,

» Expand domestic installatlon capabilities further for
EV chargers and related home energy solutions.
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Our strategic framework is structured into four key priorities, with a focus on continuing
to deliver long-term value, serving our customers and protecting the environment.

03.

Efficient
capital allocation
ollowing for growth

2022 priorities

» Maintain strong liguidity to provide adequate funding to
dellver the Group's pipeline of meters and CaRe assets.

» Maintaina prudent but efficient leverage position.
» Grow dividend by 10% annually, until 2024,

» Continue to evaluate an eptimaol mix of funding options
for future capitol regulfrerments,

2022 progress

» Strong liquidity position with net debt position of £31.2m

ot 31 December 2022 and undrawn debt lfacilites of £355m.

» Continvred evaluation of the aptimal mix of future
capital requirements both te deliver the existing plpelline
of CaRe assets and to take advantoge of gdditional
growth opportunitiss.

» FY 2022 dividend proposed at 30.25p per share,a 10%
increase on FY 2021 inline with pollcy, underplinned by
existing long-term cash flows.

04.

Sustainable
and sociaily
responsible business

2022 priorities

» Continue to enhance disclosures in our Sustainability Report,
» Further improvernent In ESG ratings.

» Deliver energy efficiency upgrades at a key office site,

» Cammence trial of plug-in hybrids for the Group’s fleet.

» Embed environmental and bicdiversity considerotions
in the planning of our grid-scale battery storage sites.

» External assessment by ‘Investers in People’,
» Deliver the Safety, Heglth and Wellbeing action plan.

Future outlook

» Maintain strong liquldity to fund the Group's
plpeline of meters and CaRe gssets.

» Maintoin efficient capital structure and prudent leverage.
» Graw dividend by 10% annucilly, until 2024,

» Cantinue ta evaluate an optimal b of funding options
for future capital requirements.

2022 progress

» Deilverad progress inline with our net zero by 2030 carbon
readmap (see pages 45 to 47).

» Strengthened our ESG ratings and credentlals (see page 42).

» Continued to embed the TCFD principles Into our strateglc
planning and everyday processes.

» Continued to gssess our alignment with the EU Taxonomy
ahead of UK taxonomyimplementdrtion.

» Accredited with “Investors in People’ Silver status.
» Lounched our Levelling Up Impact report.
» Became anaceredited ‘Living Hours' Employer.

» Made progress across all safety, health and technlcal
indicators.

Future ocutliook

» Continue to progress against our 'net zero by 2030
roadmap (see page 47).

» Furtner enhance reporting of SMS8's ESG credentials.
» Drive energy-efficient processes across our operations.

» Continue to participate in activities that make a difference
to local communities.

» Maintain 2ero cyber security breaches.
» Delivery of behaviour-based safety programme.
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Operating review

Delivering growth

During 2022, our operational focus was on further
growing our pipeline of smart meters and grid-scale
batteries and delivering against our existing secured
pipelines of asset depioyment, most notably across
both smart meters and grid-scale batteries. At the
same time, we maintained our unrelenting commitment
to safety and customer service.

Whilst no business is iImmune (o
inflationary cost pressures, the
Index-linked nature of our metering
and data revenues and the efficiency
of our delivery model have continued
to ensure we manage the capltal cost
of arlginating these assets at least in
line with our guided expectatians.

* 50% increase in our smarkt meter
instaliation runrate (H2 2022
vH22021)

+ 13% increcdse in our ILARR

« Qver M0% increase in our fully
secured grid-scale battery portfollo

« 140MW grid scale batteries now
operational; generating
annualised EBITDA performance
of £123,000/MW,

‘We were pleased durlng 2022 to add

a further 100,000 meters to our
contracted smart meter order plpeline
which ended the year at ¢,.2.17 mlllion,
while our deployed smart meter
portfolic Increased to 2.1 milllonas a
result of installing over 480,000 smart
meters during the year. This, alengside
an infiation Increase, drove our tLARR
toend the vear at £97.1m. It is warth
reiterating that these are the
annualised index-linked recurting
revenues which flow from our deployed
meter and dota assets.

“Efficient delivery has been
our mantra — our people
have been delivering on
our promises for health
and safety; customer
excellence; and the cost
of CaRe asset origination.”

+37%

increase in number of smart meters
installed year-on-year

+110%

increase in our fully secured grid-scole
pattery portfolio (December 2022 v
December 2021)

Cur smart meter instaliation run rate
increasedto c.45,000 permonthinthe
sacond half of the year and we are now
installing ¢.14% of all smart meters across
the UK. We invested substantally in our
workforce, particularly in our direct
laibour, inthe first half of the year but
continue to manage an efflcient balance
between direct and sub—contract labour.
We expect to continue to increase our
smart meter instalation run rate in 2023
as we seek to dellver on energy suppliers’
mandated requirement for 85% of all
meters to be smart by the end of 2025,

We were also pleased to continue to
grow our overall portfolio of grid-scale
battery projects to 760MW ot year end
(31 December 2021: 620MW), and since
then by a further two SOMW projects
undler exclusivity to 860MW., OF
particular note, we increased the fully
secured and 'shovel-ready’ proportion
of this portfolio to S1I0MW (2021;
290MW). Within this overall portfollo
we were delighted to energise and
bring 140MW Into commercial
operation during the year, with a further
150MW In advanced construction,

Key focus areas

Asset management

The asset mandagement division is
focused on growing the long-term,
index-linked, recurring revenues
from smart meters ond data.
assets.

Asset instaliation

The asset Installation divislon Is
focused on delivery of our CaRe
asset pipeline, exceilence in heaith
and safety, customer service and
operatlonal efficiency,

Energy management

The energy management division is
focused on the origination, operation
and optimisation of commercial~
scale CaRe products such as
grid-scale battery storage, public

EV charging infrastructure and
distributed generation and storage;
these solutions enable alow-carbon,
maore flexible smart energy grid and
reduce energy consumption and
costsfor end customers.



Strateglc report Governance Financial statements Smart Metering Systems plc Artnual report ond accounts 2022 23
Primary abjectives Performance

« Grow ILARR, driven by:
~ recutring renluls from Installed smart meter assets; and

- data services provided to energy suppliers and ISC
businesses for industry data flows and half-hourly
energy consumption information.

+ Ensure market-leading return oninvestment, by growing
our meter and dota pipelines whilst efficiently delivering
on the capital cost of asset origination.

Leverage our technology data platforms to enable energy
suppliers and end consumers to benefit from a smarter,
moare flexible, energy system.

Develop cormplermneaniary sitoscription bosed rental
commercial models for behind-the-meter CaRe
assets for end consumers and landlords.

.

*

Deliver our ‘Vision Zero' - our goal of zero accidents,
healthy work and employee wellbeing,

Excellence In customer services.

Install our contracted smart meter asset pipeline
and deliver transactional new connectlon and meter
maintenance services.

-

Grow our englneering capacity and installation run rate
whilst maintaining operatlonal efficlency and full utilisation
of the Group’s direct labour workforce.,

Develop our engineering capabliities for other behind-the-
meter CaRe assets, such as domestic EV chargers, solar,
storage and air sourced heat pumps.

Reduce the carbon footprint of our delivery, in particular
fram our fleet, In line with our ‘net zero by 2030 plan.

Orlginate, bulld and operate our grid-scale energy
storage portfolio, enabling the energy networks to
transition to net zero through the Integration of
intermittent renewable generation.

Originate, bulld and operate EV charging infrastructure
for destination, workplace, on-street and fleet locations,
enabling the transfton to o low-carbon transport system

Grow our energy management and efficiency delivery
programrne on behalf of |&C custorners cind landlords:

- Solopower: behind-the-meter solar and storage
- Hect pumps
- Smarg energy controis

Index~linked annuallsed

recurring revenue (ILARR)

£971mM 3%

2021: £85.9m

Depreciation-adjusted
gross margin

92% Flat

2021: 92%

Capex on meters!

£105.0m +27%

2021 £82.4m

Revenue (external)

£30.5m +39%

2021: £22.0m

Pre-exceptional
gross proflt

£7.0m -12%

2021: £8.0rm

Revenue

£12.2Mm +239%

2021 £3.6m

Deprecigtion-adjusted
gross profit

£6.9M +666%

2021: £0.9m

Grid-scaie batteries
anhualised EBITDA/MW

£123,000/MW

2021: N/A

2021 measure excludes acquisition of |&C large-power metering and data rortfolio.

2 Excldss gequisition-ralated bgiances and payments on account to acquire grid-scale battery qssets,

Ravenue

£92.8m +12%

2021; EA2.9m

Depreciation-adjusted
gross profit

£85.5m +12%

2021; £76.1m

Pre-~axcentlonal gross margin

23% -13%

2027 36%

Number of engineers inducted
through training academy

399 4%

2021 524

Capex on grid-scale
batteries?

£36.3mM +48%

2021: £24.5m

Depreciation-adjusted
gross margin

57% +33%

2021: 24%

Operationa grid-scale
batteries

140MW

2021 Nil
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Operating review continued

Asset management

Our smart meter rentals are index-linked and
not related o the amount of energy consumed
or wholesale energy prices. They therefore
provide a highly defensive, predictable and
secure infrastructure asset class.

All meter points

{Domestic & non-domestic, large & small suppliers, both fuels)

The UK smart meter rollout continues
to present a significant opportunity

for us to grow our ILARR, with Ofgem
contlinuing to place annual binding
installgtion targets on energy supnliers
to ensure at least 85% of sllmeters are
changed to smart by the end of 2025.

Our industry-accredited services, built
on our in-hause technclogy platform
METIS and national engineering
infrastructure, provide a streng basls
from which to efficiently deliver these
asset and data solutions to our
customers. The industry structure
underpinning these decreditations is
evolving as d result of smart meter
deployment and is set to enable alt
industry partlcipants, and uitimately
end consurmers, to benefit from the
consumption data avallable from them
and the increasing digitisation of the
energy system.

We therefore continue to invest in our
METIS platform, not only to meet the
requirerments of this Industry change
but also to address the mandated
settlernent of energy on a haif-hourly
basls from 2026, which will significantty
increase the market size for these
services from ¢.480,000 electricity

meters to over 32 million meters by 2026,

However, this Increasing opportunity
for data services |s not just about
Industry settlement processes—itis
about enabling end consumers of
energy to benefit by controlling and
aggregating the use ond generation
of energy ot different times of dayin
response to the needs of the grid. Our
technology platforms are already
beginning to address this long-term
and growing market need. Through
these assets and data services, we
continue to enable the transition to
a low-carioon energy system fora

greener, mere sustainable future for all,

2022 performance

ILARR: During 2022 we Increased our
meter and data ILARR from £85.5m

to £97.1m, due largely to the application
of & 4.3% RPI increase in April
alongside the additlon of 480,000
meters to our smart meter portfolio
~we now own 2.1 milllon smart rmeters.
The ILARR from this domestic smart
meter portfollo increased from £501m
to £61.0m, with this growth offset by
the expected and continued removal
of traditional meters, Cur data
services ILARR increased from
E13.9mto £16.0m.

Pipeline: Durlng 2022 we added a
centract for afurther 100,000 meters
to our pipeline, which therefore
Increased on a llke-for-like basis to
2.65 million meters, Following the
installation of ¢.480,000 meters

during the yeor we exlted with a
contracted smart meter order plpeline
of ¢.2.17 million meters, which once
instalied Is expected to add afurther
C.£48m to our ILARR, excluding the
annual indexation also applied on our
pipeline. We continue to see additional
opportunities to grow this pipeline
further, particularly through the
extension of minimum contracted
volume commitments with existing
customers where their customer

base grows as a result of the market
turbulence aver the last year.
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We are diso developing wider
commerclal subscription modeis for the
ownership and rental of other behind-
the-meter assets to end-consumers
and landlords such as domestic BV
chargers, solar, storage and air-
sourced heat pumps. We are seeking
to partner with our existing and new
customers to offer these broader

CaRe services to end consumers.

SMETS1 Enrolment & Adoption:

The enrclment and adoption of
first-generation {! SMETSY) smart
meters into the Data Communications
Company {DCC) continued to geeelerate
through 2022, with now ¢.65%, SMETS1
metars migrated to the DCC platform,
This effectively enablies thern to remain
smart regardless of who the energy
supplier is and operate like a SMETS2
meter. The migration of our SMETS1
portfolio has progressed marginally
ahead of thisindustry progress, with
now ¢.80% of our relevant meters
transferred, This process has now been
extended through to the end of 2023.

Dellvery: Foliowing from previous
Brexit and COVID-19 concerns, SMS
madle consclous decisions through
2021 and 2022 to further diversify

its supply chain {to four meter
manufacturing partners), to fix the
cost in sterling of a significant
propartion of our forward meter
purchases and to Increqse the level
of buffer stock we holid In our UK
warehouses. Whilst not without

sofme impact on working capital,
these decisions have proven prescient.
They hove ensured that we minimise
the Impact of inflationary increases
onour meter Installation and have
ensured that stock availability has
not been an impediment to delivering
or growing our raeter pipeline.

This successful management of our
hardware supply chain has gone hand
in hand with the continued efflclency
of our operational delivery, ensuring
we have the capacity to deliver on

our contracted pipeline and take
advantage of further opportunities in
the market. At the same time, we have
continued to dellver on our return
expectations by ensuring that the
capital cost per meter installation
increases by less than the indexation
applied to our rentals.

Flnancial statements

Decision-making in practice: acquisition
of n3rgy data platform

SMS has been providing half-hourly dato services, lurgely to the Industrial &
Commerclal market, from both electricity and gas meters for nearly two
decades. This part of our business grew further in 2021 following the
acgulsition of a 'large-power’ metering and data portfolio fram d large
energy suppiier. In this market space our data services Include collection

of consumgption data directly from the meter, which we then provide to
energy suppllers and end users for energy management, billing and
industry settlements purposes.

The regulator has mandgted the similar settement of energy on d half-
hourty basis across all smart metered supply points from 2026,
significanty increasing the market size from ¢.480,000 electricity meters
to over 32 million meters, However, collection of the consumption data
for these smart meters is undertakan by the DCC.

During 2022 we therefore worked closely with, and ultimately acquired,
n3rgy — a digital rechnelogy platform which enables and facilitates the
use of energy consumption, generation and tarlff data from smart meters
on the DCC platform,

The acquisltion, for an initicl case consideration of £1.4m, means that SMS
can effectlvely, with consumer permlssion, access half-hourly consumption
data directly from smart meters, therefore enabling us to offer turnkey
settlement services to domestic energy suppilers just I'ke we already do
inthe I&C market, The acquisition, together with the Group's accredited
and scalable technology platforms, will enhance and accelerate SMS's
capabilitles In smart energy data solutions, providing the Group with a
strong competitive position in the significant addressable market as the
industry moves towards mandatory half~hourly settlement. As a platfarm
for growth, and akin to accelerated IT capex, the Board judged the
acqguisition to be in the long-term interest of shareholders.

n3rgy dlso expands the range of data services we are able to provide, for
exampie by enabling third parties and end consumers to have direct access
to their energy usage data and costs, facilitating the management of this
usage and enabling them to participate in the energy market in new ways,
For Instonce, we are already using this capablility to enable end consumers
to bepaid to use less energy at thmes of stress on the energy network,
thraugh Natlonal Grid’s Demand Flexibllity Service (see page 24).

Before approving the transaction, the Baard reviewed papers and
challenged management on the businass cases, the risks ond opportunities
prasented by the deal and the continued investment in the platform
required. The Board took specific cognisance of the alternative third-party
routes to obtaining this capabliity versus such anin-house appreach, and
the potential timescale ond cost of developing the capabliity internally.

Customers ~ the Baard noted that the transaction provided opportunities
1o expand our data services offering and relationships with domestic enargy
suppliers and to facilitate the positioning of our business for both mondatory
half-hourty settlement and the developing data-driven smart energy grid.

Employees - two employees joined the Group as part of the transaction,
with third-party development, support and maintenance darrangerments put
in place prior to completing the transaction (o ensure our continued ability
to sarvice and grow the platform. An additional £0.8m of contingent
considerdation will be payable by SMS subject to n3roy achieving certain
performance targets.
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Operating review continued
Asset management continued

Demand Flexibility Service — enabling a smarter grid

The Demuand Flexibllity Service (DFS)
has been developed to ollow the
Electricity System Operator {National
Grid ESO) to access additional
fiexibility when the natlencl power
demandis atits highest — typically
during peak winter days.

Itis an addltlonal tool that the ESO
can use to keep the lights onthis
winter and has heen designed to
reduce pressure on the grid by
providing an incentive for customers
to elther reduce consumption or shift
it ta different time periods.

Through two core SMS capabilites,
collecting smart meter energy data
via n3rgy and using our flexibifity
aggregation platform, FlexiGrid, we
have been supporting energy suppliers
and other businesses offering DFS ta
domestic cansumers this winter.

As an Approved Provider of DFS

to National Grid ESO, $MS performs
a service whereby end-consumers
are notlfied, via our partners, of an
upcoming DFS event up to 24-hours
before the event takes place. ifa
consumer decides to opt-inand
participate in the event, SMS
calculates the actual demand
reduction during the event perlad,
refative to their baseline consumption
inthe same period, by using FlexiGrid
to automatically poll data from thelr
smart meters via the n3rgy DCC

adapter, SMS then sends indfvidual
demand reduction flgures, for every
MPAN that participated in the event,
to thelr partners so thatincentives,
menegtary or otherwise, can be
passed onto thelr end-customars.
Cverall reducton values are
simultanecsusly sent te National
Grid ESO, who pay Approved
Providers per MWh of demand
reduction during the perlod.

SMS lgunched the servicein
December 2022 and, as of

31 January 2023, had been
responsible for over 30 MwWh of
demand reduction across six events
with our partners, smart meterapp
providers Trust Power (Loop) and
Hugo Energy. SMS processed dato
for aver 14,000 MPANS in Natlenal
Grid ESO's second ‘Live’ event on
24 Jonuary 2023. SMS expects
end-customer numbers to increase
sighificantly by the end of March,
when this service period comes to
anend, due to the onboarding of a
major energy supplier to the service.

Through particlpation in this essential
new service, SMS is helping National
Grid, energy suppliers, technology
compagnies and end-consumers to
simultaneously address the combined
challenges of energy security,
affordability and sustainability.

It is qlso anindicatlon of what can
be achieved if time-of-use tariffs
and incentives are widely adopted
and implemented by industry.

Furthermore, using FlexiGrid's existing
capabiiities, the eritire process canbe
automated by contrelling and
aggregating behind-the-meter
Flexibiiity assets to import and export
energy inrespanse tothe needs ofthe
grid. Given its existing capabilities,
SMS is extremely well positioned {o
become a data leader inthls spoce,
working on a B2B2C basis with awide
pool of energy industry stakeholders.
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Fincncial stotements

Asset installation

We continued to grow our nationwide engineering services

Smart Metering Systems pic Annual report and accounts 2022 27

business during 2022, with our in-house engineering labour force
increasing by ¢.50% from ¢.330 engineers to ¢.470 engineers
over the last year. Alongside this internal engineering resource,
we continue to be supported by a wider supply chain such that
we have over 600 engineers in total delivering our smart and
advanced metering services across the country.,

This rescurce is supported by our
in~house accredited troining acaderny,
which we see as central to promoting
health and safety {H&S) and compliance
standards ocross our business, and cur
abillty to train this engineering capabllity
to extend it into hew sectors — such as
the Installation of domestic electric
vehicle charging infrastructure.

We also continue to work with developers
for new ¢annections utility infrastructure
and metering, ond dre accredited to
provide services across all market
segments - partnering with energy
suppliers, businesses and public sectar
arganisations to deliver the transition
to net zero. A cantinued and critical
feature of our businessis the emergency
call out and maintenance services we
provide to ensure continuity of suppty
to end consumers.

2022 performance

Whilst the Qmicron varlant of COVID-19
continued to present some challenges,
in Q1 In particular, we continued to
ablde by omended working practices
and the related PPE and doorstep
protocols where appropriate, However,
we were largely able to focus on scaling
up cur installation activities over the
coyrse of the year.

The health and welloeing of all our
stakeholders comes first however, and
again we reported zere injurles under
the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Qccurrences Regulations
2013 (RIDDOR) and also maintalned
industry-leading perfermance on our

other key metrics, including technicai
gudiity incidents from our robust
auditing regime which was at 15
incidents per 100,000 [nstallotions.

See our Health and safety section
oh pages 5é& to 59 for more datalls,

Beyond H&S, we maasure our success
across three sets of KPIs; Quality;
Quantity; Efficiency.

Cuality:

Helping consumers use less energy
has never been more important. We
refreshed the knowledge of our fiela
engineers 5o that they could better
tailor anergy efficiency advice to each
custorner, and we supported this with
a new range of leave behind materials
and by sending each customer a digital
link to free energy efficiency advice on
our website. We are collaborating with
the Retail Energy Code so that we
continue to make our consumer
cenversations more vaiuable,

In the second half of the year emergency

call-outs were much higher than normal.

The flexibility provided by our direct
and sub-contract workforce however
allfowed us to minimise disruption

and maintain cur general standards
of service,

We ended 2022 with a net promoter
score of +34,1 based on heatly 8,000
reviews on Trustpllet, and we Increased
our Trustpitot rating to 4.1 stars. The
level of upheld complaints weas also

low at 0.13% of the total number of jobs.

Quantity:

During the year we were pleased to
increcase our Installation run rate as
planned to over 45,000 meters per
month In H2 (H2 2021; 30,000 meters
per month). This means that we are
now Instaliing c14% of all smart meters
across the UK (2021: 2.4%). The industry
as a whole has deployed 30.3 million
smart meters to date, with 246.2 million
left to be deployed — of which17.7 millon
neaed to be installed by the end of 2025
to meet the Government's 85%
completion target.

QOur vertically ntegrated model remains
key to our success, and the growth in
our run ragtes came as a result of
continued investment in our engineering
cupacity, particutarly in our direct
labour, in the first half of the year.

As a resylt of these investments, we
successfully Increqsed the run rate ond
installed 430,000 smart meters during
the yedr but continued to maintain an
efficioent balance between direct and
sub-contract labour. We expect to
continue to increase our smart meter
instailation run rate N 2023 aswe
deliver on energy suppliers’ mandated
requirement for the roll out.

We will continue to investincrementally
In our englineering capacity, and we
expect te instal! ¢.600,000 smart
metersin 2023.
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Operating review continued
Asset installation continued

Efficlency:

With a balanced approach to direct
and sub-contract labour, we are
continually focused on the efficiency
of our deirvery, primarily measured
through:

» the number of completed jobs
per day per engineer

« the cost per job

« the number of engineering
available days

By close control of these measures
and of our back~office activities, and
with the commitment of our dedicated
workforce, we have been pleased to
contain the infiationary increase In
the installation cost per meter inline
withthe indexation we applied to

aur rentals. Alongside our asset
management division's management
of hardware costs, this ensures we at
least maintain our expected returns
on capital, and has ensured we
malintaln strong gross margins on

our transactlonal installation services.

SMS5 Installations as % of industry
(Large suppliers)

Confident in our

continued delivery

We will continue to invest in and grow
our delivery capacity incrementally

to ensure delivery of our CaRe plpeline
over the coming vear, particularly in
smart meters, and we are confident

in our ability to grow the run rate and
efficiency of aur operation.

To support this, we have embarked on
arefresh of our asset deployment
technology platforms, with the aim of
continually improving their integration
into our asset monagement and ERP
systems, By dolng this we will contlnue
to improve and digitise the customer
experience, and further automate the
validation and transfer of data
between these systems - ensuring
coniinued efficiency not only in our
deiivery of smart meters, but also in
other CaRe asset classes which we
expect ko come to the fore over the
coming years,

We are already engaged In the delivery
on a transactional basis of CoRe assets
such as domestic EV chargers, solar
and storage, and air-source heat
pumps, and are working closely with
the asset management division to
develop the commerclal models for
further long-term growth beyond

our smart metering pipeline.
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Financlal statements

Energy management

In 2020 SMS launched its CaRe programme, engaging
with stakeholders to consider the long-term assets
required to transition the UK to net zero. To achieve
this UK legisiated target requires a fundamental shift
to a smarter, more flexible energy system, capable

of integrating substantial amounts of intermittent
renewable generation whilst accommodating the
incredsing electrification of transport and heat.

Qur energy management division, as
well as continuing to support industrial
& Commercial (I&C) customers to
manqge and reduce their energy
cansumption, is focused on dallvering
this growth agenda.

Grid-scale battery storage
Whilst energy storage has glways been
o fedture of the enargy system, an
exponentlal incredase In shart-term-
response grid-scale storage Is clearly
avital requirement of the energy
transition. This Incredasing reguirement
for energy storage is estimated by
National Grid to be 18,7GW by 2030

{of which 14,1GW is expected to come
from battery storage compared to the
c.21GW currently deployed), and 38GW
by 2050,

This growth is driven by the increasing
amount of Intermittent renewable
generation belng connected to the
gnid, which creates animbalance
between generation and demand and
results In price volatility. This Imbalance
—which has always existed — increases
the spread between the cost Lo power
up storage, ond the value to discharge
that energy. The spreads obtalned by
these baiancing services drive the
underlying economic madel for our
grid-scale battery storage, although
we cre also able to provide frequency
services to the grid where it is value-
accretive to do so.

2022 performance: This has ¢clearty
been a transformational year for our
energy monagement divislon, and
spacifically our grid-scale battery
business. We graw our portfolio to
760MW at 31 December 2022, of which
S1O0MW has been fully secured, We
were diso delighted to bring 140MW
of grid-scale battery capacity through
construction and Into commercial
operation, trading at our projected
capex cost of E380,000/MW, and we
currently have a further 150MwW in
advanced construction.

Whilst it was Important to demonstrate
our decades of experlence in the
deaslgn and delivery of this kind of
electrical infrastructure, it has been
equally important to prove the long-
term sustainable revenue returns
avallable to these assets, Our first sites
have exceeded our previous financlal
expectations, delivering an annucalised
EBITDA of over £100%/MW with this
performance significantly enhanced by
70% of the revenues coming fromthe
provision of frequency services.

Whilst we expect the revenues from
these frequency services to softenover
time, we are confident in our long-term
guidance of £57,000-£465,000 EBITDA/
MW, And, whilst we expect capex costs
to Increase to nearer £450,000/MW for
future projects, the core electrical
infrastructure of these sites has o
40-year expected life (with battery cell
replacernent arousxd every ten years)
and the financial returns therefore
remainvery strong.
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Going forward, we expect to continue
to builld our existing pipeline of projects
n this growing market, and to continue
to bring those projects In exclusivity
through to being fully secured and into
construction. We are targeting at least
1.5GW of operptional assets by 2030,
which would represent a ¢.10% market
share. We have proven capability to
originate these projects - from nitial
site selection to construction cind
through to ongoing opergtion, trading,
maintenance ond asset management
— as part of our end-to-end integrated
model. For further information on our
grid-scale battery storage business
and the investor day we heldin
October 2022 at our first S5OMW
operational site at Burwell, please

see pages 32 to 35 and page 38,

Energy services

Qur traditional consultancy and energy
management activities continue to
grow and in particular, the roll-out of
site~based energy efficiency measures
was gble to accelerate again post the
COVID -9 pandemic, These capital
projects are typlcally buiit ona
data-led approoch, as Is the cose with
the smart heatlnd control projects
which we have been deilivering an
behalf of leisure and haspitality
customers over the last year,
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Operating review continued
Energy management continued

EV infrastructure

The deployment and funding of £V
charging infrastructure sits well with
SMS's core skills. We have over two
decadas of experlence in the design
and delivery of electrical infrastructure,
from small connections to mobiie
phone masts fo some of the lorgest
elactrical engineering projectsin the
country. [t is this experience that we
have brought to our grid~scale battery
business over recent years, and which
we are also able to utllise to depioy EV
charging Infrastructure.

Theincrease inwholesale energy prices  directly connected to commercial

nds had a subsranticl impact on many properties, we are able to reduce

1&C businesses and has strengthened rellance an energy from the grid and
the need to optimise the procurement, optimise the use of energy on-site.
mandgement and use of energy. Ye This approach can also mean that
therefore see significant opportunity as other loads are introduced, such
across our traditlonal consultency and as heat pumps or EV charging

energy efficiency services, which seek infrastructure, additional infrastructure
to minimise the cost and volume of upgrade costs can be minimised dlong
energy used. with the input price of energy to this

new Infrastryciure,
During 2022, we beganto develop

integrated funded-energy solutions
that materially address the net zero

The urgent need for businesses to
address the effect of the increasing
agendd and the lang-term need to cost of energy on their bottom iine, the
reduce and provide greater certainty continued necessity of reducing their
over energy costs, By bringing together  carbonfootprint and our ahility to

the individual asset classes we provide these integrated solutions
specialise in, such as distributed across multiple asset classes provides
generation (e.g: soiar PV} and storuge, significant growth opportunity for

Having developed our knowledge and
experience of this sector over recent
years through our involvernent in projects
such as the Virgin Media Park & Charge
(VPPACH) on-street charging scheme, this

gsset deployment inthis sector.

Decision-making in practice: investment in Clenergy EV

When assessing the market
opportunity to install, own and
operate EV charging infrastructure,
particularly Inthe public infrastructure
charging market, the SMS Board
took inte consideration o range of
factors including our engineering
capability, the quality and
predictability of returns, and the
technology platforms required to
deploy and operate such assets.

With respect to technology platfarms,

whilst SMS clearly had the asset
origination and management

capability within our existing business,
we heeded to put In place chargepoint

operator (CPQO) capability to deploy
firmware to EV chargepoint assets
and to enable end users to operate
and pay for using the infrastructure.

All options were considered,
inciuding:

« outsourcing that CPO management

to a third party;

« licensing that CPO capability from
a third party for SMS3 to manage /
operate;

« developing our own CPO capability;

+ Investing In an existing third-party
CPRQ platform,

After due consideration, dnd taking
into account our strateglc approqch
Qcross our business to what we
conslder to ba core IP technology
requirements toc manoge assets, the
Board feit that in order to manage
risk and provide the appropridte level
of platform flexiblity and Integration,
our preference would be to invest in
a CPQ plotform. The timescales and
costs to develop aur own capabliity
were not consldered the preferred
solution, and having worked closely
with Clenergy EV over the last year,
we had identified them as our
preferred third-party CPO partner.

In June we therefore cgreed to take
aminority stoke in Clenergy,
providing us with a direct Interest in
the development and success of thelr
CPO platform which Is now operating
over 2,000 chargepoints across the
country. SMS has invested an inktial
£2.0m to acquire a 25% sharehalding,
has the option to invest a further
£2.0m after one year foran
addltional 26% interest, and has
afurther option to acquire the
remalning shares after five years.

The Board belleve thatona
standalone basis Clenergy has the
apportunity to grow a substantial
business managing EV chargepoint
infrastructure on behalf of arange
of business and Infrastructure owner
customers across the UK, aond
patentially beyond. By investing

in the bysiness, not only do we seek
to enable Clenergy to maximise the
cpportunity for its own platfonm, but
also to ensure we have the end-to-
end turnkey capabiliity 1o address the
deployment and ownership of EV
chargepeoint infrastructure over the
coming years.

This investment therefore
complements SMS's existing EV
Installation capabilities and will
enable the Group to dellver a fully
end-ta-end integrated platform for
EV charging infrastructure, a model
the Group has already successfully
adopted for its meters, data and
grid-scole battery assets.
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delivery copabillity is now being ¢ligned
to the substantial requirement for
destination, workplace, on-street, fleet
and domestlc EY charging infrastructure
on o nationc hnsls Commerrin models
vary from utilisation-based revenues to
lease rentai or subscription--based
revenues. For utilisation-based models,
we recognise that the location, type of
charger {e.g.: rapld or slow) and unft
rate of energy sold, are dll ¢ritical
considerations which will affect returns
and are factars we willl take into account
when considering capital allocatlon.

Aswlth aur other asset classes, we seek
to provide a turnkey solution, bringing
funding together with englneering
copobiity and technology platforms
that aflow us to deploy, manage and
optimise our assets. Whilst much of that
capability diready resides within our
METIS platform, during 2022 we also
invested in Clenergy EV, o charge point
operator {CPO) technology platfoerm.
Our partnership with Clenergy cllows us
to cantrol both the chavge of EV's from
any chargepoint type using open
protecol software and also the revenue
collection / payments for use of the
chargepgoint.

With this end-to-end operational
copability in place, we are now investing
inthe development of g pipeiine of
actlivity in this area over the coming
years, addressing the public
(destination, on-straet), workplace
and fleet market segments.

We have also begun to extend our
direct labour field capabllity into the
domestic EV chargling space, both
through recruitment of experienced
EV Instailation engineers and by using
our training academy to train our
metar engineers to address this
market. Commercial models will vary
from transactional to lease rental or
subscription-based revenues,

SMS has been working with external
support bhoth to quantify the market
size and to gain a deeper understanding
of expected EV uptake, customer
behaviour, traffic flows, appropriate
locations for EV charglng infrastructure
ond utilisation models, We expect the
UK market to have ¢.500,000 pukblic
chorging polints by 2030, and for this

Financial statements

number to grow to close to one million
by 2040. The assoclated capital values
{market size) ure expectedtobein
excess of £20 billion. These numkbears
are consistent with many other forecasts
inthe market and give SMS caomfort

as to the size of the opportunity, the
utilisation rates and the expected
returns for our role as an asset owner.

Solopower (behind-the—meter

smart solar and storage)
Supported by our Flex|Grid technology
plotform, our Selopower solution aims
to reduce cdrbon emissions radicafly
within the UK's sacial housing stock
through the use and optimisction of
solar genaration and battery storage,
The increase in energy costs and
substantial rise in fuel poverty,
alongside the need te decarbonise
housing, make clear the urgent need
for these solutions.
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We dlso seek to extend these solutions
ta the private market. We have capability
in agsset financing and subscription-
based solutions, and we see the
opportunity to extend this capability

to air-sourced heat pumps and
domestic EV charging.

The UK social housing sector
alone accounts for approximately
five million homes.

In all of these cases our strategy
remcins the same: to deliver assets
and services which reduce carbon
emilssions, by using our englneering
resources and capabillty to deploy
them, technology platform to optimise
and manage them and providing
capital where appropriate to fund
them, in order to provide long-term
secure recurring revenues, These
markets also all share two key
charocteristics: they reduce carbon
emissions, and they each provide a
substantial growth market opportunity.
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Operating review continued

Grid-scale batteries:

enabling the transition to a
low-carbon energy system

| The growing need for and reliance on renewable
energy to decarbonise electricity grids, alongside
national energy security requirements, accelerates
the fundamental long-term requirement to match
demand with the intermittent supply.

UK power price spread
(E/MWh)

The impact of this shiftinthe generation
and demand mix con glready be seen
through the rising volatillty of UK power
prices and peak-baseload spreads
over the last five years, which provides
an Increasing challenge to monage the
capacity and frequency of the energy
grid. The growing Imkaldance between
instantaneous genearatlon and demand
s expected to further exacerbate the
volatifity spreads.
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This is where energy starage comes
Into play. Grid-scale battery storage
is needed to absork excess energy
generation, release power when
demand Is greater than supply, shift
energy across time and locations, and
provide real-time grid balancing.
Battery storage aiso seamilessly
operates with other demand-sice
flexible systems, like smart meters,
distributed solar and storage, and
electric vehicle charging infrastructure
thot can power dawn non-essentiai
equipment at tmes of high system load
of power Up stondsy generctionwhen
grid prices peak,

Provide incremental generation by discharging batteries

Financial statements

National Grid has reflected this
increasing requirement for grid-scale
battery storage (from c.1.2GW in 2022)
In lts annual Future Eneray Scenarios
review. The forecast requirement

has consistently grown each vear,

with the latest National Grid forecast
requirement being for 18.7GW of
energy storage by 2030, three—
quarters of which is expected to

come from battery storoge, By 2050,
the requirement for total storage
incredses to 38GW, of which almaost half
is expected to be from battery storage.
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14w

Battery energy storage required
by 2030 to remain on track for
the UK's net zero target’

Absorb incrementai generation by charging batteries

1 Caolculated asthe average of National Grd's four feracast scenarlosinits Future Energy Scenarlos 2022,
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Operating review continued
Grid-scale battery storage continued

We have developed and gre execuiing
an existing portfolio which we aimte
grow to c.4.586W (or ¢.10% market
share) by 2030, in line with what we

are delivering In tho matering and
anergy daty space.

SMS portfolio of sites

“We gim to grow
to a ¢10% market
share by 2030.”

760mMw

SMS's portfolio at 31 December 2022
Including operational, under-construction,
contracted and exclusive projects
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In basic terms revenues from grid-scale
battery assets are generated from two
services: balancing services and
fraguency sarvices,

Balancing services are where we
manage the timing imbalance between
generation and demand by charging
the battery when there s excess
generation on the grid {and prices

are cheap} and discharging when

there Is excess demond ¢n the grid
{and energy prices cre high). It is the
spread between these peaks and
troughs from which we earn revenue.

Fingncial statements

This Is similar to the services purmped
hydro statfons have provided for many
years, but nowIn g grid that has o
greater reguirement for fast response
times. Frequency services are where
the batteries are aperated on behalf
of Natlonal Grid to ensure the grid
stays within statutory frequency levels
- protecting the grid against load
fluctuatlions, biackouts etc.

Cur operctional portfolle has now
grown to 140MW and has been
generating EBITDA per MW
significantly ahead of ourinitial
expectations.

lustrative revenue streams
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In the development and long-term
operation of these projects we take
our BESG responsibllities extremely
sariously. All aur supply chain partners
are regularly audited, coverlng areas
such as welfare, responsibie sourcing,
robust practices and environmental
compllance including the recycling of
battery cells at the end of thelr usefullife.

SMS’s EBITDA guidance
{(E'000/MW)
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Sustainability

Meeting our responsibilities
to all our stakeholders

Sustainability underpins
our commitment to
create long-term vaiue
for our stakeholders and
achieve our vision to be
at the heart of the fow-
carbon, smart energy
revolution that is pivotal
to redlising a greener,
more sustainable world.

We report on our
sustainability in the
foliowing main areas:

We gim to create a sustainable

and safe environment for all where
customer excellence is kay, innovation
is encouraged, and employees are
proud. tn tum, this nurtures a thriving
workplace and a business that
supports wider society, We ensure
diverse and inclusive environments
and promaote welibeing, whilst
empowering communities to take
control of thelr carbon footprint

and tackle local and global Issues.

For more information on our sustainability
parformaonce, see dlso the SMS
Sustalnabliity Report 2022 at
www.sms-plc.com/sustainabliity/overview/

O1.

Stakeholder

engagement

Bullding strong and trusting
relationships with all our
stakeholders is criticalin
managing the business
successfully, If we are to
achieve our goals we must
listen to, and collaberate with,
our stockeholders —at i levels,
including the Board and
management.

Find eut more on page 37

03.

Our people

We care. We create o positive

and inclusive working environment,
where edach and every employee
shares ouUr values. We are
passionate about using our
capabilities and resources to
make a positive impact, and the
continuous development of our
peopie is critical to this.

Find out more on page 51

O5.

Ethical business practices

02.

The environment

As aleading smart energy
infrastructure company inthe
UK, we are acutely aware of
the Impact we can have on
the environmeant, Eachof our
praducts and services is aimed
at reducing carbon emissions
and we are actively working
towards becoming a net zero
company by 2030,

Find out more on page 42

04.

Health and safety

For us, being sustainaple dlso
means being safe, secure and
reliable. Our commitmentto
nheglth and safety undarpins
all our business practices and
ensures that our employeas
and customers are protected.

Find cut mora on poge 56

We believe in behaving responsibly and with integrity. Thisis underpinned
by our Code of Conduct and supported by our policies and procedures.

Find out more on page 44
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01.

Stakeholder

Financial statements

engagement

Engaging our stakeholders
Effective stakeholder engaogementis
critical to the long-term success of our
business. We seek to understand each
staketolder grouo ~ what they find
impartent and whaot how we canbe

of volue o them, This helps us make
better decisions when setting strategy
andin our day-to-day operations,

Our key stakeholder groups are set out
onpages 38 to 41, We summarise how
we engage with them and the maln
topics of discussion and key outcomes
during 2022. Further detall an how the
Board engages with stakeholders is set
out on poges 86 to 89,

Section 172 statement

The Group has complied with the
requirements of section 414CZA of the
Companles Act 2006 by including
certain information within the Strategic
ond Governance reports to inform
members of the Company how the
Directers have considered the matters
set ot in section 172(1){q) to (f) of the
Companies Act 2006 when performing
thair duty under section 172 to promote
the success of the Company. The
Directors consider, both indlividually
and together, that they have actedin
the way that they consider, in good
faith, would be most likely to promote
the success of the Company for the
benefit of its members as g whole.

Principa!l declsions

pPrincipal decisions are those
aperational and strategle decisions
which are considered te be materiai to:

+ The SMS5 corporate group

« Stakeholder groups (the table an
pages 38 to 41 detalls how we define
our stakeholder groups).

Onthe pages listed in the table below
we have provided examples of how the
Board duly considered the impact on
stakeholders when making principat
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Key stakeholders Impacted

declsions during 2022:
Principal declsion Poge
Streteglic investment 25
in n3rgy data platform
Strategic Investment 30
in Clenergy BV
Approval of d one-off discretionary 52

cost-of-living payment to most staff
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Sustainability continued
Stakeholder engagement continued

Shareholders

Seq the Corporate governance report
for further mtormation

Why effective engagement is important

Qur sharehalders provide capital for our business, which
we utilise to originate sustainable products and solutions.

The long-term strategic plans for the business necessitate
strong relations with, and support from, sharehclders.

We ultimately seek to promote an investor base thatis
aligned with the long-term success of the Group. We
endeavour to foster an open and trarsparent relatlonship
with our shareholders, and potential new investars, to
enabie them to make effective investment decisions.

Form of engagement
» Discussions at the Annval General Maeting.
» Inwvestor roadshows foliowing results announcements.

» Contlnuous avallabllity of the Chairman to discuss matters
of concern,

» Participationin investor conferences.

« Capital Markets Day and site visits.

+ Ad-hoc meetings between institutional shareholders
and the executive lagdership team.

Our programme for investor engagement Is detaifed
in the Corporate governanca report on pages 87 to B9,

Key topics of engagement during 2022

» Development of our existing carbon reductlon products;
meters and grid-scale batteries.

» The timing dnd scale of opaortunities in other carbon
reduction products incluging EV charging infrastructure
and behind~the-meter solar and storage.

= Impact on SMS5‘s meter order pipeline of the recent
turbulence in the UK energy market and the faiture
of severol independent energy suppliers,

+ Progress made In 2022 towards achieving our 2030
net zero target.

+ Grid-scale battery storage site visit,

Burwell grid-scale
battery site visit

We were pleased with the response to our Capital Markets
Day in June 2021 and so, in October 2022, we followed this
i with ¢ site visit to our first S0MW grid-scale battary
storage project at Burwell. The Group has built a strong
portfolio of grid-scale battery storage withina short
period of time, and we wanted to glve our stakehalders
the opportunity to meet the grid-scale battery storoge
team, learn more gbout this assetclass and see how these
assets operate in real life. We developad the agenda and
presentation materials takihg account affeedback we had
received from shareholders, analysts and advisers,

The presentatian included an overview of grid-scale battery
storage and Insight into the battery lifecycle and how these
assets gre optimised. We dlso showed videas frem Barry
Hatten (Director of Asset Managemeant UKRPN) who
explained the importance of grid-scale batterdes for
balancing the grid, and from Daniel Greten (Head of Tring
Siorage EMEA) who discussed the manufacturing and
saurcing of the batteries. The presantation was followed

by a tour of the Burwell plant.

The event was well attended and received by existing
shareholders, potential invastors and other stakeholders.
More than 15 lvestors attended the presentation live an
the day and many more have since viewead the recording
an the Company’'s website.

View the site visit presentation at
www.sms-ple.com/Investors/results-report s-prasantations/

“Thoroughly enjoyed the
event and found the day to be
extremely useful, putting now
firmly into place all the things
you have. We remain absolutely
happy holders.”

A shareholder
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Why effective engagement is important

Serving our customers is o key part of our purpose and
we aim to provide gn exceptional customer experience.

To deliver this, we listen and engage, and strive to become
a trusted partrer,

Maintaining open and honast reiationships with our
customers allows us o remaln commarclally competitive
and securc both new and recurring long-term conliucls.

As tha energy and utllities Industry contlnues to navigate
the UK smart meter rollout, it Is Important that we work
collaboratively with energy suppllers to ensure we are

meeting thelr service needs in anefficient and effective way,

Form of engagement
« Listening and responding to customer fesdback,

» Clear ang structured lines of engagement for core
customer groups.

« All cistomers are asslgned a strategic account
director — g single peint of contact with whom items
can be discyssed.

+ For larger customers, dedicated contact centres are
used to co-ordinate with end consumers.

» Separate speclalist tears ars cllocated for planning
and scheduling, commerclal billing and general account
management, ansuring regular communicationis
maintained.

« RQegular service raviaws to ensure we are addressing
feedback from customers In a timely manner.

Why effective engagement is important

Our employees are critlcal to cur business success. We
understand the impact their positive contribution can make,
and encourage this through listening, supporting them ond
acting on feadback and also via new Initiatives — all the
while ensuring thelr wellbeing Is paramount.

We believe that engaged, healthy and safe employees
encourage creativity ond productivity, and are criticalin
attracting, developing, and retaining valuable talent,
fostering customer loyalty, and impacting posltivety on
organisational performance ond stakeholder value. This
Is paramount in enabling us to deliver our strategy and
achieve our mission, viston, and purpose.

It is therefore crucial that we continue to bulld a posltive
culture, where employees are listened to, and are inspired
to perform their best work, with our five core values and
behaviours disployed by all.

Key topics of engagement during 2022

We now ask all consumers for whom we have installed

a meter to review our service via Trustpllot. This gives us
much more feedback allowing us to continually Improve
our servica. 2% of reviews award us the top 5-star rating.

We have continued to enhance our digital channels to make
it easier for consumers to make beokings and ¢.60% of
bookings cre now digital. We still offer the traditlonal opticn
of veice for those who prefer it

Form of engagement

= An apen and collaborative managemant structure with
direction set from the Executive,

= “Employee Voice' a bi-monthly forum (with representotion
across the Group at all levels from different departments
and locatlens).

= LOV (Living Qur Values) Awards.
» ESG monthly forum,.

« Five Employee Resource Groups {dedicated online
communities where employees can connect on
shared interests)

» Short videos on topics including hybrid working, our Share
Incentlve Plan, and the results of the Investors in Pecple
assessmeant.

» Use of a bespoke SMS Intranat site (with a dedicated
Wellbelng page and resources).

= Quarterly employee newsletters.
« Annual performcnce and develocpment reviews for all.
« Corpordie induction for ol new employees,

« Ad-hoc company presentations by the executive leadership
team, together with regular videos and email communications.,

» Varlous Group wellbeing inithatives,

« Employee engggement surveys {Best Companies and
investors in People).

» "You Said. We Did’ Infographics following our engagement
surveys, to update employees on progress.

« *Your Thought is Sought’ employee suggestion scheme.

Key topics of engagement during 2022

We engaged with aur employees on two significant projects

during the year:

» continuation of hybrid working for office-based
empioyees; and

» establishment of a further two Employee Resource Groups
{menopause and LGBTG+).
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L\
Customers Employees
See the Operating review 5a¢ the OQur peopla section
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Sustainability continued
Stakeholder engagement continued

Suppliers

Sea the Operating review
for furthar information

Regulatory bodies

Sae the Operating review
for further Information

Why effective engagement is important

Our wide range of partnars provides us with the goods

and services werely on to deliver for our customers. This
includes physical plant and aquipment {most notably meter
assats), engineering sarvices, and legal and professional
consuitancy, to name but afew.

Relioble suppller raeiationships are thus ¢ruclal in delivering
our business model and strategy. Mointaining positive and
open engagement is a key priorlty.

Health end safety Is at the heart of everything we do and
this extends {0 services provided to us by our third-party
pdrtners.

Form of engagement

« Comprehenslve onboarding process by skilfed
procurement and legal prefessionals, using Groupwide
procurement procedures and policies.

« Two—-way communication process,
» Prompt payment practices.

« For larger suppliers, ocngoing engagement through regular
meetings ond feedback sessions. Performance may aiso
be measured against key performance indicators,

= Whore relevant, thorough tender and bid processes are
carrled out.

Key topics of engagement during 2022

Followlng a successful tender caonducted inlate 2021, SMS
continued [ts Journey towards a reduced carbon footprint
by partmering with gn dlternative service provider providing
shipments of goods to ourengineer base. The new locker
netwerk has allowed SMS5 to double the amount of product
shipped outbound, supporting the growthin our installation
pregramme. Hedlth and safety remains at the heart of all
we do and 5o the new iocker network afso provides amore
ergonomic setutlon for our englneers.

As In recent years, SM5 has experienced some product
shor{ages due to continued global frefght restrictlons.

The relocotlon of our warehouse to a much larger site

has however allowed for greater purchases to be made

to support aur installation rolf out plan and so has mitigated
some of thesa challenges.

Paolicies and procecures dround onkodarding of vendors and
ensuring prompt payment have continued to be adhered to,
The developmant of our Electronic Quality Management
systern |s allowing far greater reporting to support our ESG
goals and aspirations.

Why effective engagement is important

The primary government regulator for the gos and
electricity market in the UK s the Office of Gas and
Electricity Markets ("Ofgem'), Ofgem Is the regulatory
body by which our key customers are governed,

In conjunction with cther associations, groups and alliances,
Ofgem provides comprehenstve industry codes of practice
that govern the operatlonal, technical and health and safety
issues associated with the Installatlon cnd management

of métering assets, to which both SMS and its customers
must adhere.

Maintalning regulatory compliance Is cruciai to our business
success armongst customers who place substantial reliance
on our reputation as a full-service provider,

Form of engagement
« Attendance ot regular meetings.
= Active participation in consultations and workshops,

« Representation on several hoards and panels, including
the Association of Meter Operaters and the Smart
Metering Operations Group.

« Reqular compliance reviews and audits, both internally
and extemally, in respect of the certifications and
accreditations which we hold under MCoB and MOCOD,
dmaongst others,

Key topics of engagement during 2022

We continue to participate In gas, electricity infrastructure
and rmetering forums critical to the industry. These include
severa linked tc the Retail Energy Code, which brings
together several exlsting codes of practice and updates
the governance of existing gas and electricity retaii
arrangernents. As pari of this, we have supported cur
energy suppller customers inunderstanding the code

ond the potential implications for their operations.

We cantinue to participate In a new implementation warking
group set up by XoServe, which s focused on developing the
role of hydrogen across the UK gas network. tn time, SMS will
be involved in developing the technical and training
standards for this,

We continue to sit on several panels of the Institute of Gas
Engineers and Managers, participating in the review and
enhancement of key technical standards,

SMS continues to be a cornmittes member of the
Association of Meter Operators.,

Recurring annual audits across infrastructure and metering
ware carried out with successful outcomes and no identified
matertal non-compliance issuas.
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Lenders/financiers

See the Fnoncial review
for further informatlon

Why effective engagement is important
Cur lenders dre providers of critical funding, supporting the

achievement of tha Group's operationdl and strategic goals.

Ancpen and transparent diclogue is «ey to allow efflcient
responses to the business’s changing needs,

Farm of engagement
« Provision of quarterty finandal and management reporting.
+ Regular meetings.

+ Ad-khoc phone cudlls and emalfls as needed, ensuring
proqactive communication,

Key topics of engagement during 2022

Meetings weare held with the Groug’s syndlcate of banks to
provide an update on the 2022 budget and performance.
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Government bodies

See the Markat overviaw
for turtheér information

Why effective engagement is important

We engage with several government bedies Including the
Department for Energy Security and Net Zero {(formerly part
of BEIS) and the Datd Communications Company (DCC),

These government hodles use aur expertise and experience
to assist In the formulation and delivery of key energy
policies, which have a direct impdct on our custorners and
our own business.

We maintein on open and transparent diglogue and
develop an awarenass of the key declsions being made
within the industry which are likely to Impact our business.
This engagement ailows us to forward-plan and remain
competitive.

Form of engagement

« A regular meeting programme with BEIS, including
attendance at round tables and werking groups,

» Review and provision of formal responses on consultations
issued by BE!S and other government bodies,

» Extenslve engagement with the DCC.

« Reprasentation on both the Smart Energy Code (SEC)
Operational Performance panel and smart Meter Device
Assurarice scheme to help govern the activities of the DCC
and hold programme suppllers to account.

Key topics of engagement during 2022

We continued working with meter manyfacturers and
industry to explore how second-generation smart meters
{'SMETS2’) can be made reusabie. This Is expected to come
to fruitlon in 2023,

We were successful in securing five BEIS-funded projects
as port of thelr £65m overarching programme to enable
large-scale and widespread electriclty system flexibility
through smart, fiexible, secure, and accessible technelogies
and markets.

We also helped BEIS to define options for consideration
when introducing new 4G communicatich hubs, We played
a thought leadership role, prior to farmal cansultation that
will aim to define how the new communication hubs will be
funded and deployed.
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Sustainability continued

02.

The environment

2022 saw Intense challenges to energy
around the globe with ripple effects for
sustainabliity across communities ang
the environment alike. The issue of
security of energy supply brings focus
to our core purpose of bringing low-
carbon energy to all and drives us te
continuously evaolve our services to be
at the forefront of the energy translition.

Sustainability governance
Environmentail, social and
governance (ESG) disclosures
We continue to pursue best practice
within our ESG processes and
disclosures, seeking to develop infine
with our specific material Issues, and
ensuring relevant information is
avallable as ESG rating agencies
evolve, We have continued to see
our efforts reflected in ourlmproved
ESG scores and have sought to engage
with new partners to support our
ESG cmbitions.

In line with aur strateglc focus,
in 2022 we:

« continued to Improve supporting
scores from 6.6 to 7.1 from MSCI,
achieving an ‘AA rating;

Improved our S & P Global score to
50, moving us from the 85th to the
93rd percentile;

Disclosure Project (CDP) submission;

await review of our Sustdinalytics
score of 26.6;

benchmarked our performance
against Sclence Based Targets;

continued to be a supporter of the
Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disdlosures (TCFED) - more
details on our TCFD journey can be
found on page 43;

had eur net zero target recognised by
The dimate Pledge and the UN Race

To Zero campaign, demonstrating our
gmbition atd achlevements;

submitted our UN Global Compact
annugl ‘communicatian of progress’,
demonstrating alignment with the
UN principles;

maintained our Green Economy
Mark; and

assessed the extent of our
allgnment with the EU Taxonomy ~
70% of revenue and 94% of capital
expenditure aligns with the EU
Taxonomy and Green Economy
Mark classifications.

maintained a ‘B’ rating on our Carbon

Health, Safety and

Sustainability Committee

We report on our Health, Safety

and Sustainability {(H55} Cornmittee,
including its role and respensibilities
and key activities inthe year onpage 81,
This committee is pivotal in facilitating
the sharing of best practice dcross the
Group and ensuring we have the
capacity ond capabilities to deliver

oh our goals, The Committeeis
supported by our ESG Working Group,
which comprises members of senlor
manggement across key supporting
functions and ensures our objectives and
activities are relevant and achievoble.
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Assessing and addressing
cdimate-relatedrisks and
opportunities

SMS first embuarked on ¢ Journey

to Implement the recornmendations
of TCFD tn 2020, As an organisation
at the leading edge of the low-carbon
transitfon, we are acutely aware of the
importance of evaluating the inpacts

Flnancloi statements

evoluation by applying an emissions
scenatio to evaluate our negr, medium
and long-term exposure to the physical
risks of climate change. Further details
of this assessment can be found In the
2022 Sustainability Report.

We will continue to develop our
approach to analysing climate risks
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We are commiitted to updating and
sharlng information related to our
climate risks and opportunities with our
stakeholders. Our COP disclosure
outlines our current aligned actlvities
and further detalls our journey to best
practice as we fully embed the TCFD
principles into our strategic planning
and everyday processes,

of climate change on our actlvities
now and into the future. In 2022, we
enhanced our cliimate change exposure

with outputs reviewed by both our ESG
Working Group and HSS Committee
to ensure consideration is embedded
into our decision-making.

The four core TCFD elements are summarised below:

TCFD disclosure aspect

SMS response

Governance
Governance of climate-~
related risks and
opportunities

The Baard has cversight of climate-related issues through three key channels: active performance
evaluation and management through the Health, Safety and Sustalnability {(HSS) Committes, system
gaverndance through odr audlt processes, and our risk and opportunities framewaorks. Each of these
channels enable oversight, and the ability to ensure the integrity and integration of ¢limate (ssues
into all business decisions at top level.

Our HS5 Committee monitors short, medium and long-term sustainability risks, alongs!de their
probabllity and impact and our correspending mitigation strategies.

Strategy

Actual and potential
Impacts of climate-
related risks and
opportunities on
business strategy
and financial planning

Opportunities:

SMSis well placed to support the UK Government's ambltion to ke net zero by 2050, We cando this
by continuing to leveruge our weli-establlshed energy services gs the UK transitions to d more
sustainable and low-carbon economy. We continue to develop new opportuntties aimed at
mitigating climate change and these are embedded in our business strategy for the short,

medium and long term. See pagas 12 to 17,

Risks:

We are keenly aware of the potentialimpacts of fuel costs and taxation linked ta the cost of operating
our fleet ond bullding estate. To mitigate against future Increases in carkon taxation, SMS has
committed to reduce emissions to net zero by 2030. Our net zero roadmap Includes transitioning
from Internal combustion engine to electric vehicles and installing on-site renewable generation.

We have alsa identifled areas of potential physical climate-related risk, such as extreme weather
events which could affact our physical locations, road-based employees, ond our supply chain. In
2022, SMS carrled out a quantitative and gualltative physical climate change exposure evaluation
ocross our facilities (buildings and battery sites) utilising a recognised climate scenario, 55P-4.5,

Whilst climate-related change will have o profound effect on business in the brogder sense, the risk
Is very low for SMS specifically, with key risks and opportunities detafled within our Sustainability
report and CDRP disclosure,

Risk management
The processes used

to identify, assess

ond manage climate-
related risks

We have carrled out qualitative ond quontitative explorations of potential areas of concern utllising
best practice guldes as a framework, including detaited cifmate exposure evaluation of our physlicat
ossets including offices, warehousas gnd battary sites. Further information can be found within the
Sustalnablflity Report.

Climate risk is Integrated into owr Group risk register and monitored by the Audit Committee; see the
Risk report on pages 42 to 69 for detcils on the Group's risk management processes.

Climate risk currently has a low-risk rating and Is therefore not considered a principal risk forrisk
reporting purposes,

Metrics and targets
The metrics ond targets
used to assess and
manage relevant climate-
related risks and
oppartunities

Our Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions are disclosed within our emissions reporting table, including further
descriptions of sources, See page 48,

Cur ‘net zero by 2030’ target, progress and roadmap demonstrate our commitment to reducing

emissions. Transition milestones are embedded into our financlal and strategic business planning.
See more details in our Sustainability Report at www.sms-plc.com/sustainabliity/overview/.
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Sustainability continued

The environment continued

Qur contribution to the United Nations Sustainable

Development Goals

SMS strategy

SMS objectives

UN Global Compact Principles SDGs

Putting people first:

Create g sustainabie and safe
envirenment for afl, mirturing @
thriving warkpiace and business that
supports wider society, We ensure
diverse, inchisive ervironments and
promote wellbeing, whilst empowering
communities to take control af thelr
carbon footprint ond tackle locol and
global issues.

« Work with our employees to drive
down our injury rate.

» Reduce gender pay gap.

« Continualty review and improve
provision of comprehensive,
conpetitive and equitable reward
and benefits, and ensure all
employees are paid ot least the
Real Living Wage,

Principle 1: Businesses should
support and regpect the protection
af internationally praclaimed
humanrights

Principle 3: Businesses should uphold
the freedom of association and the
effective recognition of the right to
collective bargaining

Principle é: The elimination of
discrimination inrespect of
employment and occupation

Sustainable futures:

Insplred by our core value of
‘sustainabllity’, we are leading the
UK's transitlon to atew-carbon future;
and this work [s supported by our
commltment to 'net zero by 20307
in our own business, We assist our
clients and wiger consumers with
their carbon reduction Journeys
through the funding and delivery
of sustainably focused services.

« Reduce environmental impacts
acress our operations.

Principle 7: Businesses should
support a precautionary approach
to enwvironmental challenges

Principle 8: Undertake initiatlves
to promote greater environmental
responsibility

Principle 9; Encourage the
develepment and diffusion of
environmentally friendly technologies

Operating responsibly

and ethically;

We will uphald our meral and legai
obligations through responsible
and ethical practices, ensuring the
integrfity and transparency of afl our
activities: from our suppiy chair to
our people, and from our cperations
to our customers and wider society.

» Maintdin our ISO-certified
mandgemeant systerms.

« Engage Tier 1 vendors to identify
their 1ISO14001 status, and work with
Key suppliers to obtain improvements
within thelr 1SO14001 accreditation
or thelr environmental policy.

» Malntaln zero cyber security
breaches.

Principle 2: Make sure that they ara
not compliclt in hurman rights abuses

Principle 4: The elimination of all
forms of forced and compulsory
iahour

Principle 5: The effective aboiition
of child labour

Brinclple 10: Businesses should work
agdainst corruption in all its forms,
including extortion and bribery

Further details under each of our targets can be found within the 2022 Sustainability Report.
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UK/EU taxonomy

The EU taxonomy ('the Taxonomy’)
enables the classification of business
activities as ‘environmentaily
sustainable’. The dimof the Taxonomy
is to provide transparency to both
investors and businesses and to
prevent greenwdashing. The Taxonomy
supports sustainable Investors and
investments, by providing clear
quantitative demonstrations of
business activities and revenues
against speclific criteria,

Under the EU's Toeconomy, o business
must pass three key tests to be classed
as environmentally sustaincble, [t must:

« make a substantial contrlbution to
one or more of the Taxcnomy's
environmentdal objectives;

» do he harm under all environmental
objectives; and

» comply with the minimum sefeguards
covering soclal and governance
standards.

We have assessed the extent, of our
aglignment with the EU Taxonomy, in
order to suppeort our Investors and
prepare for the UK Taxonomy, Our
assessment shows strong correlation
between all our services and the
Taxonomy requirements, summarlsed
inthe table below.

SMS Service Category

Financial statements

We will continue to align with the
requirements of the Taxonomy as
these develop, and disciose our
alignment, assessing the technical
screening criteria and revenue from
applicable activities,

Our net zero ambition

Our'net zero by 2030' target will see us
drastically reduce our organisational
carbon emisslons. It encompasses
Scope 1and 2 carbon emisslons that
derive from our building estate as a
resuit of hegting, coollng and electricity
use, and the consumption of fuel by
our tracked fleet. Our ambition Is to
achieve a 100% absclute reductionin
these emisslons by 2030, which aligns
wlith the level of ambition required to
limit global warming to 1.5°C.

Our net zero target currently excludes
the emissions assoclated with
aperating our grid-scate battery
storage sktes, the flrst of which became
operational in January 2022. Once we
have achieved a full year of data we
witl establish a baseline fromwhich we
canset anintensity-based target that
allgns with the Science Based Targets
Initictive (SBTI) in 2023,
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2022 progress

In line with our net zero strategy, during
2022 we implemented ¢ range of
sustainabillty upgrades at one of our
core sttes in Cardiff. This project has
focused on reducing energy
requirements through upgrading the
building fabrlc to improve thermal
performance, generating renewable
energy with 30kWp capacity of solar
photovoltale and providing alevel of
self-sufficiency with battery energy
storage. The final step wiil invoive the
installation of an dir-source heat pump
and machanical cooling and ventilation
system thot will mitigate the effects of
Increcsing summer temperatures.
Upon completion, this project is
axpected to reduce bullding emissions
by up to 70%, exceeding Science Based
Target requirements, and will serve s
a biueprint for upgrading modest office
buildings to achleve significant
decarbonisation and climate change
adaptation.

36 of total
revenue

Asset installation - Smart utility services
Design, Installation ond mancgement of utllity connections and energy Infrastructure.

42%

Asset management - Smart metering and data services
Instaliation, operation and management of meter and energy infrastructure

assets and related dato services, which facilitate a greener and maore

flexible enargy system,

79%

Energy management - Smart energy services

Ongoing delivery of energy management and carbon reduction solutions,

including the operation of CaRe assets, enabling long-term sustainability

andlower carbon emissions.

Total EU Taxonomy cligned % Group Activities

% of total capex

100%

73%
4%
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Sustainability continued
The environment continued

Our journey to net zero carbon

» Cornpany cars at the end of
their lifecycle reploced with
PHEV or EV where possible

» Scoping of site sustainablfity
upgrades

» 11 plug inhybrid vans received

Qur net
zero 2021
journey

2022

» Implemented EV salary
socrifice scheme

» Extended the scope of
our IS0 50001 EnMS

# The first EV van received

» Appointment of a net zero
energy mancger

» Sustalnability site works
commence

» Transition a 100 fleet vehicles
to mild hybrid vehicles

» First site sustalnability
upgradas complete

» Continuation of sustainability

upgrades and renewable
energy installation across sites

2023
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Qur fleet net zero transition sow 11 2023 outlook and pricrities
hybrid vans received at theend of 2021 The first ha!f of 2023 will see the

tested as trlal vehicles to evaluate thelr  gustalnability upgrades at our office

viability, distance capobilities and in Cardiff finalised, leading us into the
sultability for our business pumoses. hexl phose ot our second site which
Following the trial, we have decided to  will include determining the bespoke
move forward with replacing the first selutions we need to Implement based
quota of internal Combustlon Engine on the completed 3D performance

{ICE) vehicles with mlid-hybrids, which  simulation modelling of the bullding.
wse o battery-powered electric motoy

in support of a conventlonal petrol or In the flrst half of 2023 we wiil aiso be
diese! engine 1o improve fuel economy  welcoming 100 mild hybrid vens into
and reduce emissions. This marks our fleet and trialiing one full EV van.
another milestone in our net zero This full EV van will be fully fitted with
roadmap, as these vehicles will allow alf the equipment carried by o dual-fuel
us to continue to improve the efficiency  englneer to ensure true-to-life

of the fleet before transitioning fully evaluation of performeince. The trial

to zero-emisslon vehicles. will enaible us to evaluate the currently

avdilable EV technology, facusing on

We launched in 2021, the DriveGreen distance copabilities, charging
Scheme, a salary sacrifice scheme that  grrgngements and Infrastructure
has supoorted afurther 11 car drivers required to encble afull roll out.
migrating to full EV cars or PHEVSs,

» Continue to transition ICE » 2030 Target: Alt core sites
Hleat vans to mild hybrid to have completed
or full electric vehides sustainability upgrades

» 2030 Torget: Alldomestic
fleat to have transitioned to
EY and will emit 0g CO2/km

pervehicle

2024 2025 2030

» 2025 Target: All domestic
fleet to have transitioned
to PHEV and EV, or adhere
tomoaximum of 80g CO/km
per vehlicle

Target Beyond
2030:

SMS to focus on
reducing Scope 3 carben
emissions across the
value chain
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Sustainability continued

The environment continued

Gur environmental
performance

Emissions reporting

M fnntprint s the rorbinn procduced
by our operational activities, We utilise
the internationally recognised GHG
Protocol to ensure comprehensive
and standordised data calculations.
Our reporting covers all emissions
from our business activities, and dii
sites and aperations during calendar
year 2022, Full methodelogy can be
found on cur website.

Qur 5cope 1 calcutation looaks at the
energy consumed by our fleet vehicles,
gas and oil consumed across our
offices, warehouses aond trairing
centre, and fugitive emisclons from olr
conditioning. Qur Scope 2 calculation
loaks at our electricity consumption.
Scope 3 gccounts for the emissions
generated within our value chain.

In 2022 we worked with Qur assurdance
providers to ensure accuracy and
completenass of our Scope 1,2ond 3
carbon reporting. Further detalls can
he franind within our Sistainability
report and the dssurance statement
is available on our website,

The table below Incorpaorates our
mandatory Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting (SECR} reporting,
together with material voluntary
disclosures:

2022 2021 2020 Commentary

Total Scope 1 (TCOze) 31425 2,124.2 1,794.8 Scope 1 comprises the direct emissions from
our operations.

Campany-owned vehicles 30549 19880 16%90.0 Ourownedand tracked fleet vehicles.

Gas 69.3 78.53 77.9% Gaos heating serves six of our properties across
the UK.

Burning oif 1.9 2.2 1.5 Ol heating Is used in one cffice bullding.

F-gas 16.4 55.5 274 F-gasls the refrigerant used in air conditioning
for cooling workspaces and server rooms,

Total Scape 2 1,233.2 190.6 152.4 Scope 2 comprises the indirect emissions

Location-hased {TCO-e) associated with our operations.

Electrlcity {Bulldings)

1220 137.52 1524 Electricity ights, heats and powers our operdtlons
across warenouses, offlces and training centres in
the UK and Ireland.

Electricity (Battery sites) 1,111.2 53.1 0.0 Net electricity used to opercte ceoling and
comimiunication systems at our grid battery site.
Total Scope 2 Market-based (TCOzeH 2,100.5 173.42 68.32 We source green contracts for our electricity

(including green energy contracts)

where possible.

Total Scope 3 (TCOze)

4,258.5 1,022.3 851.0 Scope 3 comprises emissions from up and down
our value chdin, including those of suppllers and
service providers,

Category 1: Purchased Goods & Services

Water supply!

0.5 .52 1.1 The utllities which serve cur warehouses, officas
and training centres with water, emit carbon
through their supply operations.

Cuategory 3: Fuel- and energy-related activities {not included in Scope 1 or Scope 2)

Diesel upstream supply?

715.3 482,62

405,02 Upstream emissions for the production of diesel

to supply employee-owned vehilcles and
company-owned fleet

Petral upstream supply? i5.8 0.0 0.0 Upstream emissions for the production of petrol
to supply employee-owned vehlcles and
compoany-awned fleet.

Business travel upstream supphy! 15.2 7.22 12,52 Upstream emissions for the production of petral
and diesel to supply employee-owned vehicles.

“Well to tank’ gas! 11.8 13.43 10.1% Upstream emissions for the production processes
of gas for use on our sites.

"Weil to tank’ burning oil* a.4 0.5 4.3 Upstream emissions for the production processes
of burning oll for use on a site.

Transport and distribution’ electricity? 112.8 169 13,1 Upstream emissions of purchased electricity
for use on our sites,

Generation of purchased electricity 2,949.0 0.0 0.0 Upstream emisslons of purchased electricity

that is sold to end users

for our grid-scale batteries which is sold back
to the grid,
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AT

2022 ‘footprint’ The full eperation of our first battery The development of batterles willl
We saw a significant increase in smart site In Burwell and the commissioning support the integration of more
meter Installations during 2022, which of aur second site in Barnsley in 2022 renewable sources of electricity Into
resulted In anincrease of 549 inaur has changed the landscape of our the grid and will enable a low-carbon
flect related carban foulprint onthe buslhwss omisslons. The emissions energy system for alf in future. As this
previous year, as an additional 175 resulting from the net consumption of is redlised we will see g sustained
vehicles were added to the fleat to electricity from our baottery assets, also  reduction In emissions generated by
service this demand. We have known os the operational emlssions, our battery sites,

continued to de-couple business are now reported under our Scope 2.

growth from emisslons and have been
successfu! In improving overall fuel
efficiency with the amount of carbon
emissions emitted per vehicle reducing

by 5% since 2019,
2022 2021 2020 Commentary

Categary 5: Waste generated In operdations

Wastel 3.6 33 2.3  The processing of our waste from our sttes.

Water treatment? 0.9 Q.02 2.3 The utilities which serve our warehouses,

offices and training centres with water emit
carbon through their supply ond waste water

treatment operations.
Category 6: Business travel
Vehicle business travel 57.9 27.52 48.92 Business travel in employee-owned vehicles.
Cotegory 7: Empioyee commuting
Employee teleworking? 374.2 46952 35542 The carbon emissions associated with energy

used to power office equipment and for heating
by employees working from home.

Category 8: Upstream leased gssets

Emissions from legsed buildings?! 1.4 - - Emissions from energy consumption at shared
leased offlce spaces.

Total Scope 1, 2 £ 3 {TCOze) 8,634,2 33371 28002

{Scope 2 Lacaton-hased)

Carbon intensity 323 213 18.9

Scope 1, 2 (TCO2e/Em)

Carpon Intensity 63,7 308 27.2 Shows the armount of ernissions produced
Scope 1, 2 & 3 (TCOze/Em) to achleve the revenue realised, per £Em.
Operational energy 19,4465 ©,728.9 8,108.1 Thisis the total energy consumption of our
consumption {MWn) operations, spanning activities inciuded In

Scope 1 and 2 {excluding F-gas).

1 Detg disclosure is veluntary under SECR, but included for completerass of Scope reporting under the GHG Protocoi, As our business grows, we are
developing our abllity to decouple operaticnal growth and energy consumption. See our Sustainabillty Repaort for g fult breakdown of all metrics.

2 Wehave improved the accuracy of our reporting through the addition of new and best proctice emlssions sources, updaked methodologies, recelving
actual consumption dotg from service suppliers and newly released carbon conversion factors, which has led to a restatement of datawithin the table,

3 Figwe has been corrected based on supplier information which has ied to arestatement of data within the table.
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Sustainability continued

The environment continued

Our ‘handprint’

Ta reach an understanding of our
Lotal sustainability we take o holistic
view of our company sustainability,
whieliincludes guunlifylng Lulh Ue
positive iImpacts fram our progucts
and services (our handprint), and the
negative Impacts from aur business
operations {our footprint). We use this
‘het positive’ perspective to align our
strategy for business growth, financial
haneflts and sustainability gains:
Investing inthe development of assets
and services which dellver carbon
reductions for our customers and thelr
end consumers.

Qur‘handprint’ is the carbon mitgation
achleved by our customers through the
impact and delivery of our energy
sarvices and solutions, such as smart
matars. We use savings data from
smart meter energy research and from
delivered energy efficiency projects to
calculate our total handprint,
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03.
Our people

Health and wellbeing

We proactively suppaort a holistic
wellbelng agenda at SMS. Good health
and wellbeing are paramount, We
believe the happiest colleagues are
those who are engaged and Included,
whose wellbelng is prlotity, and who
feel part of the Company’s mission
and purpose. We therefore provide
ahost of weilbelng-focused benefits
for all employees including access to
an employea assistance programme:
which offers 24/7 confldential support;
SmartHealth, afree suppart package
for employees Including online GP
appointments and dceess to health
experts; the My Healthy Advantage
dpp, which gives dccess to a wealth

of health and wellbeing resources, and
Medicash, which supports ermployees
with day-to-day medica| expenses,

As part of 'putting our peopie first, it is
Important tous that employees are not
only supported whilst at work but also
inthelr lives outside work. This Includes
supporting employees through their life
changes as they grow their famifies,
develop their careers, or encounter
difficulties. We therefore have o
bespoke wellbelng intranet page with
resources across three pillars: mental,
physical, and financlat heclth, and have
enhanced wellbeing policles, some of
which include fertillty treatment,
maternity, and adogtion legve.

Finanelal statements

In 2022, we launched bespoke internal
training workshops for tine mancgers
onemployee hedlth and wellbelng to
equip them with the knowledge and
tools to support thelr employees
through life challenges. And we
upskilled a further eleven of our
employees to become accredited
mental heolth first-aliders taking our
number of traned empioyees to 31.

To support effective leadership and
manogement across the Company and
to further embed and maintain heaith
and wellbeing as part of everyday
activities, our bespoke ILM/CM!
recognised Management Development
Programme Includes a moduie titled
‘Being A Mindful Manager’, which over
100 managers have completed.

We also offered all our employees
the opportunity to attend an externacl
training course on ‘Talking Wellbelng'
deiivered by Mindful Employer, This
three-hour workshop is designed to
improve the understanding of mental
health conditions, buitd team and
individual resilience, and develop

the skills and confidence to have
constructive discussions about
mentol health within the workpiace.
80 of our employees participated.
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Sustainability continued
Our people continued

Qur activities

| firoughiout 2022 we parthered
with @ number of organisations
ond launched Initiatives to roise
employees’ awarenass across
arange of topics and signpost
them to further specialist
support.

Forexample, we:

relaunched the SMS Wellbeing
page on our intranet which
provides lots of free support
and advice, with external
signposting;

» renewed our two-year
voluntary pledge to Mindfuj
Employer and their Charter for
Employers Posltive cbout
Mental Haalth;

invested again in the Tommy's
Pregnancy and Parenting at
Waork programime;

supported Baby Loss
Awareness Week 2022 and
National Fertility Awareness
Week;

supported Mental Health
Awareness Week, National No
Smoking Day, Worid Mental
Health Day, and International
Men's Health Week;

jolned the Emplovers Initiative
on Domestic Abuse;

joined the Natlonal Sulcide
Preventon Allilance;

supported Nationai
Schizaphrenia Awareness Day;
and

committed to being a
Menopause Friendly Employer.

Decision-making in practice:
discretionary cost-of-living payment

We were awdire of the impact of

the rising cost of living on our staff
as we approached winter, and In
November 2022, we made G one-off
discretionary payment to all but our
highest paid employees to help
them through this time.

The Board approved this payment
after balancing the Interests of
employees and shareholders. The
payment demonstrates one of our
core values — putting our people
first. The Board judged this actlon
would be inthe long-term interests
of the Company and would help
meet its responsibility to the
Group's staff,

“Given the current climate of finances and how much everything has
shot up in price, SMS couldn’t have timed the payment for ol staff
below senior management any better. | know a lot of staff will have
been having serious concerns due to the time of yedar, Christmas,
and needing to use more energy. Personally I've never worked for
a company that thinks about its staff like this. I'm sure we have dll had
a hice voucher at work and maybe been given a flyer on a Friday, but
the amount of money SMS has shared back into the business direct
to its staff is outstanding! Whoever was invoived in this decision has
made more of animpact than they realise, and they have satisfied
a lot of families affected by the country’'s situation.”

Matthew Hopkins
Field Service Dellvery Manager.

Employee engagement
ALSMS, we are committed to putting
our peaple first — a philosophy
embedded within our company culture
and our five corevalues, We can only
do this by gctively listening to our
employees and encouraging feedbuck
and discussion on the topics that
matter most to them.

wWe holid g bi-monthiy forum, The Volce,
which gives our people a platformto
express thelr views and make
suggestions on how we can make

SMS a great place to work. We also
launched "Your Thought s Sought’,

our employee suggestion scheme.

We carried out our third
externdl employee
engagement survey frorm
Best Companies. The
response rate once agaln
rose, and we were delighted
to retaln our ‘One to Wotch'
accreditation from Best
Companies for good levels of
employee engagement.

We dalso cansuited with our staff on
hybrid worklng using a survey. This
informed our hybrid working poficy
which we then introduced using a short
video which gave staff helpful guidance
on how to maintain welibeing and keep
SMS culture and values alive.

Recognition and reward

We have been a'Living Wage’
emplayer since 2020, The Living Wage
is scheduled to goup in May 2023,

but t give further support to our
employaees on entry-level salaries,

we brought in the increase sixmonths
early, increasing their rates to £10.90
per hour from 1 November 2022,

As well as being o 'Living Wage’
employer,in 2022 we dlso became an
accredited 'Living Hours' employer.,
This reflects our commitment to
provide our employees with the
security of hours that they need.

To relnforce our culture, we also
continued our Living Our Values (LOV)
Awards which, each quarter, recognise
staff who have consistently displayed
one or more of the five SMS core values
and associated behaviours.
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Industry recognition

Finonclal statements

= Winner "Entreprencur of the
Year' — AlM Awords 2022 -
Alan Foy {former CEO)

Winner 'Best Investor Relations
Officer’ — The Investor Relations
Society Best Practice Awards

— Dilip Kejriwal, Head of Investor
Relations

Winner ‘Best Corporate
Welbsite' — Corporate and
Financlal Awards 2022

Wirner '‘Net Zero Leaders
Award' — The Energy Live
Cansultancy Awards 2022

Shortlisted ‘Large Consultaney
of the Yeor’ — The Energy Live
Caonsultancy Awards 2022

Winner ‘Best Diversity &
Inclusion Initiative’ — the S1
Awaqrds 2022

Finalist ‘Best Emplover' —
the 51 Awards 2022

Finallst ‘Best In-House
Recrultment Team’ —
the S1 Awards 2022

Short-listed 'Best for Diversity &
Inciusion’ — the WM People Top
Emplovyer Awards

Website

We launched our new Group website,
Integrating our refreshed brand and
creating an online space that reflects
the full scale of cur ambrtion, We wanted
our website to bring our people and
cuiture to the very farefront of our brand.

Talent management and

development

We strive for best proctice when [t
comes to leading, developing, and
supporting our people and therefore
we invited Investors in Pecple to assess
us, We were delighted to achieve Sllver
accreditation across the Group,

Over the year we built on our activities
to develop our people at all levels
within the organisation:

we continued the rollout of our Talent
Manogement and Succession
Planning Framework which helps

us find and then develop, hurture,
and retaln our future leaders;

we developed more of our
manggers and team leaders
through cur bespoke Manggemenit
Development Programme which

Is recognised by the Institute of
Leadership & Management (ILM)
and the Chartered Management
Institute (CMI);

we launchea new training courses;
toples requested included resilience
lecdership, and giving and receiving
feedback; and

we expanded our apprenticeship
offering, with twelve of our people
abtalning their apprenticeship
quallfication in 2022, and we currently
have o further 21 working towards
thelr professional quallfication.
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Equality, diversity,

and inclusicn

in October, we unveiled our “Levelling
Up impact Report’, which has heen
developed in partnership with The
Purpose Coalition, The report, which
was presented to business ledders
and MPs in Westminster, outlined
how we are moking a positive social
and environmental impact, which has
become even more Important amid
the current cost~of-living challenges.

| he Levelling Up Goals provide a
framework to help organisations
identify gaps in access to opportunity,
address common socio-economic
barriers that prevent people from
achieving thelr potential, and hence
help narrow regional inequality and
Improve overgoll living standards in
the communities in which they operate.

The way we embrace diversity and
inclusion in our recrultiment ond people
management was recognised when
SMS won 'Best Diverslty & Inclusion
Initlative’ at the $1 Awards. We are
alse proud to announce thatwe have
signed up to a company partnership
with the Women's Engineering Society.
This partnership helps us to support
women in engineering careers and

to encourage young girls to view
engineering as a career option.

We have also introduced a reverse
mentoring programme via Disability
Connect. Disabllity Connect provides
organisations with disabled mentors
who help ralse awareness of the Issues
disabled people face in the workforce
and provide inslght that we willuse to
ensure SMS 15 accessible and
welcoming to all.
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Sustainability continued
Our people continued

Giving something back

As part of our commitment to ‘Levelling Up' and sustainabllity, we have
targeted our social responsibllity efforts at those cornmunities that need
help the most, particulanty In deprived areas close to where we aparate as
abusiness around the UK, For example, a team of SMS volunteers spent the day
at Bolton NICE foodbank, which provides suppart to children, families, and
individuals who are experlencing difficulties. Also, members of our HR team
volunteered at Wesley Primary School, situated near our tralning academy
and contact centre site in Bolton, as part of a soclal community activity.

We have also confirmed our commitment to support charities within local
cormmunitles close to some of our offices, and for the next three years we
will donate £90,000, between Beotson Cancer, Vellndre Cancer Centre,

The Bluebell Woed Hospice and Bolton Hospice, Followlng this commitment,
we wlll undertake a company-wide survey to decide which new charities will
recelve our support.

« We matched the charity fundralsing

Giving something back
efforts of many employees through

We are mindful of our responsibility not
only to aur employees, but also to the
communities within which they live. With
this In mind, In 2022 we enhanced our
support for aur local comrnunities
through several initiatives:

chosen causes.

SMS empioyees volunteered thelr
time to provide career advice at
several local schools, the HR team
helped improve a school play area
near Bolten, and a group of our
senior managers volunteered their
time at the Bolton NICE foodbank
and at a Cardiff nursing home.

+ Three of our senior leaders became
mentors on our continued programme
with the Aleto Foundation charity.
This Is focused on ldentifying and
developing the next generation of
leaders from BAME communities
who may historically have found it

We participated in various locat
school engogement activities such

chalienging to access opportunities as mock Interview days, careers fairs,

due to their backgrounds.

We committed to support charities We continued to support Career
within the focal communities close Ready with thelr mentoring

to our offices and for the next three programme.

years will donate £90,000.

and career networking.

Awards, accreditations,
awareness

one~off corporate donations to thelr

New

» Investors in People Silver
accreditation

» Living Hours Employer

» Member of Women's
Engineering Soclety (WES)

« Social Mobllity Pledge

« Memberof Employers’ Initlative
on Domestic Abuse

« Member of the National Suiclde
Preventlon Alliance

« Camerstone Employer within
South Yorkshire

« Young Person’s Guarantee
Employer within Glasgow

« Best Companies One to Watch
2022 (2nd yedr ina row)

« Made our commitrnent to
become a Menopause
Friendly Employer

Maintained
» Accredited Living Waoge
Employer status

Disabllity Confident Leader
stotus (Level 3)

Race at Work Charter signatory

+ Employers Network for Equallty
& Incluslon accreditation

Mindful Employer pledge

Mempber of the Tomorrow’s
Engineers Code to increase the
diversity and number of young
people entering engineering

Partnership with Tommy's
Pregnancy and Parenting
at Work

Member of the Pregnancy
L.oss Pledge
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Gender pay gap

reporting 2022

SMS supports and encourages gender
diversity amongst s workforce and
welcomes the requirement for gender
pay gop reporting, introduced to
incredase pay transparency, andis
committed to diversity and Inclusion
throughout the buslness.

Gender within SMS!

Overall, the SMS Group workforce s
30% female and 70% male, Aswe are
part of the histerically male-dominated
engineering industry, it Is no surprise
that cur organisation has such o wide
gender split (welghted towards men),
and that a gender pay gop exists,

The mean gender pay gap in hourly
pay for the SMS Group is 22.4%, and
the median gender pay gap 1s 37.2%.

Specifically within SMS:

* most of our employees are engineers,
ond this [s a profession with more
men than women;

s thare are more men thanwomen
In senior roles;

+ there are more womenin part-time
roles; and

» there are more women in lower-
paying roles,

It is worth noting that most of these
fssues are prevalent throughout the
UK and internationally, so are not
unigque to SMS,

Financial statements

As can be seen via ‘Englneering UK’
(published online via Women's
Englneering Society) who provide
workforce statistics, in March 2022;

« Women make up 14.5% of all
engineers, compared to 10.5%
reported in 2010,

» This represents a 6 percentage point
incredase in the proportion of women
in the englneering workforce.

« The actual number of women working
in engineering roles qlso ingreased
from 542,000 [n 2010 to 936,000
fn 2021,

The percentage of female empiovees
has decreased in the lower middle pay
guartile by 11% as during the datg set
period, there was o significont Increase
in headcount in engineering rofes, which
is predominantly a male dominated
fleld, and the upper middle pay grade
has 2% maore women, However, there
continued to be significontly more male
employees (In senior roles) in the upper
middle and top qudrtiles, which
exacerbates our gender pay gap.

That sald, for the $MS Consolldated
Group, the mean hourly pay gap has
decreased and thus Improved by

1.2% which Is & positive.

Curing 2022, we promoted 13 women
internalty into management and
senior level positions and appointed

4 wormen externally into management
level positions.
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Taking action — aur strategy

SMS supports and encourages a
culture of gender diversity amongst its
workfaorce, ltis through the contribution
of ‘Cur People’ from of all backgrounds
that ensures our business |5 successful,
as only a diverse, inclusive, and
engoged workforce will protuce the
soiutions we need to tackle the varying
challienges faced by our business, and
Industry leading thinking will transition
the energy market,

We are prioritising the following

areas for action: diversity and inclusion
will rernain a strategic driver. We will
utlilse extemnal accreditations and
memberships for support (i.e, WES),
together with internal tools including
the SMS voluntary EDI monitoring form,
with a focus onincreasing completion
rates. We will also continue to use our
group pay and reward framework.

This will help ensure there is no bias
towards either gender from the point

~ of recruitment, through to salary

conversations and progression
oppartunities. We continue to actively
promote gender balance within the
SMS Group and explore how we can
continue to attract women Into our
organisation, to create a more even
gender balance, specifically within
our engineering workforce,

Gender breakdown?!

1 Wecollected our dato on S April 2022, when the total workforce for the consalldated Group consisted of 388 women and 896 men

{incuding Non-execytive Divactors).

2 Senlor managemaent is defined as employees (including executive directors) who have respansibliity for planning, dirgcting and controlling

the activitles ofthe Group.
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Sustainability continued

O4.
Health and
safety

Key highlights

+ Zero Injury RIDDORS, Including
guring the construction of our

grid-scale battery storage sites,

« Maintained certification for the
SO 0O, 14001, 27001, 45001
and 50001 standards.

« Successfully extended the
scope of ISO 50001 to include
additional SMS sites.

» Extended the scope of Safe
Contractor accreditation to
Include SMS Connectlons
and CH4 Ltd.

+ |0SH Contractor Management

Training commenced.

* More live dashboards for

monitating performance,

Overall, 2022 was a pasithve year for
safety, health, environment and quality
(SHEQ} performance across the Group,
We continued to bulld on the momentum
of the previous years with wide-ranging
Improvement targets across our SHEQ
metrics, Qur rolling actlon plans ensured
we stayed on course and agaln we
delivered some excellent results.

The contractors on our multiple
grid-scole battery storage sites

have also overcome many challenges,
most notably weather-related, during
the construction phoses on our sites,
Again, we are pleased to report zero
RIDDORs on our five construction
sites during 2022,

"We remain committed to being
a safe, secure and reliable
organisation which protects
the safety and wellbeing of
our people and our customers.

”



Strategic report Governgnce

Accidents and incidents
For 2022, we dre agaln dellghted

to report zero injury RIDDORs. Cur
rates for other less sarfous Incldents
were in line with last year's
outstanding results,

* Noinjury RIDDORs were reparted,
resulting in an Accldent Frequency
Rate (AFR) of zero for the second
yedar .unning.

» | ast Time Incident Frequency Rate
{LTIFR) at 0.21 per 100,000 hours
waorked (2021: 0.17).

« Non-Lost Time Incident Frequency
Rate (NLTIFR) ot 0.53 per 100,000
hours worked (2021: 0.52),

+ Total Recordable Incldent Fraquency
Rate (TRIFARY ot 0.74 per 100,000
hours worked (2021: 0.69).

+ Group technlcal performance has
improved slanificantly over the year
finishing at 15 incldents per 100,000
Installs (2021; 28), ThisIs commendable
given the significant increqse In
installations and the associoted
works in the year.

Grid-scale battery storoge
During 2022, the construct/on and
operation of our grid-scale bottery
storage (GSBS) sites continued ot pace.
We currently have three sites under
construction and thwee aperational,
The sites have been closely monitored
by the SHEQ and GSBS teams and we
dre agdaln pleasad to report, that there
have been no significant injuries or
incidents on any of the GSBS sites
intha period,

The collaborative ethos that exists
between cll stakeholders has ensured
that the slte workers are safe gnd
heqlthy, and the works dre having
minimal Impact on the public and the
local environment, We are also pleased
with the blodiversity Improvements
that are eitherin place at our live sites
or plonned gt our sites under
construction. Planning Is also underway
for lessons learned forurns with our
contractors as we sirive to continualty
Improve our understanding of how best
to construct and operate our assets.

Financial statements

Qccupational health

We continue to maintain a strong focus
on occupational health, particulary
mental heatth, and have g number

of tools and services at our disposal
to asslst our employees. We are also
acutety oware of the pressures facing
our emergency services nationally and
have Invested heavily in emergency
rasponse training far our employees
as well as equipment within each of
our workplaces. This will ensure that
we can deagl with many of the issues
that we would ctherwise normally rely
on the emergency services to cover.
Qur employees have come forward

in significant numbers to volunteer for
the varicus training packages on offer
and again demonstrated their total
commitment to piaying their part In
keeping our workplaces as safe and
healthy as possible.

Mental health [ssues remain a global
concern and we have continued to
focus onthese ond related issues, By
drawing on the |otast evidence and
using exampiles of good practice from
around the world we are highlighting
and informing our employees on steps
they can take to mdintain and improve
mental heatth. We are also working
with our stakeholders to deepen the
commitment given to mental health,
reshape the environmeants that
influence mentat health, and strengthen
the systems that care for mental
health, These efforts wiil ensure that
our people remaln healthy and are fully
aware of the multitude of conditions
that are directly and indirectly related
to mental heglth, Qur support to our
employees is unwavering,
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Employee forums -

At SMS, we have a number of employee
forums that contribute to our ongoing
SHEQ improvement journey. The
Forums are led by other functions
including human resources, compliance
and operations. They allow employees
to ralse and discuss SHEQ issues
openly with feedback provided from
SHEQ i required, The business also
benheflts from the many [deas that are
presented at the farums by empioyees.
A recent example of this Is a4 high~
Impact messaglng service, using
Microsoft Teams, thot was
implemented ofter discussfons on
communications at o forum,

Industry campaigns and

communications

Qur communication programme is a
cruclal part of our SHEQ management,
system. Throughout the year, we
participated in industry campalgns
and delivered a range of internal
communications via our numerous
media platforms. In 2022, we introduced
two new comimunication channels
designed for speedy delivery of
messaging, high Impact and effective
collaboration. These channels
supplement what we dlready have in
place and ensure that our employees
are kept up to date on health and
safety issues by varlous means.

Unfortunately, Gos Safety Week 2022
was cancelled due to the death of Her
Magjesty Queen Elizabethil. Cur
participation in the campaignis an
annuadl highlight and we decided to
dedicate the time and resource to
other improvement inftiatives including
anew award far safety and guality for
our engineering workforce, This was
well received and maintained o focus
on safety and quality long after the
usual Gas Safety Week activitles.
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Sustainability continued

Health and safety continued

Systems

Qur embedded systems are key to
continual improvement and this year
we have further utilised Power Bl for
our reporting. The Power Bl dashboards
offer up-to—-date information on
performance and enadble us to focus
on any areas that require attention
immediately. We have dedicated
resource monitoring and improving
all our systems with detailed action
plans and targets. This year has seen
wide-ranging Imgrovements to our
Technical Helpdesk, Complionce, Fleet,
SHEQ and Tachnlcal reporting
dashboards which enable swift
interventions when risks are flagged.
Workis continuing to further develop
the dashboards and metrics to keep
pace with changes and new

business streams.

ISO certifications “We again reported

The business maintained all its ISO

certifications in 2022 with no significant  ZE'0 iNjuries under

non-conformance recorded during the .
oudit processeas, Qur management the erortlng Of

reviews, heid inthe first quarterevery  Injuries, Diseases

year, are the starting point of cur
annual 150 journeys, These forums and Dangerous

bHng together a cross—sectjon of the

workforce and are used to instll the O ccurrences
behaviours required to operate a pegUIGtionS."

modern, evolving integroted
management system,
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Health and safety policy

The annual review of our health

and safety policy and associated
arrangements was carried out in
April 2022 und published on the
Campany's Intranet. The pollcy,

which is a staternent of intent,

drives improvements across our
management systems and other
related processes. For example,

a number of working groups were
established during 2022 to review
persenal protective equipment (PPE),
training and our fleet, The cutputs
from the groups included new higher-
grade PPE, an induction training
review and a revised procedure for
company vehicles,

Financioi statements

The SHEQ targets and oblectives are
revised annually based on the previous
year's performance and any other
notable events. Once approved by

the Health, Sulety and Sustainabllicy
Cormmittee, they are cascaded through
the business and published monthly for
internal and externat consumption. we
are constantly on the lookout for new
and emerging rsks and porticipate In
varlous industry groups where exlsting
and hew business streams ore discussed.
For example, in 2022 we visited the site
of aproposed hydrogen village and
look forward to further developments
in the use of hydrogen across the UK,
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2023 and beyond

As usual, our priority for 2023 Is to keep
our people and those affected by our
undertokings safe ond heaolthy, Qur
ambitious targets and action plans will
continue to drive improvements across
the business, We continually adapt to
new work streams. In 2022 our grid-
scdle battery storgge facilities moved
to en operation and maintenance
status and we are now prepaiing for

a major leap forward in domestic
settings that will include electric vehicle
charging polnts, heat pumps and sotar
photovoitdic. We have also embarked
on amagjor sustalnability-focussed
refurbishment of cur Cardiff office.

We remain committed to being a safe,
secure and relinble organisation ona
look forward confidently to 2023.
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O5.

Ethical business

practices

Qur five core values

Safety, customer excellence, innovation, pride
and sustainability underpin our commitment to
‘putiing our people first’ and drive the behaviours
we wish to see demonstrated throughout our
business practices.

Customer
excellence
Safet
Y Listenand respect
Go the axtra mile
Be te
Take care of your sh poll th
wellbeing ond others ow empathy
Take gwnership
and responsibility
Be awarae

Reaport and action

Innovation

Share ond encourcage

naw ideas

Find sotutions

Be creative

Think for the future

Putting our
people first

Pride

Celebrate our
differences

Be trustworthy
Give praise and
recognition
Worktothabest
of your abliity
Work as one team

Qur core values and behaviours

Sustainability

Make graener
decislons

Bultd an enjoyable
and healthy working
environment
Pasitiva towards
change

Encotiraga athers
to act sustainably
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Putting our people first

Our core values and behaviours
Qur Code of Conduct provides the
foundatlon on which oyr standards are
built and our approach to environmental,
social and governance issues, detailed

further on our website at www.sms-plc.

com/corporate/sustainapliity, sets out
clear expectations of how to conduct
business in an ethical way.

Finrancial statements

Ethical, fair ond dlligent governance
underpins ¢ll our business actlvitles, This
is supparted by extensive training and
the contlnuous education of our people,
from a fuil corporate inductlon through
to ongoing leaming and development.

Qur key poiicies which recognise,
support and protect our employees’
human rights — and thus drive our
ethlcal business practices — caver
the following areas:

« antl-pribery and corruption
» modern slavery
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« whistlebiowing (detailed further
onpage 89}

= datd protection

« egual opportunities, diversity and
inciuslon {detalled further on page 53)

» heglth and sofety (detailed further
conpages 54 to 59}

= disclpline
= grlevance

= dignity ot work.

Although not fully inclusive of everything we do, the foillowing table demonstrates the key pollcies that we currently

implement and monitor In this area:

Related policles

Key themes

Implementation
and review

Reporting

Human n‘g hts SMSCode of Conduct

Equal oppoartunities,

diversity and Inclusion

policy

Dignity at work policy

We respect the rights
and dignity of all people
when conducting our
business.

Qur focus Is an ethical
business practices for
our people, customars
and wider commmunitlies.

Our poilcies and
approach are
embedded [In cur culture,
They are communicated
at Induction, through our
employee handbook and
via e-'eagrning modules.

Employees are required
to immediately report
any instances of
treach in human rights
to our Group HR
Director.

Durlng the year, there
were ne reported
breaches,

Anti-bribery Anti-bribary and Thls policy includes All employees are Any breaches of policy
corruption policy guidance to employees required to occept and are reported to our
and on the giving, recelving adhere to the policy. General Counseland
corru ption gnd recording of We do not deal with investigated.
hg:;:;;g’?j;;ﬁer with prospective contractars During the year, there
other qreu's of specific or suppliers known to pay,  wera no reported cases
risk, and Is reviewed or suspected of paying, of bribery or corruptlon.
regularly to ensure it 2::2:%2:2::?;?:::5“
rermoins fit for purpose. of corruption.
Modern Madern slavery pelicy We do not tolerate Controcts with new Any breaches of this
modern slavery within suppliers require o policy are reported to
slavery and ;oc:e;]n:‘l:very our immedlate business  warront to us that they our General Counsef
human ate or wider supply chain. are compliant with the and, where required, to
trc:fﬁcking Although the risk of terms of the Modern the relevant authorities.
modern slavery and Slavery Act 2015. During the vear, there
human trafficking in Existing agreements in were no reported
relation 1o SMS is fow, piace for our Tier 1 oreaches.
we do monitor our vendors already cover The Company's Maderm
N besiing Mo savery
mitigate the risk Key staff training is be found on our website
) regularly reviewed. at www.sms-plc.com/
modern-slavery
Political Charitabie and political The Company prahibits Donations are monitored  There were no
. donations policy political donatons other by the General Counsel. political denations
dOF‘IOtIOFIS made in the year,

than those approved by
the Bodrd.
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Risk report

Risk governance
and management

Qur established risk management framework, and the wider system of internal
control, continues to adapt in line with our growing business and the challenging
macroeconomic environment. The Board has overall responsibility for governance,
risk management and internal control. In support of this, we operate robust risk
management processes, which are embedded within everyday business activities
throughout the Group. The risk management framework on page 63 highlights the
main responsibilities for the management and oversight of risk within the Group.

The macro—-economic environment
presented several externdi challenges
during the vear, Including cantinued
volatility within energy markets, high
inflation and the rtemaining impact of
the pandemic. The ongoing conflict In
Ukraine hos placed additional pressure
on the global energy supply chain,
Rising energy prices, subseguent
cost-of-living Increases, and the risk
of supplier insolvency remain key
challenges.

Our customer exposure is Inherently
mitigated due to the Supplier of Last
Resort (SoLR) process, whereby Ofgem
directs d gas or electriclty licensee to
take over responstbillty for a falied
energy supplier's custamer portfolio.
This protects future metering charges,
which are ralsed to the newly
appointed energy supplier regardless
of whether they are an existing
contracted customer with the Group,
and 50 caps our financial exposure at
amounts already accrued or billed, but
not vet settled.

In additlon, we have robust commerciat
biling arrangements, an established
credit control function and significant
available funding under our debt
facllity which help to absorb market
shocks like this. The Board closely
monitors the situation and receives
regular reports on the Group’s cash
and debtar positions.

Group internal audlt continued to work
clasely with the Audit Commitiee,
executive leadership tearn and
departmental teams throughout 2022
to support the continucus
Improvement of risk management
procasses within the Group. This work
inciuded faciitating regular risk
workshops, which ore used to:

v identify new risks and review and
update existing risk ratings;

= {dentify appropriate new mitigating
actions; and

« gssess progress towards completion
of identified mitigating actions.

The Board and Audit Committee
recedve regular raporting on the autputs
from risk management activitles. Durlng
2022, Group internal audit performed
several internal audit reviews of
speclfic risk areds including cyber
security, grid-scale batteries, treasury
rmanagement, financial controls over
billing and fixed asset managemant
and disaster recovery planning.

Understanding our risks

The organisational risk management
framework comprlses the recording
and managemeant of ‘top-down’
sirategic risks, which are discussed by
the Board and executive jeadership
team, as well as ‘bottom-up’ risks,
which capture potential operational
issues gt a departmental level. Our
risk assessment mode( considers;

= the probability of a risk crystallising;
and

« the potential impact if the risk did
crystallise.
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Risk management framework

Boord/Audit Committer
The Board is responsible for setting the tone at the top and monitoring business performance. This includes regularly reviewing
risks that could Impact achlevement of the Group's strategle and organisational objectives.

The Board is supperted by an effective corporate governance structure, including the Audlt Committee, which has specific

delegated authority to review tha effectivenass of the Group's internal control mechanisms, financial reporting, internal audit
and risk management processes.

Executive leadership team
The executive leadership team is respansible for reviewing and managing the strategic risks within the Group and for providing
oversight on departmental operational risks. It provides leadership and direction to employees on risk-taking activity.

The executive leadership team also has primary responsibillty for driving the development and enhancement of the risk
management procasses used within the Group.

Group internal audit

Group internal audit develops and delivars the annual risk-based Group Internal Audit Plan, which is aligned to the strategic
risks contalned within the corporate risk register. This annual plamn, which includes a three-year outloolk, ;s approvad by the
Audit Committee.

Group Internal audlt provides oversight and advice onrisks and controls to departmental teams as they manage the risks
intheir areas.

Safety, hedlth, environment and quality {(SHEQ) and compliance teams

The SHEG and compliance teams are responsible for ensuring complicnce with codes of proctice, such s the Code of Practice
for Meter Asset Mandagers and Approved Meter installers {MCoP’) and the Elactricity Meter Operations Code of Practice
Agreement (MOCoP). -

The SHEQ team, in conjunction with the executive leadership team and the Board, is instrumental in setting the tone at the top
inrelatlon to safety matters.

The SHEQ team Is responsible for obtalning and maintaining the Group's ISQ certifications, which are supported by business
assurance reviews.

Departmental management
The management teams in adch department within the Group are responsibla for the day-to-day management of risks
within their areq, ensuring that risks are appropriately identified, prioritised and mitigated.

These principal risks and uncertainties The heat map provides g picture of We continuaily evaiuate our principal
have been scored and placed onthe residual (mitigated) risk at the corporate  risks In line with our strategic priorities
risk heat mop on the next page, which level ang allows us to assess the and the prevalling industry and market
is a matrix of probablity and Impact. effectiveness of our internal controf conditions. Our risk management

Our model considers eachrisk from environment and take further action activities include:

two different perspectives: as approptlate. The matrix also

= frequent risk workshops to update

enables the Group to focus |ts corporate ond departmentalrisk

« the extent of inherent risk )
internal audit actlvity.

{pefore mitigating contrals have registers;
been implemented); and + detalled reporting of significant
« the extent of residual risk strateglc risks to the Board; and

{after mitigctlng controls have « consideration of new and emerging
been applied). significant global, Industry and
economic risks.
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Risk report continued

Risk governance and management continued

Our principal risks

Qur principal risks ore assigned a
red, amber or green status
depending on the perceived overall
severity after allowing for effective
mitigation. After categorisation,
risks are treated ¢s follows:

Some action may be required,
and risks are routinely manitored
by management.

Potential breach of cyber security

Majorincident risk

Speed of organlsational change
{near term)

Business continuity and
disaster recovery

Action Is required to mitigate the risk
through improved control with
oversight from executive leadership.

Metering and grid-scale
batterias supply chain

Mitigating actions are required
immediately. Oversight Is provided
by the Board, Audit Committee and
executive leadership directly,

Funding and warking capital
management

Loss of environmental, social and
gaverndnce (ESG)-related and
regulatory accreditations

Potentiai breach of General Data
Protectlon Regulotion (GDPR}

COVID-19

Our people

Stability of energy suppliers

All risks are assigned mitigating
actlons with an appropriate
business owner and are supported
by an executive sponsor to ensure
accountabitity. Our principal risks
remain unchanged from thosa
reported in last year's Annugl report
and accounts. The risk rating for aur
funding and working capital
management risk has increased
from green to amber due to the
changing macro-economic
environment, This risk continues

to be monitored by Board.
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Our principal risks
and uncertainties

Set out below are the principal risks and uncertainties which could have a material RIsk exposure key
impact on the Group, The numbers correspond to the net mitigated risk identified

on the heat map. These risks are continually monitored by the Board. The table Risk unchanged
shows whether the Boord considers that the Hkelihood or impact of the risks Risk decreased
materialising Is increasing, decreasing or unchanged and also sets out the Risk increased
mitigating actions that have been taken by the Group.

Detailed risk Potential Impact Existing mitigating controls
1. Potential breach = Finoncial penaditles under » 1SO 27001 accredltation
information securlty

of cyber security « Farmal cyber security policy, Including phishing

Critical Information regulations response procedure, communicated to all SMS staff
technology systems + Financialloss » Mandatory security awareness tralning for all SMS staff
could be subjectto o » Unauthorised access .

major external or Internal to systems and data Physical controls in place including flrewalls and encryption
cyber-attack, causing s A dedicated information security tearm

» Service disruption

abreach of information « Aningependent Board-level information Technology

securty regulations and/ « Loss of customer and/or Commitiee

or service disruptlon. suppfier confidence .

Lo ¢ reditati + Managed Security Service Provider arrangement

Risk level * Loss of accreditations provides a dedlcated Security Operation Centre (SOC)

ond certifications ] ]

Risk exposure trend = Annuail audlt by |ndepengent third pgrty of cyber
security procedures against internationally
recognised framework

2. quor « injury orloss of life « Incldent response and communications plan

incident risk « Loss of business operations  » Dedicated incident management rasponse team

A malor incident could + Flnancial penaltles or lest + The Board has overall accauntability far compliance

oceur, with severe revenue wlith health and safety standards and is provided with

censequences for people, regular management reporting
the environment, revenue

and company reputation. « Breachof IT systems and « Group wide ISO certifications
loss of data « Independent regulatory reviews

» Reputational damage

Risk leve| \ . .
« Business continulty and disaster recovery plans

Risk expasure trend « Maintenance of high-guality and mandatory training
standards, driven by job roles

» Rolling internal technical assurance audit programme
s Penetration testing across the Group's IT estate
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Risk report continued
Our principal risks and uncertainties continued

Detalied risk

Potential impact

Existing mitigating controls

3. Speed of
organisationa!
change (nedr term)
Speed of organisational
growth In the short term
without sufficient and
appropriate growth
ininfrastructure.

Risk [eve!

Risk exposure trend

Insufficient engineering
capacity/resource gvallable

Lirmitotions on organisationel

back-office and support
functions

Meatering supply and
warehousing operations
cannot meet demand

IT infrastructure does not
scale up quickly enough to
mect businaess needs

-

Capacity planning system to suppert the Group's
engineering workforce

Robust forecasting processes closely glighed to
commercial and operational management teams

Well-established supplier onboarding processes
Strategic and targeted recruitment activity for engineers
Subcontractor call-off arrangements in place dcross UK

IT strategy closely aligned to organisatienal strategy
for growth and future business modelling and includes
regular needs assessment

Dedicated senior roles in piace to fead growth in carbon
reduction ('CaRe') verticals

Economies of scale from woreghouse amdalgamation

4. Business
continuity and
disaster recovery
- resilience of IT
infrastructure and
failure of critical
business systems

and processes
Fallure of core and/or
critical Information
technology systems could
result in operational
interruption.

Risk level

Risk exposure trend

Temporary loss of IT
infrastructure/critical
business systems and
processes

Loss ar corruption of data

Detrimental impact on
customer service

Paotentlal loss of revenue
through Inabllity to meet
customer arders or issue
invoices

-

Business continuity plan in place across the Group

Monitoring of industry data flows and escalation
of issues should they arise

Disaster recovery plans and testing scheduies In ploce
for critical IT systems

Fallover facliity available for immediate redeployment
of staff, enabling key operations to be maintained

Alternative UK sltes avallable to manage core business.
operations

Most of the workforce able to work fram home to
suppaort the Group's customers

N-+1 (paralle! redundancy) backup to ensure an
uninterruptible power supply and system avaliability

Current IT roadmap to 2025

5. Metering and
grid-scale batteries
supply chain

The Group relies ona
limited number of ¢ritical
suppliers for meters and
gHrd-scdle batteries, and
fallure of critical suppliers
could have significant
operational and financial
Implications.

Risk levei

RIsk exposure trend

« Stock shortages and inabllity

« Increased commoedity prices

« Legal and financial exposure

Delays in importing meters
dand grid-scale batteries

to fulfil customer orders or
projects on time

Business continuity 1ssues

Unenforceabie contracks
ond financial penaities

Growth In the Group's supplier base continues to
mitigate the risk of over-rellance on critical suppllers

Business contlnuity arrangements in place

Centralised in-house legal function protects commercial
Interests through robust contracting process

Enhanced stock control processes mitigate the risk
of being unable to fulfii customer orders in the event
of failure of a criticol supplier

Monitoring of stock teveis in warehouses to ensure
sufficient meter stockis heid to meet customer
obligations

Dedicated senior roles with responsibility for stock
and logistics and delivery of grid-scale battery
storage projects

Enhanced due diligence on grid-scale battery suppliers
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Existing mitigating controls

6. Funding and
working capital
management
Suitable funding
arrangements are critical
to enable the continued
growth of our asset
portfolio, particuiarly in
relation to ‘CaRe’ assets.
Poor managerment of core
elements of working
capital, particularly during
peak activity periods,
could lead to inability

to meet creditor
requirements and cause a
negative financlal impact.

Risk increasedin 2022
as now drawing on the
loan facility.

RIsk level

Risk expesure trend

« Defgult on debt obllgations

« Credit or debt facllities
ars wirdrawn

« Inabillty to meet exlsting
custemer or trade
commitments

« Increased supply chain costs

« Lack of funding to take
advantage of emerging
business opportunities
{Inchuding for CaRe assets)

« Credit control function and robust commerciol? billing
arrangements

» Regulor ond formal review of key management
information on ¢ash and debt positions

+ Revolving credit facility of E420rm through
to December 2025

+ Regular long-term forecasting of funding requlred

+ Board monitoring of the funding required to meet
the Group’s growth plans

7. Loss of ESG-
related and
regulatory
accreditations

Loss of accreditatons or
failure to comply with key
regulatory requirements
could lead to an Inability
to deliver our core
services, leading to aloss
of revenue or reduction
in banking facilities.

Risk leve|

Risk exposure trend

» Not achleving our ESG or
regulatory accreditations

« Inabllity to conduct business
« FInancial penalties
» Reputational damage

+ Loss of trained and qualified
engineers

» External investigatlon{s) and/
oraudits

s The Board has overall accountabllity for compliance
with safety, health and environmental standards and
|s provided with regular mancagemeant reporting

» Board-opproved sustainability strategy with a clear
roadmap to achieving ‘net zero” status by 2030

« Dedicated Health, Safety and Sustalnability Committee,
supported by ESG Working Group

= Reguiar sustainakility reporting to relevant agencies
and other external stakeholders including release of
annual Sustainablity Report

= Well-establlshed Group technical assurance teamin
place, induding an experienced complldance function
with deep industry insight and expertise

» Dedicated training academy for field service engineers

« Rolling training plan in place for ail engineering staff to
maintaln and upgrade certifications

« Extenslve assurance activity performed ucross the
Group, by specialist assurance teams

« Regular external independent and routine audits
performed by regulatars

= Effective HR onboarding process for new staff, including
engineering team
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Risk report continued
Our principal risks and uncertainties continued

Daetailed risk

Potential impuact

Existing mitigating controls

8. Potentlal breach
of General Data
Protection
Regulation (GDPR})
There could be o breach of
GDPR through an internal
failure to follow protacol
and policy or as aresult

of datointegrity and
retentlon issues,

Risk lovel

Risk exposure trend

+ Financial pengities under
GDPR

» External investigation(s)
by the Information
Commissioner's Office

» Loss of customer and/or
suppller confidence

« The General Counsel Is an expert in data protection
and is the appolinted Data Protection Officer (DPO)

The BPO manitors intemal GDPR complionce and,
through a series of internal and external communication
platforms, informs and advises staff and third parties of
our abligations and expectations under GDPR

Annual GDPR training for cll SMS staff

IT security manitoring controls, including g SOC and
Netskope menitoring of external communicotions

Q. COVID-19

The ongoing development
of COVID-19 globally
presents arisk to the
business, with the Group's
primary concern belng the
welfare of its people,
customers and end
CONSUMErs.

Risk level

Risk exposure trend

Hedlth and wellbeing of
workforce, customers and
consumers

Short-term fingncial
constraints

Business continuity issues

Cessation of non-¢ssential
travel

Potential detrimental impact
on the supply chain

Delayed cand/or slow delivery
af the Group‘s contracted
pioelines In smart meters
and grid-scale batteries

Counterparties could default
on contractual obllgations

Personal protection equipment (PPE) worn as required

L]

Employees encouraged to be fully vaccinated

Regular communications with employees
and customers

*

Recurring revenue streams on the Group’s existing
meter and data asset base provide a resilient business
operating model able to withstand short-term
economic shock

Most of the workforce gre able to work and support the
Group's customers from home (including those 'n
shielding categories)

Temporary closure of offices and warehouses,
in periods where this is necessary

Maintenance of gas and electricity supply on
an emnergency basls for customers

Credit control functlon with regular counterparty
monitoring

Regular review of corporate forecasts and
scenario modelling
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ExIsting mitigating controls

* Highievels of employee
turnover

10. Our people

An inability to attract,
retalin gand motivate the
right peopie could haye

a materlal gdverse effect
on the business and

ultimotely lead to afailure
to deliver on its strategic » Follure to take advontage

= Louss of employees with
specialist skill sets to
competitors

« Low employee mordle

objectives. of emerging business
opportunities

Risk level = Lack of business continuity

Risk =xuesure Lrend

» Recruitment, due dillgence and anboarding processes
{controcts Include probationary perlods)

* Successlon planning tor key leadership and
business roles

« Talent and performance manggement frameworks
limked to our vakies and behaviours

« Benchmarking of roles with the external market interms
of remunergtion and reward

« Harrmonised terms of employment, ensuring fairmess
gnd consistency across the Group

« Competitive rewards and employee benefits package
aligned to pay and rewaird framewark

= Regular, supportive one-to-one meetings between
people leaders and their directreports

« Regular emplovee satisfaction surveys, review of results
by management and implementation of actions to
address themes

» Equal opportunities, diversity and Inclusion policy
« Gender pay gap reporting
+ Sponsorship aoproved for key roles

« Proactive cast-of-living Increases (partlicularly for entry
level roles)

« Customers (energy suppliers)
enter administration or
become Insolvent

11. Stability of

energy suppliers
Rising wholesale enargy
costs could resultin
multiple energy suppllers
entering administration or
becoming insolvent,
ieading to unpaid debts
and loss of pipeline
revenue.

» Unpaid debts hot transferred
as part of the SOLR process
are irrecoverable

» Loss of contracted smart
meater order pipeline and
future revenue potential

Risk level

Risk exposure trend

« Experienced cradit control function and robust
commercial billing arrangements

» Regular and formal Board review of key management
inforrnation on the Group's cash and debtor positions

s Monitoring of market developments, through formal
and informat channels

= Contracts in place with larger energy suppliers, which
has already resulted in some positive resuits from the
SoLR process
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Financial review

Strong operational and
financial performance

"We have delivered
growth across all
our key revenue and
profit measures.”

Gail Blain
Chief Financial Officer

Financial highlights

Alternative
performance
measures’

index-linked annualised
recurring revenue (ILARR)

£971M s«

(2021 £85.9m)

Statutory
performance
measures!

Revenue

£135.5M.s«

{2021; £108.5m)

Pre-axceptional EBITDA

£63.8M ..

(2021 £52.8m)

Undertying profit before
taxation

£24.5M .5

{2021: £18.3m)

Statutory EBITDA

£5710Mm 2

(2024 E46.3m)

Statutory profit before
taxation

£16.0Mu

{2021: £8,3m

Underlying basic earnings
per share

16.06p0.o%

(2021: 9.60p)

Statutory basic earnings
pershare

1 1 .1 ép +248%

{202%:3.20p)

1 Refer to page 74 for definitions and
details of the Group's alternative
performance measures, whichinclude
ILARR, pre—exceptional EBITDA,
undarying profit before taxation and
undetlying basic eamings per share.
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We have again delivered
strong financial results in
2022 while continuing to
invest in our revenue
generating asset base,

Operational performance was strong
in 2022. We saw continued growth in
our meter installation run-rate, and
the performance of our first 50MW
grid-scale bottery site exceeded our
Initicl expectations. This has driven
growth dcross dll our key revenue and
profit measures. Qur 2022 tax charge
also includes the benefit of the tax
super-deduction avallablae on
qualifylng capital expenditure since
Aprll 2021. Our effective tax rate for
2022 Is therefore abnormally low, and
this has resulted in a particularly high
growth in our earnings per share,

Over the year we continued to Invest

In our established revenue-generating
carbon reduction (CaRe) assets,
growlng our meter assets and
developlng our portfollo of grid—-scale
battery sites. At the same time, we

also made smailer but strategic
Invastments to develop our capabllities
inenergy data management and electric
vehicle charging infrastructure. in 2022,
we in total Invested £172.6mnet cash in
Investing activities (2021: 121.7m).

We ended the year withnet debt of
£31.2m (31 December 2021: net cash
E117.7m) and £355m available on our
debt fodlity. We aretherefore Ina
strong posltion to continue to deliver our
meter and grid-scale battery pipelines,

Financial staterments
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Revenue
31 December 31December

2022 2021 Percantage

£m £m change

Asset management 928 82.¢ 12%
Assetinstallation 30.5 22.0 383%
Energy management 12.2 3.6 237%
Group revenue 135.5 1085 25%

Asset management revenues of
£92.8m are 12% up on the prlor year.
This growth reflects the flow-through
effect of progresslvely Increasing the
rate of meter Installations ot the end of
2021 and Into 2022 and the annucal RP|
uplift which took effect on 1 April 2022,

Asset installation revenues of
E£30.5mincreased 38% on the prior
yearas aresuit of increased volume
in transactional meter works and
increased activity in our connections
tusiness.

Energy management revenues of
E12.2mwere up 237% on the prior year,
Thisincludes £7.2m revenue from our
grid-scale battery sltes which began
operating in the year, Our first grid-
scale battery site became operatlonal
In January 2022 and two further slites
went live in December 2022, Revenue
from Energy management excluding
grid-scale batterles was £5.0m, up 38%
on priar year as a key customer project
inthe hospltality sector picked up
momentum with the continued recovery
from the effect of COVID-19 and sector
focus turning to energy efficlency.

Gross margins

SMS includes degpreclation on revenue-
generating assets within cost of sales
for statutory reporting purposes.
Removing this from the gross margin
provides a better comparison of the
Group's underlying trading
perforrmnance year-on-year.

Depreciatlon-adjusted gross margin
for the asset management segment
is 92% which is in line with prior year
{2021: 92%).

The asset Installation segment gross
margin was 23% (2021: 32%). In H1 2022
the Group continued to grow its
engineering workforce in order to
support the planned increase in meter
Installations. Costs associated with this
investment in the workforce such

as recrultment and training led to
additional one-off costs which
depressed the margin in the first half.
As expected, the margln recoverad
in the second half of 2022,

The energy management segment
depreciation~adjusted gross margin
has increased to 57% (2021: 24%). This
is due to the addition of our grid-scale
battery sites which generated an 80%
depreclation-adjusted gross margin
over the year. Grid-scale batteries
delivered revenue of £7.2mand
depreclotion adjusted gross profit

of £5.8m In the year. The gross margin
on the segment's other actlvities
remained constant gt 24% {2021; 24%),

Overall, the depreciation-aodjusted
gross margin at the Group level fell

by 4% to 73% {2021: 77%) due to the
Ivestment in our engineer basein
H12022 in our asset Installation division
coupled with the increase in battery
revenyes during 2022,

Pre-exceptional EBITDA
Pre-exceptional EBITDA provides

a measure of undertying performance
that Is comparable over time. Pre-
exceptional EBITDA of £463.8m was
21% bhigher than in the prior year
{2021: £52.8m).

The £14.5m increase in depreciation-
adjusted gross profit (excluding
exceptional cost of sales in 2021
arising frorm the result of COVID-19)
was partly offset by a £3.5m increase
In net operating costs, excluding
depreciation and amortisation,

This is being driven by a cost-of-living
payment made to our employeesin
H2 2022 in response to Inflationary
and other pressures experlenced in the
wider economic environment, further
Investment in our IT and support
systems and small increases across
our cost base to support growth in
other CaRe assets.
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Financial review continued

Underlying profit before-tax
Depreciation costs on meter assets
Increcsed 15% to £28.3m {2021: £24.7m)
due to the increase in the meter asset
partfollo.

Depreciction cost on grid-scale
battery sites increased to £1.0m
(2021: nll) due to the commencement
of depreclatlon on operaticnal
grid-scale battery sites in the year,

Depreclation costs on general
property, plant and equipment,
excluding meter assets and grid-scale
battery sites, has reduced by £0.5m
to £3.5m {2021 £4.0m} due to some
computer equipment and fixtures and
fittings now being fully depreciated.

Amortlsation costs on ourintangible
assets of E41m {2021 £4.1m} mainly

* consist of software amortisation

and were In line with prior vear.

Netfingnce costs increased £3.4m

to £3.9m (2021: £3.5m)}, Finance costs
relating to our loan facility Increased
E0.7m as we started drowlng on the
facllity inthe second haif, and interest
onleases also increased £0.5m as

we leqsed land for our new grid-scale
battery sites, The impact was however
partly offset by £0.3m interest income
earned.

As aresult, underlying profit before
taxation increased by 34% to £24.5m
{2021 £18.3m).

Exceptional items

Exceptional items of £6.6m

{2021; £8.2m) mainly comprise
£5.7mloss on the traditional and

first gencration smart meter
{'SMETSt) portfalio (2021: £5.9m). In
line with the Group’s established policy,
these losses are shown separately s
exceptional items In order to enhance
disclosure of underlying continuing
profitability. Acquisition-related costs
and other exceptional operating items
amounted to £0.9m (2021: £0.6m).
Exceptlonal Iterns In 2021 alsc Included
£1.7m exceptional finance costs
comprlsing the acceleration of
unamortised arrangement fees
relating to the Group's previous loan
facility which was refincnced In 2021,

Effective tax rate

The Group's capltal expenditure on
meter assets qualfies for capita
agilowances, providing the Group with
tax relief on such expenditure. These
allowances are claimed in the tax year
in which the asset is acquired and set
against taxable profit for that vear,
thus reducing the total tax payable. As
& resuit, the Group was hot tax-paying
In alther the current or prior year.

The effectlve tax rate on pre-
exceptlonal profits for the yearis
11,3% (2021: 39%). This represents the
anhounced rate of UK corporation tax
of 25% from 1 April 2023, which |s the
rate that will appily when the deferred
tax llabllity generated by the capital
allowances unwinds, less the impact
of ¢.£2.5m benefit of the tax super-
deduction that has been assessed on
our qualifying meter assets and grid
scale battery capltal expenditure
during 2022. The super-deduction

is only available on qualfylng capital
expenditure untll 31 March 2023,
therefore it Is expected that our
effective tax rate will increase to
amore normalised levelin 2023.

It shouid also be noted that the
effectlve rate on pre-exceptional
profits In 2021 was high due te &
change in the deferred tax rate,
following the UK Government's
engctment of the Finance Bill 2021

in May, which confirmed the increase
in the rate of corporation tax from 19%
to 25% from 1 April 2023. This was
applied to the Graup’s brought-
forward deferred tax llapilities onits
portfolio of meter assets increasing the
charge in 2021. The full-yeur effective
taxrate on 2021 pre-exceptional
profits excluding the impactof this
rate change, was 18.5%.

Earnings peér share

Underlying basic earnings per share
(EPS), which excludes exceptlonal
items, amortisation of certain
Intangibles and their assoclated tax
effect, was 16.06p (2021: 2.60p),
reflecting the underlying profitability
of the Group. Statutory earnings per
share Increased to 11.16p (2021: 3.20p).
As noted above our 2022 taxcharge
daglso Includes the benefit of the toax
super-deduction available on
qualifying capltal expenditure since
Aprit 2021. Our effective tax rate for
2022 is therefore abnormally low, ond
this has resulted in a particularly high
growth in our earnings per share,

Dividend

A 2750 per share dividend inrespect

of FY 2021 was agpproved at the
Group's Annual General Meeting In
May, and the fourth and final instalment
of this was paid in July 2022,

Inline with the Group's policy to grow
dividends at 10% per annum, a 30,.25p
per share dividend is proposed in
respect of FY 2022, This is expected
to be settled in four equal quarterly
Instaiments.
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Two instaiments have diready been pdid, in October 2022 and January 2023
with the following provisional timetable for the remaining Instalments:
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Instalment Ex—dividend date Record date Payment date
3 Q6 Apri[ 2023 11 April 2023 27 Aprii 2023
4 06 July 2023 07 July 2023 27 July 2023

The Board remcins comfortable that
future dividend payment amounts are
sufficiently secured by long-term,
sustainaple cash flows generated
from our existing portfolio of metering,
data and grid-scale battery assets.

Cash flow

Operating cash Inflow in 2022 was
£63.8m (2021: £61.8m). The cash Inflow
reflacts £63.8m pre-exceptlonal
EBITDA, £5.5m of non-cash costs
included in EBITDA and a £4.3m cash
outflow on working capitol net of tox
recelpts, largely due to a dellberate
puild-up of inventory levels to mitigate
the risk of delays Inthe supply chain
and ensure that meters are available
to grow our Installation run rote.

The Group also drew down £65.0m
underits loan facility.

The cash generated from operations
and from our borrowing has been used
to continue Investment in our revenue
generqting meter and grid-scale
baottery assets,

Capital expendliture on property, plant
and equipment was £143.4m (2021
E108.2m). Of this, £105.0m was invested
inmeter and dato assets, £36.3min
developing grid-scale battery sites
and £1.1m relates to the purchase of
land at one of our grid-scale sites.

Investing activities also include
poyments of £14.6m to gcquire battery
sites (2021; £4.7/m) and a further £12.3m
of instalment payments made for
grid-scale batteries which have not
vet been delivered (2021: £nil), On

the bolonce sheet, the sites under
development are clgssified ¢s assets
under construction within property,
plant and egulpment and the instalment
payments for batteries are classified
as ather non~-current receivables.

Afurther £2.2m (2021: £2.8m} investment
has been made in intangikie assets,
mainly relating to the development

of software to support the metering
and installations business.

Investing cash outflows also include

a £1.4m payment to acquire n3rgy
and a £2.1m Investment (including
transoction costs) to acquire a 25%
stake in Clenergy EV Ltd. See note 24
and note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements for further detuails,

Financial resources

Net debt ot 31 December 2022 was
£31.2m {31 December 2021: Net cash
£117.7m). This excludes restricted cash
and lease llabllifes accounted for
under IFRS 16,

The Group has in place g E420m debt
facility which matures in December
2025 and was fully compllant with all
its bank covenants throughout the
year. The Group has £32 8m available
in cash and £355m Jn unutilised
facilities (31 December 2021 £420m)
cnd therefore continues to have the
financial flexibility required to
maximise growth potentialina
capital~efficient way.

The Strategic report on pages 1t0 75
was approved by the Board of
Directors on 14 March 2023 and
signed on its behalf below.

On behaif of the Board

Gail Bigin C e\ ?"&

Chlef Financlal Officer
14 March 2023
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Definitions of alternative performance measures

Alterhative performance measure

Definition

Index-linked annualised recurring revenue

The revenue belng generated from meter rental and data
controets at a point in time. Includes revenue frorn third-
party managed meters.

Depreciation-adjusted gross profit

Stotutory gross profit less depreciation on revehye—
generdting assets, recognised within cost of sales.

Depreciation-adjusted gross profit margin

Depreciation—-adjusted gross profit divided by
statutory revenue.

Pre-exceptional EBITDA

Statutory EBITDA excluding exceptional items.

Underlying profit before taxation

Profit before taxation excluding exceptional itermns
and amortisation of certain intangibles.

Underlying profit after taxation

Profit after taxation excluding exceptionalitems and
amoertisation of certain intangibles’ and the tax effect
of these adjustments.

Underlying basic EPS

Underlying profit after taxction divided by the welghted
average number of ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic EPS.

Underlying difuted EPS

Underying profit after taxation divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the purposes
of dituted EPS.

Net caosh/debt

Total bank loans less cash and cash equivalents, exciuding
restricted cash, Exciudes lease liablities recognised under
IFRS 16,

1 Amertisation of the Group's Enterprise Resource Planning systam remalns within the underlying cost base of the business and Is therefore a part of the

Group’s undesiying profit meosures.
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Reconciliation of statutory to underlying results
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SMS uses alternative performance measures, defined on page 74, to present a clear view of what the Group considers to
be the results of its underlying, sustainable business operations. Excluding certain lterns enables consistent year-on-year
comparisons and oids a better understanding of business performance. A reconcillation of these performance measures

Is disclosed below:

Yearended Yedr ended
T Daternber 31 Dacembor
2022 2021 Percentage
£m £m change
Indax-linked annualised recurring revenue 97.1 85,9 13%
Group revenue 1355 1085 25%
Statutory profit from operations 20,1 135
Amortisation of intanglbles 4.2 41
Depreclkition 2.9 28.7
Statutory EBITDA 57.1 48.3 23%
Exceptionct items! (EBITDA-reloted) 8.6 65
Pre-exceptional EBITDA 63.8 52.8 21%
Share of joss of associate (©.2}) -
Net interest {excluding exceptional) (3.9} (3.5)
Depreciation (32.9) (28,7}
Amortisation of intangibles included in underlying proflt before taxation? (2.3) (2.3}
Underlying profit before taxation 245 18.3 34%
Exceptional items! (EBITDA) {6.6) {6.5)
Exceptional ltems? (interest} - .7
Amortisation of Intangibles excluded in underlying profit before taxation (1.8} (1.8
Statutory profit before taxatlon 14.0 83 92%
Taxation . {1.1) {4.5)
Statutory profit after taxation 14.9 38 292%
Amortisation of intangibles excluded in underlying profit after toxation 1.8 1.8
Exceptional tems* (EBITDA and interest) 6.6 8.2
Tax effect of adjustments (2,.0) {2.4)
Underlying profit after taxation 21.4 11.4 88%
Welghted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 133,241,113 118,330,817
Underlying baslc EPS (pence) 16.06 9.60 7%
Welghted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 13%,857,082 118,972,527
Underlying diluted EPS (pence) 15.98 255 &7%

1 Exteptional items are those moterial iterns of income and expense which, becouse of the nature or expected infreguency of the events giving rise to them,

merit seporote presentation on the conscliidated income statement.

2 Amortlsttlon of the Group's Enterprise Resource Plannlng system remains within the underlying cost base of the business agnd !'s therefore a part of the

Graup's Underlying profit medsures.

Year ended Year enced
¥ December 31 December
2022 201 Percentage
£m Em change
Statutoty gross profit 70.0 50 4 18%
Depreclation included in cost of sales 293 247
Depreclation-adjusted gross profit 99.4 84.1 18%
Depreciation-adjusted gross margin 73% 77%
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Chairman's introduction to governance

Dear Shareholder

On oehalf of the Board, | am pleased
to introduce our Corporate governance
report for this year.

The Board’s Focus over 2022 was on
overseeing the delivery of the Group's
strategy to bulld its base of long-term
revenue-generating assats and
develop new carbon reduction (CaRe)
casset classes. As well as monitoring
the growth in the Group's grid-scale
battery portfolio, the Board approved
two strategic Investments to Improve
the Group’s capabllities Insmart
anergy daty and electre vehlcle
charging infrastructure,

There were two key changes to the
Board during the year. Tim Mortlock,
wha had been Chief Oparating Officer
and a full Board member since 2019,
took over as Chief Executlve Officer
inMarch 2022. We also welcomed

Guail Blain to the Board when she took
over as Chief Financlal Officer from
Govin Urwin in December 2022. Both
Tim and Gail have marny years’
experience with SMS and have been
central to driving the Group's strategy.

We are firm believers inthe importance
of maintalning the highest standards
of corporate governance. We continue
to adopt the Quoted Companies
Alllance's Corparate Governance

Code {the QCA Code}and ! am pleosed
to confirm that the Board has applied
the principles and complied with all the
provisions of the QCA Code throughout
FY 2022_ This is set outin our Corporate
governance report on pages 80 to 89,
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"We are firm believers in the
importance of maintaining
the highest standards of
corporate governance.”

Miriam Greenwood
Non~-executlve Chalrman

Whilst the Company does not currently
adopt the UK Corporate Governance
Code, it endeavours to stay up to date
with its requirements and continues to
adopt elements of it, where appropriate.

lam also dellghted that MSClupgraded
SMS from A to AA rating in tts Jonuary
2023 update to thelr MSCI ESG Rotings.
MSClI's report stated that SMS fails Into
the highast scoring range on corporate
governdance practices, indlcating that
these practices are generally well
aligned with sharehoider interests.

The Board contlnues to [ook for ways
inwhich it canimprove and develop.
We therefore commissioned an axtemai
review of the Board's effectiveness.
The review concluded that the Board
was effective and provided independent
oversight and strong legdership to the
business. The report ralsed a number
of recommendations for further
improvement which we will be taking
forward in the coming yeor. You can
read more about this [h the Nomination
Committee report on page 96.

Finally, | would like to thank our
shareholders For their support. |, aleng
with the Board, will be available to
meet with shareholders and respond
to any questions at cur Annhual General
Meeting and 1 look forward to seeing
you there.

Miriam Greenwood
Non-executive Chairman
14 March 2023

Key governance
activities in the
vear included:

Apgroval to purchase afurther

_ 320MW of grid~scale battery

»

storage sites from the Group's
established plpeline

Approval to acguire n3rgy Data
Limited to enhance the Group's
capabilities in smart energy
doto solutions

Approval to acquire a0 25%
interest in Clenergy EV Ltd,
o software business witho
chargepoint operator platform

Appolntment of Tlm Mortlock
as Chief Executive Officer

Appolntment of Gail Blaln
as Chief Financial Officer
and Executlve Director

Monitoring the potential
impact of rises inenergy
costs, iInfiation and interest
rctes on the business

Review of progress against
the Group's net zero by
2030 roadmap

Approval of LTIP

Approval of a one-off
discretionary cost-of-living
payment to the majority of staff

‘/.\wd 6/@ »us'rr?’
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Miriam Greenwood OBEDL
Non-executive Chairman

A N R I H

Tim Mertlock
Chief Executive Officer

Gall Bldgin
Chief Financial Officer

Graeme Bissett
Senior Independent
Non-executive Director

A N R 1 H

Date of appointment
Non-executive Director
February 2014

Chairmon 23 June 2020

Buockground and experience
With qualifications as a
barrister and in corpardate
finance, Miram has spent
more than 30 years working
for a number of leading
investment banks and other
financial institutions and has
been anen-executhve director
of several publicly lIsted and
private companies. Miriam has
eoxtensive experience inthe
energy and utilities Industry.
She was, for nine vears untll
2013, a non-executive cirector
of the Gas and Electricity
Markets Autherity (Ofgem)
and, for seven years until
recently, chalr of the Expert
Panel for the Gas Network
Innovation Campetition.

Externdl appeintments
Miriam Is @ non-executive
director of Aquila Energy
Efficlency Trust Plc. In additian,
she holds non-executive
director positions at Gulf
internationai Bank (UK}
Limited, the UK subsidiary

of Gulf International Bank,

at Ecllpse Shipping Limited
and ot River and Mercantile
Group pic, where she also
chairs the remuneration
committee. Beyond board
roles, Miriarm is a member of
both the Council of Advisers
and Comynittee of the
Authority on the RIQ-2 price
control gnd to the Mayor of
London's Energy Efficiency
Fund. A Deputy Lieutenant of
the City of Edinburgh, Mirlam
was awarded an OBE for
services to corporate flnance.

Date of appolntment
Director 17 September 2019

Chief Executlve Officer
1March 2022

Background and experlence
A Chartered Director, Tim has
aver 20 years’ experiencein
the energy and utllity industry
across utliity connections,
smart metening, datd and
energy services. Tim was
previously part of the UPL
huslness (acquired by SMS

in 2014 and now SMS Energy
Services Limited) cimost
from its Inception and, prior
to taking up his current role
as Chief Executive Officer he
was Chlef Qperating Officer,

Tim has expert knowledge

of electricity and gas smart
metaring, having been
responsible for setting up UPL!s
alectricity metering business
fallowing deregulation In 2004,

External appointments
None.

Date of appolntment
1December 2022

Background and experlence
Gaitis amamber of the Institute
of Chartered Accountarits of
Seotland with over 15 years'
expeartence working across
varlous industries, latterly
focusing specifically on the
energy and utility sector. Prior to
being appointed Chief Financlal
Officer, Gall spent six vears as
Group Financial Controfier and
has beeninstrumental in
supporting SMS throughits
growth over this time.

Before joining the Company,
Gall held g varlety of financial
and mandagement positions at
Aggreko PLC and BAA Group,
working at both o corporate
and cperational level,

Externdi appointments
None,

Ddate of appointment
1.June 2014

Background and experlence
Groeme is an expetlenced
corpordte financier and qualified
Chartered Agcountant, having
previousty been a partner with
Arthur Andersen LLP and
flncrrce directar ofinternational
groups. He has formerly setved
an the boards of anumber of
other compaonies, including
Macfariane Group plc, interbulfc
ple, Belhaven Group ple, Scottish
Futures Trust Limited and
Anderson Strathern LLP, and
was formerly o member of Court
at the Universlty of Glasgow.

Externcl appointmants
Graeme is a non-executive
director of Cruden Holdings
Limited, Calnex Salutlons ple,
and Aberforth Split Level
Income Trust plc. Ha also
undertakes a number of
pro-bono gppalntmants,
including as trustea of The
Scottish Assoclation of Citlzens
Advice Bureau, The
Entreprenaurial Scotiand
Foundation and Pitdlochry
Festival Theatre.
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Ruth Leak Jamie Richards

Independent Independant

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director
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Craig McGinn

Group Cormpany Sacretary,
General Counsel and

Data Protection Officer

for the Group
A N R I H A N R I H
Date of appointment Date of appointment
29 May 2019 23 April 2020

Background and experience
Ruth mast recently served as
chief Informatlon officer for the
Letters and Network division of
Roycl Mail, whare she was also
chalr of Royal Mall's Disabllicy
Stearing Group, encouraging
open communication and
respect for diversity at alflevels
as well as seeking technology-
bused salutions for challenges
in the workplacse. Prior to Royal
Mall, Ruth had operational
roles with Procter & Gomble,
dnd then worked In consultancy
und the retail sector Including
as part of the stort-up teom
wehind the British online
supermarket Ocado.

External appointments

Ruth also serves asa pon-
executive director and chair of
the Quality Committee dt the
Finoncial Cmbudsman Service.
She is also an active member of
the ‘Wormen In Technology’
mentoring programme
operated by Reed,

Background and experience
Jamleis a Charterad Accountant
and has 25 years’ experience In
fund managsmant, banking and
corporate recovery with afocus
on the infrastructure and
renewable energy sectors.

He was apartner, executive
committee member and head
ofinfrastructure at Foresight
Groupfor 18 years, Previously,

he worked ot PwC, Citibank

and Macquarle, inboth London
and Sydney.

External appointments
Jormle’s other currentroles are
as @ non-gxecutive director
and audlt committee chalr for
the Investment trust US Solar
Fund pic and as alternate
chalfman of the investment
committee of Community
Owned Renewdble Energy,
an investment programme
targeting UK solar farms for
community ownership,

Background and expetience
Craig s a qualified corporate
and banking lawyer with over
25 years of experience and
has responsibility for the
management of all legat
matters affecting the Group,
for ethlcal sk matters and for
supporting the Beoardin setting
and maintalning the highest
standards of corporate
gaovernance. He is ¢ Qualified
Solicitor in Scotland, England
and Wwales and o member of
the Internaticnal Association
of Privacy Professionals {(lAPP).
Cralg joined SMS In October
2016 having previously been

a partner in the International
legal firm CMS Cameron
McKennd LLP, ond at Dundas
& Wilson prior to its merger
with CMS,

External appointments
During 2022 Cralg was
appeointed as a non-executlve
director to the Beatson Cancer
Charity whichis on
unremunerated rofe.

Key to Committees

A

N

Audit

Nominatlon

Rermuneration

Information
Technology

Heaith, Sofety ond
Sustainability

Chair




80 Smart Metering Systems pic Annudl report and accounts 2022

Corporate governance report

Board structure

Overall framewark
The Board has ¢ clear corporate governance framework comprising Board-reserved matters, various Committeeas with their
terms of reference, and oppropriate delegated authorities ensuring decision—making at appropriote levels within the Group.

Board of Directors (the 'Board’)

It is the Board’s role to @nsure that the Group is managed

for the lpng-term benefit of all Its stakehoiders, by providing
effective leadership and direction tathe business. It sats the
Group’s strategy and shapes its purpese, The Group's culture

and values are cultbvated frem the top down, with each Director

leading by exampie. The Boord s respensibie for balanced

and efficlent decision-making, and for overseeing the averall
financlal performance of the Group. Carporate governance Is

a ctitlcal component of the Group’s strategy and the Board's
focus oh continugl improvement of processes, controls and risk
management, alongside supporting the continued growth of

the business, is vital In the ever-evolving corporate govemance

regime adhered to.

Board Committeas

The Board delegates certgin matters to five Board
Committees, being the Audit, Nomination, Remuneration,
Information Technology and Health, Safety and Sustainablilty
Committees.

Audit Commfttee

Has overslght of the Group's system
of Internal control and risk
mancgement, and monitors and
raviews the integrity of the Group’s
financial reporting and the

Camprises ali Non-executive of the Group.

Clrectors. The Chief Executive

Nomination Committee

Monitors and reviews the composition
and baiance of the Board and the
Committees and makes
recommendaudons 1o ensure 5MS has
the right structure, skills ond experiance
relationshlp with the external auditor. inplace for the effective managemeant

Comprises all Mon-executiva Directors

The Company is led by 0 strong and experienced Board, which
brings o depth ond dlversity of expertise to the leadership of
the Compoany, essentlal to support delivery of the Group’s
strategy over the medlum to long term. The Board has an
appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge

of the Group and its markets to enable it to discharge its
responsibilitles effactively.

Seea page 97 for more details on the Board's composition

Each Committee has its own terms of reference, approved by
the Board, which are revlewed annually and are avaliableon
the Company’s website at www.sms-plc.com/Ihvestors/
dim-rule-26. The Group Company Secretary acts ¢s Secretary
to each of the Committees,

Remuneration Committee
Determines the remuneration for
Executtve Directors and oversees
the Group's overall remuneration
policy, strategy and implementation.

Comprises aill Nan-executive
Directors, The Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer
attend by invitation.

Officer and Chlef Financlal Officer and the Chiaf Executive Officer.

attend by Invitation.
Audlt Committae report Nomination Committee report Remuneration Committee report
pdgas 20 to 95 pages %6 to 97 pages 98 to 112

Information Technology Committee

Reviews ond approves the information technology strategy
and monitors priorities and/or structuras implemented
throughout the Group, including allocation of resources

and the impact of and cpportunities arising from emerging
changes in tachnoiogy.

Comprises all Non-executive Directors. The Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information Officer
attend by invitation.

Haatlth, Safety and Sustalnabllity Committee

Providas oversight to ensure that the Group cdopts

a consistent and comprehensive approach to health

and sustainability through the exhibition and promotion
of transparent and responsible behaviours and practices,
and through engagement with key stakenolders both
internally and extarnailly,

Comprises all Non-executive Directors. The Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer ond rapresentatives from
the Group's sustainability team attend by invitation.
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Boadrd Committee updates
During 2022, the terms of reference
for each of the Board Committees
were reviewed with minor
amendiments made.

There were no changesto the
Committees. Further detcils of thelr
acthvities In the year can be found
below and Inthelr respective reports
onpagas 9Cto 112,

Information Technology

Committee

The Information Technology Committee
is chalred by Ruth Leak, aninformation
technology spechalist, and comprises
all the Non-executive Directors. The
Chief Executive Offlicer, Chlef Fingncial
Officer and Chief Informatlon Officer
attend by invitation.

The Information Technalogy
Committee s responsible for the review
and approval of the SMS information
technology strategy. It reviews and
monitors the ongoing allocation of
resources and funding required to
implement this strategy and oversees
the development and Implementation
of those information technology
prajects deemed to be of significant
importance to the Group. It also acts
as ¢ forum far consideration of which
current deveiopments In technology
have the potential to offer value to
SMS. The Committee ensures
aporopriate information technology
stoncards and procedures are In place,
including those related to the Data
Protectian Act 2018 and, In close ficison
with the Audit Commilttee, it ensures
that information and technolagy risks
are Identified, assessed and managed
with actions implemented as
appropriate,

Financial statements

The Committee met three times in
2022, During the year, the Committee
uniderteok the foliowing key actlvities:

» reviewed the information systems
strategy, which sets out the overall
approach to technology, data and
digltal requlred to support the wider
business strategy over the next
three years;

.

discussed and supported
management’s plans te cemmence
Implementation of o new pilatform
to support the 'Sales to Service'
fifecycle, Including the platform

1o be used for customer contact
management, scheduling and field
servi¢e management; and

reviewed the progress being made
on Improving the securlty and
resllience of the IT estate, Including
enhanced backup solutions, platform
migration and other significant
control improverments in the cyber
securlty domain.

Health, Sofety and
Sustainability Committee
The Health, Safety and Sustainability
(HSS) Commiittee |s chaired by Miriam
Greenwood and comprises all the
Non-executive Directors. Other
indlviduals such as the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financlal Officer,
representatives from the Group's
sustainability team and external advisers
may be invited by the Chair to attend, as
and when appropriate and necessary.

The HSS Committee is responsible for
the review and approval of the SMS
health and sustalnability strotegy and
fmplementation of the Group's approach
to health and sustainability throughout
the business, including the creation of
policles and procedures. It reviews and
monitors the ongoing allocation of
resources and funding reguired to
implement this strategy and oversees
the development and implementation
of those projects deemed to be of
significant importance to the Group.
The Committee reviews the health and
sustainabllity performance of the
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Group by monitoring key performance
Indicators and by monitoring the
operational, environmental and legal
Impact on health and sustainability

of decislons taken. The Committee
reviews and assesses the quality of any
pubiic reporting to external stakeholders
onhealth and sustainability matters,
most notably reviewlng and if
appropriate recommending to the
Board for approval the annuai
Sustainabllity Report. In close liaison
with the Audit Committee, it ensures
that health and sustainobillty risks are
identified, assessed and managed with
dactionsimplemented as appropriate.

The Commitiee met once during 2022.
During the year, the Committee
undertook the following key dctivities:

« revlewed the proposed ESG targets
for material cperational aspects
including heqlth and safety, human
resources, sustainability, governance,
purchasing and cyber securlty;

following the announcement of

the Group's ‘net zaro by 2030 target
In 2020, the Committee ¢losely
monitored progress agalnst the
Group’s roadmap and associated
milestones. This Included areview

of projections of long-termcarbon
performance;

the Committee received an overview
of performance across core health
and safety, and humdan resaurces
indicators and initlatives; and

the Committee recelved updates on
the Group's acthvities to analyse its
exposure to climate change, Including
on definitlon of scape and timescales,
and on areas for further investigation.
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Roles and responsibilities

The Board members have separdte and clearly defined roles and responsibilities, as set out in the table betow.
Each member of the Board has arange of skills and experience that Is relevant to the successful operation of the Group.

Role

Hesponsibliily

Chairmun

Responsible for leading the Board and its governance, ensuring the effective
engagement and contribution of all Non-executive and Executive Directors.
Ensures that Board meetings take place with a culture of openness and challenge,
with sufficient tirme made available to debate the matters tabled. Sets the agenda
to take full account of the issues and concerns of the Directors and ensures that
the inks between shareholders, the Board and management dre strong.

Chief Executive Officer

Responsible for the day-to-day leadership, management and control of the Group,
acrassall Group businesses; and for recommending the Group strategy tathe
Board and ensuring that the strategy and decisions of the Board are implemented
via management. Acts in accordance with the authority delegated from the Board.

Chief Financial Officer

Responsible far the day-to-day flnanclal management and sustainability of the
Group and for providing general support to the Chief Executive Officer, Including
In relation to the financial and operational performance of the business.

Senior Independent Director

Provides a sounding board for the Chalman, acts as an intermediary for the
other Directors when necessqry dnd Is available to meet with sharehalders.,

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Constructively challenge the Executive Directors and monitor the delivery of the
Group strategy within the risk and control environment set by the Board.

Company Secretary

Supports the Chairman and Chief Executive Offlcer and is avallabile to all
Directors for advice and support. [nforms the Board ond Cammittees on
governance matters and is responsible for development.

Independence of the Non-
executive Directors

The Nan-executive Directors fulfil a
vital role In corporate accountability
and have g particular responsibility to
ensure that the stratagies proposed by
the Executive Directors dre fully
discussed and critically examined, nat
only to make sure they arg inthe best
tong-term interests of shareholders,
but also In arder to take account of the
interests of customers, employees and
other stakeholders,

The Boord censiders each of the
MNon-executlve Directors, being Miriam
Greenwood {Chalrmen}, Graeme
Bissett, Ruth Leak and Jamie Richards,
to be [ndependent.

The roies of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are separate and
there is a clear division of responsibilities
between the two roles.

Grgeme Bissett is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director.
He Is available ta shareholders if they
have concems which have not been
resolved vig the normol channels of

Chairman, Chlef Executive Officer
or Chief Financlal Officer, or where
communication through such
channels would be inappropriate,

Election of Directors

Allthe Directors are subject to election
by shareholders at the first Annual
Generat Meeting (AGM) after thelr
appointment to the Board and, in
response to shareholder feedback,
were and shall continue to be subject
to annual re-election,

Additional appointments

The Chalrman and Non—executive
Directors have other third-party
commitrments including directorships
of other compuanies as set outin their
biographies. The Company is satisfied
that these associated commitments
have ne measurable impact on their
ability to discharge their responsibllities
effectively. The Executlve Directors
have no third-party commitments.

Independent advice

All Directors are gble to take
independent professional advice In the
furtherance of their duties, if necessary,
at the Company's expense,

All Rirectors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary,
who Is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are
foliowed, and that cpplicable rules
and regulations are complied with,

The appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary is a matter for the
Board as a whole. All Diractors are
supplied with infoermation ina timely
manner in a form, and of a quality,
appropriate to enoble themto
dischdrge their duties.

In addition, the Company Secretary
ensures that the Directors receive
appropriate training where necessary.,
Regular training Is provided onrelevant
topics such as health and safety, AIM
Rules and the Market Abuse Regulation,
and these programmes run continuously
through the year. Afl Directors are
encouraged to keep themselves up to
date with regard to changesinindustry,
practice and regulations and the
Company continuously assessesits
training programmes {0 ensure they
are relevant and up to date,
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How the Board operates
Meetings and attendance

Board meetings are scheduled to be
heid eight times each year. Between
tnese meetings, additional Board
meetings and Boord Commitiee
meetings may be held as and

when required.

Directors gre provided with detailed
ond comprehensive papers in advance
of each Board or Committee meeting,
and meeting packs are accessed from
o Board portal. For each scheduled
Board meeting, the papers include
updates on financial and operational
performance together with additional
papers on specific topics as relevont.

Financlal statements

In 2022, the Board held eight scheduled
meetings. At each meeting the Board
received reports from:

« the Chief Executive Officer an health
and safety, strategic, operational and
business developments, and Investor
relations;

« the Chief Financial Officer on the
financial performanca of the
husiness: budget, funding and capital;
and

« management on specific toplcs
as relevant.
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A part of eoch Board meeting Is
dedicated to the discussion of specific
strategy matters. Any conflicts of
interest are declared ot the start of
each Board meeting and appropriate
action is token where necessory 1o
ensure independent judgement s not
overridden. Amajority of the Board are
considerad Independent, which helps to
address any conflicts of interest that
rmay arise, There were no registered
potentlal conflicts during 2022,

The Chairmon also holds meetings with
the Non-executive Directors during the
yeor without the Executive Directors
being present. These meetings provide
the Non-exacutive Directorswith o
forum in which to share experiences
and discuss wider business topics.

The attendance of Directors at scheduied Board and Committee meetings in the yearto 31 December 2022 Is set out below.

Heaith,

ntommatian Safaty and

Audit Remunerction Nominatlon Tachnology  Sustalnabliity

Board Committee Commilttee Committae Committee Committea

Executive Directors Maximum & Maximum 3 Maximum & Maximum 2 Maximum 3 Maximum 1

Alon Foy? ™ - - _ _ _

Tim Mortiockt ssessese oee ssvese . YY) .

Gavin Urwin3-3 ssecsses eoe - o T .

Gail Blaln® - - - - _ _
Non-executive Directors

Miriam Greenwoaod sssssese sse sesese [ 1) [ TT] ®

Graeme Bissett [TTITTTY] [ T [T I111] [ 1) [ 1) L]

Ruth Leak [ TXITTTY) (117 [TYTITY) [ 1] ase )

Jamie Richards ssesenee [T 1) (YT 'Y LYY} -

1 TlmMortlock and Gavin Urwin attendad the Audit, Information Technalogy Committes and Heaolth, Scfety and Sustolnability Commitiee meetings
by Invitation, Tim Mortlock also attended the Remunaration Committes meetings by invitation,

2 Alan Foy resigned s Chief Executive Officer on 26 February 2022, He attended all the Boord maetings that took place up to thls dote.

% Gavin Urwin resigned as Chief Financlal Officer on 1 December 2022. He attended ¢il the Board and Board Committee meat'ngs that took place

up to thisdate.

4 Goll Bloinwas appointed as Chief Financlal Officer on 1 December 2022, No Board or Board Commilitee meetings took place between that date
and 31 Decembar 2022, She however attehded one Board mesting and Audit Committee meeting as an observer prior to her oppolntment.
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Watters reserved for the Board
The Board is responsible to sharenolders
for the proper management of the
Group, and has [dentifled key financial
and operational arects that require
regular reporting, and which enable the
performance of senior mandgement

to be reviewed and monitored.

These are set out in g formal schedule
of matters reserved for the Board,
which is reviewed on a regular basis

to ensure it remains fit for purpose. The
schedule outlines all matters requiring
specific consent of the Board, Including
approval of:

» the Group's annual budget;
« the Group's strateqgy;

acguisitions, dlsposals and capital
expenditure or investment projects
abaove certain thresholds;

-

the Annual report and accounts and
any reports or information to be
issued to sharehaolders of the
Company;

the Company’s share-dealling policy;

the appointment of the Company’'s
independent auditor;

the Company's dividend policy
and borrowing powers;

ony maoterial changes to the
Company's gccounting policies
orinsurance policies;

remuneration of Directors, executive
officers and senior employees;

atterations to the constitutional
documents of the Company;

the adoption of any new, or
amendments to, majar employee
benefit plans;

+ legal actions brought by of against
the Group above certain thresholds;

» paolitlcal and charitable dongaticns;
and

+ the scope of delegations and
appointments to Board Committees
and subsldiary boords.

Responsibility for the development

of policy and strategy and operational
management is then deiegated to

the Executive Directors and senior
management team.

Board activities

Board activities are structured to
develop the Graup's strategy and

to enable the Board to then support
management on the delivery of the
strategy within a transparent
governance framework. The Board
dlso regularly discusses governance,
risk and reputation management,
and financial performance.

The Company Secretary Is responsible
to the Board far the timeliness and
quality of information provided to It.

The information below is o non-
exhaustive list of the key areas of focus
for the Board and topics discussed
during the year to 31 December 2022:

« Fit for growth — the Board oversaw
the preparation and approval of the
2023 budget and reviewed the Group's
updated corpeorate forecost following
the Hudget process. Discussion of
business development apportunities
and engagement in evaluating the
ongoing strateglc direction for the
business remained key focus areas,
with ongoing review of the Group's
Imvestment in grid-sca'e battery
storage and exploration of developing
carbon reduction ({CaRe’) asset
classes, The Board reviewed and
approved the decisions to ccquire
N3rgy and invest in Clenergy EV.
Following announcement of the
Group's ‘net zero by 2030 targetin
2020, the Boarrd has tracked progress
against the planned roadmap.

« Performance — at every meeting, the
Board discussed the Chief Executive
Officer's report on performance of
aperations, the Chief Financial
Officer's report on financlal
performance, and guarterly market
metrics, Performance was dssessed
agaqinst the gpproved budget and
variances understood in the context
of market and industry developments.

Governance —the Board discussed
the following: dppointment of Tim
Mortlock as Chief Executive Cfficer,
appointment of Gall Blaln as Chief
Financlal Offlcer, full-year preliminary
results, Annual report ond accounts,
Notlce of AGM and dividend
recommendgtion, investor site visit

to Burwell, hal~yearly results, matters
reserved for the Board, Committees’
terms of reference, Board effectiveness
review and gender pay gap reporting.

Risk and regulatory — the Board
recetved annual cormpliance and risk
reports and the yecr-end
assessment of Internal control
systems, risk and risk tolerance.
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Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility
for the Group's system of internal
control and risk management and
for reviewing the effectiveriess uf liis
system. It is supported inthis work by
the Audit Committee, which reviews
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
process and internal contral gystems.
Such systems can only be designed
to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achleve husiness
objectives and can therefore only
provide redsonnble and not absolute
assurance against material
misstatement or loss,

Business performance is regularty
reviewad by the Board through the
monitoring of:

» progress towards strategic
objectives;

» the Group's financial performance,
including budgeting and forecasting,
financial reporting, analysis of
varicnces against pian and the taking
of appropriate management action;

» capitol investment; and

+ principal risks and the process by
which these are evaluated and
managed on a continuous basis.

The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control
systems, Including financlal, operational
cnd compliance controls, A robust
assessment of the principal risks faced
by the Group has also been undertaken.

Board review

Each year, the Company

carries out a review of the
Board's operations, its
Committees and individual
Directors. This process gives

the Directors the opportunity

to Identify areas forImpraovement
both jointly and indlvicdually.

As part of revlewIng the Board,
the Senior Independent Director
alse leads an assessment of the
Chalrman's performance,

FY 2022 Board evaluation
For 2022 the Board
commissioned an external review
by an Independent consultant,
Satorl, Details of this review are
given in the Nomination
Committee report on page 97.
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How the Board engages with stakeholders

Fngnging with our stakeholders strenathens our relationships and helps the business
make hetter decisions, which enable it to deliver onits commitments.

Much of the day-to-day decision-making and stakeholder engagement is carried out at a business level, Further

details are set out on pages 38 to 41. The Board is regularly updated on wider stakeholder engagement by the Executive
Directors ond via the reports it receives from senior management In the Board and Commilttee papers, allowing Board
members to stay abreast of the toplcs that matter most to stakehoiders and to the business. This enables the Board

to understand and consider these Issues Inits decision-making. We explain here how, during the year, the Board
engaged with our stakeholders.

Material matters requiring the Board’s consideration are outiined on page 37,

Suppliers Lenders/ Government and
financiers regulatory bodies

Supplier information is typlcally
reperted to tha Board by exception,
upon tha specific request of one or
more Board members or concurrent
with a significant event or change.
Alf material supply contracts also
require Board approval.

Through regular financial reporting,
tha Board receives information
about the Group's revolving credit
facllity and our cormpllance with key
covendnts, The Chief Financial
Officer reviews and approves
quarterly reports that are issued

to the Group’s lending agant in
accordance with the terms of the
Group's facility.

During the year, both Executive
Directors participated in meetings
with the Group’s syndicote of banks
to provide anupdate on the 2022
budget and performance, and
discuss the Group’s growth
strategy, This direct engogement
promaotes an openand transparent
refatlonship, which is key In
supporting the continued growth
of the business.

The Board receives information
obout the Company's regulatory
and technical compliance, Including
progress on the UK smart meter
roltout and the first-generation
smart metar ('SMETS1) Enrolment
and Adeption programme, as part
of its reguiar oparational reporting.
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Customers

The Board recelves updates from the
Head of Investor Relations where
relevant and dpproptiote, providing
an overview of market sentimant,
share price performance and key
meetings held with investors.

The Chairman hosted meetings

with major shareholdersin 2022

to provide a general update on the
business, Such meetings provide
umore open line of engagement
between Board members and key
Investors and it is Intended that these
will take place on aregulor basls.

On 4 October 2022, the Chlef
Executive Officer hosted o
presentation and site visit for Investors
to our first operational gric-scale
battery facility at Burwell, The wider
Board was extensively invoived In
the preparation process for this
event, reviewing and advising on
the presentation and supporting
script. The event was very well
received and gave investors much
gragter insight info this Important new
asset class for the Group. See poge 38
for more details on the event.

The Board and management
regulary receive and respond to
gueries from shareholiders on a wide
range of ESG toples. During the year,
the views of investors helped inform
the Bocard's decisions on certdin ESG
developments, including the
incorporation of various best
practices infurther defining the
Group's ESG framework such as
commenclng a review of cur EUY
Taxonomy alignment and enhancing
disctosure of our ESG credentials.

The AGM is also an important
opportunity for the Board to
share directiy with shareholders
the performance and strategic
direction of the Company. See
further details In the section
entitted The Board's relationship
with shareholders on poge 89.

Most of the Company's
engagement with customers is at
the aperational level. The Chief
Executlve Officer holds reguilar calls
with senfor representatives of our
lurgest customer agcounts, as part
of averall contract governance and
menitoring. The Board receives
regular updates from the Chief
Executive Gfficer and the senlor
monagement team on sales and
service delivery. The Board also
reviews material customer
contracts prior to finalisation.

Qver the year, the Beard monitored
the impact of the rises in enargy
costs, inflation and Interest rates on
the Group's customers. The Chief
Financial Officer provided regular
updates to the Board on tha status
of the Group’'s customer debt at risk
of non-collectlon, and subsequent
potentlal impact on net profit.
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Employees

The Board closely monitors and
reviews the rasults of the Group's
employee engagement dctlvity,
as well as any other feedback It
raceives, to ensure alignment

of interests.

During the year, the Remuneration
Committee recelved anupdate on
gender pay reporting. The results of
the 2022 Best Companies externcl
employee engagement survey were
sharad and the preposed action
plan, together with progress mode
on actions foliowing the 2021
survey, ware discussed.

Tha Board Committee meetings
also provide an opportunity for
amployee engagement, with
attendance by senior employees
to present updates, host discussion
ond obtain feedback to shara with
the business.
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Shareholder cctivities in the year

March 2022 Full-year 2021 results presentation

March 2022 Full-year 2021 resulis roadshaw

May 2022 Liberum Green Economy conference

May 2022 Investec ESG conference

May 2022 AGM

June 2022 Peel Hunt industrials & Support Services conference
July 2022 H1 2022 trading update and calls with investaors
Sept 2022 H1 2022 results presentation

Sept 2022 H1 2022 results roadshow

Qct 2022 Burwell grid-scale battery starage site visit

Nov 2022 Investec Best Idedas conference

Nov 2022 Berenberg Pan-Europedn Discovery Conference
Jan 2023 FY 2022 trading update and colis with lnvestors

The Board's relationship

with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance
of maintaining open, transparent

and two-way communlcation with
shareholders. This ensures a mutual
understanding of objactives: for
shareholders to understand the
Group's strategy, and for the Board

o be awore of shareholders’ feedback
and any issues raised.

During 2022 the Executive Directors,
asslsted by the Investor relations teamn,
attended several meetings, conferences
and roadshows to malntain regular
communication with both institutional
and private investars. The feedback
fram such Investor engagement was
regularly reported to the Beard.

The Group's Non-executive Directors
have also been available to meet
shareholders should they wish to ralse
Issues. During the yedr, the Group
Chalrman and the Chief Executive
Officer met with major shareholders.
A varlety of toplcs were discussad.

The Board recelves regularupdates
from the Investor relations team, Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financio
Offlcer on shareholder engagement.
These updates include share price
performance, composition of the
shareholder register, key toplcs of
discusslon with sharehoiders, peer
group comparison, ond feedback from
analyst reports and from brokers and
publlc relations partners.

On the day of interim and full-year
results anhouncements, eguity
research ahalysts are Invited to attend
managerment’s presentation, which

is followed by a question—and-answer
session addressed by the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer. One-to-cne and group
meetings are then held with existing
Institutional shareholders and potential
new investors.
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Results and news releases on toplcs
such as contract wins, significant
accreditations, acquisitions and new
strategicinitiatives are published via
the L.ondon Stock Exchange
Regulatory News Service and on

the Company's investor website at
www.sms-plc.com/investors, The
Group's website also provides a full
spectrum of history, news, business
developments and investor relatlons
toples, Including o repository of past
presentations and announcements.

We will continue to disclose Information
appropriotely to satisfy the needs of
shareholders and investors, thereby
enhancing understanding of our
business,

Annual General Meeting

The 2022 AGM will be haldin May 2023
in Glosgow. Full Information will be
provided in the Notice of AGM, to

be posted separately to sharehoiders,
and wilt be avatllable to download

from the Company's website at
www.sms-~plc.com/investors/
shareholder-Information,

The AGM is an important forum for
shareholders, particularly private
shareholders, to hear more about the
general development of the business.
The Chdairman and the Chalrs of the Audit
and Remunergtion Committeas will be
prasent at the AGM, giving sharehokders
an opportunity to osk questions, engage
with members of the Board and learn
fore about the Company.

The Chalrranis aiso avaiiable to
answer questions throughout the year,
upon request by investors, If Investors
have any mdatters thot they wish to
rise outside the forum of the AGM this
canbe done using the contact details
onthe Group's wehsite,

Financial statements

Other matters

Promoting an ethical

corporate culture

Yarious indicators are used to monitor
and provide insight into the Group's
culture, including employee engagement,
headlth, safety and wellbelng measures
and diversity Indiccators, See puges

51 to 59 for further details. The Group’s
culture is assessed through compliance
reviews, Internal audits and the
provision of formal and informeal
channels for employees to speak up,
incduding a whistleblowing hotline that
allows employees to make disclosures
in confidence. The Company ensures
action is taken to address behaviour
that falls shart of the Company’s
expectations. The Board believes

that in a business like the Group,

which is grawing rapidly both In
emplovee numbers and size of
operations, a mix of Informal and
formal channels provides a fast and
robust process to address matters
raised by the workforce,

If Directors have concems about

the operation of the Board or the
management of the Company that
cannot be resolved, thelr concerns are
recorded in the minutes of the Board
meetings. On his or her resignation, o
Non-executlve Director also has the
opportunity to provide a written
statement to the Chairman, for
clreutation to the Board, ithe or she
has any concerns about the operation
of the Board or the management.

Whistieblowing

The: Group encourages staff to report
any concerns which they feel need to be
brought to the attention of Mandagernent
cancerning any possible impropriety,
financial or otherwise, The Group has
put in place a whistleblowing procedure
where enaployees can confidentially
repert any concerns or wrongdoing.
This procedure may be used to report
incldents of fraud, bribery and
corruption, discrimination, buliying or
harassrment, and any environmentci
concerns or breaches of the Group's
heaith and safety or quality compliance.
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The Group provides the Audit
Committee with Infarmation in relation
to matters reported, any subsequent
investigation and follow-up actions.
All [ssues ralsed are fully Investigated
and appropriate action taken.

Thera ware two whistleblowlng

reports made In the year ended

31 December 2022, and both instances
were investigated by our General
Counsel. One report was found to
have no substance, white the other
report was substantiated and senior
management took approprigte action
to rectify the situation.

Going concemn

The Group's buslness activities, together
with the factors likely te affect its future
development, performance and
position, are set out in the Strategic
report on poges 11e 75, The financial
position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing
facilities are described In the Financlal
review on pages 70 to 75.

The Cirectors confirm that, having
considered various scenarlos of future
perfarmance and forecast capital
expenditure, they are satisfled that the
Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future (for
the period from the balance sheet date
to 31 December 2024). For this reason,
tney consider it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basls in preparing
the financial statements.

On behalf of the Board
Miriam Greenwood

Non-executlve Chairman
14 Marech 2023

foat Orescostad




20 Smart Metering Systems pic Annualreport and accounts 2022

Audit Committee Report

Membars and altendance Meetings
Graeme Blssett (Chalr) o800
Miricm Greenwood (1 1)
Ruth Leak L 1 1)
Jamie Richards 00

Attending by Invitution
Chief Executive Offlcer e
Chief Financial Officer! L T 1
Head of Internal Audit *0e
Externgl cuditor L 1 1)

1 GavinUrwinottended ail threg Audit Committae meetings, all of which took place prior to his
resigning as Chlef Financial Officer on 1Gecamber 2022,

Main activities in 2022

» Review and approval of interim and year-end financial staterments and
supporting schedules, including management papers on significant areas
of judgement.

= Review of reports prepared by the external auditor, including its annual
audit plan and g report on the vear-end financial statements.

+ Review and approval of the Group’s annual Internal Audit Plan and
oversight of the evolution of the Group's risk management and internal
qudit policles and procedures,

» Review of the recognition and reporting of the Group's Key transactions in
the year, induding a business combination, several asset acquisitions, an

investment in an associate and the development of new busliness verticals.

« Monitoring the Impact on the Group of energy price rises in the market
and the increases in inflation and interest rates, including marndigement’s

reporting of these through market communications and the Annual report

and accounts.

Role of the Committee

« Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements, including reviewing
slgnificant financialreparting issues
and judgements alongside the
findings of the external quditor.

Advlsing the Board onthe
appropriateness of the 'faly, balonced
and understandable’ statement in
relation to the Annual report and
accounts.

Overseeing the relationship with the
external auditor, the external cudit
process and the nature and scope

of the external audit, including the
auditor's appointment, effectiveness,
Independence and fees,

Overseelng the nature and scope of
Internal audit gnd ce-ordination with
the actlvities of the external auditor.

Reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s systems for internal financial
control, financial reporting and risk
managemeant,

Audit Committee membership
The Committee comprlses all the
Independent Non-aexecutive Directors.
{t was chaired during the year under
review by Graeme Blssett, whols a
Chartered Accountant with recent and
refevant financial experience. Jamie
Richards Is qlsg g Chartered
Accountant and has held senlor
executlve positions, which included
financidl responsibility. The other
independent Naon-executive Directors
who served during the year are ail
deemed to have the necessary ability
and experienca te understand financial
statements.

The Committee meets at least three
times q year, generally just prior to
Board meetings, to facliitate Immedlate
and efficient reporting to the Boord,
with additlonal meetings where
necessary. The external auditor, the
Head of Intermnal Audit, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer attend Committee meetings by
Invitation. The Committee also meets
privately with the external auditor
without management being present.
The Chdirmnan of the Commilttee
maintalns a regular diclogue with the
Chief Financial Officer and her teom,
and with the Head of Internal Audit.
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Objectives and
responsibilities

The Commmittee's key objectives are:

to provide effective governance over
the Group's financial reporting and the
perfarmance of the external auditor;

to provide oversight of the Group's
systems of internal finonclal control; and
toreport to the Board on these matters,

In fulfliment of these objectives the
Committee:

reviews the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal financlal, operational
and compliance contrals and risk
management processes, including
arrangements for employees to ralse
concerns (in confidence);

reviews the annual interna] audit
programme and considers the
findings of gny intemal Investigations
and management’s response;

reviews SMS's financlal statements
and announcements and considers
whether these statements and
announcements provide a fair,
balanced and understandable view
of the strategy, business model and
performance of the Group and of the
assaclated risks;

considers the uppropriateness of
accounting policies and significant
accounting judgements and the
disclosure of these in the financial
statements; and

recommends the appaointment of the
external audltor, approves thelr
remuneration and oversees thelr work
and overall effectiveness, inciuding
thelr relationship with management.

Internal control and
risk management

The Committee has primary
respansibiiity for the oversight of

the Group's Intemal controf, including
the risk rmanagement framework
and the work of the Group [nternal
audit function.

The Group has in place an [nternal
control environment to protect the
business from the materlal risks which
have been Identifled. Policles and
procedures, including clearly defined
levels of delegated authority, are
clearly communicated across the
Group. Management Is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate

Financial statements

internal controls and the Committee
has responsibllity for monitoring the
effectiveness of these controls. It
achieves this through reports received
from the Company and from both the
internai and external auditors.

Risk registers are maintained and
regularly reviewed by maonagement.
The Board, Including the Audit
Committee, considers the principal
risxs, the nature and extent of the
Company’s rlsk manggement
framework and the risk profile that
Is acceptablein order to achleve the
Company's strategic objectives.

The Group's system of intemdail control

is designed te manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of fallure to achieve
business objectives, and it must be
recognised that It can only provide
redsonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During the vear, the Committee did
not Identify, nor was it advised of, any
failings or weaknesses in the internal
control systems or risk management
processes that were determined to
be significont.

Whistleblowing

The Board has overcll responsibliity for
monitoring the Group's whistlebiowing
arrangements. It hos delegated this to
the Commiittee, which updates the
Board on a regular basis on all
significant whistleblowing matters
raised. The Committee receives
reporting by exception when there

has been a whistlebtowlng case raised
to aline manager, the Group Generat
Counsel or through the Group's
Independent whistleblowing hotline,

There were two whistleblowing
reports made inthe year ended

31 December 2022, and both
instances were investigated by qur
General Counsel. One report was
found to have no substance, while the
other report wais substantlated and
senior management took appropriate
action to rectify the sltuation.

The Committee Is satisfied that the
Group's whistleblowing policies and
procedures, detailed further on page 89,
are effective, facllitate the Independent
investigation of reparted matters and
dllow approptiate follow-up actionto
be taken.
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Internal qudit

The Group internal audit function is
independent and objectlve and its rale,
as defined Inthe Interna! Audit Charter,
is to add value and improve the
organisgtion’s eperations and controls.
The Head of Internal Audit reports
functionally to the Audlt Committee
and administratively to the executive
leadership team. The Chair of the Audit
Committee meets with the Head of
internal Audit perladically without
executive management present to

set annual abjectives and discuss any
significant or emerging issues. Group
internal audit uses a risk-bused
approach to conduct several stratedic
and operational qudlts throughout the
year and these are reported ond
discussed at each Audit Committee
meeting. Monitoring the scope, extent
and effectiveness of the Group's internal
audit activities is an agendd ltem at each
Committee meeting, Group internal audit
is also respansible for confirming that
management actions and improvement
points ralsed within each audit report
have heen implemented effectively and
Inatimely manner.

Throughout 2022, Group Internal audit
warked with the Board, the executive
leadership team and members of
management to support the continued
development of a robust risk
management framework upon which it
can place reliance for identifylng areos
of risk to be considered for inclusion in
the annual Internal Audit Plan.

A full isk-based annual Internal Audit
Plan for 2022, whichincluded a three-
year outlook, was reviewed and
approved by the Committee In
November 2021, The programme
focused on addressing severgl key risk
areas including cyber security, orid-
scale batterles, post-acquisition
performance, treqsury management,
payroll, financial controls over billing and
fixed asset management and disaster
recovery planning. Reviews were carried
out, findings reported to the Committee,
recemmendations tracked and their
close-out monitored, No slgnificant
weaknesses were Identified from the
reviews undertaken by Group internal
audit during the reporting period and
throughout the financial vear.
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Following the commencement of
trading of our flrst grid-scale battery
site, Internal audlt carried out @ review
of the electricity trading process and
the assoclate controls, and of the
financlal reporting of grid-scale
battery performance. No significant
weaknesses were identifiad.

The Internal Audit Plan for 2023
was approved by the Committee
inNovember 2022,

The Committee has remained In active
discusslanwith Group internal audlt
about the existing risks the Group
faces as it continues to grow, including
thoseinrelation to carbon reduction
{'CaRe" verticais, the Impact of
industry and regulatory changes,
systemns development and pervasive
externalrisks such as cyber and data
security, See further detalls in the

Cur principal risks and uncertainties
sectlon on pages 65 to 69,

Going concern

The Committee reviewed management's
paper on going concern. The Committee
assessed and challenged the Group's
forecasts and cash flow projections,
including consideration of varlous
possible cutcomes of future
performance and forecast capital
expenditure and the potential impact
of uncertainties. The Committee also
considered the Group's financing
facillties and future funding plons. Based
anthis, the Committee is sotlsfied that
the financial statements should be
prepared on a going concern basis.

Financical reporting

The Committee has reviewed with both
management and the external guditor
the annual financial statements, focusing
on: the overall truth and falmess of the
results and financial posltion, inciuding
the clarity of disclosures shown in the
statements and their compliance with
best-practice requirements; the
appropriateness of the accounting
policies and practices used in arriving
at those results; the resolution of
slgnificant daccounting judgements or
of matters raised by the externol
auditor during the course of the annual
statutory audit; and the quality of the
Annual report and accounts taken as
a whole, Including disclesures on
governance, strategy, risks and
remuneration, and whether it gives

a falr, bakanced and understandakle
plcture of the Group.

The Committee also considered the
use of alternative performance
measures by the Group, including the
appropriateness of their current use
and thelr disclosure in the financlal
statements and Strategic report,

Process

in reaching its conclusions the Audit
Committee cansidered the thorough
process In place to create the Annucl
report and accounts 2022, including:

= the lnvolvement of the Committee In
the preparation of the Annual report
and accounts 2022 which enabled it
to provide input Into the overall
messcges and tone;

the input provided by Group senior
management and tha process of
review, evaluation and verification
to ensure balance, accuracy and
consistency;

-

the review by the Committee of
management's papers oncrit'cal
accounting judgernents and
assumptlons, detalling the approach
taken and conclusions recached;

the opportunity for the Non-
executive Directors t© meet the
externat auditor without any
executive of the Group being present
via the private sessions of the
Committes;

review of the external auditor's report
on the Annudal report and dccounts
2022, presented to the Commitiee
prior to final sign-cff;

review and consideration of the draft
Annuai reportand accounts 2022 in
advance of the final sign-off; and

the final sign-off process by the Board,
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Fair, balanced and understandable — what does this mean?

Below dre the key considerations the Commilitee has in mind when assessing tnhese three components:

Fair

Balanced

Understandable

+* Is the whole story presented?

+ |s the nadrrative reporting In
the front of the Annual report
and accounts 2022 conslstent
with the reportingin the
flnancial statements?

Are the key messages in the
narrative reportlng reflective
of the financial reporting?

Is tnere sufficient information
Included o understand the
underlylng performance of
the Group and its divisions?

» Is there a good level of
consistency between the
narrative reparting inthe
front and the financial
reporting inthe back and Is
the messaoing Ineach
consistent when read
Independently of each other?

Does the narrative reporting
reflect both the positive and
negative aspects of .
performance?

Are both the statutory and
alternative perfarmance
measuras explained clearly

with appropriate prominence?

.

Are the key judgements
referred to in the narrative
reporting and the signiflcant
Issues reportad inthe Audit
Committee report consistent
with the disclosures of Key
estimation uncertainties and
critlcal judgements set outin
the financial statements?

How do the significant issues
Identified compare with the

risks that the external quditor

pans to include iIn its report?

» Is there g ¢clear and
understandable structure
to the report?

» Are the important messages
highlighted appropriatety and
consistently throughout the
document?

» Is the narrative within the
Annual report and accounts
2022 straighiforward and
transparent?

« |5 the layout clear with good
linkage throughout?
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Significant motters considered in relation to the Annudl report and accounts 2022
S'gniffcant areas considered by the Committee In relation to the 2022 Financial statements ore set out In the below table:

Ared of judgement

Matter considered

Action

Appropriateness of
capltalisation of overheads
and other expenses within
metar assats

SMS continues to carry out a significant level of
in-house instaliation of meter assats, certain
costs of which are capitalised and depreciated
as part of flxed asset depreciation.

The Committee considered management’s
capitalisation process and the assumpgtions and
judgements used when determining which costs
are directly attdbutatte to bringing the meter
assets into use and are therefore eligible for
cepitalisation.

The Committee was satisfied that the costs
Identifled by mancgement for capitalisation
were appropriate, belng directly attributable
labour costs and an aperopriate allocatlon of
overheads.

Identiflcation of Indlcators of
Impoirment of the meter
usset portfolio in accordance
with 1AS 36 and assumptions
applied in determining the
carrying value of the
portfolio of meter dsgets

Due to the uncertagintias assoclated with the
timing of the domestic smart meter rojlout, the
expected useful life and carrying value of
traditional meters requires significant
judgement, as does the level of recoverability
of terminatlen Income, Thesae assumptions are
used in deriving the depreciation rates applied
and the impairment calculation performed on
camying value,

Several factors are considered in assessing the

expected pace of the smart meter replacement
programime, inciuding the number of smairt

meters stillto be installed and the churn of assets.

The Committee considered the Judgements
made by management, including the guantum
and disclesure of relevant amounts.

The Committee confirmed with management
that there have baen no changes to accounting
estimates with regard to meter gssets. The
Committee considered market and UK
Government developments regarding the smart
meter rollout and concluded that this was
reasoncble.

The Committee considered the accounting
estimates and judgaments used to arrive at
the expected useful economic life of the
traditional meter assets and thelr carrying
value at 31 December 2022,

Losses on disposal of de-appointed meaters
have been recognised after allowance for
termination income and, following
management’s Impalrment assessment of
traditional meter assets, noimpgirment charge
was recorded at the end of the year. The
financlol statemants provide detoiled
commeantary on the estimates and judgements
Involved and on the financial effect. The
Committee considers that the position
presented in the financiol statements provides
a reasanable view of the carrying value of
traditional meter assets.

The Committee is satisfied that charges for
losses on disposal, net of terminaton income,
and for impairment of this asset class, should

be recorded as exceptionql items, as this
classification will assist understanding of the
performance of the continuing meter estate
comprising Industrial &§ Commercial j&C} meters
and domestic smart meters (os distinct from the
affect of discontinued traditional meter assets),
The Committee is also satlsfled that amoaunts
arising in relation to the loss of flrst-generation
smart meter assets ('SMETS1 meter assets)
should be recorded as excepticnal items, onthe
basis that these disposals are attributabfe to
the temporary Industry transitlon period.

Cverall, the Committee is satisfied that the
approach taken by management to review the
expected useful life and estimate the corryling
vdlue of meter assets Is appropriate and the
assurnptions applied are sensible and supportable.
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Climate change

The Audit Committee discussed the
impact of climate change on the Group.
These considerations did not have

a material Impact on the financial
reporting judgements and estimates,
consistent with the assessment that
climate change is not expected to
have a significant Impact onthe
Group's going congern gssessment
to 31 Decemnber 2024, Qualitative
exploration of potentlal areas of
concem, Including an evaluation of
climate exposura on our physical
assets such as offices, warehouses
and vehicles, has been carried out
dnd we have identified areas of
potentlal climate-related risk, such
as extreme weather events which
cauld affect cur physicatlocatians
and road-based employees, Cverall,
the dsk of climate—related change
onthe Group Is consldered low.

Externdal auditor

Ernst & Young LLP (EY) has remalnedin
place as auditor since 2015, when the
practice was appolnted following o
formal tender process undertaken by
the Group for FY 2015, The external
auditor is required to rotqte the oudit
angagement partner every five years.
Kevin Weston began his appolntment
as engagement partner from FY 2017
and therefore FY 2021 was his last year.
A new engagemant partner, Paul
Cop'and, was dppointed with effect
fromFY 2022,

Financial statements

External auditor appointment,
Independence and effectiveness
The Committee’s primary responsibility
Is to make ¢ recommendation on the
appointment, reappointrment and/or
removal of the external quditor. The
Commlttee considers anumber of
areas when reviewing the externat
auditor appointrnent, namely the
auditor's performance in discharging
the audit, the scope of the aud!t and
terms of engagement, auditor
Independence and oblectivity, and
auditor remuneration.

Every year, the Committee assesses
the effectiveness of the gudlt process
and the external auditor. in carrying out
its assessmentin 2022 it considered:

« feedback from the Chief Financiat
Officer and her team, who monitor
the external auditor's performance,
behaviour and effectiveness during
the exercise of its duties;

all key external auditor pians ond
reports, which were discussed and
challenged;

fhe regular engagement with the
external auditor during Cemmittee
meetings and ad-hoc meetings,
including meetings without any
member of management belng
present;

how the auditors support the work
of the Commlttee and how the audit
contributes inslghts and adds value;

-

the Committee Chair's discussions
with the Senlor Statutory Audltor
ahead of each Committee meeting:
and

the independence and obiectivity
of the external auditor.
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The Committee also reviewed the
proposed dudit fee and terms of
engagement for FY 2022, Detalls of the
fees paid to the external auditor during
the financlal year can be found innote 3
to the financial statements.

The Committee recognises that the
independence of the external auditor

is an essential part of the qudit
framewark and the assurance thet it
pravides, The external guditor conflrms
its independence at least annually. As a
matter of principle, the Group's auditor
Is not engaged for non-aud't services,
thus ensuring that its independence
and objectivity dre not impcired.

Having completed this review, the
Committee concluded that the audit
process, independence and guaiity of
the externgl auditor was satisfactory,
and has recommended to the Board
that EY be reappolnted as the
Compgany's auditor for FY 2023,
Accordingiy, o resolution proposing
EY’s recppointment wilt be tabled

at the forthcoming Annual Gener,
Meeting.

Graeme Bissett
Chair of the Audit Committee
14 March 2023
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Nomination Committee Report

Mambers and attendance Mea!
Miriam Greenwood (Chair)
Graeme Bissett
Ruth Leak
Jamie Richards
Tim Mortlock

Main activities in 2022
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« The appointment of Tim Mortlock as Chief Executive Officer to succeed

Alan Foy from 1 March 2022,

+ The appontrment of Gall Blain as Chief Financial Officer to succeed
Gavin Urwin from 1 December 2022.

= Review of the succession plans for Executlve and senlor management

roles, including potential candidates for such roles, their backgrounds
and experience, and how such candidates would contribute towards
the Company’s objectives.

« Consideration of succession plans for Non-executive directors
approaching nine years appointment to the Board,

Nomination Committee

membership

The Nomination Committee Is currently
made up of one Executive Director,
namely the Chief Executive Officer,
and ali the Non-executive Directors,
each of whom Is Independent.

The Committee is chaired by the
Chairman, unless the matter under
discussion is his or her own succession.
Other Directors are invited to cktend as
approprigte and only if they do fiot have
aconflict ofinterest. The Comimitteeis
also dssisted by executive sedrch
consuttants as and when reguired.

During 2022, the Committee met on
two occasions. In addition, several
informal meetings and discusslons
were held as part of the processto
appoaint a new Chlef Executlve Officer
and Chief Financial Officer.

Role of the Committee
Appointments to the Board are the
responsibility of the full Board, upon the
recommendation of the Nomindtion
Committee and after appropriate
external search/consultation, bearing
i mind the Board'’s existing balance of
skllls, knowledge and expetience, the
specific role/copabliity needs identified,
and with due regard to diversity, iIncluding
gender. Succession plans are regularty
reviewed by the Committee in order

to ensure an orderty progresslon/
refreshment of senlor management/
Bodrd members and malntaln an
appropriate balance of sillls, experlence
and diversity both within the Company
and on the Board,

Succession planning

Anintegral part of the worlk of the
Nominaton Committee is to establish
and malntain a stable leddership
frarmework and to proactively manage
changes. Ensurling the right leaders dare
in place enables the organisationto
compete effectively in the marketplace
and therefore to meet its varlous
obligations to its stokeholders. The
Nominations Committee has mancaged
succession pragrammes for both the
Bodrd and senfor management,
ensuring thot the necessary skills,
expertise and experlence are present,
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Early in 2022 Alan Foy, who had
served on the Beard since the listing
ofthe Company In 2011, stepped
down as Chlef Executive Officer.

The Committee oversaw o search
for a new Chief Executive Officer, and
we were delighted that Tim Mortlock
assumed the role ensuring continuity
and minimising disruption to the
business. After conslderation
agdlnst potential market candidates
the Committee recommended that
Tim Mortlock should be appointed
as Chief Executive Officer and his
appointment wos confirmed on
1March 2022,

Buring October 2022, Gavin Urwin
informed the Board of his intention
to resign as Chlef Financial Officer.
As part of the succession strategy
Gail Blain, then Group Financial
Cantrolter, had beenidentified as

the natural successor to GavinUrwin,
On the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee after assessing
other potential candidates in the
market, Gail Blah was appeinted os
Chlef Financial Officer and jolned the
Board on 1 December 2022, Gail has
awealth of experence, has beenat
the heart of SMS's financial strategy
and has ployed a pivetal role in
delivering the Group's strategy

over the past six years.

In readiness for the ninth onnivarsaries
of appointments to the Board, the
Committee has started the search to
identify my successor as Chalrman (and
Chair of the Nominations Committee)
and a successor forthe Audit Committee
Chair. The Nominations Cornmittee has
engaged Russell Reynolds to conduct
the external search. The Committee
requested that o diverse long-ist of
candidates, in respect of gender,
ethniclty and background, be produced.

Board inclusion and diversity
The Nomination Committee focuses
onthe leadership required for SMS

to fulfil its purpose, achieve its vision
and execute its strategy. This requires
a clear focus on inclusion and diversity
to moximise the skills and capabllities
from which SMS can benefit, Our policy
is to have a broad range of skills,
backgrounds and experience on

the Board.

Financla! statements

Alongside the Board, the Committee
continues to champlon the benefits

of diversity, be It religious, ethnic or
gender diversity, or diversity of socic
backgratinds ar cagnitive and percanal
strengths at Board, Committee and
senior management level, We are
pleased that half of the Board of
Directors of SMS are fernale, but we
are aware that gender representation
is not the only means by which a board
achieves diversity. We also understand
the need to improve gender, raclal and
other imbalances throughout our
organisation, but particularty in senior
leadership roles. Appointments are
always based on merit and we continue
to challenge our external search
consultants where necessary, to ensure
thot diversity is aiways considered
when drawing up candideote shortlists.

The Nominatlon Committee
recognises the importance of having
complementary and diverse skills

and backgrounds within the Board,
enabling rich and effective discussions
and declsion-making. The Committee
continuously reviews the Board
composition against a skills matrix

to ensure that the Board and its
Committees have and maintain the
skills needed to deliver the Group's
strategic priorities.

Board evaluation

For the three years prior to this reporting
period, we have camried out intemai
reviews of the Board's effectiveness,
This year we commissioned an externai
review by an independert consuitant,
Satori. Other than carrying out this
evaluation, Satori have no connection
with SM35. The Chair provided ¢
comprehensive brief to Satori and the

review was undertaken in Quarter3 2022,

Satorl had access to a numiber of Board
and Committee papers during 2022 and
observed the November Board and
Committee meaetings. Individual
interviews were conducted with all Board
Directors and the Company Secretary.
Areport was prepared by Satorl with
final results and recommendations being

presented to the Board in February 2023,

We were pleased Satori felt the Board
was highly professional and effective,
with good levels of commitment to the
success of the business and its people,
and with an cpen, honest and
colluborative dynamic,
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Board composition

The report observed that the Board

was providing good leadership and

support to the business, noting there

wos clarlty and alignment on the rote

of the Board and of the immediate

strateglec priorities, The decision-

makling processes work well and Board

processes are effective, efficlent and ;
thorough, The Board Committees also i
worked well. Based on Satori's review,
the Board agreed a number of forward-
looking areas for focus and action
which will further suppaort our continuous
development. These include:

« considering a five-year bodrd
development planlinked directly ;
to forward strategy;

» enhancing the Board view of ‘what
good to great’ means and identifying
any metrics to enable this; ond

» contihually reviewlng structures to
stimulcte contact between the
Board and the wider organisation.

Mirigm Greenwood
Chair of the Nomination Committee

14 March 2023
6/% t u.'ww—?l
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Remuneration Committee Report

Members gnd ettendance
Jamie Richards (Chair)
Mirlam Greenwood
Graeme Blssett
Ruth Leok

Main activities in 2022

Maetings
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» Reviewed and approved the Directors' Remuneraticn Report Inthe

FY 2021 Annual repert and accounts,

« Discussed and approved the FY 2021 Executive annual bonus payments,

+ Reviewed and upproved vesting levels for exIsting long-term Incentive

awards for FY 2021.

« Reviewed and approved the financial and strategic FY 2022 bonus

metrics and targets.

» Gained approval from shareholders for a revised Remuneration Policy.

« Approved an additional cost-of-living bonus, pald in Navember 2022,

to the majority of the wider workforce.

« Made awards to certain Executives and senior management under the

new LTIP scheme.

+ Reviewed ondrecommended the Gender Pay Gap report to the Board

for approval.

introduction by Jamie
Richards, Remunerction

Committee Chair

On behalf of the Board and the
Remuneration Committee, | om pleased
to present the Remuneration Committee
Repaort (the Repart) for the financial
yedr ended 31 December 2022, This
report Includes my annual statement,
the directors’ remuneration policy

(the Palicy) and our annual report on
remuneration. As no changes are
proposed to the existing Policy, only
one remunearation resolution will be
tabled at the AGM in May 2023,
namely the gdvisary shareholder

vote onthe Directors’ Annudl report
onremunearation,

The aim of the Remuneration
Committee

The Remuneration Committee is
committed to structuring Executive
remuneration that is competitive,

that incentivises and rewards good
parformance, and thot will support the
Group's growth and ambitions, thereby
creating value for shareholders. In
additlon, the Committee reviews and
considers remuneration of the wider
workforce and monitors related policies,
satisfying itself that Incentlves and
rewards are dllgned with the Group's
strategy and culture. The Remuneration
Committee is appointed by the Board
and comprlses four independent
Non—executive Directors,

Our approdch to

remuneration
The Remunerction policy Is designed to:

¢+ [nclude a competitlve mix of bdse
pay and both short and tong-term
incentives, with an appropriate
proportion of the package
determined by stretching targets
linked to the Group’s performance;

promote the long-term success of the
Group, In line with our strategy and
focus on growth and shareholder
valug; and

provide appropriate alignment
between the interests of shareholders
and executlves and, where
appropriate, the wider workforce.
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Allgning remuneration
to Group strategy

The Group's ongolng vislon Is to be

at the heart of the low-carbon, smart
energy revolution, Our remuneration
arrangements are designed to support
management inits growth plon and
strategy, and to enable the Group to
be flexible and agile, considering the
fast pace of our growth in ¢ normal
trading environment.

Remuneration Policy

during the year

At the 2022 AGM the Committee put
forward our Directors’ Remuneration
Pollcy (the "Potlicy’) to shareholders,
The Policy was largely bosed on the
same principles as the previous
Directors’ Remuneration Policy;
however, the Committee made a
number of changes to align with best
practica. We were pleased that over
92% of shareholders voted In support
of the Policy and the Commiittee believes
it rernains appropriate in supporting
the Company's execution of its strategy
and long-term shareholder value
creation. The Committee is confident
that there continues to be a strong link
between the Remuneration Policy and
the business strategy.

Finoncial statements

Annual bonus for the year

ended 31 December 2022
During FY 2022 trading was above
our expectations and our Executive
team has performed extremely weil,
ensuring that the Group is well
positioned to take advantage of
cpportunities, Qur Group results in
FY 2022 were very strong, with
underlying profit before tax of £24.5m,
representing growth of 34%, ILARR
increastng by 13% year on vear and

over 480,000 smart meter installations.

In a turbulent market, delivering this
growth across all our key metrics
reaffirms the Group's strategy and

the continued efforts by the Executive
team to build a long-term, sustainable,
and successful business. This strong
performadnce is reflected in the
outcome of the annual bonus plan.
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Remuneration Policy for the

year ending 31 December 2023
The Remuneration Committee s
aware of ohgoing developments

in corporate governance and best
practice in executive remuneration,
and will continually review its executive
remuneration arrangements to align
with these where appropriate for

the business.

The Remuneration Policy is set out
on pages 103 to 109 and detgails of
how this Policy will be Implemented
for the financial year ahead is set
out on page 102,

| hope that you wili find this report
helpful and informative and agree

that the determinations made by the
Committee are appropriate and in the
long-term Interests of the Group, its
employees and our shareholders. | look
forward to your support at cur AGMin
May 2023 and encourage you to submit
any questions youmay have regarding
the work of the Committee in advance.

Annual statement from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Application of the new Remuneration Policy

Key reward component

Key features

Buse salary and core benefits

CEO salary £435,000. CFO salary £300,000. Pension contribution: 5% of salary for CEO

and CFO in line with the wider UK workforce.

Annual bonus
« 50% Group financial targets

« 35% operotionat objectives
+ 15% individual strategic objectives

Maximum of 150% of salary for CEO and 130% for CFO, with an element of any bonus

award paid in shares and held for two yveors.,

LTIP award
+ Pre-exceptional EBITDA

+ TSR
+ ESG/HES

Annua! owards of nil-cost options with opportunity levels aligned to the market, ot a
maximum of 175% of base salary For CEO and 150% for CFO with deferred components.
Anhual awards are subject to performance agoinst stretching financidal, TSR and ESG

targets measured over a three-year period.

Sharehotding guldelines

The CEO is expected to move towards maintaining a shareholding of two times salory
and the CFO is expected to move towards maintaining a shareholding of 1.5 times salary

while they are a Director of the Cormpany,
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual statement from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee continued

Policy

Al the start of 2022 the Committee
undertook a thorough review of

dll elements of the Executlves'
remuneration package, inciuding
base salary, pension, annual bonus
and wider beneflts, The review wds
fully informed by independent advice.

Atthe 2022 AGM shareholders aopproved
the new Remuneration Paoicy, which

Is intendied to apply for three years
from that date. There was widespread
support, as evidenced by over 9 2%
voting infavour. This reinforces our
view that our Remuneration Policy
cantinues to reflect our business
strategy, with remuneration payments
that are strongly linked to performance.
Flxed elements of the remuneration
packages are set so that they reflect
the calibre ond experience of the
individuals and the compiexity of thelr
roles. The annual bonus measures are
based on specific areas that require
irmmedilate focus, whereas our long-
termincentive plan {LTIP} locks to drive
sustainable improvements ot a more
macro level over the longer term.
Culturally, the setting of both financial
ond broader non-financial measures
serves to focus Executives on a more
holistic view of business success and
hence serves ta drive performance on
o broad, sustainable front,

The rngin changes to the Policy are
summarised below and were applied
during FY 2022,

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)
The LTIP Is structured in the form

of annual awards of nil-cost optlons

to the Company's senior employees.
Maximum apportunity levels are
dgligned to the market, at 175% of base
salary for the CEO ond 150% of base
salary for the CFO. All awards will be
satisfied within ¢ 10% dilutionfimit
within any rofling ten-year period.

The awards will be subject to stretching
financial and non-financlal performance
targets, measured over a three-year
perlod, with phased vesting over

an overall five-year termin line with
market best practice and to provide
further alignment with shareholders.
Performance measures for the awards
granted In 2022 were Incremental
EBITDA growth, delivery of absolute
shareholder return, and ESG medsures
which are core to SMS's strategy,
including health and safety and
progress agalnst our net zero targets.

Annual bonus

Alongside the introduction of the
long-term incentive plan, the
Committee revised the annuai bonus
to align the terms with appropriate
market benchmarks. The maximum
bonus opportunity increased from
100% to 150% For the CEO and 130%6 for
the CFO with this belng amaxium of
100% delivered in cash and the balance
deferred into shares far a period of two
years. The same award weighting 1s
applied to both elements.

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee introduced a
shareholding guideline for Executives
with the CEO being expectedto
maintain a shareholding of 2 times
salary and the CFO belng expected

to maintain a shareholding of 1.5 times
salary while they are a Director of the
Company. Glven that both Executive
Directors are relatively new In post, the
expectation is that this shareholding
will be established over five years and
is expected to apply for a period of ohe
year following cessation of employment.
The guidelines wlll apply to shares frorm
Incentive awards vesting from the date
of adoption of the Policy.

Remuneration for
performance in 2022

As set out In detali on pages 70 to 75,
the Group achieved a strong trading
perfarmance in 2022, with double digit
growth in our index-linked annualised
recurring revenue, supported by the
480,000 smart meterinstaliations.
140MW of operational battery sites
weralive by 31 December 2022 with
operational performance of the sites
significantly ahead of market
expectations and a largely secured
grid-scale battery pipeline with 470MW
securaed and a further 150MW under
exclusivity. Most importantly, there
have been no significant heq th and
safety incidents in the year, reflacting
the core priority of the Group to
provide a safe and secure operating
environiment for all our staff (see pages
56 to 59 for detalls). The Committee
determined that there hod beena
rebust link between remuneration
and performance,

Base salary

Executive Director sclaries were
subject to an annual review process.
Following this review at the start of
2022, the Committee agreed to
increase the salary of Tim Mortiock
to £435,000 effective 1 March 2022
and from 1 April 2022 Gavin Urwin's
salary increased to £300,000 toalign
with market benchmarking. Gail Blain
was awgrded the sgme salary as
Gayvin Urwin when appointed as CFO
from 1 December 2022.

Annual bonus

The targets for the 2022 annual bonus
for Executive Directors were set by the
Committee in January of lastyearand
remained unchanged throughout the
yaar. The strong and reslllent financial
performance of the Group in 2022is
reflected in the 2022 annual bonus
outcomes; the financial measures,
underlying profit before taxand ILARR,
have contributed 40% to the overall
bonus. Both Executives made good
pregress across all other objectives,

as detailed on page 114; however the
CEO has recelved a slightly lower bonus
percentage compared to the CFO,
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solely due to a specific objective

in relation to absolute share price
performance that does not feature
inthe CFC's objectives. Overall, the
annual bonuses paid to the CEC and
CFQ were 765% (2021: 82%), and 79%
(2021: 8264) of the maximum respectively.

The Cornmittee considered whether
the farmula-driven pay-outs under the
incentive plans and the resultant total
remuneration for Directors were
approprlate, looking at the broader
context within which the performance
was delivered.

Long term Incentive plans

After the new LTIP scheme recelved
approval at the AGM, the Committee
awarded LTIP awards {o Executives
and senior management under the
pan rules and falfing within a 10%
dilution limit over a rolling ten-vear
period. The LTiPis designed to
encourage management to focus

on executing the strategy to position
SMS ot the forefront of delivering
smart energy solutlons and provide the
flexibility to make the right investiments
ot the right time and to discourage the
use of levers to Increase revenue and
profitinthe short-term at the expense
of long-term shareholder value. Our
peopie are wlso eligible to participate in
our Sharesave plans which promote
share ownership by giving employees
anopportunity teinvest In SM3 shares.

The Committee assessed performance
agalinst the annual vesting criteria for
share cptions awarded to Executives
and senior management, under the
extont Optlon Plan, noting that the plan
has now expired for new awards and
reflecting the Committee’s responsibility
under the plan rules to exercise discredon
to ensure a falr outcome for all parties
including the careful evaluation of
formulaic components. Similarly to last
year, the Committee took Into account
arange of criticalfacters,

Financial statements

In the context of the plan rules, the
Committee concluded that for ail
option holders the final and fifth
tranche of the 2018 awards and the
third tranche of the 2020 awards wouid
vest at 84% of the maximum, with the
balance of 16% iapsing. The second
tranche of the 2021 optlon awards
would vest in full at 100% in line with
the annuot vesting criteria,

Wider workforce

When setting the Executive Directors’
remunergtion policy, the Committee
takes inte account the pay and
conditions of employees more
generdlly and, ot lecst once a year, Is
given full details of the remuneration
policy acrass the Group, with any
changes highlighted. While the balance
of the elernents of remumneration may
differ, there |s a consistent overall
principle that all colleagues should be
paid competitively against the relevant
pay benchmark,

Contlnuing to support aur employees
has been a priority this year, from both
a wellbeing and financlaf perspective.
In April 2022 g pay award was
implemented for all employees.

A standard 3% increase was applied
to employees within four of our career
bandings (excluding those onthe Real
Living Wage who increased by 10.6%),
and areduced 2% Increcase was
awarded to employees withinthe top
career bandings. All eligible employees
within the Company also received an
qdditional discretionary bonus payment,
for FY 2021. As we moved towards the
winter months we were acutely aware
of the continued inflationary pressures
that soclety wos facing, and we were
cognisant that our employees would
be experencing the same pressure

of rising daily costs.
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Therefore, a decision was made to
award a cne—aoff discretionary bonus
of £500 to dll employees within the
lower three career levels (C, D and E}
as we understood that employees
within these career levels were most
affected by the Impact of the increase
In cost of living. In addition, as an
accredited Living wWage employer, we
are committed to ensuring we poay the
Living Wage as a minimum to our
employees. From May 2023 the Living
Wage is due to increase from £9.90
per howr to £10.90 per hour. To ensure
that our employees continue to be
supported during this difficult time, we
increased our entry-level hourly rate to
£10.90 per haur as of 1 November 2022,
Implementing this increase six months
early helped to show our commitment
to supporting our employess on
entry-level salaries during this
chalfienging time.

Executive changes

At the start of 2022 It was anncunced
that Alan Foy would step down from
the Board as CEC and he ceased to
be a Diractor on 1March 2022, Inline
with the remuneration policy at the
time, it was cgreed that Alan Foy would
receive his current salary and benefits
up to 1 March 2022, his 2021 bonus
award, payment in lieu of notlce and
any vested options due under the
Group's Unapproved 2018 and 2021
Share Optian awards, Alan Foy did
notrecejve any portion of 2022 bonus
award.

As announced on 13 October 2022,
Gavin Urwin stepped down from the
Board as CFO on 1 December 2022,

In line with the current Remuneration
Poticy, Gavin Urwin will recelve his
current salary and benefits to 31 March
2023 and the cash element of the 2022
bonus. The Committee concluded that
no bonus should be awarded inshares
due to this element being designed for
retention. LTIP's that were awarded to
Gavin Urwin during 2022, the first year
of the scheme, were not accepted and
so were forfeited.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual statement from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee continued

Policy implementation
for 2023

Following careful cansideratian and
tetking into account informatlon from
the Fompany's remiineration ricviser,
the Committee decided not to increase
the bose solores for the CEO ond CFO
for 2023,

The Committee have reviewed the
performance metrcs gnd for the

2023 financial year the mix of measures
for the annual banus scheme has been
updated to include on element within
the core objectlves relating to the
operational battery sites, The
Committee felt it was important

to bring this element into the core
oblectives to maintain focus

and delivery,

The 2023 Executive bonus objectives
reflect the following features, flexed
to be appropriate to each Indlvidual:

core objectives — KPI's of undertying
PBT, ILARR, pineline targets across
the raterial business lines,
aperational battery sites and heolth
and safety

personalfinancial cbjectives —
examples include growth of pipeline
and appropriate long~term capitat
strategy

personal non-financial objectives
specific to Individual roles

The |_TIP wll continue to be based an
SMS's performance over three years
and subject to a two-year holding
period post~vesting. For 2023, the
grant level will be unchanged at 17%%
of base salary for the CEO arxd 150%
of base solary for the CFO. itis again
proposed that the perfermance
measures should be pre-exceptional
EBITDA, TSR and ESG/H &S strategic
measures. The Comimittee retains
discretion to adjust annual bonus
payments and vested LTIP awards if
the formula-driven outturn does not
reflect the broader overall performance
of the business.

Advisers

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)
provided advice to the Committee
on matters relating to Executive
remuneration, ali-employee share
awards and proposed long-term
incentlve awards. PwC remuneration
consultants are considered to be
independent of both the Board and
each of the Executive and Non-
execulive Directors. Their advice is
considered to be objective and
Independant. Pw( is a member of the
Remunergtion Consultants Group and
the voluntary code of conduct of that
body Is deslgned to ensure cbjective
and independent advice is given ta
remuneration committees.

The Committee operates according to
its terms of reference which have been
prepared to comply with relevant
stotutory, regulatory and corporate
governance redquirements ond best
practice. Durlng 2022 the terms of
reference were reviewed by the
Commlttee and updated to reflect
changes in corporate governance
requirements and best practice.

The revised terms of reference are
avallable for review on our website

at www.sms-plc.cont.

The Committee appreciates the
support received from shareholders
te date onlts executfive remuneration
and gavernance approach and tooks
forward to this continued support for
the resolution to approve the Annual
repeort enremuneration at the AGM
in May 2023,

The report has been prepared by the
Committee and approved by the Board
of Directors.

Jamie Richards
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
14 March 2023

Tcé@
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Directors’' Remuneration Policy {The Policy)

The Company welcomes dialogue The Palicy will be displgyed on the
with its shareholders over matters Group's website (www.sms~plc.com),
of remuneration. The Chalrman of In the Investor relations section.

the Remuneration Committee is
availoble for contact with institutional
investars conceming the approach

to remuneration,

Policy principles

Principles Considerations within the Policy

Clarity: remuneration arrangements We clearly communicate our approach to remuneration in this report and in all

should be transparent and promote communications with shareholders, praviding transparency over our raticnale.

effective engagement with shareholders This also allows straightforward engagement with the wider workforce.

and the workforce,

Simplicity: remuneration structures should  We have structured the Remunearation Palicy to be as simple as possible, within the

avoid complexity and their rationcle and confines of ensuring arrangements are Inline with the business strategy, create a

operation should be eusy to understand, robust iink between pay and performance and are designed ofter consideration of
Invastor expectations,

Risk: remuneration arrangements should We mitigate these risks through a carefully designed Palicy which includes a bolance

ensure reputational and other risks from between flnancial and non-financial bonus metrics, incentives plans that are based on

excessive rewards, and behavloural risks leng-term performance and the optfon for the Committee to exercise discretion if

that con arise from target-based incentive  deing so achleves a fairer outcome taking all stakeholders into account.
plans, gre identifed and mitlgated.

Predictabliity: the range of possible volues  We carefully consider the range of itkely performance outcomes for incentive plans
of rewards to indlvidual directors and any when setting parformance target ranges and gt the time of assessment would use
other limits or discretions should be discretion where necessary if the formulale result were considered inappropriate.
identified and explained ot the time of

approving the policy.

Praportionaltty: the link between The epportunity under Incantive plans is based on a proportion of sdlary with the
Individuei awards, the delivary of strategy quantum selected to ensure an appropriate link between pay and perfermance.
and the long-term performance of the
Company shouid be clear. Qutcomes
shoulkd not reward poor perfermance.

The perfoermance conditions applying to the incentives are aligned with the Company's
strategy and are reviewed on an annual bdsis to ensure they continue to Work
effectively.

There are provisicns to override the formula-driven outcome ofincentive plans
If necessary to ensure that there is not reward for poor performance and that falrness
Is achiaved for all parties.

Allgnment ta culture: incentive schemes The annual bohus and LTIP performance measures are based on both financial and
should drive behaviours consistent with non-financial metrics aligned with all key aspects of strate gy including iong-term
Company purpose, values and strategy. sustainable shareholder volye growth, maintdining a focus on our customers and the

quality of our service and ensuring adherence to wider ESG and HAS responsibllities.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy (The Policy) continued

Objectives of

Remuneration Policy

The Company’s Remuneration Policy is
designed to ensure that the Executive
Directors and senicr management are
fairly and responsibly rewarded for
their individual contribution to the
averd!l long-term performance of the
Company, in amanner that ensures
that the Company is able to attract,
motivate and retain executives of the
quaiity necessary to ensura the success
and sustainabliity of the Company.

The remuneration of Executive
Directors and senlor management
Is structured to ensure that:

= the fixed elements of pay, salary,
pension and benefits are
penchmarked against comparabile
companies of similar size and
complexity;

Executive Directors and senior
management are entitled to both
shart-term and long-term Incentives,
in the form of cash bonuses and share
intarests. Both the short-termdand
long-term incentives are underpinned
by performance criteria linked to the
Group's performance; and

remuneration rewards the
achievermnent of speclfic KPIs which
include, inter alig, the delivery of
long-term value to sharehalders,
atall times underpinned by o safe
operating environment, compllance
with relevant health and safety
policies, and cutstanding service

to customers.

-

In determining the remuneration of
Executive Directors, the Remunaration
Comimittee also ensures that
remunergtion arrangements are:

» transparent and measurakle;

« noi excessive, thus mitigating the
reputationadl and behdvioural risks
that could arise from strictly target-
based incentive plans; and

+ gligned to our culture, such that they
drive behaviours consistent with our
core values.

Consideration of employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group
The Committee actively considers pay
structures across the wider Group
when setting palicy for Fxecutive
Directors to ensure that o consistent
approach to reward is adopted which
is in line with our values. Thereis a
particular focus In relation to any base
salary raview. Overall, compared to
most employees, the Remuneration
Policy for Executive Directors is
weighted more to long-term share-
based incentives, This Is to ensure
that the relatively higher pay levels
are justifiable internally and externally
te shareholders by o clear link between
the long-term value created for
shareholders and the remuneration
received by Executives.

Qur reward framework across the
Groupis based ona consistent set

of principles for gll: that overall
remunergtion should be competitive
when compared to similar roles In
other organisations, Colleague pay is
therefore determined using the some
principles as the pay for aur Executive
Directors, All employees of the Group
are entitled to base salary and
benefits. The Group also operates d
pension plan for employeesin ling with
local market practice. Annudi salary
reviews for cther employees across
the Company are based on broadly
consistent principles, taking into
account Company performance,
market conditions and salary levels for
similar roles in comparable companies.
The Company operates discretionary
bonus schemes for eligible groups of
employees under whicha bonus is
payable subject to the achlevement
of appropriate targets. All eligible
employees may porticipate inthe
Company's Share Incentive Plan

on identical terms.

Decision-making process

The Committee is responsible for
the determination of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and howltis
implemented. In oddressing this
respansibility the Committee works
with management and external
agdvisers to develop propasals and
recommendations. The Committee
considers the source of Information
presented to it, analyses the detail,
and ensures that independent
judgement is exercised when making
declslans. Informatlon is independentiy
verifled where there are conflicts of
interest, and no individual is present
when thelr remuneration is being
discussed.

Incentive plan discretions

The Committee will operate the annual
bonus plan dand LTIP In accordance with
their respective rules, As part of therules
the Committee holds certain discretions
which are required for an efficient and
falr operation and administration of
these plans and which are consistent with
standard market practice. Anyuse of the
discretions would, where relevant, be
explained in the Annual report on
remuneration and may, as appropriate,
be the subject of consultatlon with the
Company's major sharcholders.

Service contracts and policy

on payment for 10ss of office

ItIs the Company's policy to require
twelve months’ notice for termingtion of
employment for Executive Directors to
be given by elther party. The Company's
palicy is to limit severdnce payments

on termination to pre~established
contractual arrangements, If the
Company belleves it appropriote to
protect its interests, it may also make
additional payments in exchange for
nen-compete/non-solicitation or other
terms which extend beyond those in the
Director's contract of employment. The
Committee has discretion to contribute
towards outplacement services and
legal fees for any departing Director

to the extent it considers appropriate.
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Under normal clreumstances,

the Company may termingte the
employrent of an Executive Director
by maklng a payment in lieu of notice
equivalent to baslc saiary anrd henefits
for the notlce period ut the rate current
at the date of termination. [ncase

of gross misconduct, a provision Is
in¢'uded In the Executive’s contract

for Immediate dismissal with no
compensdtion payable.

The terms dpplied to the Executive
Directors’ LTIP and share options are
consistent with those applied to all LTIR
and option holders under the rutes of
the schemes. Inrelation to the LTIP if an
employee leaves employment, orls on
notice to leave, on or before the vesting
date, the employee wlll forfeit their
gward, Options are subjectto a
five-year service condition, which
commences from the grant date of the
first tranche. The plan rules contain
provisions for good and bad leavers
and an Executlve Director would only
retaln rights to exerclse shore options,
Inrespect of shares for which
perforrnance conditions have heen
met at the leaving date, where they are
deemed g good leaver. Thereis no
entitiement to compensation or
damages for any Jass or potential loss
which may be suffered by reason of
belng or becoming unable to exercise
an option s a consequence of l0ss of
office or employment.

Treatment of annual bonus

on termination of employment
The Commlttee has discretion to
determine that In the event an
Executlve Directorleoves the
company, benus payments may

be puid once performance has
been measured and on ¢ pro-rated
basis for the time spent in active
employrment with the Company.

Finonclal statermnents

Shareholder views

The Committee wekcomes the views of
shareholders Inrespect of pay policy as
well as those views expressed on behalf
of shareliolders by their raspective
proxy advisers. The Committee
documents dll remunergtion-reloted
camments made at the Company's
AGM and within feedback received
during consultation with shareholders
throughout the year. Any feedback
recelved is fully consldered by the
Committee and amendments may be
made to the Remuneration Pollcy where
thougnt necessary, The Committee
seaks to bulld an dctive and productive
dialogue with investors on developments
in the rernuneration aspects of
corparate governance generally.

Period for Policy

The Poficy came into effect at the date
of the 2022 AGM and will apply fora
perlod of three vears, The Committee is
satisfled that the Remuneration Potlcy

" Isin the best interests of sharehalders

ard does not promote excessive
rsk-taking. The Committee retains
discretion to make non-significont
changes to the Pollcy without reverting
to sharehoiders,

Share ownership guidelines

The Committee have Introduced-

a polley of encouraging Executive
Directors to gequire and retain

shares in the Company, with the
oblective of further allgning their
long-terminterasts with those of other
shareholders, The CEQ wiil be expected
to maintain g shareholding of 2 times
salary and the CFO will be expected

to maintain a shareholding of 1.5 times
salary while they are a Director of the
Campany. Shares that count towards
achieving these guldelines include
shares peneficially owned by an
Executive Director or by a connected
person, as recognised by the Commitiee,
deferred bonus shares and share
options / LTIP awards which have
vested and so are no longer subject

to performance condltions but are
subject to post-vesting deferral
provisions, Executive Directors are
axpected to build their shareholding
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over o five-year period but arenot
reguired to make personal share
purchases if awards do not vest through
falling to meet performance conditions,
and so a newly-dappointed Director may
not reach the requlred level within the
period, depending on the Company's

perfarmance against target over the

period. In this situation, the Committee
will review the circumstances and agree
an ¢ppropriate forward plan, The
Committee retalns the discretion {o grant
dispensation from these requirements in
exceptional circumstances. After ceasing
employment Executive Directors

must retain o level of sharehalding

for one vear. There [s no particular
requirement for Non-executive Directors
to hoid shares but they ore encouraged
to gcguire a holding gver time.




106 Smart Metering Systemns plc Annual report and accounts 2022

Remuneration Committee Report continued
Directors’ Remuneration Policy (The Policy) continued

Executive Directors’ remuneration

The main components of the Policy for the year ended 31 December 2022, and how they link to and support the Company's
business strotegy, are summearised below, We do not disclose full detalis of the operational and personal strutegic objectives
for the Executive Directors, as we consider them to be commercially sensitive.

Our remuneration structure can be summarised as follows:

Flxed 1.Basesalary varlable 4. Annual bonus
2. Benefits 5. Long-termincentive plan
2. Pension 4. Share options

Fixed ~ 1. Base salary

Purpose and link to strategy Operation Link to performarice
Base salaries ave set to recognise Individual Salaries are typically reviewed annually, Base salary is net conditionat on
sklill, experience and performance, as well and take into account: perfommance. Any salary Incracses

will generolly be inline with those
awarded to salaried employees.

as the market value af the role, so as te

s the sco f
attract, retaln and motivate the most Company performance; the scage of the

role, and the experience and performance

cuaifed st deeraehs o, S BendaiaiDrscr oo oo
model, manage oc‘.rr risks and exploit our salary adjustments within the Company; "
. . - and the size, complexity and growth rate
opportunitias, while remaining disciplined of the Company.
about flxed cost management. '
Limltatlon:

Maximum increases are no greater than
inflation unless: {a) there has beena
materlal increase inindustry rates; (b)
changes In role have taken place with
enhanced respansibility; or (¢) there has
been a reward for Individual development.

2023 application
Based on last year's benchmarking of AIMS0 companies and advice from our remuneration adviser, no inflationary Increase
will be awarded to Executive Directors in 2023,

Fixed — 2, Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy Operation Link to performance

To complement base salary by providing Reviewed from time to time to ensure that Benefits are not conditional an
market-competitive benefits to attract henefits, when taken together with other perfarmance, but we believe they
and retain Executives, elements of remuneration, remdain enhance recruitment and retention

markat-competitive. Benefits include car of talent and Improve staff weltbeing.
allowance and private medical heaithcare. .

Other benefits may be introduced to

ensure benefits overall are competitive

and approprigte to the circumstancas,

Limitation:

Beneflts are set by the Committes

at levels appropriate for our business
relative to the market.

The cost of providing these benefits
vories year on yedr depending on the
schemes’ premlums. The Remuneration
Committee monitors the overall cost of
the benefits package.
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Fixed — 3, Pension
Purpose and link to strategy

Flnancial statements

Operation
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Link to performance

To provide ratirement benefits which,
when taken together with other elements
of the remuneration package, will enable
the Company to attract and retaln
Executives of d high calibre.

The Executive Directors (together with all
other eligible staff) are able to participote
Inthe Company's defined contribution
(moneay purchase) penslon scheme,

Limitation;

Company contributions are based on
percentage of salary, ranglng from the
statutory minimum to a maximum of
594 of salary,

Pension contributions are not
conditlonal on perfermancea.

vatadble — 4. Annual bonus
Purpose and Ink to strategy

QOperation

Link to performance

To reward Executives for achleving key
financlal, operationa! and strategic annual
goals, by seiecting measures that drive
leng-term sharehoider volue.

The Executive Directors {(together with

the senior management team) participate
in a discretionary, annuel, performance-
refoted bonus scherne, Targets are set

at the beginning of eachyear based on

the recommendations of the Remunerdtion
Commlttee.

For 2022 the moeximum opportunity was
equal to 150% of salary for the CEC and
130% of salary for the CFO, with a
maximum of 100% being dellvered in
cash and the balance belng deferred
Into shares for a period of two years, and
the saume award weighting being applled
to both elements.

The Commlttee applies discretion to the
final bonus payout, taking into dccount
performance against torgets and
underlying performance of the Company.

Bonus may be subject to clawback or
malus being applied, if appropriate, in

the event of financigl misstatermnent, error,
misconduct, reputational damage or
corperate fallure, which has led to an
over-paymant.

The Committee determines annual
metrics based on approved budgets
and priorities for the forthcoming year.
The onnual bonus s based onthree
welghted areas: core objectives,
personal financiol objectlves and
persongl non-financlal objectives,
Performance measures under each
ared dre determined annually and the
Committee is able to adjust the
welghting of the areas annudlly based
on prevalling business heeds. :

Targets dre cansiklered to be
commercially sensive and will be
disclosed retrospectively following
completion of the relevant financlal year.

2023 agpplication

Core performance measures are the same for both the CEO and CFO and are aligned to the Company’s KPis of underlying PBT,
ILARR, operational battery sitas and health and safety. The financial element of tha bonuses start to be earned for threshold
performance rlsing on a straight-ding basis to the maximum for exceeding budget performance.

Personal financlal performance measures will vary each year depending on business context ond strategy, For 2023, the CEQ's
are to further grow our battery and meter asset pipeline, develop our sales pipeline and products in developing CaRe products
andincrease our gbsolute share price performance. The CFO's personal financlal objectives for 2023 are set to ensure the
business has a clear long-term capital strategy for scund funding ofits business growth and operations,

Parsanal non=financial performance measures focus on laadership, structure, team, culture and behaviour.

For 2023 the maximum opportunity Is equal to 150% of sclary far the CEQ and 130% of salary for the CFO, with @ maximum of 100%
being delivered incash and the balance being deferred into shares for g perfod of twa years, and the same award weighting being

applied to both elements,
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy (The Policy) continued

Variable — 5, Long-term incentive plan (LTIP}

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Link to performance

Incentivisgs and rewards Executives for
the delivery of longer-term strategic
abjectives and substantial relative and
absoclute Increases in shareholder value,

LTIP awards may be granted each year in
the form of a conditional award of shares,
with vested awards released to
particlpants In tranches.

Annual awards of nil-cost optlons over plc
shares will be granted to participants.

Awards will be subject to a three-year
performance perlod.

Subject to the achlevement of
rerfarmance targets, the options will then
vest in tranches after three, four and flve
years subject to continued employment
untll the relevant vesting date (75% on the
third anniversary of grant, 12.5% on the
faurth anniversary, and 12.5% on the

fifth anniversary).

The maximum awoard 1s 175% of salary
for CEQ and 1509% of salary for CFQ.

The Remuneration Committee will have
customary discration rights and the ability
to override formulaic outcomes in line with
carporate governance principles to
achieve falrness to all parties.

All awards will be satisfied within a
13% dilution limit within any rolling
ten-year period.

Targets are reviewad annually ahead
of each grant to ensure they are
clignad to the business strategy

and performance outliook.

The mdjority of the awards willbe
based onfindncial performance
und shareholder return.

The Remuneration Committee retains
discretion in exceptional circumstances
to change performance measures and
targets and the weightings attachad
to performance measures part-way
through a performance perlod if there
is a significant and matertal event
which causes the Remuneration
Committee to belleve the orlging!
measures, welghtlngs and targets

ore nolonger appropriate.

DIscretlon may also be exercised
incases where the Remuneration
Commlttee believe that the vesting
outcome is hot a fair and gecurate
reflection of business performance.

2023 application

2023 LTIP awards were appraved in March 2023, Performance conditions are consistent with LTIPs that were previously awdrded,
focusing an pre-exceptlonal EBITDA, TSR and ESG strategic metrics, each applied independentty, and there will be a straight-iine

sliding scale between points,

Variable — 6. Share options
Purpose and Hnk to strategy

Operation

Unk to performance

To motivate Executive Directars and
incentlvise the dellvery of sustained
performance gver the long term, and to
promate alignment with shareholders’
Interests.

Optlons vest in annual tranches. The
vasting of each annual tranche takes
place by reference to d distinct annual
performance period.

The share options cannot be exercised for
a periad of five years from the grant date,
other than in speclific clrcumstonces.

The Committee reviewed the metrics,
financicl targets and where appilcabie
individual abjectives grlor to grant to
ensure they were aligned with the long-
term strategic goals. The Committee will
apply discretion if appropriate to achleve
falrness to all parties and will consider
carefully the outcame of formulaic
components.

The Committee determined market
capltalisation targets, financial
targets and individual objectives
to ensure they were aligned with
the corporate strategy.

2023 application

No further awards to be made under this pian as the pian has lapsed having reached the end of its 10-year award period

at the end of 2021.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Non-executive Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors, Including the Chairman, Is determined by the Executlve Directors after
external benchmarking. Non-executive Dlrectors and the Chairman do not participate in Incentive arrangements or recelve
other remuneration i gddition to thelr fees.

Each of the Non-executive Directors has a letter of appointment stating thelr annual fee ond thot their appointiment
is for ¢1 term of three years. Thelr appointment may be terminated on three months’ written notice at any time.

Non-executive Directors fees

Purpose and link to strategy Operation Link to performance

To attract ana retalin Non-executive Fee levais for Non-executive Directors arg None

Directors with appropriote skifls,
experience, Independence und knowledge
of the Company and fts business,

generally reviewad by the Board annuglly.
Rermuneration comprises an annual fee for
acting as a Non-exacutive Director and
serving as a member of any Committeeas,
Additionul fees are pald Inrespect of
sarvice as Chalrmen of o Commilttee or as
Senior Independent Director. When
reviewing feas, reference is made to fees
for the same comparator group 05 is used
for Executive Directors, as well as
Information gathered from a number of
remuneration surveys, ond assessment of
the extent of the dutles performed and the
size of the Company.

During 2022 the Exgccutive Directors approved dn increase to the Non-axecutive Director fees on 1 April 2022,

No increase to the annual fees of Non-executive Directors will be made in 2023.
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Remuneration Committee Repott continued
Annual Report on remuneration

Directars’ remuneration emoluments for the financial year ended 31 December 2022:

Feas/ Annual Peanslon Benefits 2022 2023
tasic saiary Banus cantribution it kind Tota! Totat
E £ £ £ £
Executive

Tim Mortiock? 403,333 489375 20,167 8,113 920,988 460,270
Gavin Urwin? 255,711 217,250 2,786 7,299 483,046 317,395
Gall Blain® 25,000 20,219 1,250 1,560 48,029 -
AlanFay* 61,866 - - 2833 64,699 694,142
David Thompson? — — - - - 59,855

Non-executive
Mirlam Greenwood 113,827 - - - 113,827 96,390
Groaeme Bissett 64,227 - - — 84,227 45900
Ruth Leak 52,725 — - - 52,725 45,900
Jamie Richards 52,725 - - — 52,728 45,900
Total 1,029,414 726844 24,203 12,805 1,800,266 1,765,752

1 TimMortlock will receive £163,125 of his bonus In deferred shares thot must be held for d pariod of two years.

Gavin Urwin's remuneration for 2822 §5 up to the date of his resignation as a Director, which was on 1 Decemiber 2022. Gavin Urwin's bonus hes beet
pro-rated to reflect his date of resignation,

Gall Blain's remuneration for 2022 1s from the dote of her appolntmaent as a Director, which was on 1Decembear 2022 Goll Blain's bonus has baen pro-rated
toreflect her date of appointment.

Alun Foy's remuneratlon for 2022 |s up to the date of his reskynation as a Director, which was on1 March 2022,
David Thompson resigned on 31 March 2021.

[N

™

o

With the exception of the bonus, which is discretlonary as detailed In the Remuneration Policy on page 107, ali other elements
of Directors' remuneration ore fixed.

On 1 March 2022 Tim Mortlock was appolnted as a Chief Executive Officer. Alan Foy resigned as a Director of the Company
with effect from 1 March 2022, This Report refiects their remuneration and rewards from the date of thelr respective
appolntment/resignation.

On 1 December 2022 Gait Blain wos appointed as a Director and Chief Financlat Officer. Gavin Urwinresigned as a Director
of the Company with effect from 1 December 2022, This Report reflects their remuneration and rewards from the date of
their respective appointment/resignation.

The Caommittee has discretion ta determine that In the event an Executlve Director leaves the Company, bonus payments
may be paid once performonce has been measured and on a pro-rated basis for the time spent in active employment with
the Company. Gavin Urwin was awarded a bonus of £217,250 for his performance in 2022 up to the date of his resignation
as aDirector. No 2022 bonus was awarded to Alan Foy.

Details of each of the elements included in the table above are as follows:

Base salary
Base salary increases across the Group are effective from 1 Aprll each year. Executive remuneration was reviewed in 2022
in lne with market trends and as a result, the CEQ salary increased to £435,000 and the CFO salary increased to £300,000.

The base salary/fee numbers shown in the table therefore Include twelve months' pay based en the Individug| Director's
salary/fee from 1 January 2022 —with the exception of Alan Foy, Gavin Urwin and Gail Blain, whose figures are disclased
from the dates of their respective appointment/rasignation as noted above.
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Bonus
Detuails of the measures, to the extent they are not commerclally sensitive, are shown below,

Financial performance
As a resyit of strong underlying financlal performance, the Group exceeded the threshold of underlying profit before
tax (PBT), and ILARR for the purposas of owarding the 2022 annual bonuses allocated to the Executive Directors.

Threshold Maximum Actual
Em £m £m Actud] payout {Maximum payout)
Underlying PBT 20.9 242 24.5 CEO 25% (25%), CFO 25% (25%)
ILARR 93.0 99.5 ¢7.1 CEO 15% (25%), CFO 15% {25%])
Operational performance

The operationat performance targets for each Executive Director were set against a range of strategic targets at the start
of the year covering heaith and safety, sales development, leadership and delivery of major projects, ond strategic planning.
Due to differing objectives between Executive Directors, total operational results are shown below for each Executive.

Actuwal payout (Maximum payout)
Operational objectives CEOQ 20% (35%), CFO 29% (35%)

individual strategic performance

The personal element of the bonus Is focused on the Executive Directors’ Individual contributions n each of the following
categories: ieadership, structure, team, cutture and behgviour. The Committee gssesses egch element against targets set
at the stort of the vear.

Actua! payout iMaximum payout}

Individual strategic objectives CEO 15% (15%), CFO 10% (15%)

The Committee may use discretion to adjust payments where necessary.

Pension contributions
A contribution of up to 5% per annum of base salary is paid into the Company pension scheme by the Company, on behalf
of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finarciol Officer.

Benefits in kind

The Company pays for private healthcare for each Executive Director and theirimmediate family, The Company provides
a Cornpany car allowance for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, The Executive Directors also currently
partlcipate in the Company's life assurance scheme.

Directors' interests
The Directors who held office at 31 December 2022 had the following Interests in the shares of the Company:

Ordinary shares
2022 2021
of £0.01each of £0,01 each
Executive
Tim Mortlock 35,260 7,485
Gavin Urwin - 2,222
Alan Foy! - 5953201

Non-axecutive

Miriam Greenwood 29,031 25,461
Graeme Bissett 22,911 18,093
Jamie Richards 5,254 3,909
Ruth Leak 2,825 -

95,281 6,010,371

1 At 31 Decembar 2021 this included $00,000 ordinary shores held by The Matis Trust, of which Alan Foy is o rusiee but not a beneficiary and 372,350
ordirary stares hekd by Metls Investments Ltd, of which Alan Foy is a Director.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual Report on remuneration continued

Directors’ LTIP awards and share options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed on page 110 do not include any amounts for the value of LTIP awards or options to acquire
ordinary shares in the Company granted to or held by the Directors.

Executive Directors' awards outstanding under the LTIP are set out in the table below. Awards are currently structured
as conditional awards of shares, with no exercise price. Awards ore granted as nil-cost options, and are exercisable
and released to participants in tranches between three and ten years from grant,

Number Remalning
Date of LTIP of sharas Market price of Foce Vesting unexerclsedat
grantioward awarded grant/award value dote 31Decembar 2022
Executive
Tim Martlock 19/05/22 90,733 8470 £768,508 18/05/25 90,733

Details of options for Directors who served during the year are as follows:

Number Egatriiest
of shares Exercisa Dats of date
Type uncler option price grant exercisable

Executive
Tim Mortlock! Unapproved 133,250 350.0p A2/11/714 12/11/19
Unapproved 333,333 700.0p 13/07/18 01/01/23
Unapgroved 250,000 705.4p 10/02/21 01/01/26
Gall Blain? Unapproved 50,000 529.0p 26/09/16 26/09/21
. Unapproved 50,600 700.0p 13/07/18 01/01/23
Unapproved 70,000 705.4p 10/02/21 Q1/01/26

1 TimMartlock holds 133,250 share optlans as part of the 2014 Share Option Plan and 309,333 share options as part of the 2018 Share Opticn Plan,
these share options are fully vested and to date have not been exarcised.

2 Gl Bigin holds 50,000 share options as part of the 2016 Share Option Plan, and 46,500 share options as part of the 2018 Share Optlon Plan,
these share options are fully vestad and te date have not been exercised.

The share price at 31 December 2022 was £7.82. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options
exercised during the vear ended 31 December 2022 was £8.02 (2021: £8,36),

The plan is structured with options vesting in annugl tranches. The vesting of @ach annual tranche tokes place by reference
to adistinct annual performance period and Is subject to annual targets Including a market copitalisation target, non-
market performance criteria based on financial targets and Individual okjectives, which are set at the beginning of the
corresponding performance period.

The share options cannot be exercised for a period of five years from the grant date, other than in specific circumstances.
Tranches which did not vest due to d missed market capitatisation target will subsequently automatically vestin future years
if the future-year market capitalisation target is met or on the occurrence of certain events which would cause all tranches
to vest. The Remuneration Committee has discretion in relation to the vesting of awards whete certain other criteria are

not met. The Remuneration Cammittee additionally has the power to make changes to existing granted share options

{for example in relatlon to the option price or number of optlons granted) where changes are made to the capital structure
of the Company.

The vesting outcome of the outstanding 2018 and 2021 options held by the Executive Directors was assessed by the
Committee as described on page 101, The Committee concluded that the final tranche of the 2018 award would vest at 84%
of the maximum, with the balance of 14% lapsing. The second tranche of the 2021 option awdrds would vest in full ot 100%in
line with the annual vesting criteria. The eariest exercisable date is 1 January 2023 for the 2018 options and 1 January 2026
far the 2021 options.

Further detalls of LTIPs and options granted by the Company at 31 December 2022 are given in note 28 to the financial
statements.
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Directors' Report

Financial siotements

The Directors submit their Annudl report on the affairs
of the Group together with the financial statements
and independent auditor's report for the year ended

21 December 20272,

Principal activities

SMS plc Is the ultimate parent
company of the Group and trades
princlpally through its subsidiary
undertakings. Its principal activity
is that of a holding company.

The princlpol activities of the Group
are; the installation, operatlon and
manggement of meter and energy
Infrastructure assets and reloted data
services; the construction and operation
of grid-scale battery energy storage
systems, the design, installation and
management of utllity connections
and energy infrastructure; and the
delivery of energy management and
corbon reduction soiutions, Including
the oneration of carbon reduction
{'CaRe") assets.

Subsidlarles of the Company are listed
onpage 173,

Statutory information

This Directors’ report sets out the
information required to be disclosed
by the Company In compliance with
the Companies Act 2006,

The Strategic report (found on pages
1to 75) and the Corporate governance
report (found on pages 76 to 116y are
incorporated by reference into this
Directors’ report and should be read
as part of this Report. The Strategic
report contains details of the Group’s
business model and strategic pricrities
and enables shareholders to assess
how the Directors have discharged
their duty under section 172 of the
Comparies Act 2006.

Articies of Association

The Company’s Artlcles of Association,
which may only be amended by ¢
spedial resolution at a general meeting
of the shareholders, can be found on
our website ot www,sms—plc.com/
Investors/aim-rule-26.

Branches outside the UK

One subsldiary of the Group cperaics
outside the UKin the Republic of irelond.

Directors and their interests
The Directors aof the Company,
including thelr blographies, are shown
within the Board of Directors section of
the Annual report and accounts 2022,
with further details of Bodrd Committee
mempership being set autinthe
Corporate governance report, All
Directors served throughout the
financlal year, except as disclosed.

Other than employment contracts and
intergsts In shares and options, none of
the Directors hod a materiolinterest in
any contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiary undertakings. Key
terms of the Dlrectors’ service controcts
and their Interests in shares and
options are disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration report.

Any related-party interests applicable
to the Directors are shown in note 26
to the financlal statements.

The Company's Artlcles of Associgtion
provide that all Directors will stand for
re-election every three years.

A Director may be appainted by an
ardinary resofutlon of sharehokiers

In o general meeting, foliowing
recommendoation by the Nomination
Committee inaccordance with its
terms of referance, as approved by the
Board or by a member {or members)
entitled to vote at such a meeting.
Alternatively, a Director may be
appainted following retirement by
rotationif the Director chooses to seek
re—election at a general meeting. In
addition, the Directors may appoint
Director to fill a vacancy or act as on
additional Director, pravided that the
Individual! retires at the next Apnual
General Meeting (AGM} and, if they
wish to continue, that they offer
themselves for election.
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The Company has voluntarily
implemented a policy where each
Director stands for re—election at
every AGM.

A Director may be remaved by the
Company In clrcumstances set out in the
Company's Articles of Asscciation or by
an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Directors' qualifying
indemnity provisions

As permitted by the Companies Act
2006, the Company purchases and
maintains Directors' and officers’
insurance cover agolnst certalnlegal
liabilitles and costs which could be
Incurred by the Directors and officers
of the Group companies in the
performance of thelr duties, The
Campany hes also granted an
indemnity to each of its Directors n
relation to the Directors' exercise of
their powers, duties and responsibilitles
as Directors of the Company, the terms
of which are in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Dividends

In line with the Group's dividend policy,
SMS currently intends to pay a 30.25p
per share dividend inrespectof FY 2022
{0 10% increase on the 27.5p per share
dividend issued [n respect of FY 2021),
with the intention of continuing to
annuolly increase this by 10% for

each of the financlal years FY 2023 and
FY 2024, The FY 2022 dividend [s being
paid in four instalments as summarised
in the table below. Two instaiments
have already been paid at the date

of this Report, with the third interim
and final instalments due to be paid in
April 2023 and July 2023 respectively.
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Directors’ Report continued

FY 2022 dividend provisional timetable:

Dlvidend per
Instalment Ex-dividend date Record date Payment date share
1 06 October 2022 07 October 2022 28 October 2022 7.5625p
2 05 January 2023 06 Janugry 2023 26 Jonuary 2023 7.5825p
3 04 April 2023 1 April 20623 27 April 2023 7.5625p
4 06 July 2023 07 July 2023 27 July 2023 7.5425p

The Board will review this regularly,
with shareholder value In mind and
taking inte account a range of factors.
These will include expected business
perfarmance, the Company’s abllity to
continue as a going concern and meet
Its debt obilgations, the distributable
reserves in the parent company, the
availability of cash resources, the
dividendt and operatiana! cash flow
cover, future cash commitments and
investment plans in line with the
Group's overall strategy.

Further details are provided in note 8
to the finoncicl stotements regording
the level of distributable reserves inthe
parent company at 31 December 2022,

Employees

Employee Invaolvement and
communleotion is paramount to the
Company's success. The Group's policy
of eperating through subsidlaries helps
ensure close communication dand sharing
of information with employees on
matters ikely to affect their interests.
in additlon, the workforce is kept Lp

to date on the various financlol and
economic factors affecting the
performance of the Group. Periodic
updates on Group performance are
circulated, typically following the
announcement of both interim and
annual financial results, with a
condensed employee version of the
Annual report and accounts made
available ta all staff.

The marketing team manages internal
communications, malntaining an
infarmative network throughout our
national erganisation which ensures
our people remaln up to date on all
aspects of the SMS Journey.
Communication tools include quarterly
newsletters, podcasts, employee
resource groups, videos, emails and
various forms of social medio, providing
employees withindustry insights and
key Information an Group activity such

as hybrid working, welloeing initiatives,
charitable donations and progress
towards our net zero target.

Business updates ore currently
delivered by video or email by the
executlve leadership team,

The Group seeks to engage with
employees on matiers offecting them,
through channels including employee
surveys (Intermal and external), an
employee forum, written feedback and
face-to-face sesslons. The Stakeholder
engagement section on pages 38 to 41
provides examples of projects delivered
during the yeor, where an opendialogue
was facilitated with the workforce, and
further details can qiso be found inthe
Our people section on pages 51to 55.

The involvement and support of
ernployees in maximising the Company's
performance is encouraged through Its
Share Incentive Plan, whick Is opento
all qualifying employees at all lavels,

As an HMRC-approved, tax-efficient
plan, the Share Incentive Plan supports
the engagement and retention of our
workforce by providing returns that

are driven by the performance of the
Compdany. The terms of this amangement
are detalled further on page 115.In
addition, share options may be granted
at the discretion of the Baord, typically
to senior management employees.
Further details can be found ih note 28
to the financial statements, which

is Incorporated by reference Into

this Report.

The Group operates an equal
opportunities, diversity, and Inclusion
policy, supported by face-to-face and
el_earning, detalled further on page 53.

It is the policy of the Group to support
the emplayment of people with
protected characteristics and to
ensure that recruitment, trolning,
career development and promaotion
opportunities are available to all. As

such, SMS is a ‘Disabllity-Cenfident’,
‘Mindful’ and ‘Accredited Living Woge
and Living Hours' employer andis also
a proud signatory of the Race at Wark
Charter as well as the Pregnancy Loss
Pledge via the Miscarriage Assoclation,

External auditor

As detuailed on page 95, the Audit
Committee recommended, and the
Board approved, the proposal that
the current auditor, Ernst & Young LLP,
be reappointed as auditor of the
Campany at the AGM. Emst & Young
LLP has expressed its willingness to
continue in office as auditor and o
resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young
L.LLP as the Company's auditor will
therefore be proposed to shareholders
ot the AGM.

Directors’ statement as

to disclosure of Information

to cuditor

Each of the Directors at the date of
approval of the Annual report and
accounts 2022 confirms that;

+ sofar as the Directoris aware, there
is no relevant qudtt information of
which the Company’s auditor is
uncware; and

he ar she has taken dll the steps that
ought to be taken by a Directorin
order to make himself or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Company's
auditoris aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should
be intarpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Financial instruments

Details of the use of financlal instrurnents
and financlal risk management are
included In nhote 23 to the financial
staotements contained in this Annual
report and accounts 2022, which are
incorporated by reference into this
Directors’ report.
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Strategic report

Going concern

After making enquiries, we, the Directors,
have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adeguate resources to
continue in operaticnal existence for
the foreseedbie future (for the period
from the balonce sheetdate to

31 December 2024}. We therefore
continue to aidopt the going concern
basls in preparing the fingncial
statements. The basis onwhichthis
conclusion has beenreached is set
Qut on pages 129 to 130, whichis
incorporated by reference here,

Political contributions
No politicdi contributions were made
during the year (2021 £nfl).

Post balance sheet events
There dre no post balance sheet
events requlring disclosure.

Research and development
The main reseaqrch and development
activitles relate to IT systems
development to support the metering
andinstaliations business. In addition,
the Group continues to invest In future
technologies reioted to decarbonisation
and energy efficiency.

Substantial shareholdings

Financial statements

Share capital

The Company's issued share capital
comprises ordinary shares of £0.01 each
which are listed on AIM, a market
opercted by the London Stock Exchange
{AlV: SMS. L)L As at 31 December 2022,
the issued share capltal of the Company
wds £1,333,970 comprising 133,397,009
ardinary shares of £0.01 each.,

Detalls of the issued share capltol of
tne Company, tagether with movements
in the issued share capital during the
yedadr, cdan be found In note 27 to the
fincainclal statements. All the Information
detgiled In note 27 forms part of this
Directors’ report dnd is incorporated
into it by reference,

The Company was guthorised at the
AGMIn May 2022 to qllot shares or
grant rights to or subscribe for of convert
any securty into shares in the Company
up to a nominal amount of £444,546. This
aligns with the institutiona! investor
guideline recommended figure of an
amosunt equadl to one-third of the total
issued share capital, This authorlty is
valid for a period expiring five years from
the date the resolution was approved at
the 2022 AGM; however, this authority is
revised on cnannual basis at each AGM,
ot which point the previous year's
resolution is generdlly superseded,

On 1 February 2023, the Company had been notlified, in accordance with sections
79110 828 of the Companies Act, of the following interests in the ordinary share

capital of the Compdany:

Nome of holder Number % held
Liontrust Investment Management LLP 20777813 15.57%
PrimeStone Capital LLP 13,050,265 2.78%
Fidelity Investments 6,295,464 4.72%
Steve Timoney 5,344,344 4£.01%
Bank Jullus Baer & Co 5,053,201 3.79%
Hargreave Hale Ltd 4,250,000 3.19%
Canaccord Genulty Weaith Management {(Cl) 3,743,754 2.81%
abrdn Investrment Management Ltd 3,687,021 2.76%
Soros Fund Management LLLC 3,662,730 2.75%
Aegon Asset Management 3,505 446 2.63%
Rathbones 3,269,054 2.45%
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Share Incentive Plan

The Group's Share Incentive Pian (S1P)
Is HMRC~approved and Is open to all
quallfylng employees, Inctuding
Executive Directors.

The Partnersntp Share element
provides that for every share o
participant purchasesin the Campany,
up to a current maximum contribution
aof £1,800 per year, the Company will
purchase one Matching Share. The
Matching Shares purchased are held
in trust In the name of the individual.
Dividends recejved on shares heid in
the SIP are reinvested to dcquire
Matching Shares at thelr market vailue.

There are various rules as to the period
of time that the shares must be held In

trust, but after five years the shores can
be released tax-free to the participant.

Under the terms of this scheme, the
Matching Shares will he forfeited if the
particlpant leaves the employment of
the Company withinthree years of the
award (unless they are cldssed gs o
‘good leaver’),

During the year, the Company
purchased 48,900 of its own shares
(2021: 34,191 frorn the market for the
purpose of satisfying its Matching Share
obligations under the SIP. The nominal
value of the shares purchosed was

£489 (2021: £342) and the agaregate
amount of consideration pald was
£0.4m (2021: £0.3m).

Approved by the Board of Directors
on 14 March 2023 and signed on its
behalf below.,

On behalf of the Board

Goil Blain
Chlef Financlal Officer

14 March 2023
—TaN B &
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in the preparation of financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’
report, the Strategic report, the Directors' remuneration
report, the separate Corporate governance statement
and the financial statements in accordance with
uppiicable law and regulations.

Company low requires the Directors to
prepare Group and Company financiat
statements for eoch financial year, The
Diractors are required by the AlM Rules
of the London Stock Exchange to
prepare Group financiol statements

in accordance with UK-odopted
internationdl accounting standords
('IFRSs"), and have elected under
company law to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable
law), including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Stondard Appliceble inthe
UK and Republic of Ireland.

The Group financial statements are
required by law, and by IFRSs, to
present fairly the financial position
and performance of the Group; and
the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financial statements
that references in the relevant part of
that Act to financial statements giving
o true and fair view are references to
their achieving a fair presentation.

Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financiat statements

unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and the Company and of the
profit ar loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and
Company financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

+ select suitable occaunting policies
and then gpply them consistently;

« make iudgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable;

« present information, including
accounting policies, In a manner theat
provides relevant, rellable, comparable
and understanddable information;

» for the Group financial statements,
state whether they have been
preparad in accordance with UK-
adopted intemational accounting
stondards and, for the Cormpaony
financial statements, state whether
applicable UK cccounting standards
including FRS 102 have been followed,
subject to any material departures
disclosed and expliined in the
Company financial statements; and

+ prapare the financial statements
onthe golng concem basis uniess
it is inappropriate to présume that
the Group and the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adeguate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explainthe
Group’s and the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the
Group ond the Company. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for

the maintenonce andintegrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Smart Metering
Systems pic website. Legislationin
the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financicl statements
may ditfer from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

This responsibiity statement was
appraved by the Board of Directors
on 14 March 2023 and signed onits
behalf below,

By order of the Booard

Craig McGinn
Company Secretary
and General Counsel
14 March 2023
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Independent auditor's report
to the Members of Smart Metering Systems plc

Qpinion
In our opinion:

* SmadrtMetering Systems plc’s group finandal staternents and parent company finoncial statements (the
"financial staternents*) give a true and fair view of the state of the groun's and of the parent company's affairs
as at 31 December 2022 and of the group’s protit tor the year then ended;

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted intemational
accounting standards;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdomn
Generatly Accepted Accounting Practice; and

* the financhal statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of Smart Metering Systems plc (the ‘parent company') and its subsidicries
{Lthe ‘Wroup’) fur e year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise;

Group Parant company

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022 Balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

Consolidated income statement for the vear then ended Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
21 December 2022 31 December 2022

Consolldoted statement of comprehensive income forthe  Statement of cash flows for the year then ended

year then ended 31 December 2022 31 December 2022

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year Related notes 1 to 8 to the financial statements including
then gnded 31 December 2022 da sumrmary of significant accounting policies

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended 31 December 2022

Related nates 1to 32 to the financlal statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied [n the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable
law and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied inthe
preparation of the parent company financial statements s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framewark” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praciice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilides under those standards are further described inthe Auditor’s responsibliities for the audit of the financiat
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as
opplied tolisted entitles, and we have tulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We balieve that the gudlt evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financlal statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparction of the financial statements is appropriate, Our evaiuation of the directors’ assessment of the group
and parent company’s abllity to continue to adopt the going concerh basis of accounting included:

» In conjunction with our walkthrough of the group's financial close process, we confirmed our understanding of
management’s going concern assessment process and also engaged with management early to ensure all key factors
were cansidered intheir assessment,

« We obtained management’s golng concern assessment, including the cash forecasts and covenant calculations for the
going concern perlod ending 31 December 2024, The group has modelled adverse scenarios in their cash forecasts and
covenant calculations in arder to Incorporate severe but plausible changes in key assumptions to the forecasted liguldity
of the group.

* We have tested the factars and assumptions included in each modelled scenario for the cash forecast and covenant
calculation. We have reviewed the facility agreement and confirmed compliance with covenonts at the year end ond
that the model show no breach throughout the going concem period.
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* We also verifed credit facilities avallable to the group to signed agreements with lenders. The group has access to
committed bank facliities of £420m, which Is £65m drawn down gs at 31 Decembber 2022, The full amount of these facilities
matures in 2025,

« EY performed reverse stress testing which demonstrated that if there were no new meter Instaltations from
Decermber 2072, SMS plc could stili continue to [vesd in Lhelr planned grid scale capltal expenditure. This s not deemed
o plausible scenario,

* We read the group’s going concern disclosures included In the annual report in order to assess that the disclosures were
oppropriote ond In conformity with the reporting stondards.

Besed on the work we have performed, we have not Identifled any material uncertginties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as o going
concern for a perod of when the financlal statements are authorised for issue until 31 Dacermber 2024.

Our responsibiliies and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, becouse not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statementis not a
guarantee ds te the group's ability to continue as a golng concern.

Qverview of our audit approach

Audit scope We performed an audit of the complete financial information of four components and audit
procedures on specific balances for ¢ further twelve compaonents.

The compenents where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for 100%
of pre-tax profit before exceptional ltems (our audit testing covers 100% of exceptional items),
29% of revenue and 7% of total assets.

Key qudit matters  identification of indicators of impalrment of the meter osset portfolic in accordance with IAS 36 and
assumptions applled in determining the carrying value of the portfolic of meter assets if indicators
are present.

Approprigteness of capitalisation of overheods and other expenses within the total of costs
capitalised within meter assets.

Materiallty Overall group materiallty of £1.1m which represents 5% of the group’s profit before tax (PRT) before
exceptional items

An overview of the scope of the parent company cnd group audits

Tailering the scopa

Qur assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materlality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our gudit
scape for each company within the Group, Taken together, this enables us to form an oplnion on the consolidated financial
staternents. We take Into account size, risk profile, the arganisation of the group and effectiveness of group-wide controls,
the potential Impact of climate change, changes in the business enviranment ond ather factors such as recent intermal audit
results when assessing the level of work to be performed at each company.

In assessing the risk of material misstotement to the Group Financlal staternents, and to ensure we had adequate
quaontitative coverage of significant accounts in the financial statements, of the 31 reporting components of the Group,
we selected 16 components covering entities within the UK and Ireland, which represent the principal business units
within the Group.

Of the 16 companents selected, we performed an audit of the complete financial information of 4 components (*full scope
components®) which were selected based on their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining 12 components ["specific
scope components”), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had
the potential for the gregtest Impact on the significant accounts in the financlal statements either because of the size of
these accounts or their risk profile,

The reporting components where we performed cudii procedures accounted for 100% (2021: 100%) of the Group's Profit
before tax before exceptional items, 99% (2021: 100%) of the Group’s Revenue and $7% (2021: 98%) of the Group’s Total
assets. For the current year, the full scope camponents contributed 2% (2021: 92%) of the Group's Prafit befare tax before
exceptional items used to calculote materiolity, 89% (2021: 94%) of the Group's Revenue und 83% (2021 94%) of the Group's
Total assets. The specific scope component contributed 8% (202 1: 8%} of the Group's Profit before tax before exceptional
items, 109 (2021: 6%) of the Group’s Revenue and 14% (2021: 4%) of the Group's Total assets. The audit scope of these
compangnts may nat have included testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to the
coverage of significant accounts tested far the Group.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the Members of Smart Metering Systems plc continued

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits continued

Tailoring the scope continued

The remaining 12 components that together represent 0% of the Group's Profit before tax before exceptional items.

For these components, we performed other procaedures, including analytical review, testing of consalldation journals and
intercompany eliminations to respond to any potential risks of material misstatement to the group financlal statements.

The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed by our gudit teams.

Changes from the prlor year

The grid scale battery entlties — East Angila Grid Storage One Limited; Newtonwood Energy Storage Limited; Brook Farm
Energy Limited: Brentwood Energy Storage Limited; ADD Renewables No.3 Limited; and Berkley Battery Storage Limited
have been brought Into specific scope In the current year.

Involvement with component teams
All audit wark performed far the purposes of the audit was undertaken by the G-oup audit team,

Climate change

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to haw climate change will Impact the group. Given the nature of
the business management does not consider there to be a material impact from climate change. These considerations are
explained on page 95 in the Audit Committee Report, which forms part of the *Other Information,” rather than the audited
financial statements. Our pracedures an these disclosures therefore consisted selely of consldering whether theyare
materlally inconsistent with the financlal statements ar our knowledge obtdined in the course of the audit or otherwise
appear to be materlaity misstated.

As expiained inthe Basis of Preparation note, climate change risks are stlll developing, and are Interdependent upon
eachother, and consequently financlal statements cannot capture all posslble future outcomes as these are not yet
known. The degree of certainty of these changes may also mean that they cannot be taken into account when
determining asset and liabllity valustlons and the timing of future cash flows under the requirements of UK adopted
international accounting standards,

Based on our work we have not ldentified the impoct of climate change on the financlal statements to be o key cudit matter
or to impact o key audit matter.
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Key audit matiers are those matters that, In our professionaljudament, were of most significance in our audlt of the financial
stotements of the current period and Include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {(whether or not
due to fraud) that we identifled, These matters Included those which had the greatest effect on; the overall audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressedin
the context of our audit of the financial stoetements os a whole, and in our oplnion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters,

Risk

Cur respanse to the rlsk

Keay obsarvations communicated
to the Audlt Commlttee

Identiflcation of Indicators of
impalrment of the meter assst
portfollo In accordance with
IAS 36 and assumptions
applied In determlining the
carrying value of the portfoilo
of meter assets if Inpairment
Indl¢ertors are present {£430m
value of risk, PY comparative
E367m),

Refer to the Audit Committee
Report (page P4k Accounting
policles {(page 131); and Note 11
ofthe Consoldated Financial
Statements.

i/ Traditional meters
Management prepared an
assessment of potentlal
impairmeant Indicators in
relation to the traditional
meter portfoilo which indlcated
that there remained slgnificant
headreom in refation to the
traditlonal meter portfello,

Management concluded that it
would not be appropriate to
recognise a reversal of the
historlcalimpairment charge
on consideration of the
declinlng nature of the
portfolio, with the smart meter
roll out stiliin place, albelt
extended to 31 Dacember
2025, and the uncertalnty as to
whether the rollout perod
changlng will have a major
Impact on the behaviour of
energy suppliers and the
knock~on impact on
installation run rates,
Therefore, managament
conclude thot the above noted
components that triggered the
impairment, remaln prevalent
inthe current year.

We obtained monagement's impalrment assessment which
conciuded that there are impairment indicators presant due to the
declining nature of the traditional meter portfolic.

We identifled controls designed by monagement to determine the
gppropriatenass of the assumptions included within the Impairment
medel.

EY raviewed and challenged management’s accounting paper
assessing if there are impalment indlcators in accordance with
1A536 for each category of meters.

We have performed procedures to independently Identify potential
Impdirment indicators el ding reviewing publlcly available information.

Mancgement has concluded that there remains no significant risk of
impairment with regards to the first-generated SMETS1 smart meter,
as g result of the required Enrclment & Adoption process into the DCC,
which has seen SMETS1 meters removed from the wall. This process is
now expected to continue throughto the end of 2023 following on
extension issued by BEIS. t's anticipated that the removal rate wili
reciuce significantly over this period given that ~79% of SMS' SMETS1
meters have now enrclled ond adopted, We therefore concluded that
managament’s assessment was reascnoble.

There were noindicators or impairment or mattars of consideration for
SMETS2 or I&C meters.

Consistent with managemeant's assessment, wa concur that there
were impoinment indicotorsin retation to the {roditlonot meter
portfollo given the smart meter roll out which results In traditional
meters belng rermnoved from the wall. EY have assessed and
challenged management's impulrment model to corroborate
monagement’s conclusion that no impalrmeant [s requirad, This
Included challenging the key assurmnptions:

+ The profile of removal of meters from the wall;

» ‘The recoverability and Issuance of termination Income for the
meters remcining on the wall;

s The expected churn In custemers between energy suppliers
determining the termingtion income earned;

« The expacted increase in annua! rentalincome inline with RPI as
defined inthe contract

« The discount rate applied In order to determine the net present
vafue of future cashflows.

« EY have tested the integrlty of the underlying data for the
customer churn and terminationincome assumptions,

We have performed sensitivity testing of the key assumptions.

We have reviewed the disclosures made around the judgements
management have taken In assessing the indicotors of Impalrment
within the meter portiolio.

The group taam performed full scope audit procedures over this
risk areaq, which coverad 100% of the risk amount.

Based on the audlt procedures
performed In relation to the
meter portfolio, we consider
the year-and camrylng value to
be appropriate.

In relation to SMETS1 meters,
uritit the enrolment and
adoption progreommae is
completed, there may be
remaval of further meters
which would represent a small
proportion of the total
portfolio of metets. We do not
consider this to represent an
impalrment risk to the wider
SMETS] portfolio.

WWe conslder the disclosures
made around the traditional
meter assets to be adequate,
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independent auditor's report
to the Members of Smart Metering Systems plc continued

Key audit matters continued

Risk

Qur response to the risk

Koy absaryations cammunicated
to the Audlt Commitiee

Appropriareness of
capliallsation of overheads
and other expenses within
the total of costs capitallsed
within meter assets {£430m
vaiue of total meter assets,
PY comparative £367m)

Refer to Audit Committee
Report {poage 94); Accounting
polictes (poge 131) and note 11
in the Consolidated Finoncial
Staterments,

As at 31 December 2022,

the group carried total meter
assets ameounting to £430m
(2021: £367m). This Includes
Internci eperatlonal costs
that have bheen capitalised
inthe current year,

A signlficant proportion of
the group’s smart meters
are fitted by its in-house
engineering team, The costs
directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the conditlon
and location necessary for

it to be capable of operating
In the manrer intendead by
mgnagement are capitallsed
infing with JAS 16.

The slanificant risk relates

to the judgements made by
management when assessing
the appropriate categorles
and proportion of direct costs
of Installation, overheads

and other expenses directly
attributable to the Instailation
of each meter.

We Identified controls designed by managemant to determine the
categores and propertion of direct costs of installation, overheads
and other expenses directly attributable to bringing the meter
assets into use by the group’s in-house englneering teams and
evaluated the design effectivenass of these controls,

We evaluated the judgement applied by mancgement to dssess
the appropriate categories and proportion of direct costs of
installation, overhaads and other expenses directly attributable
to instaliation of meter assets. This included:

« Assessment of the capitalisation methodotegy applied
and testing of the mathermatical Integrity of the medel;

« Testing of the time recording data utilised ta determine
the proportion of engineers’ time spent installing;

» Agreement of the costs to the oudited trict balance; and

» Testing of categarisation of costs capitalised ta ensure they
refqted to directly attributable costs of fitting the meter.
Costs that did not relate to the meter fitting were excluded,
The excluded costs Included Insfficiencies in meter filting,
time spent on training and time spent on transactional work,

* Benchmarking the average installation cost capitalised
to contracted third party Installation costs to assess
the reasonableness of the amaunt capitalised,
+ Reviewing the subsequent depreclation applied to the capitallsed
costs and their presentation within the finoncial statements.
» We performed full and spec!fic scope oudit procedures over
this risk areq, which covered 100% of the sk omount.

Based on the results of our
audit procedures, we conslder
the amounts capitalised for
meters installed by in-house
engineers to be oppropriate.

Qur application of materiality
We apply the concent of materiafity In planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of Identified
misstatements on the audit and In forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The rmagnitude of an omission or misstaternent that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected
toinfluence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining
the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiallity for the Group to be £1.1million (2021: £0.8 milllion), which Is 5% (2021: 53) of PBT before exceptional
items. We believe that pre-tax prafits before exceptional items provides us with an appropriate materiality threshold for the

users of the financial statements as the exceptional costs are considered non~recurring costs in the normal course of business.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £8.6million (2021 £9.3 million), which is 2% (2021: 2%) of equity.

Performance materiality
The apglication of materlality at the individual account or balance level. it Is set at an amount to reduce to an approprictely
low level the probability thqt the aggreggte of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk cssessments, together with our assessment of the Group’s overall control environment, our
judgement was that performance materiality was 50% (2021: 75%) of our planning matertallty, namely £0.6m (2021: E0.6m).
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We have set performance materiallty at this percentage due to our expectation of the llkelihood of misstatements taking
inte agccount the internc| control environment, accounting systems and level of estimation in the financial statements,

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant finoncial statement
accounts is undertaken based on o percentage of total performance materlality. The performance materiality set for each
compoenent is bosed on the relative scale and risk of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk
of misstatement ct that component. In the current year, the range of performance materlality allocated to components was
£0.1 million to £0.4 miillon {(2021; £0.1 million to £0.4 milion).

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being ¢clearty trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences In excess of £0.06m
(2021 £0.04m), which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quontitative measures of materiality discussed above and
inlight of other refevant qualitative considerations In forming our opinion.

Other Information
The other information comprises the Information included in the annual report 1te 118, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon, The directors are responsible for the other information within the annual report.

Qur opinian on the financial stotements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expiicitly
stated inthis report, we de not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other
informatlon and, in doing so, consider whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtalned in the caurse of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives riseto a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is d matericl misstotement of the other infarmation, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, hased on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information ghven In the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
staterments are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepdred in accordance with applicakie legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtoined
inthe course of the audit, we have not identified materlal misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.,

We have hathing to report In respact of the following matters in relation to which the Companles Act 2006 requires us
to report o you If, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, of returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not vislted by us; or

+ the parent company financlal staternents are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
= we have not received alf the Information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 116, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such internal
controf as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to froud or ejror.

In preparing tha financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parant company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disciosing, ¢5 applictble, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to lguldate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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indepéendent auditor’s report
to the Members of Smart Metering Systems plc continued

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial staterments

Our objectlves are to obtaln reasonable dassurance about whether the flnonclal statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error, and to lssue an audltor's report that Includes our aplnion. Reasonable
dssurance Is a high level of assurance but s not g gudrantee that an audit conducted In accordance with 1SAs (UK) wil always
detect a materlol misstatemant whan It exists, Mlsstulements can drise trotn fraud or arror and are considarad materlal If,
individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decislons of users taken on
the basis of these financlal statements,

Explanation ds to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting Irregularities, Including fraud
Ireguiarities, Including fraud, are Instances of non-~compilance with laws and regultitions, We design procedures Inline with
our responsibilltias, outlined above, to detoct ltreguidrities, Inciuding fraud, The sk of not detecting a material misstatemant
due to fraud Is higher than the risk of not detecting ane resuiting from error, as fraud may Involve deliberate concealment by,
for exarmple, forgery or Intentional misropresentations, or through collusion, The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting regulariiles, Incduding fraud is detalled beiow,

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both thase charged with governance
of the company and managerment.,

+ We abtadlned on understanding of the legal and regulatary framewarks that are applicable to the group and parent
company and determined that the most significant are those that rekite to the reporting framewoerk {IFRS, FRS 102,
Comparles Act 20046, AiM Rules for Company; QCA Code) and the relevant tax complkince regulations in the UK and
Ireland. In addfition, we concluded thot there are certain sighiflcont laws ond regulations thot may have an effect on the
detarmination of the amounts tnd disdosures In the financlol statements and those lkaws and regutations relating to
hedlth and safety, employee matters, envirenmental and Bribery and corruption practices;

We understood how SMS Is complying with those frameworks by making enquirles of dirgctors, Internal qudit, those
responsible for legal and compliance procedurses and the Compdny Secretary, We corroborated our engulres through
our review of the board minutes and papers provided to the Audl Committes, as well as consideration of the results of
our audlt procadures across the group to elther coreharata or provide contrary evidence which was then folowed up;

Wo assessed the susceptibliity of the group's financlal statements to materlal misstatement, Inchuding how fraud might
occur, by meeting with management within varlous parts of the businass to understand where they considerad there was
susceptibliity to fraud, We also conskderad performance targets and thalr Influence on efforts made by management to
manage eamings or Influence the perceptions of analysts, Whete this risk was considered higher, we performed qudit
procedures to addrass the fraud risk, These procedures included tosting manual journals and were designed to provide
redsohdable assurance that the Anancial sistements were free from fraud or errot;

-

Our procedures Involved enquiries of group management and those charged with governance, those responsible for legal
and complianca procedures and Internal sudlt journal entry testing with a focus on manudl conselldation journals and
Journals indicating large or unusual transactions hased on our understanding of the busliness and a review of Board and
Audit Comrnittes minutes to identify any non-compllance with laws and regulations.

Adfurther description of our responslbiilties for the audlt of the Tnanclal statements Is located on the Financlal Reporting
Councli's wobsite at wwwifre.org.uk/ouditorsresponsibliities. This description forms part of aur auditor's report.

Use of our report

This roport is made solely to the company’s membsrs, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
ACt 2006, Dur qudiy work has been undertoken $o thot we might stote to the company's members thosa matters we are
required to state to them In an auditor's report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or dssume raspaonsibliity to anyona other than the company and the company’s membars as o body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Paul Copland {(Senlor statutory auditor) : ’O
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor £ CC
Edinburgh g S

14hMarch 2023

Based on this understanding we designed our tudit procedures to identlfy non—compliance with such laows and reguiations.
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2022 2021
Before 2022 Before 2021
aexceptonal  Exceptionot 2022 axceptional Exceptional 2021
ltems Items? Total items ltems Total
Notes £'000 £:000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Revenue 2 135,520 - 135,520 108,480 - 108,480
Cost of sales - 3 {65,498) - {65,498) {48,316) (829) (49,145)
Gross profit 70,022 - 70,022 60,164 {829} 59,335
Administrative expenses 3 {45,222) {6,444) (51,848} (41,8646) {5,649} (47515}
Qther gperating income 3 1,936 - 1,934 1,696 - 1,696
Profit from operations 3 26,736 {8,8406) 20,090 19,994 (6,478) 13,514
Share of loss of associate 12 (1846) - {186) - - -
Finance costs 5 (4,273) - (4,273) {3,488) {1,742) (5,230)
Finance income 5 324 - 324 7 - 7
Profit befare taxation 22,601 (6,646} 15,955 14513 {8,220} 8,293
Toxation 6 (2,557) 1,473 (1,084) {6,479 1,978 {4,501}
Proflt for the year attributable
to owners of the parent 20,044 (5,173) 14,871 10,034 (6,242) 3,792
1 Referto note 3 for detalls of exceptlonal ltems.
The profit from operations arises from the Group's continuing operations.
Eamings per share attributable to owners of the parent during the year:
Notes 2022 2021
Basic earnings per share {pence) 7 1114 3.20
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 7 1111 319
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the yvear ended 31 December 2022
2022 2021
Before 2022 Before 2024
exceptional  Exceptonal 2022 exceptlanal Exceptional 2021
tems items Total terns ftems Toal
£'000 E'000 £'000 £000 E00Q E'000
Profit for the year 20,044 {5,173) 14,871 10,034 (6,242) 3792
Other comprehensive incomel
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 9 - - {4s) - (&6)
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 9 - 9 (46} - {46)
Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners
of the parent 20,053 (5,173) 14,880 2,988 {6,242) 3,746

1 May be reclassifled to profit or koss.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Notes £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intanglble ascots e, 1¢ 25,832 25,463
Property, plant and equipment 11 533,240 415901
Investments 40 75
Investment in associate 12 1,940 -
Other assets — 1,651
Trade and other receivables 14 12,347 -
Total non-current assets 573,399 443,090
Current assets
Inventorles 13 37,438 22,980
Other assets - 550
Trade and other receivables 14 52935 47,631
Cash and cash equivatents 15 32,770 117,687
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 15 307 1,299
Total current assets 123,450 190,147
Assets held for sale 16 513 -
Total assets 697,362 633,237
Liabilities
Current llabilitles
Trade and other payables 17 69,378 56,489
Bank loans and overdrafts 18 591 -
Lease liabilities 19 885 299
Other llubilities 21 1,588 538
Total current liabillties 72,242 58,126
Nen-current liakilities
Bank loans 18 43,349 -
Lease liabilities 19 11,476 7,574
Provisions 20 2,035 798
Other liabilitics 21 1,280 750
Deferred tax liablities 22 13,496 12,199
Total non-current llabllitles 91,634 21,321
Total liabliities 163,874 79,447
Net assets 533,488 553,790
Equity
Share capital 27 1,334 1,333
Share premium 332,332 332,048
Other reserve 29 9,562 2,562
Qwn share reserve 27 (955) (825)
Forelgn currency transiation reserve {36) (45}
Retained earnings 191,249 211,717
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 535,484 553,790

The financial statements on pages 125 to 175 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

and sighed onits behalf by:

Gail Bfain é_:‘:\“.\ f% R S e

Director
14 March 2023

Company registration number
SC367563
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Foreign
currency
Share Share Other  Ownshare  transiation Retained

caplta! premium reserve rasetve resarve samings Total
Attributable to the owners of the parent company: ECD0 E£'Q00 E£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £'000
Asatl January 2021 1,179 140,471 2,562 (749) 1 236,028 406,442
Totdl profit for the year - — - - - 3,792 3,792
Total other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - {46) - (46)
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners
Dividends {note 8) - - - - —  (29,060Q) (29,060)
Shares Issued {note 27) 204 171,577 - - - - 171,781
Movement in own shares {nate 27) - - - (76} - (203) 27%)
Share-based payments (note 28) - - - - - 841 841
Income tax effect of share options - - - - — 319 319
As at 31 December 2021 1,333 332,048 9,562 (825) {458) 211,717 553,790
Total profit for the year - - - - - 15,871 14,871
Total other comprehensive Income
for the year - - - - 9 - 9
Transactions with owners in their capacity
s owners
pividends (note 8) - - - - -~  {37,592) (37,592)
Shares issued (note 27) 1 284 - - — - 285
Movement In own shares (note 27) . - - - {130} - {265) (395)
Share-based payments (note 28) - - - - - 2,611 2,611
Income tax effect of share options - - - - - (93) (93)
As at 31 December 2022 1,334 33%2,%5%2 9,562 (955) (36} 191,249 533,486

See notes 27 and 29 for detalls of the Own share reserve and Other reserve.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2021

2022 {restoted)

£000 £000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 15,955 8,293
Share of 10s$ of assaciate 186 -
Finance costs #,273 3,488
Finance income {324) (7}
Fareign exchange loss - 29
Exceptional ltems: other! 5,714 7,288
Depreciation 32,876 28,712
Amortisation of intanglbles 4,152 4060
Share-based payment expense 2,612 841
RDEC Income (280) (489)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,937 2,457
Mavement In inventories {12,481) 3,359
Movement In trade and other receivables {5,369} (7.671)
Movement in trade and other payables 13,009 11078
Movement in provisions {5} -
Cash generated from operations 43,257 61,438
Income tax received 5648 403
Net cash generated from operations 63,825 61,841
Investing activitles
Payments for asset acquisitions {14,627) (4,749)
Payment for acquisition of new business, net of cash acquired (1,346) (8,433)
Payment for acquisition of associate (2,126} -
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment {143,399 (108,214)
Payments on account to acquire grid-scale battery assets (12,347} -
Praceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,151 2,508
Payments to acguire intanglble assets (2,172) (2,831)
Finance Income received 324 7
Net cash usad in investing activities {172,562y (121,712}
Financing activities
New borrowings 45,000 53,250
Borrowings repaid - (53,250)
Principal elements of lease payments (1,500) {1,247}
Fingnce costs pald (2,975 {4,200)
Net proceeds from share issue 285 171,781
Purchase of own shares (395} (279)
Dividends paid (37.592) {29,060)
Net cash generated from financing activities 22,823 136,995
Net increase/{decreqse) in cash and cash equivalents (85,914} 77,124
Exchange (gain)oss on cash and cash equivalents 5 (1)
Cash and cash equivalents ot the beginning of the financial year 118,986 41,863
Cash and cash egquivalents ot the end of the financial year (note 15)2 33,077 118,986

1 Othert exceptonalitams comprise £5,716,000 for lesses on our mater portfolio. in 2021, nan-cash excaeptionadl items included 5,546,000 for losses

an our meter portfollo and the £1,742,000 excepuonal finance cost.

2 Cash ankd eash equivalents includes restricted cash fallowing an IFRIC agenda declsion in March 2022, Amounts shown for 2021 have been restated

&1 acomparadie basls,
2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents comprise £00Q £000
Cash and cash equivalents 32,770 117,687
_Cash and cash eguivalents — restricted cash 307 1,299
Total cash and cash equivalents 33,077 118,986
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Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adoptedin the preparation of these consolidatad financial statements are set out below.
These policles hgve heen consistently applied to alf the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 were gpproved and authorised for Issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors on 14 March 2023, Smart Metering Systems plc {SMS) is a public limited company limited by shares
and incorporated in Scotland, with its registered office ot 2nd Floor, 48 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow G2 5TS, The Company’s
ordinary shares gre traded on AlM,

Basis of preparation
The consolidated finagncial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International accounting standards.

The consolidated financiai statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of certaln
financial assets and financlal ilabilities that have been measured ot fair value.

The consolidated financlal statements are presented in British Pounds Sterling (£), which is Smart Metering Systems ple's
functional and presentrition currency, and all values are rounded Lo the nearest thousand (£:000) except where otherwise indicated.,

Following an [FRIC agenda decision In March 2022 cash and cash equivalents now include restricted cash. Amounts shown
for 2021 have beenrestated on o comparanple basis.

In preparing the consolidated financlal statements management has considered the impoct of climate change, particularty
in the context of the disglosures Included In the Strategle report and the Group's net-zero carbon target. Our net-zero plans
tre to electrify our vehicle fleet and carry out sustainabillity upgrades to our buitding estate. The fleet will be replaced at the
end of the useful iife. These considerations did not have o materlatimpact on the financial repoerting judgements and
estimates, consistent with the assessment that climate change is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's
going concern assessment to December 2024, Qualitative explorations of potentia! areas of concern, including an evoluation
of climate exposure on our physical assets such as offices, warehouses ond vehicles, has been carried out and we have
identified areas of potential climate-related risk, such as extreme weather events which could affect our physical locations
and road-based employees. Overall, the risk of ciimate-related change on the Group is conslidered low.

Going ¢encern

Manragement prepares budgets and forecasts on a five-year forward-looking basis. These forecasts cover operational
cash flows and investment capital expenditure and are prepared based on management's estimaticon of installation run
rates through the UK smart meter rollout. The Directors have performed thelr assessment of the entity's akility to continue
as a golng concern, from the date of issue of these financlal statements to 31 December 2024,

Management has modelled several different meter installation and grid-scale battery storage scenarios, ncluding a
downslde scenario which assumed q reduced rollout of new meter installations over the five-year pericd and delayed the
energisation of grid-scole battery storage sites. The scenario proved that the business would still have sufficient cash flow
1o continue to operate, banking covenants would remain satisfied with adequate headroam, and adequate cash would be
avallable to cover liabilities and operating costs. This modelling provides confidence te management that, even in adverse
circumstances, the business will still have sufficient resources to continue to operate,

in September 2021, the Group completed the refinancing of its reveoiving credit facility in order to support ongoing
Investment in its established carbon reduction ('CaRe’) assets. The total available funding under the new loon faciity

is £420m and the maturlty date is December 2025. In Qctober 2021, the Group completed a successful equity placing,
raising proceeds of C.£175m. These proceeds were used to make o voluntary prepayment under the Group's refinanced
loan facllity of the full outstanding principal of C.£53m. At 31 December 2022, the Group had a drawn-down amount of
£65m {31 December 2021: £nil}.

The Group was compliant with all its debt covenants at 31 December 2022. The financial covenants attached ta the facility
are that EBITDA should be ne less than 4.00x interest and net debt sheuld be no more than 4.75x EBITDA. At 31 December 2022
these stood at 18.84x and 0.45x respectively, demonstrating significant headroom, The Group does not expect to breach
these covenants in the period from the date of relegse of these financial statements to 31 December 2024, belng the period
far the going concern assessment.

The Group balance sheet shows consolidated net assets of £533.5m (31 December 2021: £553.8my), of which £429.7m
(31 December 2021: £366.7m) relates to revenue-generating meter and data assets. The Fquidity of the Group thus
remalns strong and continues to provide the financial flexlbility required to support the Group's long-term growth prospects.

With significant coverage provided by existing long-term, inflation-linked and recurring cash flows, the Group remains
committed teits enhanced dividend policy. It proposes ¢ 30.25p per share annualised dividend in respect of FY 2022,
The first of four cash Instalments, a total of £10.1m, was paid in October 2022,
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Going concern continued

Based on the current cash flow projections and fociities in place and having given consideration to various outcomes
of future performance and forecast capital expenditure, Including extreme downside scenarlos, the Directors conslder
it apprapricte to continue to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and are of the view that there
are no material uncertainties regarding the Group's gaing concarn status.

Basis of consolidation

The consaoliduted accounts of the Group Include the assets, liabllitles and results of the Company and subsidiary
undertakings in which Smart Metering Systems plc has a controlling interest. Contrelis achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its Involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the Investee. Specificolly, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Graup has all the following: power over
the investee (Le, axisting rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant acthvities of the investee); exposure, or
rights, to variable retumns from its involvernent with the investee; and the obility to use its power over the Investee to affect
its returns. Subsldiaries are fully consolidated from the dote onwhich controlis transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition methed of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group (refer to policy anpoage 139).

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group's occounting policies.

Allintra-group assets and labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows rekating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full an consolidation.

Foreign currency translation

Group companies
The resuits and financial position of forelgn operations (none af which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have afunctional currency different from the presentation currency are transiated into the presentation currency os foliows:

ossets and liabilities far each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

non-monetary assets at the date of acquisition are translated at the historical rate and are not subsequently revalued;

income and expenses for each statement of profit or I0ss and statament of comprehensive income are transiated at
average exchange rates {unless this Is not a reasanabte approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case Incame and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

ali resuiting exchange differences are recognised in Other comprehensive income and accumulated In a separate reserve
within equity.

Goodwll and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operatlon are treated as assets and [abllities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rote.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates ot the dates of the
transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the transiation
of monetary assets andlabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange rates, are generally recognised in
profit or fass. They are deferred in equity If they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying het investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign aperation.

Forelgn exchange gains and losses that rekite to borrowings are presented Inthe statement of profit orloss, within Fingnce
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses gre presented in the statement of profit or [05s on a net basis within
Administrative expenses.

Use of estimates and judgements

The Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets cand
ligbllities that are not readily apparent from other sources, These estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factars considered to be relevant. Actual results may diifer from these estimates, The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to accounting estimates are recoghised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revislon affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods [f the revislon affects both current and future periods.
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Crtical accounting judgements

The foliowing are the critical judgements that the Directors have made In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the finoncial stotements:

« capltelisation ofinternal instaliation costs:

- a significant leve! of in-house Installatlon of meter assets is carred out by the Group, certain costs of which are
capitglised (2022: £51.8m, 2021: £38.2m) and depreciagted as part of property, plant and equipment depreciation.
Judgement Is required by management to ascertaln the appropricte categerles and proportion of overheads and other
expenses that are directly attributable to Instaliation of meter assets. Typically, capitalised costs will include staff costs,
and a systematic aliocation of any production averheads deemed to be directly attributable to the process of installing
ameter owned by the Group. Other general and administrative overheads, such as sales, marketing and troining costs,
are expensed directly to profit and loss;

» presentation of losses on disposal of certalin meter assets as exceptlonal items:

- as aresult of the Inherent volatllity associated with the UK smart meter rollout, and removal of traditional meter assets :
as part of this, management has taken the decislon to show losses arising on disposal of these meters — being the net i
book value fess the associated termination income received representing proceeds on disposal — as exceptionai
administrative expenses. By disciosing these amounts separately, the traditional meter asset portfolio con be betier
tracked to assist users of the financial statements to better understand the premature retirement of these revenue-
generating assets that is outside the Group's control, On disposdal, the receipt of termination income which [s recognised
as a component of the net galn ar ioss on the disposal of these meter assets, will vary depending on the energy supplier
and Is therefore not within our control. As the receipt of proceeds from disposal is Inherently volatile, aloss on disposal |
can stiil arise In certaln circumstances; and :

- the Group has continued to see a small propertion of SMETS1 meters removed from the wall. As these removals are :
attributable to the temporary Industry transition period, management has made the Judgement to recognise losses arlsing }
on the disposal of these meters as exceptional until resalution by the Enrolment and Adaption programme [s complete; and

+ identification of indicators of Impalrment of the meter asset portfolio in accordance with1AS 36 and assumptions applled
in determining the carrying velue of the portfollo of meter assets:

~ due to the uncertainties associated with the timing of the UK dormestic smart meterrollout, the expected useful life and |
carrying value of traditiona! meters requires significant judgement, as does the level of recoverability of termination income. !
These assumptions are used in denrving the deprecigtlon rates applied and the impairment calculction performed on
carrying value, For the traditional meters, as the UK smart meter rollout progresses, our portfolio of traditional meter
assetsis diminishing. It |s therefore ¢ruclal that the recaverability of the carrying value of these meter assets, recognised
in Property, plant and equipment, be assessed. The two main drivers for assessing this recoverabliity are:

1. the timing of the removals of these meters — this declision lies with the end consumer and remaovals are largely undertaken
by third parties, which mecns we have little control over the timing and quantity of these removals; and

2. the estimated future cash flows from termination income — these are derived using historcal gata and analysls around the
risk of churn between contracted and non-contracted customers. The assessment includes consideration of the extent to
which terminatlon income and future rentalincome are recelved as traditional meters continue to be removed from the wail.

In 2022, this assessment has Identified that the carrying value of the traditional meter assets portfoiio is recoverable and,
therefore, no impairment charge has been recognised (2021; £nil).

- potential indicators of impalrment have dlso been assessedin relation to our smart and I8C meters, including
consideratlon of the temporary industry transitionalissues experienced with some SMETS1 assets as detalled above,
Management hos concluded that there is no significant risk of impairment with regards to the Group's smart and ISC
meters at 31 December 2022, consistent with the pricr year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group has no key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date thot may have o significant risk of causing
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabllitles within the next financlal year.,
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Ravenue recognition
i. Metering
Meter rental

The Group acts as o gas and electricity Meter Asset Provider {MAP), providing and instaliing meters to energy suppliers on
hahnl|f nf the end FAnsLmer

As a result of the Group's assessment of contracts on implementation of IFRS 16, and any patehtial intergction with IFRS 15,
it was determined that the arrangements the Group has in place to act as MAP do not constitute o lease of the metear asset
to the energy supplier. Therefore, the related incame for the service of providing a fitted meter Is recognised in accordance
with IFRS 15,

The provision of meter assets {o energy suppliers (‘MARP services’), together with the inltial installation, 1s considered a
distinct and single performance obligation on the basis that, as MAP, the Group has an cbilgation to its customers te provide
o fitted meter, This is a separately identifiable service to which a stand-alone seiling price is typlcalty allocated. Overthe
course of the contract term, which runs in perpetulty, the Group delivers a serles of monthly services for which benefits are
simultaneously received and consumed by the customer.

Charges for MAP services are caleulated daily based on the number of Installed meters and Invoiced to customers monthly
once volidation checks have been compieted. As revenue from MAP charges is attributed to services provided dally, revenue
is always based on the octual level of service provided and, therefore, any uncertainty at the end of each reporting period is
limited to the extent that valldation checks are still being completed. Revenue is thus recognised over time based on our
right to involce and Includes contract Retail Price Index (RP) uplifts.

As d result of industry regulations, and subject to specific contract terms with a customer, the Group may be required

to make payments to customers for shortfalls Inthe level of service provided. These charges are directly related to the
sarvice being provided to the customer and thus are recognised as a reduction to revenue In the month in which the service
fallure occurred. Where service levals are set based on annual targets, charges are estimated monthly and subsequently
finglised ¢t the end of the year. Uncertainty, as it pertcins to these payments to customers, is thus typically resolved by the
end of the reporting period.

If @ MAP contract is cancelled, terminatlon fees may be levied on the energy supplier. There has been no changein the
accounting for these termination fees and they continue to be classified within Other operating Income unless they have
arisen on the joss of the meter assets, in which case they are reported within Administrotive expenses as a compenent of net
gain or loss on disposal,

if the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment recelved, then accrued Income is recognised, This Is subsequently
reclassified to receivables at the point at which the Group has an unconditional right to payment,

Asset management services

The Group provides meter asset managemernit and operations services to energy suppliers. These services are considered
o distinet performance abligation from the meter rentol on the basls that these are separatety identifiable services to which
o stand-alone selling price is allocated, and they are not necessary to bring tha meter asset Into use.

Over the course of the contract term, which can elither be fixed or in perpetulty, the Group delivers a series of monthly
services for which the benefits are simultaneousty received and consumed by a customer. Therefore, these are accounted
for as d single performance obligation.

Service charges are calculated based on the number of meters appointed and are accrued monthly. As revenue from service
charges Is attributed to services provided periodically, revenue is always based on the actuallevel of service provided and,
therefore, there is no uncertainty at the end of each reporting period. For charges Involced to customers monthly revenue is
thus recognised over time based on our right to Involce and includes contract RPI uplifts. For charges Invoiced to customers
annually in advance, including contract RP1uplifts, a contract liability is recognised and subsequently released to the Income
statemnent over the yedr on o straight-line basis, The Group uses the practical expedlent under IFRS 15 from adjusting
revenue for any significant financial components of one year or less.

The Group's meter assat mandgement contracts atso include the provision of transactional meter works. These are
considered further in section {iv] below.

If the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment received, then a contract asset s recognised. This is subsequentiy
reciassified to recelvables at the point at which the Group has an unconditional right to payment.
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Third-party mandagement services
The Group provides managernent services to a third party to whom it sold a minority of its meter asset portfollo in
Aprll 2020. These services include accounting and treqasury, portfolio asset manogement and other administrative tasks.

The various activities that make up these management services are provided to the third party on an integrated basls,
Qver the conrse nf tha contract term, which runs fun us lurkg Us there are meters within the scope of the services, the Group
dellvers a series of monthly services for which the beneflts are simuttaneously recelved and consumed by the customer.
Therefore, these dre accounted for as a single performance obligation,

Service charges are currently based on o fixed annual Fee, subject to contract RPI uplifts, and are involced to the customer
monthly, Revenue is thus recognised over time based on our right to invoice.

If the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment received, then a contract asset is recognised. This is subsequently
reclassified to receivables at the point at which the Group has an unconditional right to payment.

ii. Data services

The Group provides data coilection and aggregation services to Industrial & Commercial {I&C) electricity customers and,
through use of the ADM™ unit, to IKC gas customers, Over the caurse of the contract term, which can either be fixed orin
perpetuity, the Group dellvers a series of monthly services for which the benefits are simultaneously received and consumed
by a customer. Therefore, these are accounted for as a single performance obligation,

Service charges ore colculated based on the number of meters/ADM™ units appointed and are accrued monthly. As revenue
fram service charges is atiributed to services provided periodically, revenue is glways based on the actual level of service
provided and, therefore, there is no uncertainty at the end of each reporting period. Service charges, Including contract RPI
uplifts, are billed to clients annually in advance and therefore o contract liabiiity Is recognised tnd subseguently released to
the income statement over the year on a stralght-line basis. The Group uses the practicol expedient under IFRS 15 from
adjusting revenue for any significant financial components of one year or less.

The ADM™ device is a proprietary product for the Group and there are no other market providers of this device. A customer
cannot therefore benefit from the data services without installation, and the installation is not separately identifiable as it is
integra! to the subsequent data services. This Is therefore accounted for along with the data services as a single
performance obligation and any corresponding charges are recognised over the term of the contract.

iii. Utility connections services (gas and electricity)

Gas and electricity connectlons services are provided under fixed-prce contracts with |&C customers and can be delivered to

a single site or mulitiple sites. Whilst each service consists of multiple activities, the Group's promise in the contract is to deiiver an
Integrated end-to-end service to which the underying activities are inputs, Where services are delivered to multiple sites, and
these are substantially the sarme, a series of services is being provided. In all cases, therefore, these contracts give rise to a single
perforrmance abligation to which the fixed price is allocoted. Subsequent variations to this price, due to changesin the inputs
required, are accounted for as contract modifications and recognised on a curnulative catch-up basis.

Services are transferred over tirne on the basls that these are customised services with no alternative use and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for work completed to date.

Revenue is recegnised on the stage of completion with reference to the actual services provided as a proportion of the total
service expected to be provided under the contract, as the services can enhance a work-in-progress asset for the customer
and have no gltemative use, This s determined on ¢ contract-by-contract basis using ¢ milestone approach with reference
to the milestones set outinthe contract or otherwise agreed. Where relevant, consideration Is also given to material services
pravided between milestones. Estimotes of revehues, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if
circumstances change and any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss
Inthe period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to management.

The custormer pdys the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. In certaln circumstances the customer pays in advance
and therefore o contract flability is recognised aond subsequently released to the income statement based on the meosure
of prograss detailed above. As the contractis cancaliable at the customer’s discretion, subject to setlement for services
provided to the date of cancellation, a contract liablitty is not recegnised until the cash has been received.

if the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment received, then a contract asset is recognised. This is subsequently
reclassified to recelvables at the point at which the Group has an unconditional right to payment,

The Group utillses the practical expedient avollable under IFRS 15 for costs to obtain a contract. Commissions paid as part
of obtaining a contract are expensed as Incurred on the basis that the contract term Is typlcally less than twelve months.
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Revenue recognition continued

iv. Transdactional meter works

Transactional works, which Include emergency, adversarial and other maintenance services, and are typlcally short termin
nature, are accounted for as a separate performance obligation to asset management services (see section (i) above) an
the basis that these works are separately identifiable and can be performed by ancother party. A customer, being the energy
supplier, is legally cbligated to appoint a meter asset manager and con therefore benefit from this service inlsclation,
without the subsequent transdctional works which are [niticted on an ad-hoc basis upon demand by the customer.

In 2020, the Group also started to provide transactional meter works to the third party to whom the Group sold a minerity
of its meter asset portfolio in April 2020.

The transactlon price ailocated to transoctional works is based on stand-alone selling prices {per unit, where relevont)
and revenue is recognised at q point In time when the transaction has been completed and accepted by the customer.
This is the point at which the customer is charged for the service and a receivabie is recognised by the Group aswe have
an unconditional right to payment. The customer will settle the transaction price far these services as part of the regular
monthly billing cycle for metering and asset mandgement services,

The customer pays the fixed omount based onthe transactional services provided and this s charged once the service
has been completed and accepted by the customer.

For segmental purpases, this transactional, non-recurring revenue is recognised within asset Installation.

v, Grid-scdle batteries
Grid-scale battery assets generate revenue by providing several services,

Capacity market

SMS enters Into longer term contracts with the National Grid. During the contract petiod, which may lastfrom cne to

15 yedars, SMS's only obligation is to make itself ovailable to provide the capacity agreed in the contract when notification
is received from Natlonal Grid, Pricing is fixed at an auction.

There Is g single performance obllgatian to be avallable to provide capacity to the Natlonal Grid. Revenue is recoghised over time.

Wholesale market

5MS trades power with a counterparty on an exchange on the EPEX GB Doy Ahead and Intraday markets, with the intention
of buying power at o low off-peak brice and selling at a high peak price. All trades take pigce at spot price and there areno
forward or future contracts. All trades are settied daily.

There Is a single performance obligation for SMS to buy or sell power on the exchange. Revenue is recognised for each
transaction at a point intime,

Balancing mechanism

SMS enters Into short-termn contracts with Elexon BSC to help balance the demands of the Natlono) Grid py increasing or
decreasing generation (or cansumption), Contracts range for g length of one to 60 minutes and prices are fixed when a bid
is submitted. Elexon accents only the cheapest bids needed to balance the grid.

There is ¢ single performance obligation for SMS to Increase or decrease its battery asset output. Revenue is recognised
over time. However, due to the short-term nature of the contracts, there would be né material difference between
recognition aver time or at a point in time.

Ancillary services market
SMS enters Into contracts with the National Grid to help maintain frequency on the grid. During the contract period SM3
is required to use the grid-scale battery asset following the Grid's Instructions. The price Is fixed at auction.

Revenue is recogn!sed over time. However, due to the short-term nature of the contracts, there would be no material
difference between recognition over time or at a paintin time.

Embedded benefits
SMS enters Into contracts with the National Grid and the Distribution Network Operator under which SMS is paid based
on the armount of electricity exported during Triad or peak periods.

There is a single performance obligation to expart capacity during Triad or peak perieds. Revenue is recognised over time,
However, due to the short-term nature of the contracts, there would be no material difference between recognition over time

or ata point intime.
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Imbalance

Elexon BSC is obliged to purchase or sell electricity generated or soid in any half-hour period which is not otherwise
contrected for. SMS buys or sells power to meet its requirements for the other revenue streams. The purchase and selling
prices are at a spot price set by a formula.

There I a single per funnuce oblikgutdon far SMS to export or impert power. Revenue is recaghised for each transaction
atapeintin time,

vi, Energy management services
Energy management services provided malnly to [&C customers Include utility bureau and bill validation services, risk
management and procurement services and energy reduction and environmental manggement services,

Certain services, such as utllity buregu and bill validation, are delivered through a series of monthly services over the course
of the contract term, for which the benefits are simultaneously received and consumed by a customer. These are accounted
for as a single performance obligation. The transaction price aliccated includes a fixed monthly service chorge together with
avorlcable component for specific activities that may nat be carried out every month. As revenue from charges is attributed
to services provided monthly, revenue Is always based on the actual level of service provided and, therefore, there Is no
uncertainty at the end of each reporting period. Revenue Is thus recognised over time bused on our right to invoice.

Contracts for specialist consultancy services may include multiple projects. Where these projects are separately identifiable
within the contract and are not interrelated, they are accounted for as separate performance obligations. The transaction
price is allocated based on the stand-alone charges for each project.

Other energy reduction and environmental management services are typically longer-term, multi-site contracts dnd, therefore,
the revenue recognitionis consistent with that detailed above for utllity connections — see details in section (i) above.

vil. Assets and liabliities arising from contracts with customers

Costs to fulfil a contract

In certalin circumstances, the Group may incur costs to fulfil its ebligations under a contract once It Is obtalned, but before
transferring goods or services to the customer. These costs are assessed on a contract-by-contract basis and, where they
are considered to meet the definition of fulfilment costs under IFRS 15, they are recognised as an asset and amaortised on

a systematic basis consistent with the pattern of transfer of the services to which the asset relates.

Contract assets and liabilities
We receive payments from customers based on a billing schedule, as established in our contracts.,

The timing of revenue recognition, billing and cash collections results in:

+ billed and unbllled accounts receivable, which are recognised when our right to consideration becomes unconditionat,
ond classified as trade receivables and accrued income respectively;

+ unbilled amounts, where we have o conditionad right to consideration based on future performance, recognised as contract
assets. These amounts will be billed in accordance with the agreed-upon contraictual terms; and

+ payments received in advance of performance under o contract, recognised as contract liabilities. Contract liobilities are
recognised as revenue as (ar when) we perform under a contract.

For project-based services, work In progress is billed in accordance with the agreed-upon contractual terms with the

customer. We typically receive interim payments as work progresses, which ¢an give rise to a billed or unbllied accounts

receivable, where our right to payment is unconditional, or a contract asset, where revenue has been recognised based

on pregress completed but our right to payment is still conditional on future performance. For some contracts, we may .
be entitied to receive advance payments, We recognise a contract fiabllity for these advance payments in excess of _
revenue recognised. |

Cancellation terms can vary but typically include provisions that allow the customer to terminate the contract ot their
discretion subject to a penalty or settlement of amounts for work completed prior to termination. Contracts allow both
parties to cancel without penaity in the case of amaterial breach of contract.
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Accounting Policies continued

Exceptional items and separately disclosed items

The Group presents as exceptional items on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome those itfems
of income and expense which, because of the material nature or expected infrequency of the events givingrise to them,
merit saparate presentation to allow shareholders to better understand the elements of financial performeonce in thatyear
facilitating comparison with prior periods and to better assess trends in financial performance.

Termination fea income is reported as part of Other aperatingincome in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
incame given its materiality and nature. Any termination fee income arlsing on the (0ss of meter assets is reported within
Administrative expenses as a component of net galn or loss on disposal. Termination fee Income does not arlse frem the
princlpal activities of the Group. Any such gain or loss on disposal relating to traditional meter assets and SMETS1 meter
assetsis disclosed as an exceptional item.

Government grants

Grants from governments are recognised at their fair value where there is regsanable assurance that the grant willbe
received and the Group will comply with ati attached conditions, usually on submission of a valid claim for payment.
Government grants relating to costs ore deferred and recognised in profit or l0ss over the period necessary to rnatch them
with the costs that they are intended to compensdate. Government grants relating to capital expenditure are Included in
llabllities as deferred Income and they are credited to profit or loss on a stralght-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets. Amounts credited 1o prefit or loss are recognised as part of Other operating income In the consclidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The R&D expenditure credit (RDEC) scheme Is a UK Government tax Incentive which allows gualifying companies to clalm
RED expenditure credits (RDECS) equal to 12% of their qualifying research and development expenditure. The credit is
taxable at the corporation tax rate and is included in the company's taxable trading profits. RDECs are accounted for by
the Group in sccordance with [AS 20 Government Grants and recognised within Other operating income In the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Outstanding omounts recelvable dre recognised In the consolldated balance sheet
within Trade and other receivables.

Financial assets
The Graup's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recelvables, Investments consist
of an Immaterial debt investment held at amortised cost.

Classification
The Group classifles its financial assets In the followlng meaosurement categories:

« those to be meosured subseguently at fair value, either througn other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or througn profit
orloss (FVPL); and

+ those to be measured at amortised cost.,

The clessification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For Investments in equity Instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
Irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI. The Group reclassifies
debt Investments when and only when its business modet for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Financlal assets are initlally recognised on trade date, Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financlal assets have explred or have been transferred and the Group has transferrad substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initlal recognition, the Group measures a financial asset atits fair value plus, In the case of afinanclal asset not at FYPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL dre expensed In profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initlally ot the [FRS 15 transaction price and subsequently medsured at amortised
cost. They are generally due for settlerment within 30 days end are therefare all classified as current. Due to their short-term
nature, carrying value Is considered to approximate fair value.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Refer to accounting policy on Cash and cash equivalents.,

Impairment

The Group assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortlsed cost and FVOCI. The Impairment methodology applied depends on whether thare has been o significant Increase
in credit risk. For trade receivablas and accrued Incame, which include contract assets and bifled and unbilled receivables
grising from contracts with customers, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognitlon of the receivables.

Trade recelvables and accrued incorne are written off, and derecognised, where there Is no reasenable expectation of recovery,
indicators thatthere Is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the customer cedsing trading and
entering adrinistration with no expected recovery from the Suppiler of Last Resort process, or a failure by the customer to
make contractual payments for a period of greater than or equal to 365 days past due. Indicators are assessed on anindividual
customer basis. Impairment losses, including the ioss allowance, on trade receivables and accrued income are presented within
Administrative expenses. Subseguent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line itern.

Further information about the impairment of trade receivabies ond accrued income, and the Group's exposure to credit risks,
con be found in note 23.

Financial liabilities
The Greup's financial liakilitles include trade and other payables, bank loans and overdrafts, and [egses.

Classification
Financial liabllitles are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and borrowings,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial abilities at initial recognition.

Recognition
Allfinancial llabilities are recognised Initially at Fair value and, in the case of bank loans, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Measurement

Trade and other payables and bank overdrafts

Trade and other payables, and overdrafts, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payrnent is not due within twelve months ofter
the reporting period, Due to thelr short-term nature, carrylng value is considered 1o approximate fair value,

Bank loans
Bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Interest expense on bank loans is recognised in the consclidated
income statement using the effective interest rate method.

Transaction costs on revolving credit facilitles are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it Is probable
thot some or all the facllity wilf be drawn dawn. In this case, the fee is deferred within Other assets until the drawdown occurs,
Upon drawdown of the first loan, these costs are reclassified from Other assets to Bank loans and subsequently amortised
over the term of the facllity.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheetwhen the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled ar
has expired. The difference between the corrying amount of d financial liabllity that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, inctuding any non-cash assets transferred, or liabilities assumed, Is recognised in
profit or foss as Other income or Finance costs.

If a facility is modified, then it s assessed whether the madification is significant enough to constitute an extinguishment either
mudfitatively or quantitatively (defined as a change inthe present value of cash flows, including any transaction costs pakd,
exceeding 10%). if a medificationis consldered on extinguishment of the Initial loon, the new modified loan is recorded at Fair
value and a gain/loss s recognised immediately in the consolidated income staterment for the difference between the carrying
amount of the old loan and the new loan. Any costs incurred are recognised In profit or loss. Where o modification is not
significant enough to be an extinguishment, the cash flows under the modified loan are redlscounted at the original effective
interest rate and an immediate galn or loss is recognised accordingly In the consolldated income staterment on the date of
modification. Any costs incurred are recognised over the remaining petiod of the modified debt, within the effective Interest rate,

Borrowings are dassified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for ot least twelve months after the reporting period.
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Offsetting of finoncial instruments

Financial assets and financlal ligkilities are offset, and the net amount reparted in the consolidated statement of financiai
pasition, if, and enly If, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amaounts and there is an intention
to settle on o net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the licbilities simultaneously.

Leases

Group as lessor

The arrangements the Group has in place to act as Meter Asset Provider do not constitute a lease of the meter asset to the
energy supplier. SMS controls the meter as the Group retains legal title and obtalns substantially all the economic banefit.
The assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment when in use under contract with an energy suppllerandthe
related income for the service of providing a fitted meter is recognised in occordance with IFRS 15, Further information about
the Group's accounting policy for revenue recognition Is given above, and for property, plant and equipment in nate 11.

Group as lessee

The Group leases land, offlces, warehouses and motor vehicles. For offices, warehouses and motor vehicles rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of throe to ten yeats. For land, rental contracts are typically made for fixed perlods of
20to 40 vears. Contracts may have extension or early termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain g wide range of different terms and condltions. The lease agreements do hot Impose dany covenants,

but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding fability at the date at which the leased assetls available
for use by the Group.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive (o
exercise an extension optlon, or not exercise a termination option, Extension options (or periods after termination optlons)
are only included in the lease term If the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The lease termis
reassessed If on option Is actuglly exercised {or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise {or not exercisa) it.
The assessment of regsonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances oceurs,
which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

Assets and liablfiities arising from a jease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:
s fixed payments (including in-substance fixed poyments), less any lease incentlves receivobig;

« variable lcase payments that are based on anindex or @ rate, initially measured using the index or rate ds at the
commencement date;

» amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,
= the exercise ptice of a purchase option If the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that optlon; and
« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option,

Lease payments to be made under recsonably certain extension options are aiso inciuded in the measurement of the ifabiliity.

The lease payments are dlscounted using the interest rate implicit in the ledse. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
onasset of similar value in g similar economic environment with similor terms ond conditions, The weighted overoge lessee's

incremental borrowlng rate applied to the kease liabilities at 31 December 2022 was 5% (31 December 2021: 4.7%).

The Group s exposed to potential future increases In varioble lease payrments based on an index or rate, which are not
included In the lease llabliity untll they take effect, When adjustments to lease payments based on anindex or rate take
effect, the lease liability Is recssessed and adjusted agalnst the right-of-use asset,

Lease payments are allocoted between principal and finance cost. The finance ¢cost s charged to profit or loss overthe
ledse period s0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the rernaining balkance of the licbility for each perlod.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

+ the amount of the Initial measurement of lease liability;

= any lease payments mode at or before the commencement dote less any iease incentlves recelved;

« any initial direct costs; and

» restoration costs.
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The Group is requlred to restore the land leased as part of its grid-scale battery storage business, and ¢ertain leased warehouses,
fo the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease at the end of the respective lease terms, Under IFRS 16, the
estimated fiability for such restoration costs is recognised ds o provision under IAS 37 at Initial recognition and Is not included as
part of the lease lability. As right-of-use ossets are measured subsequent to Initial recognition using a cost model, any change in
the estimate of such costs after initial recognition is added to, or deducted from, the cost of the right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are generalty depreciated aver the shorier of the asset’s useful life and the lease term, on o straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line busis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are ieases with alease term of twelve months or less. Low-vaiue assets comprisc
IT equipment and small items of office furniture, where the value of the asset an inception s less than c.US$5,000.

Payments for services are separated from the lease components of o contract and accounted for as an administrative exponse.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resutt of a past event, it is probable
that anautflow of resources embadylng econamic benefits will be requlred to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognised as o provision Is the best estirmate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting periad, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the cbligation,

[fthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
adiscount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money. Where discounting s used, the Increase
inthe provision due to the possoge of time is recognised within finance costs.

Provisions are split between amounts expected to be seitled within 12 months of the balance sheet date {current) and amounts
expected to be settied later {non—current).

Decommilssioning and restoration provisions

Provisions for decommissioning and restoration cosis arise Inconnection with the Group's grid-scale bottery storage business,
and with certain feased warehouses. The Group Is reguired to restore the land leased as part of its grid-scale battery storage sites,
and certain leased warehouses, to the condition required by the terms and condlitfons of the lease at the end of the respective
lecise terms (which range between three to ten vears for warehouses, and 20 to 40 years for kand), The amount recognised is the
present value of the estimoted future expenditure determined in occordance with current conditions, requirements, and price
levels, discounted over the useful economic fife of the asset where appropriate. The effects of changes resulting from revisions to
the timing or amount of the original estimate of the provision are reflected on a prospective basls, generally by adjustment to the
carrying armount of the related right-of-use asset recorded within property, plant and egquipment.

An amount equivdlent to the decommissioning provision is recognised as part of the corresponding right-of-use asset, whichls
subsequently depreciated ot the samae rate as the rest of the asset. Other than the unwinding of discount on or utiflsation of the
provislorn, any change in present value of the estimated expenditure Is reflected as an adjustment to the provision and the
corresponding asset.

Provisions qlso Include the estimated cost to decommission grid-scole battery assets at the end of their life, These costs have
been capltalised as part of the related asset within property, plant and equipment, and dre depreciated over the life of the asset.
Changes in the provision arising from revised estimotes that relote to the asset are recorded as adjustments to the carrving vaiue
ofthe asset.

Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acguired. The cansideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

« falr values of the assets transferred;

« ligbllitles Incurred to the farmer owners of the acquired business;

« gquity Interests issued by the Group;

« fair value of any asset or liabllity resulting from a contingent conslderation arrangement; and

+ fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifioble assets acqulred and liabilides and contingent liabilities assumed In o business combingtion are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest

inthe acquired entity on an acguisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the gcquired entity’s net identifiable assets,
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Business combinations continued
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

« consideratlon transfarred;

« amount of any non-controfling interest in the acquired entity; and

= acquisition-date falr value of any previous equity interest In the acquired entity

ovar the falr value of the net identifiatle assets acquired is recorded as goodwlll, If those amounts are less than the falr value
of the net Identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference Is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase. Where settlement of any part of cash consideration Is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to thelr present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's Incrementdl borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtalned from an indepandent financler under comparable terms and condltions.

Contingent canslderation is ciassifled either ds equity or a financial llability, Amounts classified as o financialiability
are subsequently remecsured to fair vaiue, with changes in fair vafue recagnised in profit or loss.

If the business cormbinatlon is achleved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the aeguirer's previously held equity
Interest In the acyuiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, Any gains or losses arising from such
remeaqsurement are recognlsed in profit or loss.

Investments in associates

An associate Is on entity in which the Group has significunt Influence, but not control or joint contral, over the financial and
operating policles. Interests In associates dre accounted forusing the equlty method, They are initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to Initial recognitian, the consolldated financlal statements include the Group's
share of the profit or ioss and other comprehensive income of the associated undertakings, untll the date on which
signiflcant Influence ceases.

Asset acquisitions
Asset acqulsitions Include the acauisition of a group of assets that dees not constitute a business.

The relevant IFRS is applied when accounting for the acquisition of an individual asset.

Where the gcquisitlon Involves a group of assets and liabilitles, the individugl assets and liabilities acquired are Identifled
and recognised. The cost of the transaction s allocated to the assets acquired, and llabllities assumed, based on their
relgtive falr values Gt the date of purchase, No goodwill arises on the transaction.

The cost of the transaction is measured at the fair value of the consideration transferred at the dcquisition date. This can
include cash payments, financial liabilities incurred, equity interests issued by the Group and the fair value of any asset or
liabllity arising from a contingent or deferred consideraton arrangement. Non-monetary assets might ke exchanged as
part of the consideration for the transaction. The cost of an item acauired in exchange for o non-monetary asset or assets
Is generally measured at fair value.

Contingent canslderation Is classified either as equity ar a fingncial Hability. Amounts classified as a financlal liabllity
are subsequently remedasured to fair volue, with changes in falr value recognised In profit or loss.

Transaction costs are capitalised as a component of the cost of the assets acguited.

Research and development
Expenditure on pure and applied research activities is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprahensive income
as an expense os Incurred.

Expenditure on product and system development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feaslble and the Group Intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development;
if future economic benefits are prebable; and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during Its development, The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads.

Capitalised development expenditure is stated gt cost less accumulated amartisation and accumulated impaiment [osses.
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Amortisation is calculated when the asset is available for use, so us to write off its cost, less its estimated residual value, over
the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

+ Development of ADM™ units 10% on cost, straight line
» Development of Internally generated Information technology systems ('IT development? 20% cind 5Q% on cost,
stralght line

Capitailsed development expenditure on ADM™ units is disclosed within Property, plant and equipment as part of Meter
assets and ameortised over the same usefut economic life as that applled to the tangible ADM™ unit.

Capitalised IT development expenditure is disclosed within Intangible assets as part of IT development and software,

All costs capitalised within this category relate to information technology and, in general, are amaortised over an economic
life of five years. A new systerm was integrated and brought into use during 2020 and associated development costs were
amortised over the contract term of two years.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately from third parties consist of software costs, including licence fees. These are
recognised qs assets, measured at cost and classified as part of IT development and software.

Internally generoted intangible assets relate to IT development and are recognised as part of IT development and software.
Refer to further detalls in the research and development accounting policy above,

intonglble assets acquired as part of a business combination are recognised outside goodwill if the asset is separable
or arises from contractual or other legal rights, They are recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition drd are
subseguently amortised on a straight line basis over thelr estimated useful lives.

Fallowing inltlal recognition, intangible assets are measured dt cost ot the date of acquisition less any amortisation and any
impalrment losses. Amortisation costs are Included within Administrative expenses disciosed in the consclidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets are amortised over their useful lives as follows:
» IT development and software 20% and 50% on cost, straight line
» Intanglbles recognised upon acquisition:

- Customer contracts 20% on cost, straight IIne

- Trademarks 33% on cost, strafght ine

Useful lives are examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the identiflable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree at the dote of ccquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsiciaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
Is not amortised but is tested onnualty for impalrment, or if there is anindication of impalrment, and is carried at cost less
accurmuiated impairment [osses. Impairment losses are not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash—-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impalrment testing. The allocation is made to those
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwlll arose. The units
or groups of units are identified dt the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

I the recoverable amount of anasset (or CGU} Is estimated 1o be less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable omount. Animpalrment foss Is recognised gs an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) Is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but s0 that the Increqased carrying amaount does not exceed the camrylng amaount

that would have been determined had no impairment 10ss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) In prior years. Areversal
of an impaiment loss s recognised as income immediately.

Contingent consideration is recorded initially at fair value and classified as equity or a financial ligbility. Contingent
conslderatlon classified as equity is not remeasured, but contingent consideration classified as a financial llability is
supsequently remeasured at falr vaiue through profit or loss,
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Goodwill continued

Adjustments to provisional fair vatues of identifiable assets and llabilities {(and to estimates of contingent consideration)
arising from additional Information, obtalned within the measurement period (no more than cne year from the acquisition
date}, about facts and circumstances existing at the acqgulsition date, ore adjusted against goodwill. Other adjustments
to provislonod fair values or changes in contingent consideration are recognised through profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At edch reporting date, the Group reviews the carrylng amounts of its property, plont and eguipment and intangibles to
determine whether there Is any indication that those assets have suffered animpalimment loss. If any such incicotion exists,
the recoverabie amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the Impalrment loss {if any). Where the
asset does not generate cosh flows that are Independent from other ossels, the Group estimates the recoverable omount
of the CGL to which the asset beiongs.

The recaverable amecunt is the highet of falr value lass costs to sell and value inuse. In assessing value in use, the astimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have been adjusted.

Animpairment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Property, plant and equipment
Progerty, plant and equlpment 15 stated at cost, net of accumulated deprecidation and any accumulated impalment iosses.

Praperty, plant and equipment [s Inttlally recorded at cost. Such cost Includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant
and equipment. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are regulred to be replaced in intervals, the Group
recognlses such parts as individual assets with specific usefu! lves and depreclation. Pursuant to the acquisitlon of the meter
installation businesses on 18 March 2016 certain Internal costs to the Group are also caplialised where they are demaonstrated
as belng directly attributable to bringlng the meter assets into their usable condition.

Acquired development and construction rights together with directly attributable costs incurred In relation to the construction
of the grid-scole battery stordge sites are accounted for under |AS 16: Propertty, plant and equipment. These are recorded at
cost and classified as part of Assets under construction within Property, plant and equipment, Whiist under construction no
depreciation|s recorded.

All other repalr and mdintenance costs are recognised in the consolldated statement of comprehensive Income as Incurred,

For egch asset depreciation is calaulated using the stralght-line method to allocate Its cost, net of its residual value
if applicable, over its estimeated useful [ife as follows:

« Freehold property 2%
« Short-leasehold property Shorter of the iease term or 15% and 20%
+ Meter assets Smart meters and Industrdal & Commercial meters 5%

ADM™ unlts 10%
Traditional meters to 1 Juiy 2025

+ Plant and machinery 33%
« Fixtures, fittings and equipment  20% and 33%
» Mator vehicles 25%
« Grid-scale assets Shorter of the lease term or 2.5% to 10%
Battery assets 10%
« Right-of-use assets Shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term

Anitemof property, plant and equipment and any significant part initiaily recognised Is derecagnised upon dispasal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset) is included In the
consalidated statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised. The asset’'s residuai velues, useful lives
and methads of depreciation are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

See the Leases accounting policy for further detalls on the recagnition and meoasurement of right-of-use assets
under IFRS 16.
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Inventories

Finished goods and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net realisabie value. Cost comprises direct matericls
and purchases of meter assets and ADM™ units at cost. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts, Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course

of business less the estimated ¢costs necessary th mnke the sale,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cosh and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financicl position comprises cash at bank and In hond and short-
term deposits with on original maturity of three months or less, For the purpase of the consolidated staternent of cash flows,
cash and casn equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrofts.

Restricted cash

Restricted cashinthe consolidated staternent of financiai position comprises amounts collected from customers on benhalf
of a third party, as part of @ services arrangement, that have not yet been allocated. These monies are held In atrust
account whilst awaiting allocation and, per the terms of the account, cannot be used by the Group to meet other short-term
cash commitments, They have thus been disclosed separately on the statement of financial position.

Pension costs
The Group operates a defined contribution penslon scheme for employees, The assets of the scheme are held separately from
thosea of the Group. The annual contributions payable are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.

Share-based payments

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment has been applied to all grants of equity instruments. The Group lIssues equity-settled
share-based payments to certain employees under the terms of the Group’s various employee share and option schemes.
Equity-settied share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of the grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
anestimate of the shares that will ultimately vest.

Share capital
Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly aitributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options
are shown in equity as d deduction from the procecds,

Own share reserve

The Group offers g Share Incentive Plan for all employees and has established a trust to facllitate the delivery of SMS shares
under this plan, The holdings of this trust Incliude shares that have not vested unconditionally to employees of the Group.
These shares are recorded at cost and are ¢lassified as own shares. The cost to the Company of acquiring these own shares
held in trust is shown as a deduction from shareholders’ equity.

Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised in the accounting period inwhich the dividends are paid.

Taxation

Tax currently poyable is based on the taxable profit for the year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.
Toxoble profit differs from accounting profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxaple or deductible. The Group's liabiiity for current tax is measured using tox rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax [s the tax expected ko be pavable or recoverable ontemporary differences between the carrylng amount

of assets and liakiiities In the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used inthe computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax is recognised In respect of all temporary
differences that have criginated but not reversed dt the balance sheet date, where trgnsactions or events that result in
anobligation to pay more tax inthe future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the perlods in which the asset or liabllity is settled based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted ar substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. it is recognisedin the income
statement except when it relgtes to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, such as share-based
payments, Inthis case, the deferred tax Is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabile that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. Their corrying amount is reviewed ot each balance sheet date on the same basis.
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Taxation continued
Deferred tax ligbiities are recognised for ait temporary differences, except in respect of:
« temporary differences arlsing frorm the initial recognition of goodwill or an gsset or ligbllity in o transoction thot Is not
a business combinatlon and at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« temporary differences associoted with investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences cun be cantrolled and it Is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enfarceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation gquthority, Current tax assets and tox ligbilltles
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to ¢ffset and intends elther to settle on a net basis, or to redlise
the asset and setile the llability simultaneously.

Standards agnd interpretations

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standargs and amendments for the first time for its annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2022:

Standard cr inkarpretation Effective date

IFRS 3 ([amendment) Business Cormbinations Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 Jonuory 2022
1AS 16 [amendment) Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds Before Intended Use 1 January 2022
IAS 37 (omendment) Provisions, Contingent Liabllities, Contingent Assets, Onerous 1 Jonuary 2022

Contracts — Cost of Fuffiling a Contract

The amendments listed above did not have any material impact on the amaounts recoghised i prior petiods or the cuirent
period and are not expected to affect future periods significantly.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Cartain new accounting standards and interpretations have been pubiished that are not mandatory for 31 Decamber 2022
reporting periods and have not been early-adopted by the Group. The amendments te [AS 12 Income Taxes, regarding
deferred tax reloted to ossets and liabilitles arising from g single transaction, will apply ta the Group as a lessee under
IFRS 16. These amendments are effective for periods beginning on or ofter 1 January 2023 and thelr potentlal effects are
under conslderation, Al other standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods, or onforeseeable future tronsactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1 Segmental reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organised into three core divisions, as follows:

« Asset management, which comprises regutated management of gas and electric meters, ADM™ units and energy data
assets within the UK

v Asaetinalullulion, which comprises Instollation of domestle and [&C gas meters and electricity meters throughout the UK; and
» Energy management, which comprises the bullding and operation of grid-scole batteries, the provision of energy
consuitancy services and the management of distributed energy resources (DER).

For the purpose af making decislons ahout resource allacation and performance assessment, it Is the operating results of
the three core divisions listed above that are monltored by management and the Group's chief operating decislon-maket,
being the SMS Board. It Is these divisions, therefore, that are deflned as the Group's reportable operating segments.

Segrment performance is mainly avaiuated based on grass profit.

The following segment information is presented in respect of the Group's reportable segments together with odditional
balonce sheet information:

Asset Asset Energy “Total
management Installotion management  Unallocoted opearatlons
31 Decembar 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £7000
Segment revenue 92,815 83,752 12,213 - 188,780
Inter-segment revenue - (53,260) — - (53,260}
Revenue from external customers 92,815 30,492 12,213 - 135,520
Cast of sales (35,698)  (23,530) (6,270) —  {65,498)
Segment gross profit 57,117 6,942 5,943 - 70,022
Other operdting costs/income - - 611 {36,204) (35,593)
Depreciation - {69) (240) (3.232) {3,541}
Amortisation of Intanglbles {1,828) - {20) (2,304} (4,152}
Profit/{less) from operatlons —
pre-exceptional operating ltems 55,289 4,893 8,294 {41,740) 26,736
Exceptional ltems (operating) {5,789 {30} - {827 {6,646)
Profit/(loss) from operations 49,500 6,863 6,294 {42,567 20,090
Share of loss of associate (186)
Net finance costs: other (3,949)
Profit/{loss) before tax 15,955
Tax expense (1,084)

Profit for year 14,871
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1 Segmental reporting continued

Assat Asset Energy TFotal

monageament instollation management  Unallocated operadons
31 December 2021 £000 £000 £'000 €000 £000
Segment revenue 82,828 74,208 3,620 - 160,656
Inter-segment revenue - (52,1768} - - (52,1706}
Revenue from extemal customers 82,828 22,032 3,620 - 108,480
Cost of sales (31,47%) (14,081} (2,754} - (48,316)
Segment gross profit — pre-exceptional
cost of sales 51,349 7,251 864 - 60,164
Exceptiondal items {cost of sales) - (829) — - (829}
Segment gross profit 51,349 7122 864 - 52,355
Other operating costs/income — - 1,256 (33,373) (32,117)
Depreciation - {194 - (3,797} (3,993)
Amortisation of intangibles {1,725) - {31} (2,304) {4,060)
Profit/(loss) from operations —
pre-exceptlonal operating items 49,624 6,926 2,089 (39,474) 19,165
Excaptional items (operating) {6,213) - - 5484 (5,649)
Profit/{loss) from operations 43,411 4,926 2,089 (38,910 13,516
Net finance costs: other {3,481)
Net finance costs: exceptional (1,742)
Profit/{loss) before tax 8,293
Tax expense (4,501}
Profit for yeor 3,792

Inter-segment revenue relates to Installation services provided by the asset Installation segment to the osset management

segment,

Depreciation associated with meter assets in the asset management segment and grid-scale battery dssets inthe energy

management segment has been reported within Cost of sales os these ossets drrectly driva revenue (see note 3.

Allmaterial operations are based in the UK and revenue generated in the UK, Followlng the acquisition of Sola Energy
Limlted In 2019, a small minorlty of operations are based In the Republic of lreland.

The Group has twe major customers that each generated 10% or more of total Group turnover, as listed below by segment:

2022 2024
£'000 E'000

Customer 1 = Asset management 17,574 12,647
Customer 1 — Asset installation 5,052 2,644
Customer 2 — Asset manogement B,0556 8900
Customer 2 — Asset Installation 8,784 8,025
30,466 32,214
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Asset Asset Energy Total
managoernent instokation monogement  Unaliocotod cperations
31Dacember 2022 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Assets reported by segment
Intangible assets 13,550 3,497 3,161 5,624 25,832
Property, plant and equipment 429,709 71 95,225 8,235 533,240
Investrent In assoclate - - 1,940 - 1,940
Trade and other receivobles — non-current - - 12,347 - 12,347
Inventaries 37,136 302 - - 37438
Contract assets - 10 277 - 287
480,395 3,880 112,950 13,859 611,084
Assets not by segment 86,278
Total dssets 697,562
Liabilities by segment
Contract liabilities 1,518 1,805 8o — 3,403
Lease llabllities - - 8,405 3,956 12,3561
Provlisions - - 1,943 70 2,033
Other liablllties 406 - 2,062 - 2,668
2,124 1,805 12,510 4,026 20,465
Liabilities not by segment 143,411
Total liabilitles 163,876
Asset Assot Energy Tota
management Instaliation  monagement Unallocatad opeyations
31 December 2021 £000C E'000 £'0C0 £°000 E'000
Assets reported by segment
Intangibkle assets 11,540 3,497 2,497 7.929 25,463
Property, plant and equipment 366,702 128 38,868 10,203 415,901
Inventories 22,763 215 2 - 22,980
Contract assets - 46 - - 46
Qther assets (bank loans) 2,201 - - - 2201
403,206 3,886 41,367 18,132 466,591
Assets not by séghent 166,646
Total assats 633,237
Liabillties by segment
Contract liabflities 1,527 2,084 121 - 3,732
Lease llabilities - - 4,060 4,513 8573
Other liabilities - — 638 - 638
Other l[ong-term liobllities — - 1,473 75 1,548
1627 2,084 6,292 4588 14,491
Liabilitfes not by segment 64,956
Total fabHities 79447

Assets not by segment include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvables and investments,

Ligbilities not by segment Include trade and other payables and deferred tax llabllities, and In 2022 akso include bank loans.
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1 Segmental reparting continued

Additlons to non-current assets within edch segment are listed below.

Asset Asset Energy Total
monoagemaent Installotion monagement  Unallocated operations
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Additions to non-current assets
2022 106,626 14 43,003 2,263 151,906
2021 84,779 ?0 27,720 3,686 116,275
2 Revenue from contracts with customers
{a} Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
Segment revenue by type of service deliverad and hy timing of revenue recognition is as follows:
Asget Asset Energy Total
management ingtallatlon management opearations
Year ended 31 Decembaer 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Major service lines
Metering 80,634 - — 80,634
Data management 12,181 - - 12,181
Utility conngctions - 7,429 — 7,129
Transactlonal meter works - 23,05¢% — 23,059
Grid-scale batteries — - 7,211 7,231
Energy managenent - 304 5,002 5,306
92,815 30,492 12,213 135,520
Timing of revenue recoghition
Services transferred at a point in time - 23,059 1,533 24,592
Services transferred over time 92815 7433 10,680 110,928
92815 30,492 12,213 135820
Asset Asset Enargy Totat
management insteiiation  monagemant operatons
Year ancled 31 Decembar 2021 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Major service lines
Metering 74,358 - - 74,358
Ddata manggement 8,470 - - 8,470
Utillty connections - 5852 - 5,852
Transactional meter works — 15,649 - 15,649
Energy management - 531 3,620 4,151
82,628 22,032 3,620 108,480
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point intime - 15,649 - 15,649
Services transferred over time 52828 6,383 3,620 92,381
82828 22,032 3.620 108,480
(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers:
2022 2021
€000 £000
Current contract assets 287 46
Total contract dssets 287 46
Current contract llabilities 3,403 3,732
Total contract iabllities 3,403 3732

Trade receivables and unbilled receivables are disclosed in note 14,
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Slgnificant changes In contract ossets and liabllities
Contract assets and controct liabillties have not changed significantly, and movements reflect the general timing of revenue
recognltion and status of services in progress ot the end of the year.

Revenue recognised In relation to contract liabilities
Tha following table shows how 1 el uf Lig revienue recognised in the current period relates to carded-forward contract liabllities:

2022 2021
£:000 £000
Revenue recognised that was Included in the contract liability balance
ot the beginning of the period 3,107 2,636

No revenue was recognlsed in 2022 In relation to performance obligatlons satlsfied in previous periods.,

Transaction price for which performcance obligations not satistied

All our utilitles connections ond energy management contracts are either for periods of one year or less or are bilied
perlodicaily based on time and resources Incurred, or other unit megsures. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price
dgilocated to these performence obligations unsatisfled at the end of the reporting perlod Is not disclosed.

3 Profit from operations

2021

2022 {restated}

£'000 £000
Profit from operations is stated after (charging)/crediting:
Cost of sales:
Direct staff and subcontractor costs {31,207} [22,338)
Depreciction of meter assets {28,340) (24,719)
Depreclation of grid-scale assets {994) -
Inventory costs {3,316) (925}
Short-term lease expense - restated? (1,641) {264)
Total cost of sdles (before exceptional items) (65,498) (48,3106)
Administrative expenses:
Staff costs {20,924) {17,842)
Depreciation:
—owned qssets (2,477) (3,087}
- leased assets (1,064) {908)
Armortisation of Intangibles - (4,152) (4,040}
Auditor's remuneration {note 3a) (405) {392}
Loss on disposal (2,957} (2,457)
Low-vdiue lease expense (37 (29)
Research and development casts (55) {39)
Other aperating charges {13,171} {13,054)
Totol administrative axpenses (hefore exceptional items) {45,222) (41,866}
Exceptional tems (note 3b) {6,646) {6,478)
Qther operating income (note 3¢) 1,936 1,696
Total operating costs - {115,430) (94,964)

1 Short—term lease experse refating to vans has been reclassified from Administrative expenses to Cost of sales in ine with current year disclasure.




150 Smart Metering Systems pl¢ Atnuai report and accounts 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 Profit from operations continued
(o) Auditor's remuneration
Auditar’s remuneration can be analysed as:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Audit of the parent company and consolidated financial stotements 141 133
Audit of the fnancial statements of the Company's subsidiaries 234 229
Other services — audit-related ussurance services 30 30

405 392

{b) Exceptional items

2022 2021

£000 E'000
Exceptional operating items
l.osses on the traditional and SMETS1 meter portfolio {5,716} (8,906}
Acquisition-related costs (205) (307)
Costs attributable to COVID-19 - (265)
Other non-recurring profassional fees (728) —

(6,648) (6,478)

Exceptional finance items

Facility fees : - (1,742)
- (1,742)
Total exceptiohal ltems (6,664) (8,220)

In 2021 excaptiondl finance costs of £1,742,000 comprised the acceleration of unameortised arrangement fees relating to the
existing facility of £1,506,000 together with £236,000 of legal and professional fees gttributable to the extinguishment.

The tox effect of exceptlonal items charged in 2022 [s a credit of £1,473,000 (202 1: credit of £1,978,000).

{c) Other operating income

2022 207

£'000 £'000

Termination fee lncome -— 103
Government grant income 891 1,255
Other income 1,045 338
1,936 1,696

©Of the government grant income of £891,000(2021: £1,255,000) recognised in the year ended 31 December 2022, £280,000
relates to RDECs (2021: £489,000) which are detalled In the Accounting policies. A further £611,000 (2021: £766,000) relates
to grant income received on government-funded energy efficiency projects within the energy management business.

4 Particulars of employees
The average number of staff employed by the Group during the financial year, including Executive Directors, by activity was:

2022 2021

Numbar Number

Administrative staff 839 4B8
Operational staff 729 548
Sdles staff & 5
1T staff as 81
Directors {excluding 4 (202 1: 4) Non-executive Directors) 2 3

1,361 1,125
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The aggregate payroll costs of the employees were:
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2022 2021
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 58,823 42,973
Soclal security costs 5,050 4,694
Stoff penslon costs 1,426 1,365
Share-based payment {note 28) 2,612 841
Director pension costs 24 21
47,935 49,804
5 Finance costs ond finance income
2022 2021
E'000 £'000
Finance costs
Bank loans and overdrofts 3,833 3132
Lease liabillties 552 75
Unwind of discount on liabilities 19 —
Forelgn exchange {goln)/1oss on intro-group borrewings (134) 281
Total pre-exceptional finance costs 4,273 3,488
Exceptional finonce costs —_ 1,742
Total flnance costs 4,273 5,230
Finance income
Rank interest recelvable 324 7
Total finance income 324 7
6 Taxation
2022 200
£'000 E'000
Analysis of charge in the vear
Current tax:
Current income tax expense 53 93
Adjustment to tax charge In respect of previous pericds 2 -
Total current Income tax 55 @3
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of tempaorary differences 1,522 2,087
Adjustment to tax charge [n respect of prior petiads (293) (127}
Adjustment attributable te change in tax rates - 2,448
Tax an profit 1,084 4501
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& Taxation continued

The charge for the period can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidatec statement of comprehensive Income as follows:

2022 2021
. £000 £7000
Praofit before tax 1h,¥55 ,4v5
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% {2021: 19.00%) 3,031 1,576
Expenses not deductible for tox purposes 277 i71
Income not taxable {28) -
Impact of super-deduction permanent benefit {2,294) -
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous perlods (291) (127}
Impact of deferred tax not recognised 47 {99}
Impact of aversecds tax rates 25 24
Change In tax ratet 317 2,956
Tax expense In the Income stgtement 1.084 4,501
1 Sae note 22 for further detalls.
Current tax credit through equity in the year was £nll (2021; £nil).
7 Earnings per share
The coiculation of exrnings per share (EPS] is based on the following data and number of shares:
2022 202
£°000 E:000
Profit for the year used for calculation of basic EPS 14,871 3,792
Numkber of shares 2022 2024
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic EPS 133,241,113 118330817
Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares:
—ghare optlens 615,969 641,710
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpases of diuted EPS 133,857,082 118972527
ERS:
— baslc (pence) 11.16 320
—diluted (pence) 1111 319
8 Dividends
Year Year
Year ended Year ended
endad 3I1DCecember ended 31 Dacamnber
%i Decambar 2022 3YDecember 2021
2022 Per share 2021 Pershare
£'000 (pence) £'000 {pence)
FY 2020 second interim dividend paid - - 7,069 62500
FY 2020 third interim dividend paid - - 7,065 6.2500
FY 2020 final dividend paid - - 7107 6.2500
FY 2021 first interim dividend paid - - 7829 6.8750
FY 2021 second interim dividend paid 9,166 6.8750 - -
Fy 2021 third Interim dividend paid 9,169 6.8750 - —
FY 2021 final dividend paid 9,170 6.8750 - -
FY 2022 first interim dividend paid 10,087 7.5625 — -
Total dividends 37,592 28.1875 29,060 25.4250

Per the Group's dividend policy, a 27.5p per share dividend was approved inrespect of FY 2021 payabie in four instalments of

6.875p per share to sharenolders in four cash instalments.
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A 30.25p per share dividendis proposed in respect of FY 2022 payable in Four Instalments of 7.54625p per share which are
Intended to be pald as follows:

Instalment Ex—dividend date Record date Payment date

1 06 QOctober 2022 07 October 2022 28 October 2022
2 05 January 2023 06 January 2023 26 January 2023
3 Q6 Aprit 2023 11 Aprl 2023 27 Aprll 2023

4 06 July 2023 07 July 2023 27 July 2023

The second, third and fourth Instalrments wllt emount to ¢.E30m and will be accounted for in 2023,

Under the dividend policy, the second interim dividend s paid out of profits recognised In the vear prior to the vear in which
the dividends are declared and reported. As at 31 December 2022, the distributcble profits in the parent company were
adequate to cover the proposed second interim dividend of c.£10m,

? Intongibie assets

Intangibles
recognised T
upon  tevelopment
Goodwill gequisition  ond software Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 E'000

Cost
Asat 1 Jonuary 2021 B,607 2,261 28,518 39,384
Additions - - 2,831 2,831
Acoulsitlons (note 24) 859 1,010 - 1,849
Exchange adjustments - (66) (3] (31) (100}
As ot 31 December 2021 9,400 3,268 51,518 43986
Additlons - - 2,222 2,222
Acqulsltions (note 24) 737 - 1,479 2,216
Exchange adjustments 51 ~ 32 83
As at 31 December 2022 10,188 3,268 35,051 48,507
Amortisation
Asat 1 January 2021 - 2,203 12,260 14,463
Charge for year - 179 3,881 4,060
As at 31 December 2021 - 2,382 16,141 18,523
Chorge for yeor - 223 3929 4,152
As at 31 December 2022 - 2,605 20,070 22,675
Net book value .,
As at 31 December 2022 10,188 643 14,981 25,832
As at 31 December 2021 9,400 886 15177 25,463
Asat 1 January 2021 8,607 58 16,258 24,923

10 iImpairment of goodwill

The goodwill arising in o business combination is allocated, at aeguisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit fromthat
business combination. Goodwillis allocated to CGUs as follows:

Asset Asset
management installatlon  Solo Energy Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Cost
Asat 1 January 2022 £971 3497 932 2,400
Acquisitions {note 24) 737 - - 737
Exchange adjustments - - 51 51
As at 31 December 2022 5,708 3,497 983 10,188
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10 Impairment of goodwill continued
Additlonal goodwill of £737.000 has been recognised in the year on the ocquisition of n3rgy Data Limited and Is recognised
inthe Asset management CGL.

The Group tests goodwlll for impalrment annually or more frequently if there are indicaticns that goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwlll Is tested for Impairment by camparing the carrying amount of each CGU, Including goodwill, with the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts gre determined based on value-in-use calculations which requlre assumptions. The
cdiculations use cash flow projectlons based onfinancial budgets approved by the Board covering a one-yeaor period,
together with management forecasts for a further four-year period. These budgets and forecasts have regard to historical
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on the future achievable growth and the
impact of committed cosh flows. Cash flows beyond this are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below,

The cash flows used inthe value-in-use caleulation for the asset management segment Include all costs Incurred iz the
provision of meter assets to energy suppliers, together with the initiatinstallatlon. The cash Aows used in the value-in-use
calculation for the dsset instaliation segment exclude installation costs incurred to fit an owned meter. For the purnose of
the value-in-use calculation, these are Instead allocated to the asset management segment, being the segment to which
the corresponding revenues are allocated.

The annual impairment test was performed for the three CGUs identifled above that have goodwill cllocated to them.
N¢ evidence of impairment was found at the balance sheet date,

The key assumptions used in the value-In-use calculations for thase CGUs that have gaodwill allocated to them are ¢s follows:

+ Perpetual growth rate — the terminal cash flows are extrapaolated in perpetulty using a growth rate of 2.25% for asset
management (2021: 2.25%) and 1.0% for asset installation and Solo Energy (2021: 1.0% for asset installation and Solo
Energy). The rate of 2.25% applied to asset manggement Is derived from historical Retall Price Index Increases applied to
the segment’s index-finked meter rentals. This is not considered to be higher than the average long-termindustry growth
rate. The rdate of 1.0% applled to asset installation and Solo Energy is allgned to the Group's corporate forecast model and
is lower than the rate applied to asset management as revenues in these segments are not atways Index-lnked,

+ Discount rate — the discount rate is initially based on the welghted average cost of capital (WACC) which would be
anticipated for a market participant investing in the Group. A specific discount rate Is then calculated for eqch operating
segment, taking into account the time value of money, the segment’s risk profile and the impact of the current economic
climate, The pre-tax discount rates applied are 8.0%, 10.0% and 19.4% for asset management, asset Installation and Solo
Energy respectively (2021: 6,8% for asset management, 8.6% for assetinstallation and 18.2% for Solo Energy) and the
post-tax discount rates applied are 6.0%, 7.5% and 15.0% for asset management, asset installation and Solo Energy
respectively {2021: 5.5% for asset management, 7.00% for asset installation and 15.0% for Solo Energy). The risk premium
asslgned to the asset instaliation CGU reflects the shorter-term nature of the underlylng revenues within this segment, as
compared to the annually recurring revenue generated by an Instolled asset, The risk premium dsslgned 1o the Solo Energy
CGU reflects the pre-revenue status of this part of the business, in which the underlying system is still undergoing
development.

Management has performed sensitivity angiys's on the key gssumptions both with other variables held constant and with
other varlables simultaneously changed. Management has concluded that there are no reasenably possible changes in
the key assumptions that would cause the carrying amoeunts of goodwil to exceed the vaiue in use for any of the CGUs.
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Land and Meter Plantand fttﬁl\;swui? Motor Rlght-of- Grid-scale  Assetsunder
bulkiings assets machinery  equipment vehicles usedssets oassets constnuction Total
£000 £'000 £000 E'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Cost
As at 1 January 2021 2,807 392,146 1,044 7.148 5,305 7,010 - — 415,460
Reclassiflcation! - - - - - - - 4,071 4,072
Additlons - 82,401 126 1,117 28 5,267 - 24,505 113444
Acquisitions - 8,682 - - - - - 5,614 12094
Disposals {2) {19,889 — (52) (202) - - ~  {20,145)
Exchange adjustments - — — (6) - {4) - - (10)
As at 31 December 2021 - 2,805 461,340 1,170 8,207 5131 12273 - 33990 524916
Meclassification - - - 1 - — 54,048 {54,049} -
Reclassified as held for sale (688) - - - - - - - {684)
Additions 1,105 105,004 18 994 719 5,509 84 36,251 149,684
Acqulisitions - - - 1 - - - 15,190 15191
Disposals {4}y {20,773} {2) 8) (494} {785) - - {22,066}
Exchange cdjustments - - - 3 - 3 — - 6
As at 31 December 2022 3,218 545,571 1,184 9,198 5,356 17,000 54,132 31,382 667,043
Depreciation
As ot 1 January 2021 479 76,683 790 4,721 2,387 1,862 - - 87,122
Chatrge for year 171 24,719 204 1,555 1,157 1,032 - - 28,838
Dlsposals 1 16,767 - 143) {134) - - - {6,943)
Exchange adjustments — — - (1) — {1) - - (2)
As at 31 December 2021 851 24,635 Q94 6,232 3,410 2,893 - - 109,015
Reclassified as held for sale {174) - - - - - - - (174)
Charge for year 172 28,340 21 1,176 1,038 1,264 204 - 33,075
Disposals {3) {7,118} - (¢3] {391) (599} - - (8,116)
Exchange adjustments - - - 2 - 1 - - 3
As ot 31 December 2022 846 115,859 1,085 7,403 £,057 3,559 D04 - 133,803
Net book vaiue
Asat 31 December 2022 2,372 429,712 101 1,795 1,299 13,441 53138 31:,352 533,240
As at 31 December 2021 1,954 344,705 174 1.975 1,721 2,380 - 33,990 415,901
Asat 1 January 2021 2,128 315463 254 2,427 2,918 5,148 - — 328,338

1 Theraclossiflcation of £4,071,00C within Assets under constructlon relates to costs praviously racorded within Inventories ot 31 December 2062¢.

Meter assets

In 2021, meter asset acquisitions include the ¢.15,000 gssets acquired as part of the Industrial & Commercial large-power
half-hourty electricity business acquisition. See note 24 for detalls,

Included within the closing Meter assets net ook value of £429,712,000 (2021: £3646,705,000) is £11,173,000 (2027: £16,246,000)
rejating to the traditional meter portfollo, In accordance with our accounting policy these assets will be written down to
zer0 by 1 July 2025, In the 2022 consolidated financial statements the traditional meter portfollo generated £10,198,000
(2021: £12,781,000) of revenue with a correspending £4,383,000 (2021: £5,071,000) deprecigtion charge. As at 31 December 2022,
£11,168,000 {2021: £11,787,000) of annuallsed recurting revenue arises from the owned traditional meter portfolio,

The assets are secured by o bond and floating charge.
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11 Property, plant and equipment continued
Meter assets continued

For the purpose of impairment testing the traditional meter asset portfolle recoghised within *Meter assets” is assessedas a
stand alone cash-generating unit (CGU) and its carrying amount is comparad with the recoverable amount. See background

information provided in the “Key sources of estimation uncertainty” sectlon in the accounting policies. The recoverable
amount s determined basec on a valug-in-use caleulation, which uses the following key assumptions:

« estimated future cash flows from rental income, which decline based on the forecast for when meters are replaced;

» estimated future cash flows from termination income, which are darived using historical data and analysis around the risk
of churn between contracted and non-contracted customers and the risk of non~recoverability once issued; and

« apre-tax discount rate of 6.45%, which reflects the risk attached to the time vawue of these specific cash fliows and is
deemed to be bestrepresented by the Group’s incremental cost of barrowing on the basis that cash flows are secured by
the installed meter and the risk inherent in the decline of the cash flows Is already dccounted for through the assumptions
detailed above,

The impalrment test indicated that the value in use of the traditionai meter assets COU exceeded its camying value and
therafore no Impairment has been recognised in the year to 31 December 2023,

Manggement has performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions both with other varlables held constant and with
other varlables simultanaously changed. Manggement has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changesin
the key assumptions that would cause the carrying amounts of the traditional meter portfolio to exceed the value in use
for either CGU.

No Impairment on other meter assets was recognised in 2022 or 2021.

Right-of-use assets
A breakdown of right-of-use assets Is presented below:

2022 2021
Carrylng value [ ] £'000
Properties! 3,840 4,502
Land 9,601 4,878

13,441 2,380

1 Properties includa office anc warenousa space.

The statement of profit arloss shows the following ameunts relating to ledses;

2022 2021
Depreciation charge onHght-of-use assets £'000 £'000
Properties 1,024 919
Motor vehicles - &
Land 240 107
1,264 1,032
12 Investment in associate

2022 2021
£000 £'600
AL 1 January - -
Additions 2,126 -

Share of ioss for the period (186)
Dividends recelved - -
At 31 December 1,940 -

On 15 June 2022, the Group dcquired a 25% shareholding in Clenergy EV L td, a software business with a chargepoint
operator (CPO) platform focused on electric vehicle charging infrastructure, The agreement also gives the Group the option
to invest a further £2.0m aofter one year to ocquire an additional 26% interest and an option to acquire the remaining shares
after five years.
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Summarised financkal informatlon for Clenergy EV Ltd for the period since investment and after adjustment for falr value
adjustrments at acquisition and differences in accounting palicies is set out below:

2022 2021
£'000 £:000
Davanuea Fi35 —
Operating profit excluding depreciation and amortisation {(EBITDA) (88) -
Depreclation and amortisation {868) -
Taxation 214 —
Loss after taxation {(742) =
Group’s share of associate’s loss for the period (186} -
2022 2021
£:000 £'000
Non-current assets 8,627 -
Current cissets 1,609 -
Current llabilities (482) -
Non-current fiabllities {1,996) -
Net assets 7,758 —
Group's share of ossoclate's net assets 1,940 —
13 Inventories
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Finished goods 36,888 22476
Consumables 550 504
37,438 22,980
14 Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
€000 £000
Current
Trade receivables 25,297 22,451
Brepayments and deferred costs 3,112 2,520
Accrued income 19,385 19,265
Other receivables 4,517 1,463
VAT recoverdble 424 1,932
52,935 47,631
Amounts faliing due after more than one year:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Payments on gecount to acquire grid-scale battery assets 12,347 -
Accrued income is made up of the following balonces:
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Unbilled recetvables 18,714 18215
Contract assets 287 4d
Other accrued Income 384 304
19,385 19,265

The Directors conslder that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.
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14 Trade and other receivables continued

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables and accrued income. The amounts presented in the
consolldated statement of financial position are net of any loss allowance. The totol loss allowance for trade receivables
and gccrued income at 31 December 2022 was £4,182,000 (2021: £4,370,000). See note 23 for further details. The ageing
profile of trude recetvables prisl Jdue dute i3 31w Lielow,

2022 2021

£000 E'000

Current: 15,894 13,019
1-30 days 7.069 3,728
31-60 days 1,128 1,615
61-90 days &3¢9 1,499
91-120 days 597 1,705
Qver 120 days 4,782 5,812
30,109 27,378
Loss ollowance (3,026) (3,969)
Amounts offset (see note 23} (1,784) (958}

25,297 22,451

Trade recelvables are non-Interest~bearing and are generally on 30 to $0-day terms, Trade receivables due from related
partles at 31 December 2022 amounted to £nfl (2021: £nil).

Substantially all trade recelvables are denominated in Sterling.

Accrued Income, which Is made up of unbilled receivables and contract assets, is presented net of any loss allowance and
impairment, with amounts being Invalced perlodically and customers belng the same ds those within trade receivables.
Tha loss allowance for accrued income at 31 December 2022 was £1,156,000 (2021; £401,000) and the charge recognised
in profit or loss during the yvear was £755,000.

15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group. The carrying amount of the asset approximates the falr value.
Substantally all balances are held In Sterfing.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises:

2022 2021

£000 E0D0
Cash at bank 32,770 67,687
Short-term deposits - 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents 32,770 117,687
Cash and cash equlvalents — restricted 307 1,299
Total cash and cash equivalents 33,077 118,286

16 Assets held for sale

The Group classifles non-current assets as held for sale if the assets are available immediately for sale in their present
condition, management is committed to a plan to sell the assets under usual terms, It is highly prababite that thelr carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through o sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale s expected
to be completed wlithin one year from the date of the inltia! classification.

Assets clossifled as held for sale are presented separately in the consolldated statement of financial position and are
measured ot the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, Property, plant and equipment are not
depreciated once classified as held for sale.

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Property awaiting disposal 513 -

A warehouse, which is o longer required following the consolidation of the Group's warehouse operations, is classified as
held for sale as at 31 December 2022.
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17 Trade and other payables

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Current
Trade pavables 28,447 16,638
Other payables 5,350 4,097
Other taxes 1,725 1,519
Deferred income 2806 2,898
Advance payments 995 1,185
Accruals 30,055 30,152

49,378 56,489

Deferred income and advance payments are made up of the following balances:

2022 20

£000 £000

Cantract Eabillties 3,403 3,732
Other defaerredincome 308 351
3,801 4,083

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximaies to thelr fair value,
Trode payables are classified ot amortised cost, are non-Interest-bearing ond ore normally settied on 30 to 45-day terms,

Substantially all trade llabllities gre denomincted in Sterling.

18 Bank laans
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Current 591 —
Non-current 63,349 -
63,940 -

The Group has a £420m revelving crediL facility which matures in Becember 2025. Interest Is payable at arate of 1.85% over
SONIA and 0.65% ks payable on undrawn funds.

The loans drawn under the facility are all denominated in Pounds Sterling. The balance as at 31 Decembper 2022 Is stated net
of £1,651,000 of unamortised transaction costs.

Na principal or interest was outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and the amount recognised as Bank loans was therefore nil.
Unamortlsed transaction costs of £2,201,000 that would ordinarily be deducted from the carrying value of bank loans were
therefore classified as Other assets (550,000 was classified as current Other assets, with the batance of £1,651,000
classifled as hon-current, in line with the remaining term of the facility).

The movement in bank loans is:

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Asat 1 January (2,201) {1,749)
Cash flows — proceeds of new borrowings 65,000 -
Cash flows — payments of Interest (212} (554}
Cash flows — payments of arrangement fees (2277 (2,077)
Non-cash changes — accrual of interest 803 244
Non-cash changes —amortisation of arrangement fees 777 2,133
As at 31 December 43,940 {2,201}
Presentational reclassification to Other assets - 2,201

Bank loans as at 31 Pecember 63,940 -
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18 Bank loans continued
The Group has the followlng committed facility:

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Undrawn committed borrowing faciiity 323,450 404,65Q
Banrk loans drawn 65,000 -
Utilised in respect of guarantees 31,550 15,350
Total facllity 420,000 420,000

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of Its borrowing facility during the current and prior reparting periods.

1¢ Lease liabilities

2022 202
£000 £000
Current 885 099G
Non-current 11,476 7574
12,361 8,573
The movement in lease fiabilities is:
2022 2021
£000 £/000
As at 1 January 8,573 5,251
Cash flows — lease payments {1,500} {1,247
Non-cash chonges - accrued lease payments {22) ~
Non-cash changes — new leases 3,654 4,230
Non-cash changes — changes in lease terms and foreign exchange impact 1,107 58
Non-cash changes — interest charge 549 281
As at 31 December 12,361 8573
20 Provisions
Provisions comprige:
2022 2001
£'000 £'000
Non-current
Provisian for restoration ond decommissioning costs 2,033 798
2,033 798
The movement in provisions is:
2022 2021
£000 £000
As at 1 January 798 -
Provisions recoghised 1,240 798
Utllised in the year {5) —
As at 31 December 2,033 798

The Group Is reciulred torestore the Jand leased as part of its grid-scale battery storage business, and certain leased
warehouses, to the condltion required by the terms and conditions of the lease at the end of the respective lease terms

{which range between three to ten years for warehouses and 20 to 40 years for land), A provision has been recoghised for the

present value of the estimated expenditure required to carry out this restoration, These costs have been capitaiised as part
of the cost of right-of-use assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the lease and the useful life of the
assets, Provisions also include the estimated cost to decommissian grid-scale batteries at the end of their life.
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21 Other lighilitles

Other ligbliities comprise:

2022 201
£'000 £00Q
Current
Deferred consideration on acqulsitions 1,388 638
1,388 438
Non-current
Deferred consloefation on acquisitions 674 750
Contingent consideration on acquisitions 606 —
1,280 750
Refer to notes 24 and 25 for further details on the contingent and deferred consideration.
22 Deferred taxation
The movemnent in the deferred taxation liabllity during the year was:
2022 2021
i £000 E'000
Qpening deferred tax llobility 12,199 8511
! Incregse in provision thraugh consolidated statement of compreheansive income 1,029 4,408
{ increase/(decrease) In provision through equity °3 {319
‘ Deferred tax in respect of acquisitions ond disposals 175 (401)
: Closing deferred tax ilability 13,496 12,190
I
|
|

The Group's provision for deferred taxation conslsts of the tax effect of temporary differences in respect of;

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Excess of taxatien allowances over depreciation on property, piont and equipment 13,527 11,034
Tax losses avallable (115) 6L
Deferred tax asset on share optlons {1,519 {1,438)
Deferred tax on intangibles acquired 1,240 1,148
Other temporary differences! 2463 1,484

13,496 12,199

The deferred tax included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income 1s as follows;

2022 2021
£000 £000

Accelerated capital allowances 2,491 3,902
Tax losses " 74
Deferred tax asset on share optlons {175) 558
Movement in fair value of intangibles {157) 256
Other temporary differences! {1,121) {382)
1,029 4,408

1 Other temporary differences predominatety ralate to defarred tax on provislons and accruals.

At 31 December 2022, the maln rate of corporate tax applying to the profits of the Group was 19%. In the spring Budget 2021,
the UK Government announced that from 1 Aprll 2023 the corporation tax rate would increase to 25% (rather than remalning
at 19%, as previously enacted). This new law was substantively enacted on 24 Moy 2021, Deferred toxes at the balance sheet
dote have been measured using these enacted tax rates and reflected Inthese financial statements.
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22 Deferred taxation continued

Further, the UK Government announced legisiationin respect of the 'super-deduction’ for quaiifying copitof expend|ture
incurred during o two-year period commencing 1 April 2021. This new faw was also substantively enacted on 24 May 2021,
The Group has recognised an estimated permanent beneflt of £2,294,000 an qualifying ossets when calculating the tax
charge for the curmrent yedar, as weil as a permunent benefit in respect of the prior year of £230,000.

The Group had unrecognised trading losses of £1,762,000 (2021: £1,456,000) in subsldiary undertakings at 31 December 2022,
The Group alse hod unrecognised capitaliosses of £726,000 (2021: £729,000) in subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2022,

23 Financial risk management

The Board reviews and agrees policles for managing the risks associated with interest rate, credit and Ilquidlty risk.

The Group has in place a risk management policy that seeks to minimise any adverse effect on the finondol performance
of the Group by continually monitoring the following risks:

() Interest rate Hsk
The Group's madin Interest rate risk arises from its floating rate bank loan, See note 18 for further detalls.

There were no overdrafts at 31 December 2022 (2021; none) and the interest charge arising on lease llabilitles does not
represent a cash interest rate risk for the Group.

The Group's financial assets at 31 December 2022 comprise cash and trade recelvables. The eash baiance of £32,770,000
(2021; £117,687,000) Is a floating rate finonclal asset, but interest income is not typically material,

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table shows how a change ininterestrates applled to the average |evel of borrowings woulg have affected the
Group’s interest cost and profit before tax:

Increase/{decrease)  {Decrease) In profit

ininterest ratein before topt

bosis points £'000
2022 +100bps (198}
2021 +70bps -

(b) Fair values of financial liabilities and financial assets

The Group's bank loan is measured gt amortised cost. For foir value disclosure purposes, the bank loan is consldered tobe o
level 2 financlal Instrument on the basis that it Is not tracded in an active market. The falr values, based upon the market value
or discounted cash fiows of financial liabilitles and financial assets held in the Group, were not materiaily different from their
book vdlues.

{c) Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes In forelan exchonge primarity arises from d single subsidicry, operating in Euros,
With the axception of this entity, all of the Group's operating activities are denominated in Pourkis Sterling and, therefors,
the Group's overall exposure Is not significant,

{d) Liquidity risk

The Group manages its cash in a manner designed to ensure maximum benefit Is gained whilst ensuring security of
investment sources. The Group's poiley on investment of surplus funds Is to place deposkts ot institutions with strong credit
ratings; thls is considered to be Institutions with a credit rating of AA— and above. Currently, ali of the chosen investment
institutions are inline with these criteria.
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The ageing and maturity profite of the Group's material financial iabilities is disclosed in the table below. The amounts
disclesed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between Total
Less than two and Over contractual
ona year five yaars five years cosh flows
31 December 2022 £'000 £'000 £'C00 £'000
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Trade payvables 28,447 - - 28447
Bank loan 591 - - 593
Other liabllities 1,388 1,280 - 2,668
Lease llabilities 1,133 3104 5,648 ¢,885
31,559 4,584 5,648 41,591
Between Total
Less than two and Ovar contractuat
oneyenr fivayears five yaars eash fows
31 Dacembar 2021 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Controctual maturities of financia liabilities
Trade payabies 16,638 - - 16,638
Bank loan - - - -
Cther llabilities 638 - - 638
Cther long-term liabllitles - 750 - 750
Lease liabllties 1,280 5232 5,945 10,477
18,5546 3,982 5,265 28,503
{e) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk primarily arises from credit exposures to energy suppliers (our customers), including outstanding
receivables, due tothe Group trading with a limited number of companies, which are generally large utllity companles
or financial Institutions.

Credit risk is managed on g Group basis. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with @
minimun rating of AA—are accepted. With regard to customers, the Group assesses the credit quality of the customer,
considering its financial position, past experience and other factors, The Group does not expect, in the normal course of
events, that debts due from customers are at significant risk. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk equetes to the
carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade gnd other receivables, contract assets and investments. The Group's
maxirmum exposure to credit risk from its customers is £44,682,000 (2021 £41,716,000), being the sum of the carrying value of
trade recelvables and accrued income, Including contract assets, as disclosed within Trade and cther receivaklesin note 14.
The Group regularly monitors and updates its cash flow forecosts to ensure it has sufficient and appropriate funds to meet
its ongoing operational reguirements.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has two types of financlal assets that are subject to IFRS 9's expected creditloss model:

« trode receivables, which consist of bliled recelvables arlsing from contracts with customers, for the provision of meter asset
Installation, management and energy services; and

« gcerued Income, which cansists of contract assets and unbilled receivables arlsing from contracts with customers.

While cash and cash equivalents, ond debt investiments held ot amortised cost, are also subject to the impalrment
requirements of IFRS 2, the identified impairment loss was Immaterial.

The Group applies the IFRS ¢ simplified approach to measuring forward-looking expected credit losses, which uses ¢ lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables ond accrued income, including contract assets.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and accrued income have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. Accrued income relates to rights to consideration for perfarmance, and other operating charges,
before payment is due from customaers, and consists of unbilled receivables and contract assets (see note 2 for details).
These have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for accrued income.
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23 Financial risk management continued

(e) Credit risk continuad

The Group has established a provision matrlx hased on the payment profiles of sales, over the most recent twelve-month
period that is an appropriate representation of [oss patterns, and the corresponding historkeal credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical [oss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information that might affect
the abllity of customers to settle the receivables, including macroeconomic factors as relevant. In calculating the loss rates,
certain historical losses arising from specific circumstances with customers have been removed where these are not
indicative of future loss patterns.

During the second half of 2021, the global energy market suffered from unprecedented increases in wholesale gas prices,
crecting significant volatility within the UK energy market and leading to a number of independent energy suppiiers entering
administration and exiting the market. This ¢Hsls notably Impacted the smaller independent energy suppliers and, as a
result, management did not increase the expected loss rates for the trade receivables portfolio as a whole. Instead, a subset,
of trade recelvables has been identified as having o potentially elevated credit risk, due to a grecter risk of administration as
a direct consequence of the crisls. This subset of trade recelvables has been provided for on ¢ specific basls and has resutted
In ary adaitional £0.2m Impairment loss in the year. Gliven the continued and changing uncertainty regarding the impact of
this crisis on customer default risk, management will continue to monitor the situation and reassess Its ECL. at each reporting
period end accordingly.

On that basis, the loss allowance at 31 December 2022 was detenmined as £4,182,000 {2021: £4,370,000) for trade
recelvables and accrued income. A reconciliation of these balances Is pravided as follows:

Accrued Trade
income recelvabias Tatal
£000 £000 E'000
At 1 January 2022 401 3,069 4,370
Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance recognised In profit or loss
during the year — underiying 755 {(192) 563
Amounts reversed/written off during the year - (751) (7513
At 31 December 2022 1,156 3,026 4,182

The overall loss allowance has decreased at 3! December 2022, Whilst the crisls in the energy market has glven rise to
an addltional impairmentloss In the year, as detailed above, only one energy suppller entered administration during 2022
in comparison to the high number of Insolvencies seen in the prior yeor.

Total net impairment losses on financia and contract assets were £5463,000 in 2022 (2021: £2,964,000). Of this amount,
E563,000 (2021: £2,964,000) relates to amounts arising from trade receivables and accrued iIncome.

Fair value
There is no material differance between the book value and the fair value of any financial asset or liabllivy.

{f) Capital management

Capital is the equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy copltal ratios in order to suppeort its business
cnd maximise sharehelder value, The Group manages its copital structure, and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic condttions. To malntaln or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shdreholders, sell assets, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of a leverage ratlo. This ratio 1s calculated as net debt divided by pre-exceptional
EBITDA. Net debt is calculated as total borrawlings less cash. Pre-exceptional EBITDA s colculated as operating profic
befare any significant exceptional items, interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

The objective of SMS's strategy is to deliver long-termvalue to its shareholders whilst maintcining a balance sheet structure
that safeguards the Group’s financial position. Under the Group's enhanced dividend pallcy, SMS declared a 22.5p per share
dividendin respect of FY 2021 and proposes g 30.25p per share dividend in respect of FY 2022, The Group's long-term
index-linked cash flows from Its existing asset base are able to support ¢h Intended annual increase of 10% in dividends for
each of the financial years FY 2022, €Y 2023 and FY 2024. This results in a more predictable return to shareholders and
reflects the forecast growth of the business over and above R In that period. The Group’s strong iquidity position supports
the funding of its contracted smart meter order plpeline, which will further add to its long-term index-linked cash flows.
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{9) Disclosure of offsetting arrangements

Gross Amounts Balance
batances? offset? shaet?®
31 December 2022 £:000 £00¢ £000
Financial assets
Trade receivables 27,083 {1,786) 25,297
Accrued Income 23,138 {3,753) 19,385
Financlal llabilities
Trade payables 28,579 (132) 28,447
Accrua's 35,463 (5,408) 30,055
Gross Amaounts Balance
balances? offsat? sheet3
31 December 2021 E'OCD £000 £000
Financial assets :
Trade recelvables 23,409 {958) 22,451
Accrued incomea 20,313 (1,048) 19,265
FInanctal lfabllities
Trade payables 16,770 (132) 16,638
Accruals 22,024 {1,874) 30,152

1 The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets and liabilities.
2 Ameunts are offsat where there Is alegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and thers s anintentlon to settla en d net basis orreallse
the asset and llability simultane ously, in accordance with 1AS 32,

% The net amounts prasented inthe consclidated statement of financlal positlon,

24 Business combinations

Year ended 31 December 2022

©On 25 May 2022, the Group acqulred 100% of the issued share capital of N3rgy Data Limited, o data software company, for
cash consideratian of £1.4m and additional contingent censideration sublect to the company achieving certain performance
targets. n3rgy Dota Limited's software enables and faclliitates the use of energy consumption, generation and tariff data
from smart meters. The acguisition is expected to enhance and accelerate the Group's capabllitles In smart energy data
solutions and [s reported in the Group's asset management segment,

The falr vahses of the assets and liakilities acquired and of the conslideration are as follows:

Falr vatue
£1000
intangible assets: seftware 1,479
Trade and other receivables 149
Cash Bé
Trade and other payables {202)
Deferred tax llabilities {229)
Net [dentifiable assets acquired 1,283
Add: goodwill 737
Net assets acquired 2,020
Satisfied by:
cash 1,432
Contingent consideration 588
Total consideration 2,020
The net outfiow of coashin respect of the purchase of the business is:
£'000
Cash consideration 1,432
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (8&)
Net cash outflow in respect of the purchase of the business 1,546

No contingent assets or liabilitles were acquired.
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24 Business combinations continued

Year ended 31 December 2022 continued

If n3rgy Data Limited's EBITDA over « flve year eam-out period exceeds a threshald, then contingent consideration
becomes paydble based on the amount by which the EBITDA exceeds the threshold. The minlmum payment is therefore nil
and the maximum poyment is uniimited. The fair value of the contingent consideration at the acquisition data of £588,000
represents the estimated most ilkely pay-out based on management's future Forecast of future trading (leve! 3) discounted
at the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The goedwillis mainly attributable to synergles and the opportunity to accelerate growth of the Group's data business.
Goocdwill will not be deductible for tax purposes.

The acquisition contributed £127,000 to the Group’s revenue and reduced the Group’s profit before tax by £406,000 between
the date of dedqulsition and 31 December 2022.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2022, the Group's revenue would have been £135,591,000 and profit
before tax would have been £15,756,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Acauisition-related costs of £20,000 have been included as part of exceptional Administrative costs in the consofidated
statement of comprehensive Income,

Yeor ended 31 December 2021

On é April 2021 the Group acqulred a partfolio of ¢,15,00Q Industrial & Cammercial large-power half-hourly electricity meters
from & third party. The Group also teok ownership of the Meter Operator (MOP) and data service contracts assoclated with
a portfolio of electricity meters. This Is reported through the Group's asset monagement segment.,

Asg part of the transaction, a workforce was transferred with the skills, knowladge and experience to genercte revenues from
the assets and contracts acquired, and potentially grow the acquired business for the Group, Such a workforce meeats the
definition of a substantlve process under IFRS 3, On the basis that the Group has obtalnedinputs, o substantive process and
outputs, menagement has concluded that the acqulsition meets the definition of @ business comkinatlon and should be
accounted for as suchunder (FRS 3.

Purchase consideration consisted of cash only. Total cash paid was £8,433,000,

The assets and ligbilities recognised as a result of the acqulsition were as follows:

Fair value
31 December 2021 £000
Intanglble assets: customer controcts 1010
Property, plant and equipment: meter assets 6,682
Inventorles 700
Trade and other receivables 1,778
Trade and other payables {2,348)
Deferred tax lfabifity (228)
Net identifiable assets acquired 7574
Add: goodwiil 859
Net assets acqulred 8,433

No contingent assets or ligbilitles were acquired. The customer contracts acquired were valued using a multi-period excess
earnings method, which assesses the present value of the after-tax cosh flows attributable only to these contracts.

The goodwillis gttributabie to the opportunity to grow this part of the business for the Group. Goodwill will not be deductible
for tax purposes.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the acquired business contributed a net profit before taxation of £1.7m to the Group.
If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021, consolidated pro-forma profic for the vear ended 31 December 2021 would
have been approximately £2.2m.

Acauisition-related costs of £0.3m have been incurred ta date, inciuding transaction costs and mabilisation costs to
integrate the newly-acquired business inta the Group, and have beenincluded as part of exceptional Administrative costs in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.
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25 Asset acquisitions
Year ended 31 December 2022

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of the seven special purpose
vehicle companies listed below. Details of the purchase cansideration are as follows:

Cash Deferred Total

Company c¢onsideration consideration conslderation

Name of acguired company number Acgulsition date £000 E'0G0 £'000
Balance Energy 2 Limited 12266348 14 February 2022 B854 - 8546
Fen Power 1 LImited 12875930 26 April 2022 ' 600 274 874
Drumcross Energy Storage L.imited SC4679835 8 July 2022 2815 — 2,815
Erskine Energy Storoge Limited SC690064 17 August 2022 2,654 - 2,654
Balance Energy 3 Ltd 12341398 1 October 2022 2,780 400 3,180
Balance Encrgy 1 Ltd 11894406 1 October 2022 3031 200 3,231
Bramford Power Limited 12480700 7 Octcher 2022 1,826 - 1,826
Total purchase conslderation 14,562 874 15,434

All seven companies report in British Pounds Sterling. The acqulsitions enable SMS to obtain control over the rights required
to develop and commission seven grid-scale battery storage sites, totalllng 320MW, as part of the Group's strategy of
investment in CaRe assets. Grid-scale battery storage is reported through the Group's energy management segment and
is a key asset class required by the UK energy system to provide flexibillty services to balance the grid and support the
continued introduction of mare intermittent renewabie generation.

tn respect of one of the companles, deferred consideration of £274,000 is payable in cash upon energisation when the
grld-scale battery storage asset Is connected to the grid). Deferred consideration of a further £6400,000 is payable onthe
execution of certain property deeds, The payments have been measured at fair value ot the acquisition date, ignoring the
impact of discounting on the basis that the anticipated payment date is within 24 months of the current reporting date and
management consider the impact of discounting over this period to be immaterial.

Management has concluded that these acqulsitions do not meet the definition of a business combination under IFRS 3 on
the basis that no substantive processes have been transferred. Therefore, these transactions have beep accounted for as
acquisitions of a group of assets, No goodwill thus arlses on the transactions.

The individual assets and liabilities acquired have been identified and the cost of the transactions has been allocated to the
assets acquired, and liabilities assumed, based on their relative foir values at the date of purchase as follows:

Tatal
£000
Assets under construction 15,190
Trade and otherreceivabtles 248
Trade and other payables (2)
Total purchase consideration 15,436
The majority of the value gained from acquiring the sites is attributable to development and construction rights
and therefore most of the total cost of the transaction has been allocated to Assets under construction.
No contingent assets orlicbilities were acquived.
The cash autflow in 2022 rekating to asset acquisitions is as follows:
Total
£000
Cash consideration 14,562
Less: payments made in gdvance in earller years {135)
Add: deferred considerction pald in 2022 on acquisitions in earlier years 200

Cash outflow on asset acquisitions in 2022 14,627
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25 Asset acguisitions continued
Year ended 31 December 2021
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of the following companies:

Purchase
Company Renlstered office prior conglderation  Acoulsition Nature of the

Mame of acquired compony  number to acyuisition £'Q00 date company
Newtonwood Energy 1257609  Unit 9, the Graen Easter Park, 1,471 9 March 2021 Special
Starage Limited Benyon Raad, Readlng, purpose

Berkshire RG7 2PQ vehicle
Brook Farm Energy 10780034  Unit 9, the Green Easter Park, 1572 11June 2021 Special
Storoge Limited Benyon Road, Reading, purpose

Berkshire RG7 2PQ vehicle
Berkeley Battery 10942601 Suite 4D Drake House, 1,306 15 June 2021 Speclal
Storage 2 Limited Dursley, Gloucestershire purpose

GL11 4HH vehicle
Brentwoaod Energy 11516707  Unit 8~9 Benvon Road, 1,401 1 October 2021 Speclal
Starage Limited Silchester, Reading, Berkshire purpose

RG7 2PQ vehicle

All four companies report (n British Pounds Sterling. The acquisitions enable SMS to obtain control over the rights required
to develop and commission four grid-scale battery storage sites, totalling 200MW, as part of the Group's strategy of
investrent in CaRe assets. Grid-scale battery storage is reported through the Group's energy management segment
and is a key asset class required by the UK energy system to provide flexdbillty services to balance the grid and support
the continued Introduction of more Intermittent renewable generation,

Details of the purchase conslderation are as foliows:

Deferred Total

Cashpaid consideration  consideration

Name of aecguirad company £000 £000 £000
Newtonwaod Energy Storage Limited 1,221 250 1,471
Brook Farm Energy Storage Limited 1,572 — 1572
Berkeley Baitery Storage 2 Limited 1,056 250 1,306
Brentwood Energy Storage Limited 201 500 1,401
Total purchase consideration 4,750 1,000 5,750

In respect of three of the four companies, total additional consideration of £750,000 is payable in cash upon energlsation
(when the grid-scale battery storage asset is connected to the grid). In addition, in respect of one of the four companles,
total additlonal conslderation of £250,000 is payable in cash upon the full execution of an extension of the term of the land
lease. The payments have been measured at fair value ot the acquisition date, ignoring the impact of discounting on the
basis that the anticlpated payment date Is within 24 months of the current reportlng date and management consider the
impact of discounting over this period to be immaterial.

Management has concluded that these acquisitions do not meet the definition of a business combinationunder IFRS 3 on
the basis that no substantive processes have been transferred. Therefore, these tronsactions have been accounted for as
acquisitions of a group of assets. No goodwill thus arises on the transactions.

The individual assets and liabllities acquired have been identified and the cost of the transactions has been allocated to the
assets ocquired, and llabilities assumed, based onthelr relative fair values ot the date of purchase as follows:

Newtonwood Brook Farm Berkeley Brentwood Total

£:000 £000 £'000 £000 EQ00

Assets under construction 1,272 1,596 1,290 1,258 5414
Trade and other recelvables 199 76 16 145 436
Trade and other payables — {100) — - (100}
Total purchase consideration 1,471 1,572 1,306 1,401 5,750

No contingent assets or liabilities were acquired.
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The majority of the value galned from acquiring the four sites is attributable to development and constructlon rights and
therefore o slgnificant portion of the tatal cost of the transaction has been dllocated to Assets under construction due to
its higher fair value relative to the other net assets acguired.

Transaction costs of £0.2mwere incurred and have been capitalised as a camponent of the cost of the assets acquired,
classiflad uw purl ol Assets under construction within Property, plant and equilpment.

26 Related party transactions

(o) Key management personnel compensation

The Group has determined that its key management personnel comprise the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and
certaln senior management personnel. The gggregate compensation pald or payable to key management is shown below:

2022 201

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 3,154 2,747
Post-employment benefits 50 35
Termination benefits 273 146
Share-based payments 1,661 262
5,138 3,190

(b} Directors
Directors’ emoluments
Aggregate remunercton for both Executive ond Non-executive Directors In respect of gqualifying services was:

2022 2021

. £000 £000

Aggregate emoluments 1,774 1,744
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme 24 21
1,800 1,765

In 2022, £273,000 was payable to a Director as settlement fallowing resignation (2021: £146,000 wds pavable to o Director
as settlement following resignation),

Detailed remuneration disclosures are also provided in the in the Annual Report on remuneration on pages 10 to 112,

Emoluments of hlghest paid Director

2022 2021
£1000 £°000
Emoluments ) Q01 64
Company contrlbutions to money purchase pension scheme 20 -
921 694

Number of Dlrectors who accrued benefits under Company pension schemes
2022 2021
Number Number

Money purchase schemes 3 3
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26 Related party transactions continued
{c) Other transactions with related parties
Durlng the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related partles:

« Rent amounting to £nil {2021 £10,375) pald to the Directors’ pension scheme, Eco Retirement Benefit Scheme, for the use
ot certain premises. Alan Foy Is a trustee of the scheme.

The Group paid dividends to Alan Foy {whilst a Director) of £321,809 (2021: £906,915), The Metis Trust! of £61,875

(2021 £230,625), Metls Investments Limited? of £25,599 (2021: £387,968), Tim Mortlock of £5,033 (2021 £1,501),

Gavin Urwin (whilst a Director) of £458 (2021: £153), Mirlam Greenwood of £7,177 (2021: £6,129), Graeme Bissett of £5,796
(2021: £4,116) and Jamle Richards of £1,389 (2021: £1,002).

1 Alon Foy Is o trustee but not a benoficiary.
2 Alan Foy Is a Director and shareholder.

27 Share capital

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Allotted and ¢called up:
133,397,009 ordinary shares of £0.01 each (2021; 133,321,555 ordinary shares of £0.01 each) 1,334 1,333

During the year 75,454 (2021 921,447) ordinary share options were exercised inrelation to the Group’s employee share plans
which are described in note 28, The ordinary shares Issued have a nominal value of £755 (2021 £9,000) and aggregate
consideration of E285,000 (2021: £1,627,000) was received.

The Group's Share incentive Planis administered by the 5mart Metering Systems SIP Trust, which acquires shares In 5SMS
{own shares) to satisfy awards under this pian and facliitate the delivery of shares to participants. At 31 December 2022,
145,821 {2021: 139,055) own shares were held In trust with o carrying value of £955,000 (2021: £825,000) and a market value
of £1,140,000 {2021: £1,169,000}. The Company purchased 48,900 shares (2021: 34,191) from the market during 2022 with

a weighted average falr value of £8.08 per share (2021 £8.15).

28 Share-based payments
{a) Employee option plans
The Group operates the Unapproved Share Option Plan (the ‘Unappraved Plan') and the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP).

The Unapproved Plan is open to any employee, including Executive Directors, Partlcipants are granted aptions which,
except in certain specified circumstances, only vest If certaln performance cenditions are met and the employee is stillin
service five years from the date of grant. The performance conditlons for awards are based on market copltallsation and
individual perfarmance targets. Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of up to ten years from the date
of grant. The exerclse price of the options Is determined by the Diractors but shafl not be less than the closing price at which
the Company’s shares are traded on the date of grant.

The LTIP Is open to senlor amployees. Participants are granted nil-cost options which are subject ta performance conditions
and rernaining employed up to the vesting date. The performance conditions are based on the total sharehoider return and
meeting financial and non-financial targets over a thrae—year performance pericd, The vesting period varles from three to
five years. Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of up to ten years from the dote of award.,
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The table below summarises options granted under the Unapproved Plan and LTIP:

At At Exercise Fairvalue

1 January 31 Dacember price Date Explry at grant
Pinn 2012 Craoted Cawiclsed  Mafelud Bxupirog 2022 {pence) exercisable date (pence)
Unapproved 437,832 - {57.898) - - 379.934 350.0 12Nov 2019 11Nov 2024 848
Unapproved 43,890 - {17,55¢6) - - 26,334 4700 18 AuQ 2021 17 Aug 20248 87.2
Unapproved 50,000 - - - - 50,000 529.0 26S5ep 2021 25Sep2026 142.4
Unopproved 409,001 - — (18,000 - 393,001 700.0 1Jan 2023 13 Jul2028 125.2
Unapproved 12,000 - - - - 12,000 602,8 13S5ep 2023 12 Sep 2028 154.3
Unapproved 409,000 - - (14,000) — 393,000 700.0 1Jon 2023 13 Jul 2028 34.6
Unapproved 12,000 - — - - 12,000 402.8 13Sep 2023 12 Sep 2028 98.0
Unapproved 370,000 - - - - 370,000 454.5 5S8ep2024 4 Sep 2029 111.5
Unapproved 409,000 - - (156,000 — 393,000 7000 1Jan2023 13 Jul 2028 372
Unapproved 12,600 - - - - 12,000 602.8 13Sep 2023 12 Sep 2028 105.6
Unapproved! 76,000 - - - - 76,000 577.4 26 Jun2025 25 .Jun 2030 59.3
Unapproved 408,999 — - {16,000} - 392,999 700.0 01Jan 2023 13 Jul 2028 134.3
Unapproved 12,000 - - - - 12,000 602.8 13Sep 2023 412 Sep 2028 266.1
Unapproved! 76,000 - - - - 76,000 §77.4 26 Jun2025 25 Jun 2030 191.4
Unapproved? 290,000 - - - - 290,000 705.4 10Feb 2026 02 Feb 2031 2108
Unapproved - 408,999 — (16,000) - 392,999 700.0 1Jan 2023 13 Jul 2028 114
Unapproved - 12,000 - — 12,000 602.8 13 Sep 2023 12 Sep 2028 1955
Unapproved! - 76,000 - - 76,000 577.4 26Jun2025 25Jun2030 1444
Unappraved? - 290,000 - - 290,000 705.4 10Feb 2026 09 Feb 2031 1814
LTIP - 57,701 - - 57,701 nil 18May 2025 18 May 2032 631.1
LTIP - 19,234 - - 19,234 nil 18 May 2025 18 May 2032 313.0
LTIP - 9,617 - ~ 9,617 nil 18 May 2026 18 May 2032  604.1
LT - 3,206 - - 3,206 nil 18 May 2026 18May 2032 301.0
LTIP - 2.617 - - — e.617 nil 18 May 2027 18 May 2032 578.3
LTIk - 3,205 — - - %,205 nil 18 May 2027 18 May 2032 2901
Tatal 3,027,722 889,579 (75,454} (80,000) — 3,761,847

1 These nptlonsvelate ta the first three of tive tranches.
2 These options relcte to the first two of five tranches,

The weighted average share price at the date of exerclse of options exerclsad during the year ended 31 December 2022

was £8.02 (2021: £8.37).

Falr value of options granted

Awards subject to a market capitalisation or total sharehoider return condition are valued using a Monte Carlo simulation,

Other awards are vaolued using the Black-5choles model.

The principadl assumptions used in these voluations were:

31 becember 2022 31 December 2021
Dividend yield (%) 3.5t04.3 33
Expected volatiity (%) 30.03t038.48 3596104133
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.25t0 4.16 0.09 to 0.39
Expected option life (years}) 1.28t0 4.87 22810 487
Exercise price (£} nilto 7.05 577 to 7.05
Share price at grant date (£) 7.08t0 7.89 8.30
Fair value at grant date (£} 0.11 to 6.31 1.34t0 2.66

The expected price volatibity is based on historicol volathity, adjusted for ony expecied chunges to future volatility due to

publicly avallabte information,
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28 Share-based payments continued

(a) Employee option pians continued

In January 2022, the Remuneration Committee assessed performance of the first four tranches of the 2018 awards and the
first two tranches of the 2020 awards under the Unapproved Plan agalnst vesting criteria. These gwards did not meet the
market capirallsation targets set when they were orlginally granted. The Remuneration Committee exercised the dlscretion
avallable to It under the plan and, after taking into account o range of factors, concluded that these awards would vest at
95% of the maximum. This has been accounted for as a madificaticn of the awards. In accordance with IFRS 2, the optlons
were valued as at the date of modification based on the arigingl terms using a Monte Carlo simulation, and based on the
modified terms using the Black-Schoies model, The Incrementcl fair value granted os a result of the moedifications wos
£1,067,000, all of which was recognlsed as anexpense In 2022,

The expense recagnised In 2022 for all options, including the effect of the modifications, is £2,262,000{2021: £563,000),

(b) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

The Company introduced the SIP In October 2014, All employees of the Group (Including Executive Directors) arve eligible
te participate Inthe SIP. Participonts may each acquire Partnership Shares worth up to £1,800 per year from their pre-tox
earnings at market value, The Company awards participants one Matching Share for each Partnershio Share which they
acqguire. Dividends received on shares held in the SIP are reinvested to acquire Dividend Shares at market value. Matching
Shares may be forfeited if the participant disposes of the corresponding Partnership Shares or leaves the employment
of the Group within three years of the award date.

The table below shows the number of shares held In the SIP at the beginning and end of the year,

Welghted

At At avarage

1 January Awarded Sold/ 31 Decamber acguisition

Type of award 2022 shares transterred Forfelted 2022 price
Partnership 230,215 61,103 {36,545) - 254,873 610
Matching 228,943 61,103 {23,875} (14437) 251,734 610
Dividend 25,204 12,327 (2,8268) — 34,705 7.24

Total 484,462 154,533 (63,246) {14,437) 541,312

The SIP is administered by the Smart Metering Systems SIP Trust (the Trust’). To the extent sufficlent shares are not already
held by the Trust, Matching Sharas awarded by the Trust to employees are acquired inthe market prior to the award.
Matching Shares held by the Trust which have not yet vested unconditionaily at the end of the reporting perlod are shown
as own sharas in the financlal statements.

The fair value of the Matchlng Shares at the award date is equal to the shore price ot the award date. The welghted average
fair value per share of the Matching Shares awarded during 2022 was approximately £8.02 per share (2021; £818). The total
fair value of Matching Shares awarded Is recognised over the three-year period starting on the respective award dates.

The expense recognised In 2022 for all Matching Shares is £350,000 (2021; £278,G00). No expense (5 recognisaed for the
Partnership Shares and Dividend Shares because the particlpants pay full market value for these shares.

29 Otherreserve

This is a non-distributable reserve that initlclly drose by applylng merger relief under section 612 of the Companies Act 2006
to the shares issued in 2009 in connection with the Group restructuring. Additionally, the preritmn of £4,189,000 and
£1,115,000 arising on the issue of shares as part of the dcquisitions of CH4 Gas Utility and Maintenance Services Limited
{'CH#’), Trojan Utllities Limited { Trojan’) and Gton Solutions Limited ('Qton’) has been credited ta this reserve,

20 Capital commitments
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting perlod but not recoghised as liabilities is as follows:

2022 2021
EQO0 £000
Property, plant and egulpment 38,930 27,746

Capital expenditure of £35,901,000 (2021; £27,744,000) contracted for in relation to property, plant and equipment relates
to the Group's grid-scale battery storage praojects under construction, The remaining £3,029,000 (2021: Enii relates to the
purchase of motor vehlcles.
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There is na ultimate controlling party by virtue of the structure of shareholdings in the Group.

32 Subsidiary undertakings

A fulllist of the Group's subsidiaries and associated undertakings (as defined In the Large and Medlum-sized Companles and
Groups tAccounts and Reports) Regulations 2008) as at 31 December 2022 is detailed below. Unless otherwlise stated, they
have share caplta! consisting solely of ordinary shares, and the proportion of ownership Interests held equals the voting
rights held by the Group. The country of registration is also their principal place of businass.

Registered
office {see
key below Proportlon of
table) Holding shores held Nature of business
SMS Connections Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Gas utliity connectlons
SMS Meter Assets Limlited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Gas and electric tusset management
SMS MAPCO 1 Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Gas gnd electric asset management
SMS MAPCO 2 Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Gas and electric asset management
SMS Dota Management Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Data mancgement
Smart Metering Systems PTY Limited 4 Ordinary shares 100% Data mancgement
{Australia) {In louldation)
UKMA (AF) LImited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Funding
SMS Corporate Services Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Adminlistrative services
SMS Asset Management Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Gas and electrilc third-party asset
management
SMS Energy Services Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Electricity utllity connectlons and
management
SMS Data Services Limited* 2 Ordinary shores 100% Electrlc asset and data menggement
CH4 Gas Utility and Maintenance 2 Ordinary shares 100% Meter Installatien
Services Limiteg*
SMS Utllitles Academy Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Engineer tralning and development
Trojan Utliitles Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Meter Installation
Qton Solutions Limlted* 2 Ordingry shares 100% Business and domestic software
development
Smart Battery Systems Limlted 2 QOrdinary shares 100% Holding company
Solo Energy Limited {(UK)* 1 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Sole Energy Limited (Ireland)* 3 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Care Assets Limited 2 Ordinciry shares 100% Holding company
Add Renewnbles No.3 Limited* 2 Crdinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Burwell Power Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Holding company
East Anglia Grid Storage One 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable asset mandgement
Limited*
Newtonwood Energy Storage 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewaple asset mancgernent
Limited*
Brook Farm Energy Storage Limited* 2 Qrdinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Berkeley Battery Storage 2 Limlted* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewabie asset management
Brentwood Energy Storage Limited* 2 Qrdinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Balance Energy 1 L.ta* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Batance Energy 2 Ltd* 2 QOrdinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
Balance Energy 3 Ltd* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable dasset management
Bramford Power Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable gsset management
Drumcross Energy Storage Limited* 1 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable gsset magnagement
Erskine Energy Storage Limited* 1 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable usset management
Fen Power 1 Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewable asset management
N3rgy Data Limlted* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Renewabie asset management
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32 Subsidiary undertakings continued

Registered

office (see

key below Propertion of

table} Holding shares held Nature of business
Clenergy EV Ltd 5 Ordinary Shares 25% Renewable asset monagement
Metering Limited 2 Ordlnary shares 100% Dormant
Cosmos AMR Limited* 2 Qrdinary shares 100% Dormant
Carbon Reduction Assets Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Savano Limited* 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Metering 1 Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Oormant
Metering 2 Limited* 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
SMS Installations {(Midlands) Limited® 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Eco Project Management Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart Meter Systems Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
UK Data Monagement Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
UK Water Connection Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Utility Partnership Limited 1 Crdinary shares 100% Dormant
SMS 1P Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart Home Systems Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
UK Gas Connectlon Limited 1 Crdinary shares 100% Dormant
The UK Meter Exchange Limlted 1 Crdinary shares 100% Dormant
UK Electricity Connection Limlited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
LK Meter Assets Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Darmant
UK Smaort Metering Group Limited 1 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart Chdrging Systems Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart EV Systems Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart Install Systems Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart Solar Systems Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Care Data Management Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Smart Carbon Reduction Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Care Energy Services Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dermant
Care Utility Connections Limited 2 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Care Energy Limited 2 Crdinary shares 100% Dormant
Care Power Limited 2 Qrdinary shares 100% Doermant

* The shareholding in this compony is Indirect, via o subsidiary company.

1 Reglstered office addrass: 2nd Floor, 48 SE. Vincent Strest, Glasgow G2 5TS.

2 Registerad office addrass: Prenncu House, Copse Walk, Corditf Gote Business Park, Cardiff CF23 8XH.

3 Registered office address: Unit 4 Joyce House, Barrack Sauare, Balkncolllg, Cork, PAIHWES, Republic of Ireland.
& Registerad office address: KPMG, ‘Tower 3’ Level 38, 300 Bangaroe Avenue, Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia,

S Registerad office addross: The Mill Houss Erw Hir, Liantrisant, Pontyclun, Walas, CF72 88Y.
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The following UK subsidicries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 4794 of the Companies Act

20046 for the vear ended 31 December 2022,

Nome

Reglstration number

SMS Lrilttes Academy Limitod

Care Assets Limited

Berkeley Battery Storage 2 Limited
Brook Farm Energy Storage Limited
Drumcross Energy Storage Limited
Erskine Energy Storoge Limited
Newtonwood Energy Storage Limited
Add Renewables No.3 Limited
Bramford Pawer Limited

Fen Power 1 Limited

N3rgy Data LImited

Trojan Utillties LimTted

UKMA {AF) Limlited

SMS Asset Management Limited
SMS Data Services Limited
Metering Limited

Bolance Energy 1 Limited

Balance Energy 2 Limited

Balance Energy 3 Limited )
Brentwood Energy Storage Limited

Ti8Yoba/
12475528
10942601
10780034
SC679835
S5C690064
11257609
10042216
12480700
12875930
11712674
07790830
Q7130739
12285853
13166529
13160823
11894406
12266348
12341398
11516707
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2022 {restated)

Notes £'000 £'080
Non—current assets
Investments 2 24,306 21,694
Debtors 3 407,125 444,828
Total non~currant assets 431,431 464,522
Craditors
Amounts falling due within one vear 4 (429) (429)
Net current (ffabllities) (429) (429)
Total assets less current liabiiities 451,002 466,093
Capital and reserves
Called-uz share capital 6 1,334 1333
Share premium account 332,532 332,048
Other reserves 7 18,046 15,435
Own share reserve (955) {825)
Profit and ivss account 80,245 118,102
Equity shareholders' funds 431,002 466,093

No proftt and loss account is presented by the Company, as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, The profit
after taxation deatt with in the financial statements of the Company was E£nl! for the flnanciai year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: £nif).

The parent company financial statements on pages 1746 to 180 were approved and authorlsed for issue by the Board
aof Directors and signed on its behaif by:

Gail Blain el r% &_,
Director
14 March 2023

Company reglstration number
SC367563
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Shore prasr:lflrr: Othar Own share Retained
Astributable to the owners capltat account reserves fesarve eamings Total
of the parent eompany £'000 £000 £'600 £'000 £°000 £000
As at 1 January 2021 1,129 160,471 14,594 (749) 147365 322,810
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - -
Transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners
Dividends {note &) - - - — (29,060) (29,040)
Share~based payments (note 7) - - 841 - - 841
Movement in own shares - - - (76) (203) (279)
Shares issued 204 171,577 - — —- 171,781
As at 31 December 2021 1,333 332,048 15,435 {(825) 118,102 446,093
Total comprehensive income
fof the year - - - - - -
Transactions with owners
in thelr capacity as owners
Dividends (note 8) - - - - (37,592) {37,592)
Share-based payments (note 7) - - 2,611 - - 2,611
Movement in own shares - - - (130) {265) (395)
Shares issued 1 284 - - - 285

As at 31 Dacember 2022 1,334 332,332 18,0464 (?55) BO,245 431,002
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

The parent company financlal statements of Smart Metering Systems plc {the 'Company'} for the year ended 31 December
2022 were authorised for Issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2023 gnd the balance sheet was signed on the Board's
behalf by Gall Blain. Smart Meterlng Systems ple is a public limited company limited by shares and incomporated and
domiclled in Scotland, with Its registered office at 2nd Floor, 48 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow G2 5TS. The Company's ordinary
shares are traded on AlM,

1 Parent company accounting policies

Basis of accounting

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the parent Company to be prepared under FRS 101. The
financial statements of the parent Company for the year ended 31 Dacember 2021 were prepared under FRS 102, The data
of transition ta FRS 101is 1 January 2021, As a result of the transition to FRS 101 the Company’s amounts owed by Group
undertakings of £407125000 (2021: £444,828,000) have been reclassified from current to non-current assets as the amounts
owed are not expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting perlod. There [s no further impact on the previously
reported results for the parent Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 or for the current year’'s results arising from
the transition te FRS 101, The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, The Company took
advantage of the deemed cost exemption to carry over investments cartied at cost at the previous GAAP carrying amount.,

The accountlng policies of the parent Company financial statements follow those policies which apply in preparing the
consolldated financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, The financial statements are preparedin Sterling
ahd are rounded to the nearest thousand Pounds (£/000).

The following exempticns fram the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financlal statements,
in occordance with FRS 101: ;

= Paragraphs 45(b) and 44 to 52 of IFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’ [detalls of the number and welghted average exerclse !
prices of share optiens, and how the falr value of goods or services racelved was determined). :

IFRS 7, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures',

Paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’ {disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used for fair value
measurament of assets and liabllities), i

Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements’ — comparative information requirements inrespect of |
paragraph 79(a)(v) of IAS 1, |

The following paragraphs of [AS 1, ‘Presentation of financlal statements®,
- 10{d) (statement of cash tlows);

-

~ 14 {statement of campliance with all IFRS);

- 38A (requiremnent for minimum of two primary statements, Including casn flow statements);
- 38B-D (addltiona! comparative Information);

- 111 {cash flow statement Information); and

- 134-136 (copltal management disclosures).

IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows',

Paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’ {requirement for the -
disclosure of infarmation when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been issued but is not yet effective),

Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ (key management compensation).

The requirernents in1AS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’, to disclose related party transactions entered into between two
or more members of agroup.

Disclosure of audlior rermnuneration for non-audit fees Is not given in the individual financial stotements as the Group
cccounts are required to comply with regulation 5{1Xk) of the Companies (Disclosure of Auditor Remuneration and
Liability Limitation Agreements) Regulaticns 2008 and present the information on a consclidated basis.

The Company is a guarantor in respect of the Group's revolving credit facilities.
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Golng concern
Based on the current projections and facilities in place, the Directors consider It gppropriate to continue to prepare
the financial statements on o going concern basls.

Investments
Inveslrnents In subsidiary undertakings are stated in the balance sheet of the Company cit cost, or nominal value of the
shares Issued as consideration where applicable, less provision for any Impdirment in value,

Share-basad payments

The grant by the Company of options and share cwards over Its equity Instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group Is treated as o copital contribution. The fair value of employee services rendered, measured

by reference to the grant date falr value, is recognised over the vesting period as anincrease to the investments In subsidiory
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity inthe Company financial staterments, The credit to equity is recognised
within Other reserves, as these amounts dre non-distributable at the Company level.

2 investments
2022 201
Carrylng value £000 £000
At 1 January 21,694 20,853
Share-based payments (note 7) 2,612 841
At 31 December 24,3046 21,694

During 2022 and 2021, a number of subsidiary companles granted options and share awards to their employees over the shares
of SMS. For accounting purposes, these grants are recorded as investrments by the Company in its subsidiary undertokings.

Investments in subsidlarles are assessed annually to determine If there is any indication that any of the Investments might be
impaired. There were no material Inglcators of impairment at 31 December 2022 and therefore no iImpalrment charge has
been recognised in the year ended 31 December 2022,

Subsidiary undertakings
Detai's of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company, including those that are held Indirectly, are llsted in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

3 Debtors: amounts falling due ofter one year

2021
2022 ({restated)

£'000 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 407,125 444,828
4 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021

£000 £000
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 429 429

5 Related party transactions

The Group paid dividends to Alan Foy (whilst o Director) of £321,800 (2021: £906,9215), The Metis Trust! of £41,875 (2021; £230,625),
Metis Investments Limited? of £25,599 (2021 £387968), Tim Mortlock of £5,033 (2021: £1,507), Gavin Urwin (whilst a Director) of
L£458 (2021: £153), Mirlam Greenwood of £7177 (2021: E6129), Graeme Bissett of £5,796 (2021 £4,116) and Jomle Richards of
£1,389 (2021: £1,002).

1 Alan Foy Is a trustee but not o beneficiary.
2 Alun Foy Is a Director and shareholder.
3 Paki to a connected parson.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6 Share capltal
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Allotted ond called up:;
133,277,009 ordinary shares of £0.01 each (2071 133,521,555 ordinary shares of £0.01 each) 1,534 1,333

During the year 75,454 (2021: 921,447) ordinary share options were exercised in relation to the Group’s employee share plans
which are described innote 28 ta the consolidated financial statements. The ordinary shares issued have d nominal value of
£755 (2021: E9,000) and oggregate conslderation of £285,000 (2021; £1,627,000) was recelved,

The Group’s Share Incentive Plan is administered by the Smart Metering Systems SIP Trust, which acquires shares in SMS
(own shares) to satisfy awards under this plan and facilltate the delivery of shares to participants. At 31 December 2022,
145,821 (2021: 139,055} own shdres were held in trust with a carrying value of £955,000 (2021 £825,000) and a market value
of £1,225,000 {2021: £1,162,000), The Campany purchased 48,900 shares (2021: 34,191) from the market during 2022 with

a weighted average fair value of £8.08 per share (2021 £8.15),

7 Other reserves

Other reserves are non-distributable and include the following Items:

« greserve that initiclly arose by applying merger relief under sectlon 612 of the Companies Act 2006 to the shares Issued in
2609 In connection with the Group restructuring. Additionally, the premium of £4,189,000 and £1,115,000 arising on the Issue
of sharas as part of the acquisitions of CH4 Gas Utility and Maintenance Services Limlfted ('CH4'), Trojan Utliities Limited
("Trojan’) and Qton Solutions Limited {'Qton’) has been credited to this reserve; and

+ g share-bdsed payment reserve, arlsing as ¢ result of the grant by the Company of optlons and share awards over
its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group.

8 Dividends

Please refer to details in note 8 to the Group financial statements.
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